

Manufacturing User Guide

Sage (UK) Limited Copyright Statement

© Sage (UK) Limited, 2007. All rights reserved

If this documentation includes advice or information relating to any matter other than using Sage software, such advice or information is provided for information purposes only. While Sage takes responsible steps to ensure the accuracy and completeness of such information, it can only be general in nature. You should therefore take appropriate steps to ensure it is correct and relevant to your circumstances. You should also consider taking professional advice when appropriate, for example to ensure that the results obtained from using the software comply with statutory requirements.

No part of this documentation may be copied, photocopied, reproduced, translated, microfilmed, or otherwise duplicated on any medium without prior written consent of Sage (UK) Limited, publisher of this work.

Use of the software described in this documentation is subject to Sage (UK) Limited's Licence Agreement enclosed with, or displayed by, that software.

Sage, the Sage logo, and other Sage logos and brands are either registered trademarks or trademarks of Sage (UK) Limited, or its holding company, The Sage Group PLC. All other marks are trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective owners.

Sage (UK) Limited North Park Newcastle upon Tyne NE13 9AA Issue date: 31/01/2009 Pbn No: 13698

Contents

Welcome	1
Using this Guide What Manufacturing Does Getting Started Using Demonstration Data Documentation Summary	2
Introducing Manufacturing	11
What is in Manufacturing? The Manufacturing Modules Setting Up Manufacturing Processing Data in Manufacturing	12 13 14 16
Manufacturing System Manager	19
Changing Manufacturing System Manager Lists Settings System Utilities Registers	20 21 43 47
Bill of Materials	
Planning a BOM Introducing Costs Introducing Version Control Amending Stock Details Entering Settings for BOMs Viewing Settings for BOMs Creating a BOM Amending a BOM Deleting a BOM Copying a BOM Controlling a BOM Using Trial Kitting Costing a BOM Resequencing BOMs Finding Maximum Build Quantity Viewing BOM Component Details Preparing BOM Reports	

Maintaining BOMs	159
Estimating	167
Entering Settings for Estimates	168
Viewing Settings for Estimates	177
Creating an Estimate	178
Creating Multiple Estimates	209
Amending an Estimate	214
Amending Multiple Estimates	216
Deleting an Estimate	219
Copying an Estimate	220
Printing an Estimate	222
Costing an Estimate	223
Creating a Sales Order	224
Converting an Estimate into a Works Order	226
Converting an Estimate into a BOM	228
Releasing All Stages	229
Run Mail Merge	230
Managing Multiple Estimates	231
Preparing Estimating Reports	237
Cancelling an Estimate	238
Maintaining Estimates	239
Introducing Planning	241
How Planning Works	242
Creating Demands for Planning	244
Creating the Master Production Schedule (in MPS)	245
Considering the Material Requirements (in MRP)	248
Modifying Recommendations	249
Actioning Recommendations	250
Changing Planning Lists	251
Finding Out More about Planning	252
Make to Stock	253
Creating a Make to Stock Item	254
Amending a Make to Stock Item	256
Deleting a Make to Stock Item	257
Entering Repeating Items	258
Preparing Make to Stock Reports	260

Sales F	orecasts	
	Creating a Sales Forecast	262
	Amending a Sales Forecast	264
	Deleting a Sales Forecast	265
	Copying a Sales Forecast	
	Preparing Sales Forecasts Reports	267
MPS (N	Naster Production Schedule)	269
	Entering Settings for MPS	270
	Viewing Settings for MPS	275
	Reading Demands	276
	Removing Items from MPS	278
	Linking Sales Orders	279
	Unlinking Sales Orders	281
	Excluding Items	282
	Including Items	
	Processing Items That Are Not Manufactured	284
	Viewing Time Phased Demand	
	Preparing MPS Reports	286
	liaterial Requirements Planning)	
	Entering Settings for MRP	
	Entering Settings for MRP Viewing Settings for MRP	287 288 297
	Entering Settings for MRP Viewing Settings for MRP Running MRP	
	Entering Settings for MRP Viewing Settings for MRP Running MRP Looking at the Content of the MRP Output Log	
	Entering Settings for MRP Viewing Settings for MRP Running MRP Looking at the Content of the MRP Output Log Amending Recommendations	
	Entering Settings for MRP Viewing Settings for MRP Running MRP Looking at the Content of the MRP Output Log Amending Recommendations Splitting Recommendations	
	Entering Settings for MRP Viewing Settings for MRP Running MRP Looking at the Content of the MRP Output Log Amending Recommendations Splitting Recommendations Combining Recommendations	
	Entering Settings for MRP Viewing Settings for MRP Running MRP Looking at the Content of the MRP Output Log Amending Recommendations Splitting Recommendations Deleting Recommendations	
	Entering Settings for MRP Viewing Settings for MRP Running MRP Looking at the Content of the MRP Output Log Amending Recommendations Splitting Recommendations Combining Recommendations Deleting Recommendations Actioning Recommendations	
	Entering Settings for MRP Viewing Settings for MRP Running MRP Looking at the Content of the MRP Output Log Amending Recommendations Splitting Recommendations Combining Recommendations Deleting Recommendations Actioning Recommendations Viewing Stock Projection	
	Entering Settings for MRP Viewing Settings for MRP Running MRP Looking at the Content of the MRP Output Log Amending Recommendations Splitting Recommendations Combining Recommendations Deleting Recommendations Actioning Recommendations Viewing Stock Projection Viewing Tags and Exceptions	
	Entering Settings for MRP Viewing Settings for MRP Running MRP Looking at the Content of the MRP Output Log Amending Recommendations Splitting Recommendations Combining Recommendations Deleting Recommendations Actioning Recommendations Viewing Stock Projection Viewing Tags and Exceptions Viewing Demand Forecast	
	Entering Settings for MRP Viewing Settings for MRP Running MRP Looking at the Content of the MRP Output Log Amending Recommendations Splitting Recommendations Combining Recommendations Deleting Recommendations Actioning Recommendations Viewing Stock Projection Viewing Tags and Exceptions Viewing Demand Forecast Preparing MRP Reports	
Graphic	Entering Settings for MRP Viewing Settings for MRP Running MRP Looking at the Content of the MRP Output Log Amending Recommendations Splitting Recommendations Combining Recommendations Deleting Recommendations Actioning Recommendations Viewing Stock Projection Viewing Tags and Exceptions Viewing Tags and Exceptions Viewing Demand Forecast Preparing MRP Reports	
Graphic	Entering Settings for MRP Viewing Settings for MRP Running MRP Looking at the Content of the MRP Output Log Amending Recommendations Splitting Recommendations Combining Recommendations Deleting Recommendations Actioning Recommendations Viewing Stock Projection Viewing Stock Projection Viewing Tags and Exceptions Viewing Demand Forecast Preparing MRP Reports How Graphical Planner integrates with MRP	
Graphic	Entering Settings for MRP Viewing Settings for MRP Running MRP Looking at the Content of the MRP Output Log Amending Recommendations Splitting Recommendations Combining Recommendations Deleting Recommendations Actioning Recommendations Viewing Stock Projection Viewing Stock Projection Viewing Tags and Exceptions Viewing Demand Forecast Preparing MRP Reports cal Planner How Graphical Planner integrates with MRP Setting Up Graphical Planner within Planning	

Works Orders	335
Changing Works Orders Lists	
Entering Settings for Works Orders	
Viewing Default Settings for Works Orders	354
Creating Works Orders	355
Amending a Batch Works Order	358
Amending a One-Off Works Order	
Linking Works Orders	
Unlinking Works Orders	
Printing Works Order Documents	
Printing Labels	
Amending Picking Lists	
Checking a Works Order is Ready to be Made	
Updating Non-stock Deliveries	
Allocating Stock	404
Issuing Stock and Reversing Stock Issues	
Scrapping Finished Items	417
Scrapping Components	419
Substituting Traceable Components	
Entering Operation Times and Costs	
Posting Actual Times and Costs to Works Orders	
Making Postings for Non-stock/Other Expenses	
(One-off Works Orders Only)	438
Costing a Works Order	
(Batch Works Orders Only)	442
Creating/Updating BOM	
(Batch Works Orders Only)	444
Converting a One-off Works Order into a BOM	
(One-off Works Orders Only)	445
Enquiring on Orders	
Viewing Tags and Exceptions	
Viewing Subcontracting Operations	
(Batch Works Orders Only)	
Waiting to be posted	450
Monitoring Employees Logged onto Works Orders	452
Maintaining Works Orders	454
Preparing Works Orders Reports	455
Cancelling Works Orders	459
Completing Works Orders	460

Closing Works Orders	470
Creating an Estimate from a Completed Works Order	
(One-off Works Orders Only)	471
Deleting Works Orders	472
Operation Times	473
How Operation Times integrates with Works Orders	474
Setting Up Operation Times within Works Orders	474
Using Operation Times	
Monitoring Activity	474
Glossary of Terms	475
List of Acronyms	
Glossary	477

Chapter 1 Welcome

Sage 200 Manufacturing is a .Net application which puts you in control of your manufacturing business.

The Manufacturing modules are:

- Manufacturing System Manager
- Bill of Materials
- Estimating
- Make to Stock
- Sales Forecasting
- MPS (Master Production Scheduling)
- MRP (Materials Requirements Planning)
- Works Orders

All of the above modules are described within this guide.

Note: All modules are covered by the Sage 200 Software Licence Agreement. For more information on the licence agreement see your *Sage 200 Accounting System Manager* documentation.

In this chapter:

Using this Guide	2
What Manufacturing Does	3
Getting Started	7
Documentation Summary	9

Using this Guide

This User Guide provides information on how to use the Sage 200 Manufacturing modules. We hope you find it comprehensive and easy to use.

If you want to email your comments, please email the Sage Documentation team at: SageTechnicalAuthors@sage.com and mark the subject line as 'Sage 200 Manufacturing'.

Process-oriented approach

This User Guide describes processes that you will go through when using the Manufacturing modules. For example:

- Creating and editing a BOM (bill of materials).
- Converting an estimate into a works order.
- Producing a master production schedule.
- Completing a works order.

Conventions

To make it easy for you to follow the procedures in this guide, the instructions are written using the following conventions.

- A step by step procedure always starts in the same format and continues as a series of numbered steps.
- Italic text is used to refer to other sections of the guide or to other guides.

There is also consistent use of command words within the procedures, such as:

- Choose from a drop-down list.
- Select an option button, check box or an item from a list.
- Click a command button, an option from a toolbar or a tab.

What Manufacturing Does

Sage 200 Manufacturing consists of the following modules:

- Manufacturing System Manager on page 19
- Bill of Materials on page 99
- Estimating on page 167
- Four planning modules: Make to Stock on page 253, Sales Forecasts on page 261, MPS (Master Production Schedule) on page 269 and MRP (Material Requirements Planning) on page 287.

Note: Introducing Planning on page 241 provides an overview of the planning modules.

Works Orders on page 335

The Manufacturing System Manager module is where you set up commonly used settings, to run system wide utilities, such as importing and to enter information in registers for use across more than one Manufacturing module.

	Manufacturing System Manager		
	Settings	Registers	
Bill of Materials	Highlight Colours, Overhead Recovery, Quantity Calculator, Analysis Codes, Customiser	Labour , Machine, Operations, Drawing	
Estimating	Highlight Colours, Overhead Recovery, Quantity Calculator, Analysis Codes, CustomiserLabour, Machine, Operations, Drawing, Prospects, Employees, Stage Templates, Expense Types		
Make to Stock	Quantity Calculator, Customiser		
Sales Forecasts	Quantity Calculator, Customiser		
MPS	Highlight Colours, Non-Working Periods, Quantity Calculator, Customiser, Maintain Roles		
MRP	Highlight Colours, Maintain Warehouse Hierarchy, Non-Working Periods, Customiser, Quantity Calculator, Maintain Roles		
Works Orders	Highlight Colours, Overhead Recovery, Maintain Warehouse Hierarchy, Quantity Calculator, Nominal Settings, Analysis Codes, Customiser	Labour Categories, Non-Chargeable Time, Certificates of Conformity, Employees, Expense Types	

The following diagram will help you to understand the way that information flows through the Accounts and Manufacturing modules.

BOMs (bill of materials), estimates, sales forecasts and items to make for stock all feed into the production plan in the MPS module.

When you do not have sufficient stock in the Stock Control module to supply demand raised by sales orders, this is fed through into the MPS module also.



Within Manufacturing

Sage 200 Manufacturing caters for the following manufacturing environments.

Repetitive Batches

If you are working in a repetitive batch environment, you can use the Trial Kitting option (see *Using Trial Kitting* on page 146) within Bill of Materials. Trial Kitting checks whether you can build a specified quantity of any BOM. It identifies and displays shortages.

Planning allows you to calculate and display the resources required to satisfy sales orders (Make to Order) and production for stock (Make to Stock). If the materials are not in stock, you can raise purchase orders for them within the Purchase Order Processing module.

The BOM, created using Bill of Materials feeds into the plan.

Once you have sufficient stock you can generate works orders to fulfil the BOM. You can generate works orders in the following ways.

- From a plan (see Actioning Recommendations on page 250).
- By direct entry (see *Creating Works Orders* on page 355 and *To create one-off works orders* on page 356).
- From the Trial Kitting window (see Using Trial Kitting on page 146).

From the works order, you can allocate and issue the stock. When the works order is complete, the stock is recognised within the Stock Control module. You can then proceed with your sales orders in the Sales Order Processing module.

Note: Purchase orders can be raised within the MRP module.

One-off jobs

If you are in a one-off jobbing environment, the estimate feeds into the plan.

Information for the estimate is drawn from the Stock Control module and from the Manufacturing Labour, Machine and Operations registers. You enter all expected costs for each stage of the job under each of the eight job cost types.

When you turn the estimate into a works order (see *Converting an Estimate into a Works Order on page 226*) you can raise purchase orders for the works order in the Purchase Order Processing module.

From the works order, you can allocate and issue the stock. When the works order is complete, the stock is recognised within the Stock Control module. You can then proceed with your sales orders in the Sales Order Processing module.

Using Graphical Planner

You can physically plan and shift around your time and resources, using Graphical Planner. This will help you to deliver the stock you need to meet the sales orders raised in Sales Order Processing.

For more information on graphical planner, see your Sage Graphical Planner documentation.

Graphical Planner does not need to be installed onto every machine which is running Manufacturing, but it must be installed on every machine which will require access to it.

Note: For every machine that requires access, it is necessary to register and activate Graphical Planner individually. Registration requires a connection to the Internet to enable the software.

For information on installing and registering Graphical Planner, refer to your *Sage Graphical Planner* documentation.

Getting Started

Note: Formal training in the use of your Manufacturing system is highly recommended. Sage run training courses which are of help to both new and more experienced users.

To start using Manufacturing, follow these key steps.

- Ensure that customer and supplier details are set up in your Sales Ledger and Purchase Ledger modules. For more information, see your Sage 200 Sales Ledger and Purchase Ledger documentation.
- Ensure that your Stock Control, Sales Order Processing and Purchase Order Processing modules are set up. For more information, see your Sage Stock Control, Sales Order Processing and Purchase Order Processing documentation.
- Enter your system wide settings and set up the system wide registers in the Manufacturing System Manager module. These are described in the *Manufacturing System Manager* on page 19.
- Enter your Bill of Materials, Estimating, MPS, MRP and Works Orders module settings.
 For more information, see the following sections:
 - Entering Settings for BOMs on page 106.
 - Entering Settings for Estimates on page 168.
 - Entering Settings for MPS on page 270.
 - Entering Settings for MRP on page 288.
 - Entering Settings for Works Orders on page 337.
- Create base data needed by Manufacturing. For example, set up your Manufacturing data.
 Note: Sage recommends that you use the demonstration data provided to work out how to create your own 'live' base data.

Using Demonstration Data

The best way to become familiar with Manufacturing is to practise. Sage 200 includes demonstration data. Sage recommends that you practise setting up the system and processing data, using the demonstration data provided.

Note: For the purpose of practising, it is recommended that you install Sage 200 on a standalone computer. Therefore, you can learn the system without affecting any of your real information.

To access the demonstration data in Sage 200

• Refer to the *Sage 200 System Administration help* for instructions on how to set up a company that accesses your demonstration data.

How to use the demonstration data

Start using Manufacturing by experimenting with the demonstration data. Try moving around the windows and familiarise yourself with the elements of the program. If you are not sure how to do this, the operation of the interface is described in the *Sage 200 help*.

As you work through this guide and the instructions, you can practise any function that you are unsure of. The demonstration data is fully interactive and you can enter information into the data set to try out the function and work within the system.

Remember, you are not on your own. Follow the guidance given in this chapter initially. Refer to the relevant parts of the guide for a fuller explanation of the procedures and processes. You also have the Manufacturing help system at your disposal, which you can search at any time. Press F1 to display help information about the window you are in.

Note: All details in the demonstration data are fictitious. Any similarities in the demonstration data with real names, addresses or other company details, past or present, is coincidental.

Documentation Summary

The following section provides a summary of the documentation.

Note: For information on operating the Sage 200 desktop, refer to Sage 200 help.

Introducing Manufacturing

This section describes how the features of the Manufacturing program work together to provide you with what you need. Checklists are supplied for setting up your system and processing your data.

For more information, see Introducing Manufacturing on page 11.

Manufacturing System Manager

This section describes how to enter settings such as analysis codes, which are used in more than one module. It also describes how to use system wide utilities such as importing data. Commonly used registers, such as Prospects, Stage Templates and Expenses are also described.

For more information, see Manufacturing System Manager on page 19.

Bill of Materials

This section describes how to set up and use a BOM (bill of materials). This is essential if you are manufacturing in repetitive batches as production is based around the BOM.

For more information, see Bill of Materials on page 99.

Estimating

This section describes how to set up and use estimates. This is essential if you are manufacturing one-off jobs as production is based around the estimate.

For more information, see Estimating on page 167.

Planning

This section provides an introduction to the planning modules. You can plan with or without consideration for potential sales, or you can plan according to material requirements. In material requirements planning, you can look at stock projections in relation to demand, and generate appropriate recommendations.

For more information, see Introducing Planning on page 241.

Make to Stock

This section describes how to create demand by entering items to make to stock with no consideration for potential sales.

For more information, see Make to Stock on page 253.

Sales Forecasts

This section describes how to create demand with a consideration for potential sales.

For more information, see Sales Forecasts on page 261.

Master Production Schedule (MPS)

This section describes how to read all demands and provide a schedule for future production of finished items and sub-assemblies.

For more information, see MPS (Master Production Schedule) on page 269.

Material Requirements Planning (MRP)

This section describes how to view stock projections for demand listed within MPS. It describes how to generate recommendations to fulfil stock requirements. You also learn how to action recommendations to create purchase orders or works orders, as required. This ensures uninterrupted manufacturing of items listed within MPS.

For more information, see MRP (Material Requirements Planning) on page 287.

Works Orders

This section describes how to create, complete and cancel works orders. You can allocate and issue stock, scrap components and finished items and enter operation times and costs. You can also learn how to record certificates of conformance for products produced and despatched. User-definable certificates may be printed for entries in the register.

For more information, see Works Orders on page 335.

Glossary of Manufacturing Terms

This section lists frequently used Sage 200 Manufacturing terms and their meanings.

For more information, see *Glossary of Terms* on page 475.

Chapter 2

Introducing Manufacturing

This chapter provides an overview of how to set up and use your Manufacturing system.

Important! Sage recommends that you follow the checklists in this chapter for setting up your system and processing your data. This ensures you begin using your manufacturing system on a strong foundation and can use it to its maximum efficiency.

Once you have read this chapter, refer to the remaining chapters to begin working in detail with the modules. The checklists in this chapter point to other places in the documentation for further information.

In this chapter:

What is in Manufacturing?	12
The Manufacturing Modules	13
Setting Up Manufacturing	14
Processing Data in Manufacturing	16

What is in Manufacturing?

Sage 200 Manufacturing follows the manufacturing process from beginning to end. It provides vital information needed to help control costs and maintain efficiency.

The Bill of Materials module lets you list the products and components that make up a product. The Trial Kitting option lets you check whether you have sufficient stock to build a quantity of any BOM. It also lets you identify shortages. If there are shortages, you can raise purchase orders to cover these within Purchase Order Processing. From within Trial Kitting, you can create works orders, sales orders, or add the BOM to the list of make to stock items.

The Estimating module lets you provide accurate and timely quotations of work for one-off jobs. You can create works orders, BOMs or sales orders from your estimates.

Demands for stock are read within the MPS module to produce a master production schedule. There are four sources for demands: sales orders, estimates, make to stock items and sales forecasts.

The material requirements to fulfil orders and other demands are calculated within the MRP module. To fulfil the requirements, you can raise purchase orders within Purchase Order Processing, or further works orders in Works Orders.

You can create works orders manually, in addition to creating them automatically from Trial Kitting, Estimating and MRP. You can allocate and issue stock for orders within the Works Orders module. The stock levels are automatically updated within the Stock Control module as you do this.

Traceability of goods is determined by the 'Batch & serial numbered items' settings in the Stock Control module. Batch and serial numbers can be assigned when goods are received in Purchase Order Processing and Sales Order Processing modules. You are prompted to specify batch and serial numbers when you allocate or issue stock within the Works Orders module. Batch and serial numbers are also created when completing works orders.

Certificates of Conformity, confirming products are manufactured to ISO quality standards, can be produced from within Manufacturing System Manager.

In addition to smooth production planning, works order processing and resource management, Manufacturing works with Graphical Planner. Graphical Planner enables production to be planned effectively.

Manufacturing also has an Operation Times module. This runs alongside Works Orders and puts you in control of your manufacturing shop floor operation times.

The Manufacturing Modules

Module	Description	
Manufacturing System Manager	Use this module to enter information or perform actions that apply across many Manufacturing modules.	
Bill of Materials	Use this module to create, amend, delete, copy and cost BOMs.	
Estimating	Use this module to create, amend, copy, print, recost, cancel and delete estimates.	
Planning	Use the planning modules to collate production demand and generate a list of recommendations to satisfy that demand.	
	 Make to Stock 	
	Use this module to create demand by entering items to make to stock with no consideration for potential sales.	
	 Sales Forecasts 	
	Use this module to create demand with a consideration for potential sales.	
	MPS	
	Use this module to consider all demands and provide a schedule for future production of finished items and sub-assemblies.	
	MRP	
	Use this module to view stock projections in relation to demand and generate appropriate recommendations. You can raise purchase orders and works orders from the recommendations, if required.	
Works Orders	Use this module to enter works orders manually, or to update automatically generated works orders with progress information. As works orders progress, you can allocate and issue stock to them, cost them, complete them and close them. You can print various works order documents and amend the picking list, if required. You can also cancel works orders if they are no longer required.	
Operation Times	Use this module to control your manufacturing shop floor operation times. For more information, see your <i>Sage 200 Operation Times</i> documentation.	

Setting Up Manufacturing

Before processing data, you must set up the system so it will work in the way that you want. The following table suggests a typical setup sequence. The setup sequence you use depends upon your business and how you intend to use your Manufacturing software. You can adapt the checklist as not all of the listed topics will be applicable.

Identify those parts of the checklist that apply to you. Refer to the 'For more information' sections to read in detail about setting up those parts of the system. Once you understand what you want to achieve, follow the suggested sequence and set up your system. Refer to the checklist on processing data for assistance in how to use the system on a regular basis (see *Processing Data in Manufacturing* on page 16).

Manufacturing operations contain details relating to labour and machine processes. You can set up operations and labour and machine process details for individual BOMs or estimates. However, you can set up your operation, machine and labour process details in the Operations Register, Machine Register and Labour Register first. Thereafter, you can easily include labour and machine costs and re-use operations in many BOMs or estimates in future. This can significantly reduce the time spent in setting up BOMs or estimates.

Note: You do not need to set up these details if you only want to include raw materials or component costs.

What	t you need to do	For more information	Applies to you
1.	Set up supplier and customer details, stock control system, sales order processing and purchase order processing defaults.	See Sage 200 documentation for the Sales Ledger, Purchase Ledger, Stock Control, Sales Order Processing and Purchase Order Processing modules.	
2.	Set up Overhead Recovery Settings and Analysis Codes and ensure that Nominal Settings are correct.	See Settings on page 21.	
З.	Enter details in the Labour Register.	See Labour Register on page 47.	
4.	Enter details in the Machine Register.	See Machine Register on page 50.	
5.	Set up the Operations Register.	See <i>Operations Register</i> on page 54.	
6.	Enter details in the Drawing Register.	See Drawing Register on page 62.	
7.	Set up expense categories.	See Expense Types on page 88.	

Wha	t you need to do	For more information	Applies to you
8.	Set up labour categories.	See Labour Categories on page 82.	
9.	Set up employee details.	See Employees on page 84.	
10.	Set up non-chargeable time categories.	See <i>Non-chargeable Time</i> on page 90.	
11.	Review and amend non-working periods.	See <i>Non-working Periods</i> on page 26.	
12.	Set up Bill of Materials.	See <i>Planning a BOM</i> on page 100.	
13.	Set up Estimating.	See Entering Settings for Estimates on page 168.	
14.	Set up MPS (Master Production Schedule).	See Entering Settings for MPS on page 270.	
15.	Set up MRP (Materials Requirements Planning).	See Entering Settings for MRP on page 288.	
16.	Set up Works Orders.	See Entering Settings for Works Orders on page 337.	
17.	Add BOMs.	See Creating a BOM on page 117.	

Processing Data in Manufacturing

Important! Before processing data, you must set up the system so it will work in the way that you want. For more information, see *Setting Up Manufacturing* on page 14.

Processing information through Manufacturing follows a series of logical steps. These reflect the way events happen in business.

The following table suggests a typical processing sequence. The processing sequence you use depends upon your business and how you intend to use your Manufacturing software. You can adapt the checklist as not all of the listed topics will be applicable.

Identify those parts of the checklist that apply to you. Make any additions or substitutions that you need for your organisation. Refer to the 'For more information' sections to read in detail about how to perform the processing steps.

Proces	ssing Steps	Where	For more information	Applies to you
1.	Add BOM, if working in a repetitive batch environment.	Bill of Materials	<i>Creating a BOM</i> on page 117.	
2.	Add estimate, if working in a one-off jobbing environment.	Estimating	<i>Creating an Estimate</i> on page 178.	
3.	Receive the sales order.	Sales Order Processing	See your <i>Sage 200 Sales</i> <i>Order Processing</i> documentation.	
4.	Allocate existing stock to Sales Order.	Stock Control	See your Sage 200 Stock Control documentation.	
5.	Add Make to Stock items, if you are planning to build items to stock.	Make to Stock	<i>Creating a Make to Stock Item</i> on page 254.	
6.	Add sales forecasts, if you are planning to build stock based on sales forecasts.	Sales Forecasts	Creating a Sales Forecast on page 262.	
7.	Plan production, based on sales order shortfalls plus items to be made for stock.	MPS	See <i>Reading Demands</i> on page 276.	

Proces	ssing Steps	Where	For more information	Applies to you
8.	Ensure sufficient resources are available to meet the production plan.	MRP	See <i>Running MRP</i> on page 298.	
9.	Take necessary action where shortfalls occur.	MRP	See Actioning Recommendations on page 319.	
10.	Raise purchase orders.	MRP and Purchase Order Processing	See <i>Running MRP</i> on page 298 and your <i>Sage 200</i> <i>Purchase Order Processing</i> documentation.	
11.	Raise works orders.	MRP and Works Orders	See Running MRP on page 298, Creating Works Orders on page 355 and To create one-off works orders on page 356.	
12.	Allocate raw materials against works orders.	Works Orders	See Allocating Stock on page 404.	
13.	Print picking lists, route cards, job cards and operation cards, as required.	Works Orders	See Printing Works Order Documents on page 396.	
14.	Receive goods.	Purchase Order Processing	See your Sage 200 Purchase Order Processing documentation.	
15.	Issue component/raw materials stock.	Works Orders	See Issuing Stock and Reversing Stock Issues on page 409.	
16.	When manufacturing is complete, put finished goods into stock.	Works Orders	See Closing Works Orders on page 470.	
17.	Despatch goods by raising a despatch note.	Sales Order Processing	See your Sage 200 Sales Order Processing documentation.	

Proces	ssing Steps	Where	For more information	Applies to you
18.	Raise invoice.	Sales Order Processing	See your Sage 200 Sales Order Processing documentation.	

Note: Before working with 'live' data, practise first with the demonstration data provided. For more information, see *Using Demonstration Data* on page 8.

Chapter 3 Manufacturing System Manager

This section describes how to enter settings such as analysis codes, which are used in more than one module. It also describes how to use system wide utilities such as importing data. Commonly used registers, such as Prospects, Stage Templates and Expenses are also described.

In this chapter:

Changing Manufacturing System	
Manager Lists	20
Settings	21
System Utilities	43
Registers	47

Changing Manufacturing System Manager Lists

You can display lists for the registers in the Manufacturing System Manager work area: Each list is used for performing actions and working with the different types of record.

To select a list

From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, choose the record type and choose the record type list.

The title of the work area changes to correspond to the list you choose and the selected list appears in the work area.

For example

To select the Drawing Register List, choose Drawing Register and then choose Drawing Register List.



The Manufacturing System Manager work area title changes to Drawing Register and the work area shows the list of drawings held.

For more information on the Sage 200 desktop, see Sage 200 help.

Settings

Settings defined in the Manufacturing System Manager are used in more than one manufacturing module.

For example, Analysis Codes and Overhead Recovery Settings are used in the Bill of Materials, Estimating and Works Orders modules.

Maintain Warehouse Hierarchy and Nominal Settings apply within the Works Orders module only.

Other settings are: Highlight Colours, Non-Working Periods, Quantity Calculator Defaults, Customiser Settings, Custom Layouts, Maintain Roles and Desktop Settings. These settings apply within a mix of the Manufacturing modules. In the case of Desktop Settings, this applies throughout the entire Sage 200 suite.

Analysis Codes

(Bill of Materials, Estimating, Works Orders)

You can attach up to five analysis codes to BOMs, estimates and works orders for analysis purposes during reporting. For more information, see *To enter Analysis Codes* on page 21.

To enter Analysis Codes

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Settings > Analysis Codes.

The Analysis Codes window appears.

9	
motive	
ing	
nical	
	·
ronics	
h	
h	
t	

- 2. To build a table of analysis codes to use, click the Codes tab.
- 3. Enter the analysis code headings here. Use the TAB key to create a new heading line.
- 4. Click the Labels tab and enter label descriptions to group the codes. The screen labels appear next to the analysis code boxes in the Bill of Materials, Estimating or Works Orders windows. In the following example, labels for 'Area' and 'Industry Type' are already set up.

MFC	G - Analysis Codes	
Codes	IS Labels	
Ana	alysis Code Labels	
#1	Area	
#2	Industry Type	
#3		
#4		
#5		
·		
		<u>OK</u> <u>C</u> ancel

5. To save your analysis codes, click OK.

Note: Each time you want to apply analysis codes, you can now select from this list.

Highlight Colours

(Bill of Materials, Estimating, MPS, MRP, Works Orders)

You can assign colours to display certain items within Manufacturing windows. For example, using Highlight Colours, you can assign colours to errors, shortages, sub-assemblies, phantoms, and items at risk.

To highlight colours

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Settings > Highlight Colours.

Error	Red	*	Rapid Estimate Materials	Khaki	~	
Shortage	Red	~	Rapid Estimate Non-Stock	Pink.	~	
5ub-Assembly	RoyalBlue	~	Rapid Estimate Operations	Thistle	~	
Phantom	DeepSkyBlue	~	Rapid Estimate Other Expenses	LightGreen	~	
Out of Range	Red	~	Actioned/Deleted MRP Recs	YellowGreen	~	
Not Fully Alloc/Issued	Purple	~	At Risk	Khaki	~	
Highlight	SaddleBrown	~	Single Batch Shortage	Red	~	
.ate	LightCoral	~	Single Batch Item	Lime	~	
/ariance	Red	~	No Warehouse	Maroon	~	
Works Order Issue	Green	×				

The Define Highlighting Colours window appears.

- 2. Select the colours that you want to use for the items.
- 3. To revert to the colours set up as defaults on installation, click Revert to defaults.
- 4. To save the colours, click OK.

Maintain Warehouse Hierarchy

(MRP, Works Orders)

Before running MRP or allocating or issuing stock in Works Orders you must define a hierarchy of supply warehouses. The hierarchy determines which warehouses are checked for stock during these processes.

MRP checks all warehouses in the hierarchy. Recommendations to raise purchase orders or works orders are made if there is not enough stock in the warehouses to meet the demands.

Works Orders checks only those warehouses in the hierarchy which have been made 'Valid for component source' in Stock Control. Stock can only be allocated or issued from those warehouses in the hierarchy. For more information, see your *Sage 200 Stock Control* documentation.

To maintain warehouse hierarchy

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders, and choose Setup > Maintain Warehouse Hierarchy.

The Maintain Warehouse Hierarchy window appears.

- 2. Select the warehouse for which you want to maintain a hierarchy of supply warehouses.
- 3. Click Edit.

The Edit Warehouse window appears.

Warehouse Name	
FACTORY	
SHOWROOM	

4. Select the warehouses to include in the hierarchy of supply warehouses.

Note: MRP checks all selected warehouses during planning. In order to allocate or issue stock from the warehouse in Works Orders, you must make the warehouse 'Available for component source' within 'Stock Control'. For more information, see your *Sage 200 Stock Control* documentation.

5. Click OK.

Non-working Periods

(MPS, MRP)

You can enter periods when the company shuts down. This information is used in the MPS and MRP modules when calculating capacities and start/end dates of jobs.

Note: United Kingdom public holidays for the next five years are loaded into the system prior to installation. You can amend, delete or add new dates to the list.

To maintain non-working periods

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Settings > Non-Working Periods.

Description	From	То	
New Years Day	03/01/2005	03/01/2005	
Good Friday	25/03/2005	25/03/2005	
Easter Monday	28/03/2005	28/03/2005	
Early May Bank Holiday	02/05/2005	02/05/2005	
Spring Bank Holiday	30/05/2005	30/05/2005	144
Summer Bank Holiday	29/08/2005	29/08/2005	ŕ
Boxing Day	26/12/2005	26/12/2005	
Christmas Day	27/12/2005	27/12/2005	
New Years Day	02/01/2006	02/01/2006	
Good Friday	14/04/2006	14/04/2006	
Easter Monday	17/04/2006	17/04/2006	
Early May Bank Holiday	01/05/2006	01/05/2006	
Spring Bank Holiday	29/05/2006	29/05/2006	
Summer Bank Holiday	28/08/2006	28/08/2006	
Christmas Day	25/12/2006	25/12/2006	
Boxing Day	26/12/2006	26/12/2006	
New Years Day	01/01/2007	01/01/2007	-

The Non-Working Periods window appears.

- 2. To add a date, scroll to the bottom of the window and click in a new line. Type in your Description and the From and To dates of the non-working period.
- 3. To amend a date, select the date and make the required amendment.
- 4. To delete a date, select the date and press F8.
- 5. To save your entries, click OK.

Overhead Recovery Settings

(Bill of Materials, Estimating, Works Orders)

The calculation of overhead recovery applies in Bill of Materials, Estimating and Works Orders. For accurate breakdown of overhead costs, you must enter overhead recovery settings before costing BOMs, entering estimates or works orders.

To provide details of overhead recovery settings to the support team, use the 'view only' version of the settings. For more information, see *To view overhead recovery settings* on page 27.

To enter overhead recovery settings

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Settings > Overhead Recovery Settings.

Cost Type	Default Recovery %		
Materials	10.00000		
Non-Stock Items	10.00000		
Labour	10.00000		
Machine	10.00000		
Setup	10.00000		
Tooling	10.00000		
Subcontract	10.00000		
Other Expenses	10.00000		

The Overhead Recovery Settings window appears.

2. Enter the percentage to be recovered for the different expense types.

Manufacturing accumulates the totals for overhead recovery as costs are entered.

Note: Set the percentage rate to '0' (zero) to suppress overhead calculations for a cost type.

If nominal integration is switched on in Stock Control, nominal postings are made automatically when you complete works orders. Postings are made to the nominal codes set up within Manufacturing System Manager (see *Nominal Settings on page 37*). The WIP Account is set within the works order details (see *The Additional Details tab (Batch Works Order) on page 362*.

3. To save Overhead Recovery Settings, click OK.

To view overhead recovery settings

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Settings > View Overhead Recovery Settings.
- 2. When you have finished viewing the settings, click Close.

Quantity Calculator

The Quantity Calculator applies across all Manufacturing modules. It helps you enter values into numeric boxes. If you use a calculation often, you can set this up as a default in the Quantity Calculator. You can also use the quantity calculator, to apply different calculations at different points in the program.

Note: You can change the default calculation in the calculator at any time. However, this does not change values generated using the old default calculation. You must revisit the numeric boxes and recalculate the values.

To set up a default formula

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Settings > Quantity Calculator Defaults.

INPUT VALUE	[Input Value]	
A	0.000	Percent
В	0.000 💼	Percent
c	0.000 💼	Percent
D	0.000	Percent
E	0.000 📷	Percent

The Quantity Calculator Defaults window appears.

- 2. Enter the operators (+, -, /, *), selecting from the down arrow alongside 'A', 'B', 'C', 'D' and 'E'.
- 3. Enter the values for the calculation. These can be actual values or percentage values.
 - To enter a percentage value, enter the value and select the Percent check box alongside the value.

For example, you could set up the Quantity Calculator default calculation as follows:
INPUT VALUE		[Input Value]	
A	+ 🖌	10.000	Percent
В	* 🔽 🗌	10.000	Percent
c	- 🗸	5.000 👕	Percent
D		0.000 👕	Percent
E		0.000	Percent

The calculation works sequentially through lines. It starts with Input Value A and adds 10, to give Input Value B. It then multiplies Input B by 10% to give Input Value C and then deducts 5 to provide the final result.

4. To save the default calculation, click OK.

To use the Quantity Calculator

1. Place the cursor in a numeric box and press 'CTRL + Q'.

The Quantity Calculator appears and takes the value from the numeric box as your input value.

lain Details 🛛 Additi	onal Details	Site Address	Stages	Totals	Attached Files	INVO	CE DESCRIPTIO	Analysis	Codes Draw	ings 🛃
Estimate Details							Dates			
Estimate No.	EST0002			*			Entered	08/09/2008	3ī	
Product Code	MOU/210	EARS		~			Due Date	08/09/2008	31	
Description	21 Gears						Last Lindated	08/09/2008	—	
Warehouse	FACTOR	Quantity	Calcula	tor			×	11	I Ou	tlook
No.of Pieces	30,	ot Enter Fig	ures					-		
	1	INPUT VA	LUE		30.0000	0 11				
-Customer Details		A		+ ~	10.00000		Percent			
A/C	GRE001	в		* ~	10.0000	0 11	Percent	L		
Name	Greene R	a c		- ~	5.000	0 11	Percent			
Contact		D		v	0.0000	0 11	Percent			
Reference No.		Е		v	0.0000	0 11	Percent			
Ourselike Decelor	1	Result		=	155.0	0000	CODY	1		
Quantity breaks	0.17				1. Downed				s	C 1
Yes	Quantity 1.00000	4				ЭК	Cancel	553.4	Price Unit Or 1486 Each	Sale
							,]		
			·							•

Note: Pressing 'Ctrl+Q' when you are not on a numeric field will display the Quantity Calculator without an input value.

2. If you have set up a default calculation, this is applied to the input value automatically. You can amend the default calculation and recalculate the result, if required.

Note: This only affects this specific calculation. It does not change the default calculation for the next use. If you want to change it for every use, you need to set up the default calculation again. For more information, see *To set up a default formula on page 28*.

- 3. To paste the result into numeric boxes within the program, click Copy. The value is stored on the clipboard.
- 4. To close the window, click OK.

If you opened the calculator whilst within a numeric box, the result is automatically inserted into the numeric box.

You can paste the result from the clipboard into any numeric box required.

Customiser Settings

You can change any button, box, frame, tab or column label on any screen within the system. You can therefore customise Manufacturing to show any industry or business specific terms.

The option also enables you to use data boxes for something other than what was originally intended. For example, in the food processing industry, operation 'set-up time' may be more appropriately called 'clean time'.

Note: Renaming boxes can lead to difficulties when telephoning Sage for support. However, you can revert to standard names for the support call and then switch back to your customised settings. For more information, see *To revert to standard names for support calls* on page 34.

To use the customiser

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Settings > Customiser Settings.

The Customiser Settings window appears.

🖷 MFG - Customiser Settings	- DX
Settings	
Active	
Use Customised Values	
Transfer Screen Changes Between Computers It is possible to transfer the list of customised values between of do this, click 'Export' on the computer with the customised value text file, and then click 'Import' on the target computer. Export Import Revert	computers. To es to produce a
OK	Cancel

- 2. To make changes using the customiser, select the Active and Use Customised Values check boxes.
- 3. To save the settings, click OK.

Note: You can now access the customiser by using 'Ctrl + S' from any form in the Manufacturing modules.

To make label changes using the customiser

- 1. Open the window containing the label that you want to change. Open a BOM record window as an example.
- 2. Press 'Ctrl + S'.

The Enter Values window appears.

Control Name	Control Type	Original Value	Customised Value	-
btnUndoCheckout	Button	Und&o Checkout	Und&o Checkout	1
ButtonImage	Button	&Image	&Image	Ť.
_Label2_9	Label	Manufacturing Instructions	Manufacturing Instructions	
_Label2_1	Label	Description	Description	
_Frame1_0	GroupBox	Main Details	Main Details	
_Label2_19	Label	Entered	Entered	1
_Label2_17	Label	Last Updated	Last Updated	1
_Label2_16	Label	Valid From	Valid From	
_Label2_5	Label	Valid To	Valid To	1
_Frame1_4	GroupBox	Dates	Dates	
chkCmpTraceability	CheckBox	Component Traceability	Component Traceability	1
chkOnHold	CheckBox	On Hold	On Hold	

3. Select the Control Name you want to change, and enter the amendment you require in the Customised Value column.

In the BOM record example, to change 'Manufacturing Instructions' to 'QA Procedures', you would do the following. Click in the Customised Value column in the '_Label2_9' row where the original value shows 'Manufacturing Instructions'. Type the new label in the Customised Value column.

Note: You may see multiple entries of the same column name appearing in the list. The same name can be used on many column headings on different views within the module. Take care in this case to select the column label that you want to change.

4. To save your changes, click OK and close the BOM record.

Note: The next time you select the BOM record, the label will have been replaced.

der Details Comp	onents Operations Attached Files Drawings L	atest Costs	Custom Fields	Analysis Codes
1ain Details			Dates	04/4.0/2007
QA Procedures	Bike Pack I - Aluminium Bike and Extras	< >	Last Updated Valid From Valid To	04/10/2007
Quality Standard/D Quality Standard Markup % Costing Quantity Stock Unit Default Scrap %	efaults 40.00000 ≝ Default 1.00000 ≝ Default Each 0.00 ≝	v	Type On Hold Component Phantom Private	Traceability

Note: If the label you changed appears elsewhere on the system you must repeat the above procedure for each window in which it appears.

To copy customised changes between computers

Note: Before following the steps below, ensure that you have made the label changes you want. For more information, see *To make label changes using the customiser on page 31*.

- 1. On the PC you are copying from, open the Customiser Settings window.
- 2. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Settings > Customiser Settings.

The Customiser Settings window appears.

AFG - Customiser Settings	
Settings	
Active	
Use Customised Values	
Transfer Screen Changes Between Computers It is possible to transfer the list of customised values between do this, dick 'Export' on the computer with the customised text file, and then click 'Import' on the target computer. Export Import Revert	ween computers. To d values to produce a
	OK Cancel

3. To transfer label changes to other network computers, on the PC you are copying from, click the Export button.

The Enter Customer List Name window appears.

- Select a location and enter a name for the exported file.
- Click Save.
- 4. On each PC you are copying to, open the Customiser Settings window.
- 5. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Settings > Customiser Settings.

The Customiser Settings window appears.

🖷 MFG - Customiser Settings	- DX
Settings	
Active	
Use Customised Values	
Transfer Screen Changes Between Computers It is possible to transfer the list of customised values between comp do this, click 'Export' on the computer with the customised values to text file, and then click 'Import' on the target computer. Export Import Revert	outers. To o produce a
ОК	Cancel

6. To transfer label changes to the computer, click the Import button.

The Select File to Import window appears.

- Select the location and the name of the file to import.
- Click Open.
- 7. To view the label changes, select the Active and Use Customised Values boxes.

To revert to standard names for support calls

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Settings > Customiser Settings.

The Customiser Settings window appears.

🖷 MFG - Customiser Settings	_ D ×
Settings	
Active	
Use Customised Values	
Transfer Screen Changes Between Computers It is possible to transfer the list of customised values between com do this, cick 'Export' on the computer with the customised values it text file, and then click 'Import' on the target computer. Export Import Reyert	nputers. To to produce a
ОК	Cancel

2. Clear the Use customised values box.

The system displays the standard names throughout the system.

Note: Do not use the Revert button! This clears all customised names from your system, permanently. Unless you have exported customised values and can import them again, you will need to re-enter them.

- 3. Call Support with your query.
- 4. When you have resolved your query, select the Use Customised values box again. The system displays the customised names again throughout the system.

To revert to standard names permanently

- 1. Take a backup of your customised system.
- 2. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Settings > Customiser Settings.

The Customiser Settings window appears.

🕮 MFG - Customiser Settings	-OX
Settings	
V Active	
Use Customised Values	
Transfer Screen Changes Between Computers It is possible to transfer the list of customised values between computer do this, click "Export" on the computer with the customised values to protext file, and then click "Import" on the target computer. Export Import Reyert	s. To iduce a
ОК	Cancel

Important Note! Before the next step, export the customised values, if you have not already done so (see *To copy customised changes between computers on page 33*). The

Revert button should only be used if you want to remove all customised names from your system.

- 3. To clear customised names from the system, click Revert.
- 4. Confirm that you want to revert to the standard settings, when prompted.

Note: The Active and Use Customised boxes remain selected. To ensure no more changes are made, you must clear the boxes after using Revert.

Nominal Settings

(Works Orders)

If Stock Control is set up to integrate with the Nominal Ledger, you can enter codes for nominal postings.

This lets you maintain accurate nominal records, such as labour, machinery and overhead recovery costs.

Note: To provide details of your settings to the support team, use the 'view only' version of the settings. For more information, see *To view nominal settings* on page 37.

To enter nominal settings

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Settings > Nominal Settings.

The Nominal Settings appear.

von-Stock Items	31100	SAL	ADM	Sales - Default
abour	44100	SAL	VAL	Materials - Purchases Resale V
Machine	44100	SAL	ADM	Materials - Purchases Default
Setup	38100	ADM	ADM	Sales of Assets
fooling	39300	ADM	ADM	Other - Royalties Received
Subcontract	39400	ADM	ADM	Other - Commissions Received
Subcontract Variance	31200	SAL	COM	Export Sales - Kitchens Compon
Other Expenses	91200	ADM	ADM	General Expenses
Overhead Recovery	5 3100	SAL	COM	Promotion - Sales Promotion
Work In Progress	91200	ADM	ADM	General Expenses
One-Off Accet Account	53100	SAL	СОМ	Promotion - Sales Promotion
ther Expenses verhead Recovery Vork In Progress	912005310091200	ADM SAL ADM	ADM COM ADM	General Expenses Promotion - Sales Promotion General Expenses

- 2. Enter nominal codes for the required categories.
- 3. To make one posting for labour or machinery per sub-assembly, select the 'Summarise nominal postings when building assemblies' check box.
- 4. To save your Nominal Settings, click OK.

To view nominal settings

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Settings > View Nominal Settings.

The View Nominal Settings window appears.

2. When you have finished viewing the settings, click Close.

Custom Layouts

Manufacturing modules offer a range of standard reports which are already defined in terms of content and layout. To start preparing reports, select the report from the Reports menu within the module menu structure.

For more information on preparing standard reports, see your *Sage 200 help*. For more information on the Manufacturing reports, see the relevant sections:

- Preparing BOM Reports on page 158.
- Preparing Estimating Reports on page 237.
- Preparing Make to Stock Reports on page 260.
- Preparing Sales Forecasts Reports on page 267.
- Preparing MPS Reports on page 286.
- Preparing MRP Reports on page 331.
- Preparing Works Orders Reports on page 455.

You can create custom layouts for the standard reports. Copy the standard layouts with alternative names. Then, amend the custom layouts as required.

Note: If you amend standard layouts, amendments by Sage to the standard reports will overwrite your changes.

Sage Report Designer is used to create or amend report layouts. For more information, see your *Sage Report Designer* documentation.

You must save custom layouts in the same folder as the standard report layouts. To make the layout available for use, you need to associate the custom layout with a standard report.

To associate custom layouts with standard reports

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager and choose Settings > Custom Layouts.

The Custom Layouts window appears.

Report Name	Custom Layout Filename	<u> </u>
Batch Job Sheet		~
Batch Operation Card		
Batch Picking List		
Batch Route Card		
Batch Works Order Tracking		
Bom Costing		
Certificate		
Certificate With Items		
Completed Order Label		
Estimate Quotation		
Estimate Quotation Qty Breaks		
Maximum Build		
One Off Job Sheet		
One Off Operation Card		
One Off Pickina List		•

- 2. Select the Custom Layout Filename for the Report Name.
- 3. To save the Custom Layout Filename, click OK.

The custom layout is used when you print the report.

To revert to standard reports

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Settings > Custom Layouts.

The Custom Layouts window appears.

- 2. Select the Custom Layout Filename for the standard Report Name and clear the box.
- 3. To save the change, click OK.

Maintain Roles

(MPS, MRP)

Roles are assigned against the stock item's contact details in Stock Control. You can create roles either here or within the stock item's contact details. For more information, see *Sage 200 Stock Control* documentation. Roles assist in the provision of items from specific warehouses. One role is allowed per contact. Within the planning settings General tab, you specify the contact role that represents the buyer (see *The General tab on page 271*). MRP uses this information to set the buyer code information against a recommendation.

To maintain roles

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Settings > Maintain Roles.

- DX
_
_
_
_
_
_
Cancel

The Maintain Contact Roles window appears.

- 2. Click in a line within the window to enter the role name, for example, 'Buyer'.
- 3. Repeat as many times as required.
- 4. To save the roles, click OK.

Desktop Settings

By default, lists in the Sage 200 suite refresh automatically. If this affects performance, you can switch off the automatic refresh.

To control automatic refresh

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Settings > Desktop Settings.

The Desktop Settings window appears.

🕮 MFG - Desktop Settin	igs	- DX
Settings	esktop	
	ОК	Cancel

- 2. To switch automatic refresh off, clear the check box.
- 3. To switch automatic refresh on, select the check box.
- 4. To apply the setting, click OK.

System Utilities

System utilities allow you to import and export data.

Importing and Exporting Data

You can import data from another system or program into your system. You can also export data so that it can be read or imported by another system or program. This is useful if you need to copy a lot of information between one system and another.

Note: You cannot import data directly from Sage 50 Manufacturing projects or from Sage 200 Bill of Materials. This data must be migrated using the Sage 200 Data Migration Tool. For more information, see your *Sage 200 Data Migration* documentation.

You can import and export the following data.

Bill of Material Components

The product code needs to relate to an existing active item of the type 'stock' or 'miscellaneous'.

When importing components that are serial number traceable, the quantity must be an integer.

The component unit of measure must exist on the stock item. If the quantity being imported does not match the stock item unit of measure, the quantity will be rounded to make it valid.

Note: The first time rounding occurs, you are prompted to accept or cancel the import operation. If you accept this prompt, any subsequent invalid quantities will be rounded automatically.

Bill of Material Headers

The BOM Reference needs to relate to a stock item that is marked as a built item. If version control is enabled, BOMs are given the status of 'new' and marked as 'checked in'.

Bill of Material Operations

The supplier account reference must exist in the Purchase Ledger.

- Drawings
- Employees
- Expense Types
- Labour Categories
- Labour Register
- Machines
- Non-Chargeable Time
- Operation Templates

You can import but not export the following data.

Make to Stock

The warehouse must be linked to the stock item.

Sales Forecasts

The warehouse must be linked to the stock item.

Imported data must be in the required format. This is a comma separated variable (CSV) file. The format of the files to import is provided within the software. For more information about the format, see *To display the required csv formats within the program on page 44*.

Note: When you export data it is exported in the same format.

To display the required csv formats within the program

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose System Utilities > Import.

The Import window displays.

5 MFG - Import	
Import Type	
Bill of Material Components Bill of Material Headers Bill of Material Operations Drawings	<u>^</u>
Employees Expense Types Labour Categories Labour Register	
Machines Make to Stock Non-Chargeable Time Operation Templates	~
Import File	
Filename	Browse
Click <u>here</u> to view import structures.	Iest Import Run Close

2. Click '<u>here</u>' to view the structures required for the import file. The structures are displayed in an explorer help screen.

You can print these for reference.

To import data

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager and choose System Utilities > Import.

The Import window appears.

Bill of Material Components	 _	
Bill of Material Headers		
Bill of Material Operations		
Employees		
Expense Types		
Labour Categories		
Labour Register Machines		
Make to Stock		
Non-Chargeable Time		20
Operation Templates		×
Tonovt Eila		
Import file		
Filename		
		Duruna
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		Browse

- 2. Select the type of data you want to import.
- 3. Enter the path to the data file you want to import. Alternatively, use the Browse button to locate the file.
- 4. Click Test Import to test that the data is in the required format. If not, you cannot proceed with the import. You will need to check the format and try again.
- 5. If the data is in the required format, click Run to begin the import. A confirmation prompt appears.
- 6. To confirm that you want to import the data, click Yes. The data is imported.

To export data

Export works in a similar way to Import except that you are able to select ranges of records to export if you require.

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose System Utilities > Export.

The Export window appears.

MFG - Export			
Type of Information to Export			
Bill of Material Components Bill of Material Headers Bill of Material Operations Drawings Employees Expense Types Labour Categories Labour Categories Labour Register			
Data to Export			
From	To To		~
Fields to Export			
BinLocation BomReference Buildssue Description HeaderID HoldQuantity ID Location	 >> << >> < Default 		
Export File			
Filename		[Browse
		Run	Close

- 2. Select the Type of Information to Export.
- 3. Select Data to Export.

By default, 'Export all records' is selected. To export a selection of records, clear the check box and use the From and To boxes provided.

- 4. Select the Fields to Export in one of the following ways:
 - Use the double chevrons to select all the fields.
 - Use the single chevrons to move individually selected fields.
 - Click Default to select the default fields required for subsequent import.
- Enter the Export File destination path and filename.
 Note: You can use the Browse button to locate the destination.
- Click Run to begin the export.
 A confirmation prompt appears.
- 7. To confirm that you want to export the data specified, click Yes. The data is exported.

Registers

Registers defined in Manufacturing System Manager may be used in more than one manufacturing module.

For example, Operations Register is used in Bill of Materials and in Estimating. Non-Chargeable Time is used in Works Orders.

Other registers are Labour, Machine, Drawing, Prospects, Employees, Stage Templates, Expense Types, Labour Categories and Certificates of Conformity.

Labour Register

(Bill of Materials, Estimating)

You can enter details of labour manufacturing processes, including times and related costs, in the Labour Register. These can then be used in Bill of Materials and Estimating as required.

To add a labour process

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Labour Register > Enter New Record.

Details		
Reference	~	
Description		
r∕lemo		<u>~</u>
Hourly Charge Rate	0.00000 @	×
Group		
Overhead Recovery %	0.00	

An empty Labour Details window appears.

- 2. Enter a Reference for the labour process.
- 3. Enter a Description for the process (for example, cutting, drilling, assembly, inspection).
- 4. Enter any notes in the Memo box.
- 5. Enter an Hourly Charge Rate for the process. This is used as a default when adding the labour process to a BOM or estimate operation.

6. Enter or select a labour resource Group.

Graphical Planner assigns works orders or works order recommendations to a specific labour resource or to a labour resource group. If you have several resources defined in the group, Graphical Planner uses the first available resource in the group.

- 7. Amend the Overhead Recovery %, if required. The default value shown was set in Overhead Recovery Settings. For more information, see *Overhead Recovery Settings* on page 27.
- 8. To save the process, click Save.

To amend a labour process

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Labour Register > Amend Record.

An empty Labour Details window appears.

- 2. Select the labour Reference from the Reference drop-down list.
- 3. Make amendments to the labour record details where necessary.
- 4. To save the amended record, click Save.

To delete a labour process

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Labour Register > Amend Record.

An empty Labour Details window appears.

- 2. Select the labour Reference from the Reference drop-down list.
- 3. Click Delete.
- 4. Confirm the deletion when prompted.

To print labour register reports

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Labour Register > Reports.
- 2. From the Reports menu, select the required report:
 - List Detailed
 - List Summary

To customise labour register reports

You can edit or copy reports, or create a new report, using Sage Report Designer. Report Designer is available as part of your Sage application. For more information see your Sage Report Designer documentation.

Note: We advise you to copy your existing report layouts before you edit them. If you edit the standard report layouts, future amendments by us will overwrite your changes.

Machine Register

(Bill of Materials, Estimating)

The Machine Register holds details (including hourly rates) of machines used in manufacturing processes. You can store serial numbers, calibration intervals, repair history and so on with the details. These can then be used in Bill of Materials and Estimating as required.

To add a machine record

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Machine Register > Enter New Record.

1ain Details	Other Details	Calibration History	
- Detaile			
Deferen			
Referen		~	
Descripti	on		
Memo			~
			2
Hourly C	harge Rate	0.00000 iii	
Full Serv	ice	0 iii hours.	
Ordinary	Service	0 iii hours.	
Group		×	
Overhea	ad Recoverv %	10.0000	

An empty Machine Details window appears.

2. Enter the information required according to the following descriptions.

Reference	Enter a reference for the machine.
Description	Enter a description for the machine.
Memo	Enter any notes relating to the machine.
Hourly Charge Rate	Enter an hourly charge rate for the machine. This is used by default when the machine is used for a BOM or estimate operation.

Full Service	Enter the number of hours the machine can operate before it requires a full service. This is for reference only.
Ordinary Service	Enter the number of hours the machine can operate before it requires an ordinary service. This is for reference only.
Group	Enter or select a machine resource group.
Overhead Recovery %	Amend the Overhead Recovery %, if required. The default shown was set in Overhead Recovery Settings. For more information, see <i>Overhead Recovery Settings</i> on page 27.

3. To continue entering the Machine Details, click the Other Details tab.

The Other Details information appears.

ain Details Other Details	Calibration History	
Type Serial No Location Original Certificate Source of Calibration Calibration Dimensions Range/Accuracy Calibration Interval	0 👌 days.	

- Enter any information which describes the machinery.
- Enter a number of days for the Calibration Interval.

Note: Manufacturing uses the interval to calculate the next calibration date.

4. To continue entering the Machine Details, click the Calibration History tab. The Calibration History information appears.

ast Calibration	Result	Next Calibration	Repairs	Notes
	_			

Enter the Last Calibration date.

Note: Manufacturing calculates the next calibration date using the Calibration Interval entered on the Other Details tab.

- Enter the Result of the last calibration, details of any Repairs and any further information in the Notes box.
- 5. To save the machine details, click Save.

To amend a machine record

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Machine Register > Amend Record.

An empty Machine Details window appears.

- 2. Select the machine Reference from the drop-down list.
- 3. Make amendments to the machine record details, where necessary. For a description of the boxes, see *To add a machine record* on page 50.
- 4. To save the amended machine record, click Save.

To delete a machine record

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager and choose Machine Register > Amend Record.

An empty Machine Details window appears.

2. Select the machine Reference from the drop-down list.

- 3. Click Delete.
- 4. Confirm the deletion when prompted.

To print machine register reports

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Machine Register > Reports.
- 2. From the Machine Register Reports menu, select the required report:
 - List Detailed
 - List Detailed (By Machine Reference)
 - List Summary
 - List Summary (By Machine Reference)
 - Calibration Record
 - Due for Calibration

To customise machine register reports

You can edit or copy reports, or create a new report, using Sage Report Designer. Report Designer is available as part of your Sage application. For more information, see your Sage Report Designer documentation.

Note: We advise you to copy your existing report layouts before you edit them. If you edit the standard report layouts, future amendments by us will overwrite your changes.

Operations Register

(Bill of Materials, Estimating)

The Operations Register includes labour and machine processes used in manufacturing processes.

You can store setup times, time to completion, tooling costs and piece work or subcontract operation details.

Operations are used within Bill of Materials and Estimating modules. Details entered in the Operations Register act as defaults. You can change the details within individual BOMs or estimates.

To add an operation

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Operations Register > Enter New Record.

An empty Operation Details window appears.

OP - Operation Deta	ls	
Main Details Options R	source Details	
Main Details		
Reference	*	
Description		
Notes		^
		×
Do not print this Or	ration	
Save Clear	Delete	Close

2. Enter the information required according to the following descriptions.

Reference	Enter a unique operation Reference.
Description	Enter an operation Description. This appears on works order documentation.

Notes	Enter additional information relating to the operation. You can add notes to works order documentation by amending the report layout. Customising works order documentation works in the same way as customising works order reports. For more information, see <i>To customise works orders reports on page 458</i> .
Do not print this Operation	Select this check box if you do not want to print the operation on documentation, for example, route cards.

 To continue entering Operation Details, click the Options tab. The Options information appears.

Qty Per Run /Run Time Defaults Qty Per Run Blours Minutes Update Resource Details	Delay/Overlap/Shrinkage Delay - Hours Delay - Minutes Overlap (%) Shrinkage (%) 0.00	Tooling Cost 0.00 iii Quantity 0.00 iii € •	
Setup Hours Minutes Rate 0.00000 iii Total 0.00000	Subcontract Subcontract Details	Piece Work ☐ Piece Work Rate 0.00000	

4. Enter the information required according to the following descriptions.

Qty Per Run	Enter a Qty Per Run/Run Time Defaults amount in the relevant boxes.			
	For example, if the cycle time for 1000 finished items is five hours, enter:			
	'Qty Per Run' 1000			
	'Run Time' 5 Hrs 0 Mins.			
	This would be exactly the same as entering:			
	'Qty Per Run' 2000			
	'Run Time' 10 Hrs 0 Mins.			
	Note: Any related combinations may be used.			
Update Resource Details	To enter Hours and Minutes values into the Time Needed boxes on the Resource Details tab, click Update Resource Details.			
Setup	Enter machine setup time needed and the appropriate rate. Manufacturing multiplies these to arrive at a cost.			
	To add setup time to the labour time required, select the 'Include in labour requirement' check box.			
Delay/Overlap/Shrinkage	To control the gap between completing this operation and starting the next, choose one of the following options.			
	 To lengthen lead time, enter the required delay time in the Delay - Hours and Delay - Minutes boxes. This is used by Graphical Planner to calculate time that must elapse before the next operation starts. 			
	• To start the next operation before the current one finishes, enter a percentage in the Overlap (%) box. This percentage of the current operation can be overlapped with the next operation. Graphical Planner uses this to calculate the operation duration that must elapse before the next operation starts. This enables subsequent operations to start earlier. Lead time is shortened for scheduled works orders or recommendations using the operation.			
	 To shrink operation time shown on route cards or job 			

 To shrink operation time shown on route cards or job sheets, enter a percentage in the Shrinkage (%) box.

Subcontract	If the operation is subcontracted to an external organisation or department, select the Subcontract check box and click Details. For more information, see <i>Subcontract Details</i> on page 58.
Tooling	Enter the tooling Cost, plus the related Quantity of finished items you can produce for the cost.
Piece Work	If cost is based on number of items completed, rather than an hourly rate, select the Piece Work check box.
	Enter a cost in the Rate box and number of items completed for that rate in the Per Quantity box. For example, 'Rate' = 220.00 ; 'Per Quantity' = 10.

5. To continue entering Operation Details, click the Resource Details tab. The machine and labour resource information appears.

Machine		Labour	
Reference	*	Reference	~
Description		Description	
Memo		Memo	
		~	~
Charge Rate	0.00000 📷	Charge Rate	0.00000 🖬
Time Needed	Hrs. Mins.	Time Needed	Hrs. Mins.
Total Cost	0.00000	Total Cost	0.00000
		Base No. People	1.00 🜩

6. Enter the information required according to the following descriptions.

Machine	Enter the reference for the machine required for the operation.
	Note: The machine must be defined in the Machine Register. For more information, see <i>Machine Register</i> on page 50.
	The time to make the (previously entered) quantity per run is displayed by default. You can amend this if required.
Labour	Enter the reference for the labour process.
	Note: The labour process must be defined in the Labour Register. For more information, see <i>Labour Register</i> on page 47.
	The time required to make the (previously entered) quantity per run is displayed by default. You can amend this if required.
	Enter the Base No. People required to complete the operation in the stipulated time. Depending on the Bill of Materials setting (see <i>The Costing/Trial Kitting tab on page 112</i>), you can calculate labour costs based upon the value entered here. If one hour is needed, at a rate of \pounds 7.50, but the job requires two people, the calculated cost is 1 x \pounds 7.50 x 2 = \pounds 15.00.

7. To save your Operation Details, click Save.

Subcontract Details

There are two tabs of information for subcontract details. You enter details of the charges for the subcontract operation, using the Details tab. Charges can be on a 'per-item' basis, or in bands. You enter details for the subcontract operation orders, using the Ordering tab.

To enter subcontract details

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Operations Register > Enter New Record or Amend Record.

The Operation Details window appears.

- 2. Enter the operation details (see *To add an operation* on page 54) or select the operation you want to amend.
- 3. Click the Options tab.

4. Select the Subcontract check box and then click Details. The Subcontract Details window opens.

Subcontract				
From	То	Rate		Hours Off-Site
0.00000	0.00000	0.00000 iii	🔲 Per Item	0.00 🛊
1.00000 🔢	0.00000 🔳	0.00000 📷	🔲 Per Item	0.00
1.00000 📷	0.00000 📷	0.00000 iii	Per Item	0.00 🔹
1.00000 📷	0.00000 📷	0.00000 📷	🗌 Per Item	0.00
1.00000 📷	NO LIMIT	0.00000 🔢	Per Item	0.00
Auto Ceperate		F	Saturday	Sunday

- 5. To generate price band quantities automatically, click Auto Generate and enter the band details.
- 6. Select the Per Item check boxes if charges shown are for each item within the band. Leave the check boxes clear if charges shown are for any quantity within the band.
- Enter the number of hours items are likely to be off-site. This is for scheduling purposes. Select the Saturday check box if the Hours Off-Site figure includes Saturdays. Select the Sunday check box if the Hours Off-Site figure includes Sundays.
- 8. Click the Ordering tab.

The Ordering information appears.

upplier			
4/C	~	Lead Time	0 🔹 days.
tem Details			
Order Narrative			
Details			(A)
			<u></u>

9. Enter the information required according to the following descriptions.

A/C	Enter the account number of the preferred subcontractor for the operation.
Lead Time	Enter a Lead Time. Suggested order dates are based on job start dates.
Order Narrative	Enter an Order Narrative and any additional information to use on subsequent purchase orders.
Details	Enter text to be placed as an S3 item on any Purchase Orders raised by Manufacturing. For more information, see <i>Allocating Stock</i> on page 404.

10. To save the subcontract details, click OK.

To amend an operation

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Operations Register > Amend Record.

An empty Operation Details window appears.

- 2. Select the operation that you want to amend from the Reference drop-down list.
- 3. Make amendments to the operation record details where necessary. For more information, see *To add an operation* on page 54.
- 4. To save the amended operation record, click Save.

To delete an operation

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Operations Register > Amend Record.

An empty Operation Details window appears.

- 2. Select the operation that you want to delete from the Reference drop-down list.
- 3. Click Delete.
- 4. Confirm the deletion when prompted.

To copy an operation

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Operations Register > Copy Operation.

The Copy Operation window appears.

*

- 2. Select the Reference for the source operation. The description is displayed automatically in the Description box.
- 3. Enter a Reference for the new operation.
- 4. Enter a Description for the new operation.
- 5. Click OK to display the confirmation screen.
- 6. To confirm the copy, click Yes.

To print operation reports

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Operations Register > Reports.
- 2. From the Reports menu, select the required report:
 - List Detailed
 - List Detailed (By Reference)
 - List Summary
 - List Summary (By Reference)

To customise operation reports

You can edit or copy reports, or create a new report, using Sage Report Designer. Report Designer is available as part of your Sage application. For more information, see your Sage Report Designer documentation.

Note: We advise you to copy your existing report layouts before you edit them. If you edit the standard report layouts, future amendments by us will overwrite your changes.

Drawing Register

(Bill of Materials, Estimating)

The Drawing Register allows you to keep a record of all drawings relating to manufactured items. Details include the drawing reference number, revision details, and the physical location of the drawing. Drawings can be cross referenced to BOMs or estimates. This causes the drawing reference number and latest revision date to appear on works order documentation.

To add a drawing

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Drawing Register > Enter New Record.

nain Decails	Revision Details	Product/Customer	Attached Files	Used Un	memo	-		
-Main Detai	s					Dates		
Drawing N	0.		~			Valid From	11	12
Description	י					Valid To	11	[2
- Storage D	etails							
Title					1			
Author					1			
Design Pa	:kage				1			
Location					1			
Index Nur	her				1			
Madia Tun	•							
modia ryp	•	*						

An empty Drawing Details window appears.

2. Enter the information required according to the following descriptions.

Drawing No.	Enter a reference number for the drawing.
Description	Enter a drawing description.
Dates	Enter validity dates for the drawing, if required.
Storage Details	Enter details about where the drawing is stored. You can record a physical location of the drawing. For example, the drawing could be on paper stored in a particular cabinet, or saved on CD-ROM in a specific box.

3. To continue making changes to the drawing details, click the Product/Customer tab. The Product/Customer information appears.

				_	_	_	 	
lain Details	Revision Details	Product/Customer	Attached Files	Used On	Memo			
-Product/C	ustomer							
Product C	ode		~					
Descriptio	n		1000					
Customer	A/C		~					
Name								
	-			_				

Note: All product/customer entries are optional.

4. Enter the information required according to the following descriptions.

Product Code	Enter the product code to which the drawing relates. The description appears automatically.
Customer A/C	Enter the Sales Ledger account reference to which the drawing relates. The Name appears automatically.

5. To continue making changes to the drawing details, click the Attached Files tab. The Attached Files information appears.

🗏 DRAW - D	rawing Details						-DX
Main Details	Revision Details	Product/Customer	Attached Files	Used On	Memo		
File Name					Description		
Attach	File At	tach Folder					

6. To attach a file or folder to a Drawing record, click Attach File or Attach Folder as appropriate.

An Open or Choose File(s) window appears.

- Select the file or folder you want to attach to the Drawing.
- Click Open if a file, or OK if a folder.

Note: You can only select one file or folder at a time.

The file or folder appears in the Attached Files list.

- To open a file or folder, click it.
- Enter a description for each attachment, if you require. This is for information only.
- To delete an attached file, select it in the Attached Files list and press F8.
 The file is removed from the drawing; it is not removed from your computer.
- To continue making changes to the drawing details, click the Memo tab. The Memo information appears.
| 🕮 DRAW - Drawing Details | - DX |
|----------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------|
| Main Details Revision Details Product/Customer Attached Files Used On Memo | |
| | ~ |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| Save Clear Delete | ⊆lose |

- 9. Enter any notes you require.
- 10. To save your Drawing details, click Save.

To amend a drawing

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Drawing Register > Amend Record.

An empty Drawing Details window appears.

- 2. Select the drawing that you want to amend from the Reference drop-down list.
- 3. Amend the details on the Main Details, Product/Customer, Attached Files and Memo tabs as required. For more information, see *To add a drawing* on page 62.
- 4. Click the Revision Details tab.

The Revision Details information appears.

lain Details	Revision Details	Product/Customer	Attached Files	Used On M	emo	
Davisian I	Sec. 1					
Revision	Jecalis					
Revision	Number					
Last Revi	sion Date	[2]				
Revision	Details					~
						12
<u></u>						
Add	History					

5. Enter the information required according to the following descriptions.

Revision Number	Enter the drawing revision number.
Last Revision Date	Enter the Last Revision Date.
Revision Details	Enter any details of the latest revisions made.

- To add a new revision to the revision history, click Add.
 This updates the history with the details shown on the Revision Details tab. It clears the boxes so they are ready for new information.
- 7. To view a list of previous revision, click History.

The Revision History window appears.

- Click Close to return to the Revision Details tab.
- To continue making changes to the drawing details, click the Used On tab.
 The Used On information appears, showing if the drawing is linked to a BOM or an estimate.

5	DRAW - D	rawing Details				
M	lain Details	Revision Details	Product/Customer Attached	Files Used On	Memo	
	Туре	Reference			Description	
			No Bill	of Materials or E	Estimates to display	
	Save	Clear	Delete			

Note: The Type column identifies the record as either BOM or Estimate.

- 9. To view the BOM or the estimate, double-click on an entry in the list.
- 10. When you have finished amending your drawing details, click Save.

Note: If you are amending a drawing which is attached to BOMs or estimates, click Yes at the prompt. This updates the details stored in the Bill of Materials and Estimating modules.

To delete a drawing

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Drawing Register > Amend Record.

An empty Drawing Details window appears.

- 2. Select the drawing that you want to delete from the Reference drop-down list.
- 3. Click Delete.
- 4. To confirm the deletion, click Yes when prompted.

To print drawing reports

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Drawing Register > Reports.
- 2. From the Reports menu, select the required report:
 - List Detailed
 - List Detailed (By Account Reference)

- List Detailed (By Author)
- List Detailed (By Drawing Reference)
- List Detailed (By Product Code)
- List Summary
- Valid To
- Valid To (By Date)

To customise drawing reports

You can edit or copy reports, or create a new report, using Sage Report Designer. Report Designer is available as part of your Sage application. For more information, see your Sage Report Designer documentation.

Note: We advise you to copy your existing report layouts before you edit them. If you edit the standard report layouts, future amendments by us will overwrite your changes.

Stage Templates

(Estimating)

Stage templates are used within Estimating. Stages are the main elements into which an estimate can be broken down. For example, a design stage, a manufacture stage or an install stage.

All estimates must have at least one stage. If you are using full estimate or multi-item estimate entry, you must enter at least one stage for the estimate, when it is created. When you create a stage template, you can specify if you want it to be added automatically to estimates that are full estimate entry or multi item entry. If you are using rapid estimate entry, a default stage is used for the estimate. This default stage is specified within Estimating Settings.

Setting up stage templates lets you enter estimates more quickly. You can modify the stage information for the individual estimates as you enter them.

When you set up stage templates, you have the option to update operations. This lets you update Operations Register automatically, with changes made to labour and machine hourly rates.

To create stage templates

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Stage Templates > Enter New Record.

The Stage Template Details window appears.

🖷 EST - Stage Tem	plate Details				- DX
Details Reference Description	×			🗌 Auto	matically add to Estimates
Stock Items Non-Sto	ck Items Operations Other Expen	ses Totals Memo	Cost Price	Total Unit Of Sale	Supplier A/C Supplier Ref
	·		l		
•		•			>
Manufactured I	item 📕 Phantom				Total 0.00000
Save C	ear Delete				⊆lose

- 2. Enter a Reference and Description for this template.
- 3. If you want the stage to be added automatically to new full estimates or multi-item estimates, select the Automatically add to Estimates check box.

The stage will have a status of Entered and its Due Date will be that on the Estimate header.

Note: The stage will not be added automatically to estimates if you create estimates using the following methods:

• Convert a BOM to an estimate.

Choose Estimating > Enter New Estimate - Full and select a product code which is an existing BOM.

Create a rapid entry estimate.

Choose Estimating > Enter New Estimate - Rapid.

- Create a one-off estimate.
 Choose Works Orders >Create Estimate from One-Off.
- 4. Enter stock item information according to the following descriptions.

Note: Stock items are those which have a product record set up within the Stock Control module.

Stock Code	Enter or select the product code for the required component. The code must already exist in the Stock Control module.
	Stock items that have a BOM set up for them (manufactured items) are highlighted in blue by default. You can change this default colour, using the option <i>Highlight Colours</i> on page 23.
Description	The Stock Code description appears by default.
Quantity	Enter the number of items required.
	Note: If you enter a quantity which does not match the unit of sale, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.
Cost Price	Manufacturing defaults to the last price paid for the stock item selected. This may not be the price you want to include in your estimate. You can overwrite it, if required.
	Note: If you overwrite the price and recost the estimate, the price reverts to what is stored in Stock Control.
Total	Manufacturing calculates and displays the total cost.

- Unit of Sale The unit of sale (used by Manufacturing as a unit of purchase) is displayed. If required, select an alternative unit of sale, Note: If you amend the cost price, you must make sure the amended price relates to the units displayed. Supplier A/C Enter a supplier's account reference, if required. Supplier Ref If you have a supplier reference, enter this. Lead Time This is the purchase lead time that should be used to offset the start date. It can also be applied to manufactured items. If you define a supplier and lead time against a manufactured item (an item with a BOM defined), it will be purchased, not manufactured.
- Continue to enter stock items until complete.

To speed up the entry of lines within the Stock Items tab, try these shortcuts:

- F8 delete an item from the estimate.
- F7 insert a line into the estimate.
- F6 copy the contents of the above cell.

As you enter items, the total cost accumulates in the Total box.

Note: When you process estimates, using this template, sub-assembly requirements are automatically added by the MRP (Materials Requirements Planning) module.

5. To continue entering stage template information, click the Non-Stock Items tab. The non-stock items information appears.

sference			🗌 Auto	matically add to	Estimates		
ock Items Non-Stock Items Operations O	ther Expenses Totals	Memo					
Description	Quantity	Cost Price	Total	Unit Of Sale	Supplier A/C	Supplier Ref	Lead Time

6. Enter non-stock item information according to the following descriptions.

Note: Non-stock items are bought in especially for manufacturing and do not have a product record set up in the Stock Control module.

Description	Enter a description of the non-stock item.
Quantity	Enter a quantity required for this template.
Cost Price	Enter the estimated cost price.
Total	Manufacturing calculates the total cost by multiplying the quantity entered, by the price.
	Note: You can use the TAB key to move out of the Total field to ensure that the total figure is calculated.
Unit of Sale	Enter the units that this price relates to for future reference, if required.
Supplier A/C	Enter a supplier's account reference, if required.
Supplier Ref	If you have a supplier reference, then enter this.

Lead Time

This is the purchase lead time that should be used to offset the start date.

- Continue to enter non-stock items.
 As you enter items, the total cost accumulates in the Total box.
- 7. To continue entering stage template information, click the Operations tab. The Operations information appears.

EST - Stage Template Details Details Reference		Automatically add to	Estimates
Stock Items Non-Stock Items Operations Other Expense	es Totals Memo		
Reference	Description		Sequence
	Setup 0.00	Labour 0.00000 Machine Tooling 0.00000 Subcontract	0.00000
Save Clear Delete			⊆lose

Note: Manufacturing operations can come from the Operations Register, the Labour Register or the Machine Register.

- 8. To use operations defined in the Operations Register, click in the Reference box to display the Select Operation list. Select the operation. The operation details are entered against the estimate. You can amend these as required. For more information on the Operations Register, see *Operations Register* on page 54.
- 9. If you are not using operations defined in the Operations Register, enter operations header information.

Reference	Enter the operation reference.
Description	Enter the operation description

10. To amend operation details, click in the Description box.

The Operation Details window appears.

EST - Oper	ation C	tails	
Main Details	Options	Resource Details	
- Main Details			
Reference	Mount	in Bike Wheel Assembly	
Description	Assem	le Mountain Bike Wheel	
Notes	Ensur	all spokes are secure	~
			<u></u>
🔲 Do not pri	nt this O	eration	
			OK Cancel

Entering operation details here is almost the same as entering operation details in the Operations Register. For more information on entering operation details into the Operations Register, see *To add an operation* on page 54.

On the Options tab, confirm the number of pieces required by default for the stage. This is the number of individual items required to make each finished item.

Note: As you enter operation details, the total costs by category appear on the Resource Details.

- When you complete all the operation details, click OK to save your entry. You are returned to the Stage Details window.
- Continue to enter operations.
- To continue entering your stage template information, click the Other Expenses tab. The Other Expenses information appears.

🖷 EST - Stage Template Details		
Details Reference Description	×	Automatically add to Estimates
Stock Items Non-Stock Items Operations Other	Expenses Totals Memo	
Reference	Description	Quantity Cost Price Total
<u>I</u>		
		Total 0.00000
Save Clear Delete		⊆lose

Note: You can use this window to enter details of expenses that are not covered by the other cost categories. Select from a list of Other Expenses already set up. For more information, see *Other Expenses* on page 439.

12. Enter the information required according to the following descriptions.

Click in the Reference box and the down arrow appears. Click this and select the required expense Reference.
The Description appears automatically.
Enter the quantity of this expense item.
The default expected price appears in the Cost Price box. You can change this, if required.
When you enter a Quantity (and amend the Cost Price), the total updates.

• Continue to enter other expense items.

As you enter each item, the total cost accumulates in the Total box.

 To continue entering stage template information, click the Totals tab. The results of this stage are analysed under eight cost types.

ock Items Non-Stock Items	Operations	Other Expenses	Totals Memo			
Cost Type	Total Cost	Markup %	Selling Price	Margin %	Profit	
Stock Items	0.00000	10.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	
Non-Stock Items	0.00000	10.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	
abour	0.00000	10.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	
Aachine .	0.00000	10.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	
ietup	0.00000	10.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	
ooling	0.00000	10.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	
Subcontract	0.00000	10.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	
Other Expenses	0.00000	10.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	
TOTALS	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	
Revert to Default Marku	P		Overhead Recov	ery Amount	0.00000	

Note: Default mark-up percentages entered under Estimate Settings are applied.

The Margin % is calculated by taking the profit as a percentage of the selling price.

14. Amend the Mark Up % and/or Selling Price of any cost type, if required. When you make an amendment, affected values are automatically recalculated.

You can manipulate these values until they meet your own criteria, for example, minimum mark-up or margin percentages.

Note: To revert to default mark-up, click 'Revert to Default Markup'. The values are recalculated to the figures shown before you amended them.

You can return to previous entries you made under each cost type by clicking the appropriate tab. Amendments, deletions or additional entries are automatically reflected in the 'Totals' tab when you return to it.

- 15. The Overhead Recovery Amount box shows the total overheads recovered against the stage, based upon Overhead Recovery Settings. For more information, see *Overhead Recovery Settings* on page 27.
- 16. To continue entering stage template information, click the Memo tab. The Memo information appears.

🖷 EST - Sta	ge Template De	tails									
Details Reference Description			~				Auton	atically add	to Estimate	s	
Stock Items	Non-Stock Items	Operations	Other Expenses	Totals Me	mo						
										2	
										~	
Save	Clear	Delete								⊆lose	

Enter an unlimited amount of text.

Note: When text is entered, the tab header displays in capital letters. This indicates that text has been entered.

17. To save the template details, click Save.

To amend stage templates

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Stage Templates > Amend Record.

An empty Stage Template Details window appears.

- 2. Select the stage template that you want to amend from the Reference drop-down list.
- 3. Make any amendments to the stage template as required. For more information, see *To create stage templates* on page 69.
- 4. To save the amended template, click Save.

To delete stage templates

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Stage Templates > Amend Record.

An empty Stage Template Details window appears.

2. Select the stage template that you want to delete from the Reference drop-down list.

- 3. Click Delete.
- 4. Confirm the deletion when prompted.

To update operations

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Stage Templates > Update Operations.

The Update Operations window appears.

Stage Templates to Update	
Select tasks to perform	
Update labour and machine rates in Opera	ations Register
Update Stage Template Operations	
Operations - Update What?	
Operation Description/Notes	Labour Reference/Description/Notes
🗹 Qty Per Run	🗹 Labour Time
Run Time	🗹 Labour Rate
Setup Time	Delay/Overlap/Shrinkage
Setup Rate	🗹 Tooling
Machine Reference/Description/Notes	Piece Work
Machine Time	Subcontract
Machine Rate	

2. Select or clear the following check boxes in the first section, 'Select tasks to perform':

Update labour and	Select this check box to update the Operations Register
machine rates in	automatically with changes made in the Labour Register and
Operations Register	Machine Register.
Update Stage Template Operations	Select this check box to update Stage Templates automatically with changes in the Operations Register.

- 3. Select the required check boxes in the second section, 'Select tasks to perform'.
- 4. If you have selected the 'Update Stage Template Operations' check box, click the 'Stage Templates to Update' tab to select the stage templates to update.
- 5. To perform the selected updates, click OK.
- 6. Confirm that you want to update the selected tasks when prompted.

Prospects

(Estimating)

Manufacturing lets you store information about prospective customers. This information is used in Estimating. For more information about this, see *The Main Details tab* on page 183. When prospective customers become customers you can move the information to the Sales Ledger.

To create prospect records

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Prospects > Enter New Record.

1ain Details	Delivery Address	Contacts	Communication	Memo		
Account D	etails					
A/⊂		~				
Name						
Address						
City						
County						
Postcode						
Country						
VAT Num	per					

The Prospect Details window appears.

2. Enter an A/C reference for the prospect.

Note: We recommend that you choose a reference that does not exist in the Sales Ledger. Then, when you convert the prospect into a customer, you will not need to change the reference.

3. Enter the other information on the Main Details tab as required.

Note: You can only enter City, County and Country information if the Use Segmented Addresses option is selected in Accounting System Manager.

4. Click the Delivery Address tab and enter the delivery address details if required.

Note: You can only enter City, County and Country if the Use Segmented Addresses option is selected in Accounting System Manager.

5. Click the Contacts tab and enter contact details, if required.

- 6. Click the Communication tab and enter telephone and fax numbers and email and website addresses, if required.
- 7. Click the Memo tab and enter any notes required in the Memo box.
- 8. To save the record, click Save.

To amend prospect records

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Prospects > Amend Record.

An empty Prospect Details window appears.

- 2. Select the prospect that you want to amend from the Reference drop-down list.
- 3. Make amendments to the prospect record as required.
- 4. To save the amended prospect, click Save.

To delete prospect records

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Prospects > Amend Record.

An empty Prospects window appears.

- 2. Select the prospect that you want to delete from the Reference drop-down list.
- 3. Click Delete.
- 4. Confirm the deletion when prompted.

To create a Sales Ledger customer from details in the prospects database

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Prospects > Create Customer.

The Create Customer window appears.

Customer Details	
Prospect A/C	~
Customer Details	
New Customer A/C	
Shouk Mana	
Short Name	
Name	54

2. Choose the Prospect A/C from the drop-down list.

The New customer A/C defaults to the reference you entered for the prospect. The Short Name and Name shown are also those you entered for the prospect.

3. Amend the New Customer A/C, if required.

Note: You cannot enter an account that is already used in the Sales Ledger.

- 4. Amend the Short Name and Name for the New Customer A/C, if required.
- 5. To remove the prospect details from the Prospects Database and create a new entry in the Sales Ledger, click OK.

To print prospect reports

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Prospects > Reports.
- 2. From the Reports menu, select the required report:
 - Estimates for Prospect
 - List Detailed
 - List Summary

To customise prospect reports

You can edit or copy reports, or create a new report, using Sage Report Designer. Report Designer is available as part of your Sage application. For more information, see your Sage Report Designer documentation.

Note: We advise you to copy your existing report layouts before you edit them. If you edit the standard report layouts, future amendments by us will overwrite your changes.

Labour Categories

(Works Orders)

Labour Categories lets you group employees by function or skill. This is used in timesheet entry in Works Orders > Enter Costs. For more information, see *Entering Operation Times and Costs* on page 429.

If you use Operation Times, labour categories can be used with this too. For more information, see the *Sage 200 Operation Times* documentation.

Typical employees may be operatives, supervisors, apprentices, fitters and installers, for example. Generally, employees in a category are charged at the same rate. However, you can apply different rates to individual employees, regardless of category.

To add a labour category

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Labour Categories > Enter New Record.

The Labour Category Details window appears.

LAB - Labour Category Details	
Details	
Reference	~
Description	
Memo	~
Houriz	V
Charge 0.00000 III Rate	
Save Clear Délete	⊆lose

2. Enter a Reference for the labour category.

Note: You may find it helpful to incorporate at least some characters from the description in the code. For example, operative may have a reference of 'OP'.

- 3. Enter any appropriate notes in the Memo box.
- 4. Enter a default Hourly Charge Rate for the category. You can amend this for individual employees if required.
- 5. When you have entered all the required information, click Save.

To amend a labour category

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Labour Categories > Amend Record.

The Labour Category Details window appears.

- 2. Select the required category from the Reference drop-down list.
- Amend the information as required.
 For more information, see *To add a labour category* on page 82.
- 4. Click Save.

To delete a labour category

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Labour Categories > Amend Record.

The Labour Category Details window appears.

- 2. Select the required category from the Reference drop-down list.
- 3. Click Delete.
- 4. Confirm the deletion when prompted.

To print labour category reports

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Labour Categories > Reports.
- 2. From the Reports menu, select the required report.
 - List Detailed
 - List Summary

To customise labour category reports

You can edit or copy reports, or create a new report, using Sage Report Designer. Report Designer is available as part of your Sage application. For more information, see your Sage Report Designer documentation.

Note: We advise you to copy your existing report layouts before you edit them. If you edit the standard report layouts, future amendments by us will overwrite your changes.

Employees

(Estimating, Works Orders)

You can enter employee details and attach a default labour category to each employee.

When entering labour costs in Works Orders > Enter Costs > Timesheets, you can amend the category and hourly rate, if necessary. For more information, see *Entering Operation Times and Costs* on page 429.

Employees are also used in Operation Times. For more information, see the Sage 200 *Operation Times* documentation.

To add an employee record

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Employees > Enter New Record.

ain Détails Memo	Contact Details
Employee Decais Employee No. Title Surname First Name Address	Country: Area: Number: Telephone - - Fax + - Initials E-Mail -
City County Postcode	Additional Information Department NI No. Undepartment Und
Labour Category Details Reference Description Rate 0.00000	Started 1 / m Left 1 / m

The Employee Details window appears.

2. Enter the information required according to the following descriptions.

Employee Details	Enter an employee number of up to 10 letters and/or numbers.
	Note: You may find it helpful to incorporate at least some characters from the employee's name. For example, John Smith may have a number of SMI001.
	Complete the other boxes for the employee:
	Note: You can only enter City and County information if the Use Segmented Addresses option is selected in Accounting System Manager.
Contact Details	Enter the contact details, if required.
Labour Category Details	Enter the employee category Reference.
	Employees can be grouped according to function or skill, for example, operators and supervisors. These groups are set up under labour categories. For more information see <i>Labour Categories</i> on page 82.
	The Description and default Rate are displayed.
	If the default rate is not appropriate for this employee you can change it.
	Note: This only changes the rate for this employee, and not for the labour category.
Additional Information	Enter a Department that applies to this employee, if required.
	Note: If you are using Operation Times, you can print barcode reports by department.
	Enter the NI No. and Works No. if required.
	Enter the Clock No. if required.
	Enter the Started and Left dates.

 To continue adding employee details, click the Memo tab. The Memo information appears.

tals Memo	_
	1
	1
e Clear Dejete Close	

- 4. Enter any appropriate notes in the Memo box. You can enter an unlimited amount of text.
- 5. To save your employee details, click Save.

To amend an employee record

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Employees > Amend Record.

The Employee Details window opens.

- 2. Select the employee record that you want to amend.
- 3. Amend the employee Main Details and Memo text as required. For more information, see *To add an employee record* on page 84.
- 4. To save your Employee details, click Save.

To delete employee records

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Employees > Amend Record.

The Employee Details window opens.

- 2. Select the employee record that you want to delete.
- 3. Click Delete to delete the employee record.
- 4. Confirm the deletion when prompted.

To print employee reports

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Employees > Reports.
- 2. From the Reports menu, select the required report.
 - Barcode Labels
 - Barcode Labels (By Department)
 - Barcode Labels (Sorted By Name)
 - Barcode Labels (By Department, Sorted By Name)
 - List Detailed (By Department)
 - List Detailed (By Employee Number)
 - List Summary (By Department)
 - List Summary (By Employee Number)

To customise employee reports

You can edit or copy reports, or create a new report, using Sage Report Designer. Report Designer is available as part of your Sage application. For more information, see your Sage Report Designer documentation.

Note: We advise you to copy your existing report layouts before you edit them. If you edit the standard report layouts, future amendments by us will overwrite your changes.

Expense Types

(Estimates, Works Orders)

Manufacturing analyses costs under eight main headings. Setting up expense types lets you analyse other costs. Expense types can be used in estimates and transactions.

To add expense types

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Expense Types > Enter New Record.

Details		
Reference	~	
Description		
Memo		~
		~
Charge Rate 0.0	00000 11	
Unit		
A/C to Debit		
A/C to Credit 🖵		
	1 1 1	

The Expense Type Details window appears.

2. Enter a Reference for the expense type.

Note: It can be helpful to incorporate at least some characters from the expense description in the code. For example, the description 'Travelling Time' may have a reference of 'TRAV'.

- 3. Enter a description for the expense type.
- 4. Enter any appropriate notes in the Memo box.

You can enter an unlimited amount of text.

- 5. Enter a Charge Rate for this item, followed by the appropriate Unit of Sale. For example, a mileage allowance may be charged at 35 pence per mile.
- 6. Enter the default nominal codes to produce automatic journals when making entries for these expenses. Enter these using the A/C to Debit and A/C to Credit drop-down lists.

7. When you have entered all the necessary information, click Save.

To amend an expense type

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Expense Types > Amend Record.

The Expense Type Details window appears.

- 2. Select the expense type from the Reference drop-down list.
- 3. Make changes to the information displayed, as required. For more information, see *To add expense types* on page 88.
- 4. When you have entered all the necessary information, click Save.

To delete expense types

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Expense Types > Amend Record.

The Expense Type Details window appears.

- 2. Select the expense type from the Reference drop-down list.
- 3. Click Delete.
- 4. Confirm the deletion when prompted.

To print expense type reports

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Expense Types > Reports.
- 2. From the Reports menu, select the required report.
 - List Detailed
 - List Detailed (By Reference)
 - List Summary
 - List Summary (By Reference)

To customise expense type reports

You can edit or copy reports, or create a new report, using Sage Report Designer. Report Designer is available as part of your Sage application. For more information, see your Sage Report Designer documentation.

Note: We advise you to copy your existing report layouts before you edit them. If you edit the standard report layouts, future amendments by us will overwrite your changes.

Non-chargeable Time

(Works Orders)

You can set up categories for time that is not chargeable within manufacturing jobs, for example, training or downtime. These categories are used with the Timesheets option (see *Posting Actual Times and Costs to Works Orders* on page 433). When you enter timesheet information, you can record time against these categories, if required. You can also produce reports to analyse non-chargeable time bookings, by date or non-chargeable reference code.

To add non-chargeable time categories

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Non-Chargeable Time > Enter New Record.

🗏 LAB - Non-C	hargeable Time Details	
Details		
Reference		~
Description		
Memo		~
		~
<u>S</u> ave	Clear Delete	

The Non-Chargeable Time Details window appears.

- 2. Enter a Reference for the new non-chargeable time type.
- 3. Enter a Description.
- 4. Enter any applicable notes in the Memo box. You can enter an unlimited amount of text.
- 5. To save your entry, click Save.

To amend non-chargeable time categories

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Non-Chargeable Time > Amend Record.

An empty Non-Chargeable Time Details window appears.

2. Select the record you want to amend from the Reference drop-down list.

- 3. Make the required amendments. For more information, see *To add non-chargeable time categories* on page 90.
- 4. To save the amended record, click Save.

To delete non-chargeable time categories

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Non-Chargeable Time > Amend Record.

An empty Non-Chargeable Time Details window appears.

- 2. Select the record you want to delete from the Reference drop-down list.
- 3. Click Delete.
- 4. Confirm the deletion when prompted.

To print non-chargeable time reports

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Non-Chargeable Time > Reports.
- 2. From the Reports menu, select the required report.
 - List
 - List (By Reference)
 - Non-Chargeable Time
 - Non-Chargeable Time (By Reference and Transaction Date)
 - Non-Chargeable Time (By Reference)
 - Non-Chargeable Time (By Transaction Date)

To customise non-chargeable time reports

You can edit or copy reports, or create a new report, using Sage Report Designer. Report Designer is available as part of your Sage application. For more information, see your Sage Report Designer documentation.

Note: We advise you to copy your existing report layouts before you edit them. If you edit the standard report layouts, future amendments by us will overwrite your changes.

Certificates of Conformity

(Works Orders)

Certificates of conformity are produced to show that products comply with a required standard of quality. You record certificates of conformance for your products within the Certificates of Conformity register. You can print certificates individually or in batches.

Note: Default settings are required for certificates of conformity. To provide details of your settings to the support team, use the 'view only' version of the settings. For more information, see *To view certificate of conformity default settings* on page 93.

To enter certificate of conformity default settings

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Certificates of Conformity > Setup > Certificates of Conformity Settings.

The Certificate of Conformity Defaults appear.

	2			
Automatic Certificate Nun	nbers			
Next Certificate Number	3	Prefix	CERT	
Format to (places)	4			
WE HEREBY CERTIFY THAT	THE PARTS SUP		DER COVER OF OUR OFFICIAL	2
WE HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ADVICE NOTES WERE MANU WITH THE AGREED PROCEL DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIO MANUFACTURE.	THE PARTS SUP JFACTURED, TE JURE TO COMPL NS, AND CONTR	PLIED UNE STED AND Y WITH TH ACT/ORDI	DER COVER OF OUR OFFICIAL INSPECTED IN ACCORDANCE RERQUIREMENTS OF THE ER CURRENT AT THE TIME OF	S

- 2. To use the automatic certificate numbering option:
 - Select the Automatic Certificate Numbers check box.
 - Enter the number from which you want the automatic numbering to start in the Next Certificate Number box.
 - Enter what you want to use as a prefix (up to 10 characters). This will appear immediately before the certificate number. For example, 'CERT'.
 - Enter the number of digits, including leading zeroes, to use for the certificate number in the 'Format to (places)' box.

Note: If you do not select Automatic Certificate Numbers, you must enter and keep track of certificate numbers manually.

3. Enter or amend the message to be printed on the certificate of conformity.

Note: To print all item lines on selected sales orders, select the Print Sales Order Items check box. You can override this when you print certificates. For more information, see *To print certificates of conformity* on page 97.

4. To save the changes, click OK.

To view certificate of conformity default settings

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Certificates of Conformity > Setup > View Certificate of Conformity Settings.
- 2. When you have finished viewing the settings, click Close.

To enter a certificate of conformity

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Certificates of Conformity > Enter New Certificate.

 CERT - Certificate Details - New Certificate

 Identification

 Identification

 Certificate No.

 AutoNumber>

 New Record

 Description

 Date

 15/10/2007

 Memo

 Save
 Clear

 Dejete
 Cose

The Certificate Details - New Certificate window appears.

2. Enter the required information according to the following descriptions.

Certificate No.If you have chosen not to use automatic certificate
numbering, enter the Reference. For more information
on automatic numbering, see To view certificate of
conformity default settings on page 93.DescriptionEnter a description for the certificate.

Date	Enter the date of the certificate.
Memo	Enter any relevant notes or comments.

3. To continue entering or amending Certificate of Conformity details, click the Details tab. The Details information appears.

Details P.Order No. P.Order No. Date // / W.Order No. V Date / /	ä
P.Order No. Date // W.Order No. Date //	Ĩ
W.Order No. Date 11	
	ai l
S.Order No.	_
Product Code Quantity	0.00000 mi
Drawing No.	
Quality Standard	
A/C v	
Name	

4. Enter or amend the information required according to the following descriptions. **Note:** All boxes are optional.

P. Order No. W.Order No. S. Order No.	Enter or amend the purchase order number, works order number or sales order number that relates to this certificate. The date displays automatically alongside the purchase and works order numbers but you can amend this if required. The Quantity is automatically entered fro the works order. This too can be amended if required.
	Click Items alongside S. Order No. to display or amend the quantity of items on the sales order.
Product Code	Enter or amend the product code that relates to this certificate. Enter the quantity of product produced.
Drawing Number	Enter or amend the drawing number that relates to this certificate.

Quality Standard	Enter or amend a description of the standard specified for the product produced.
Account Ref and Name.	Enter or amend the account reference that relates to this certificate.

5. To continue entering or amending the Certificate of Conformity details, click the Description of Components tab.

entification Details Description of Compo	nents Condition of Despatch	Agreed Concessions	
entinication becaus bescription of compe	Condition of Despatch	Agreed Concessions	
			~
			*

The Description of Components information appears.

- 6. Enter a description of the components used within the product.
- 7. To continue entering or amending the Certificate of Conformity details, click the Condition of Despatch tab.

The Condition of Despatch information appears.

🖷 CERT - Certificate Details - New Certific	ate		
Identification Details Description of Components	Condition of Despatch	Agreed Concessions	
			<u>^</u>
			~
Save Clear Delete			<u>⊆lose</u>

- 8. Enter a description for the condition of the goods on despatch.
- 9. To continue entering or amending the Certificate of Conformity details, click the Agreed Concessions tab

The Agreed Concessions information appears.

CERT - Ce	rtificate	e Details - New Certifica	ate	_	
dentification	Details	Description of Components	Condition of Despatch	Agreed Concessions	
					<u> </u>
					~
<u>S</u> ave	Cle	ar D <u>el</u> ete			Close

- 10. Enter a description for any agreed concessions to the goods despatched.
- 11. To save your Certificate of Conformity details, click Save.

To amend a certificate of conformity

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Certificates of Conformity > Amend Certificate.

The Certificate of Conformity Details window appears.

- 2. Select the certificate that you want to amend from the Certificate No. drop-down list.
- 3. Make amendments to the certificate record details as necessary. For more information, see *To enter a certificate of conformity* on page 93.
- 4. To save the amended certificate record, click Save.

To delete a certificate of conformity

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Certificates of Conformity > Amend Certificate.

The Certificate of Conformity Details window appears.

- 2. Select the certificate that you want to delete from the Certificate No. drop-down list.
- 3. Click Delete.
- 4. Confirm the deletion when prompted.

To print certificates of conformity

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Certificates of Conformity > Print Certificate.

The Print Certificates window appears.

elect Certificates to Print		ل ال
Reference	Description	Printed
CERT0001	Spokes must be fitted by a professional m	No
CERT0002	Bike bust be quality checked when finished	No
Select Ali Swap	Clear	
Print Sales Order Items	Pri	int <u>⊆</u> lose

- 2. Select the certificates to print.
- 3. To print sales order items on certificates, select the Print Sales Order Items check box.

Note: This is selected by default, if you selected the Print Sales Order Items check box within Certificate of Conformity Defaults. For more information on the default settings, see *To enter certificate of conformity default settings* on page 92.

4. To print the certificates, click Print.

To print certificates of conformity reports

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Manufacturing System Manager, and choose Certificates of Conformity > Reports.
- 2. From the Reports menu, select the required report.
 - List Summary

To customise certificates of conformity reports

You can edit or copy reports, or create a new report, using Sage Report Designer. Report Designer is available as part of your Sage application. For more information, see your Sage Report Designer documentation.

Note: We advise you to copy your existing report layouts before you edit them. If you edit the standard report layouts, future amendments by us will overwrite your changes.

Chapter 4 Bill of Materials

The Bill of Materials module provides a combined stock assembly and process-costing function. Directly integrated with the Stock Control module, it allows you to specify finished items in terms of sub-assemblies and components. If process costs are involved in sub-assemblies, these can be entered against a BOM (bill of materials).

If you are manufacturing in repetitive batches, production is based around the BOM. If you are working in a one-off jobbing environment use the Estimating module. For more information, see *Estimating* on page 167.

In this chapter:

Planning a BOM100
Introducing Costs101
Introducing Version Control102
Entering Settings for BOMs106
Viewing Settings for BOMs116
Creating a BOM117
Amending a BOM135
Deleting a BOM138
Copying a BOM139
Controlling a BOM141
Using Trial Kitting146
Costing a BOM149
Costing a BOM149
Resequencing BOMs152
Finding Maximum Build Quantity153
Preparing BOM Reports158
Viewing BOM Component Details 155
Maintaining BOMs159

Planning a BOM

A BOM is a list of items needed to build a product.

An example of a basic BOM is shown below. A bicycle is made up of a frame, saddle, two wheels and a set of gears. This type of BOM is known as a 'single-level BOM'. This displays a list of items used to make up the finished product; in this case, the bicycle.



A BOM can also be made up of a number of sub-assemblies. The diagram below shows a 'multi-level BOM'. It displays all components and sub-assemblies that are directly or indirectly used in the finished product.

Using the example of a bicycle, the wheel and frame can be classed as sub-assemblies. Whilst the company may not sell the frame or wheels separately, they are used to make the final product. The BOM, including sub-assemblies, looks like this:



If a sub-assembly is made for specific use in a BOM, it can be a phantom BOM. The product code for the the phantom BOM does not appear at a higher level. For example, the wheel sub-assembly consists of a tyre, rim and spokes. The frame requires alloy tubing and welding equipment. Both require manufacturing, setup and additional labour costs.
Introducing Costs

When you create a BOM, you will consider the obvious costs. These are the stock item or raw material costs that you need to build the finished item. However, there will also be additional costs. Additional costs include labour costs, machine setup costs, run costs and close-down costs.

In the bicycle example shown earlier in this chapter, three occurrences of additional costs were included for labour. Separate setup costs were included to build each wheel.

In chemical and food processing industries, you might consider additional costs for cleaning machinery.

Introducing Version Control

The Bill of Materials module has a version control option. This means you can have multiple revisions of a BOM. BOM details cannot be changed by more than one person at a time and only one revision can be in active use at any one time. You can enable this option within the BOM settings. For more information, see *The General tab* on page 107.

To use version control, you must understand the concepts used within version control: revision numbers, version statuses and the 'checking out' and 'checking in' of new BOM revisions.

Within the Bill of Materials List, the Revision number and Version Status of each BOM revision is shown.

Bill of Materials List								
New Amend Stock Details	Copy Cost	Trial Kitting		🇊 Maximum Build	Explod	e On/Off Hold	Change V	ا ersion Stat/
BOM Reference		(Revision) Description	(Version Status)	Un
MOU/24GEARSPACK			1	Mountain Bi	ke 2	Obsolete		149
MOU/24GEARSPACK			2	Mountain Bi	ke 2 ka 2	Active New (Checked (ا س	149
THEORET CLIPT ACK			5	mountain bi	KC 2	new (checked (say	145
Revision	Each revisio exam create most	time a Bo on is ame ple, whe ed. The h recent re	OM is crea ended, the n changes nighest revi evision.	ted, it is give revision nur are made to sion numbe	en revi mber i o revis r for a	sion numbe is incremen sion '1', rev a BOM Refe	er '1'. W Ited. Foi rision '2 erence i	/hen a r ' is s the
	Note: have click \$: You will saved the Save, it v	only see the revision. S vill be listed	ne increment So, if you ma d in the Bill c	ted re ake ch of Mat	evision num nanges to re cerials List a	ber whe vision ': as revisio	en you 2' and on '3'.
Version Status	This c Mater Active	lescribes ials mod e, Obsole	s how the r lule. Status ete and Re	evision is be ses can be N tired.	eing u New, N	sed by the New (Checł	Bill of <ed out<="" th=""><td>.),</td></ed>	.),
	- 1	Vew						
	/ r r r	A revisior new revis nake cha evision.	n that has a ion when y anges to th	new status ou create a le BOM deta	is a n BOM ails fo	ew revision for the first r an existing	. You cr time, or g BOM	eate a r if you
	1	New stat	us can be	assigned by	:			
		Cho see	osing to 'c <i>To check i</i> i	heck in' the i	revisio <i>ision</i>	on. For mor on page 14	e inform 43.	nation,
		Usin Usin	g the Char mation, se	nge Version e <i>To change</i>	Statu e <i>a B</i> (s option. Fo OM status o	or more on page	e 141.

Anyone can amend and delete BOM revisions with new status. For more information, see *Amending a BOM on page 135* and *Deleting a BOM on page 138*.

Note: You cannot make stock allocations to a BOM revision with new status. You must make the revision active in order to do this. You can make a new revision active at any time. For more information, see *To make a BOM active on page 144*.

New (Checked Out)

The status is equivalent to New, but only the user who created the revision can amend the details.

New (Checked Out) status is assigned automatically to any new revision but can only continue to be assigned by:

- Choosing to 'leave the revision checked out'. For more information, see *To check out a BOM revision on page* 142.
- Active

A revision that has an active status is the BOM revision that is used by the system.

Active status can be assigned by:

- Saving the revision and choosing to 'make active' the revision. For more information, see *To make a BOM active on page 144*.
- Using the Change Version Status option. For more information, see *To change a BOM status on page 141*.

You can amend, copy and delete BOM revisions of active status. For more information, see *Amending a BOM on page 135*, *Copying a BOM on page 139* and *Deleting a BOM on page 138*.

You can also allocate stock items to active BOM revisions. For more information, see *Allocating Stock on page 404*.

Note: Only one revision of a BOM can be active at one time. You should ensure that other users are not using another active revision of the BOM when you want to make a revision active. Obsolete

A revision that has an obsolete status is one that is not required at this time.

Obsolete status can be assigned by:

- Using the Change Version Status option to manually assign the status. For more information, see *To change a* BOM status on page 141.
- By making another revision active to automatically assign the status. For more information, see *To make a BOM* active on page 144

Obsolete revisions are retained on the system and you can make these active again at any time. For more information, see *To make a BOM active on page 144*.

Retired

A revision that has a retired status is one that is not required again. You cannot make a retired BOM revision active.

Retired status can be assigned by:

 Using the Change Version Status option. For more information, see To change a BOM status on page 141.

Retired revisions are retained on the system for reporting purposes. You can remove it from the system, if required. For more information, see *To purge retired BOMs on page 138*

Placing BOMs on hold

In addition to version control, you can also put the BOM on hold. This prevents any changes to the BOM. For more information see *To turn BOM hold status on and off on page 144*.

Amending Stock Details

You may need to amend stock item details when you are working with BOMs. There is a shortcut to the Amend Stock Item Details window within the Bill of Materials List.

To use the shortcut to amend stock item details

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Bill of Materials.
- 2. Within the Bill of Materials List, click Stock Details.

The Amend Stock Item Details window appears. For more information on amending stock item details, see your *Stock Control* documentation.

Entering Settings for BOMs

You can tailor the system to your company's needs through the setup process. This saves time when using the system. For more information, see *To enter the BOM default settings* on page 106.

Calculation of overhead recovery applies in Bill of Materials. Once you enter BOM details, an amount is calculated to show the breakdown of overhead costs.

Note: Enter the overhead recovery settings before costing your BOM. For more information, see *Overhead Recovery Settings* on page 27.

BOMs can have up to five analysis codes attached to them for analysis purposes. For more information, see *Analysis Codes* on page 21.

If you use labour, machine and operation details in more than one BOM, set these up first. For more information, see *Labour Register* on page 47, *Machine Register* on page 50, *Operations Register* on page 54 and *Drawing Register* on page 62.

To enter the BOM default settings

From the Navigation Bar, click Bill of Materials and choose Setup > BOM Settings.

The Bill Of Material Settings window appears.

	Resequencing	Costing/Trial Kitting	Labels	
Reco	d			
В	OM Versioning			
□ ¥	/arn when addin	g duplicate component	s	
🗆 A	sk for recost wh	en saving		
A	llow creation of f	BOM for Components		
Base	qty for costing	1.00000 m	Markup Percentage [40.00000 🖬
R	aturn decimal pla	ce maximum build quai	ntities	

For more information on each Bill of Materials Settings tab, please read the following sections.

- The General tab on page 107
- The Resequencing tab on page 110
- The Costing/Trial Kitting tab on page 112
- The Labels tab on page 115

The General tab

To enter general settings

1. In the Bill of Material Settings window, click the General tab.

The General settings appear.

	Resequencing Costing/Trial Kitting Labels
Peco	
Пв	- OM Versioning
	/arn when adding duplicate components
A	sk for recost when saving
- A	llow creation of BOM for Components
Base	aty for costing 1 00000 Markup Percentage 40 00000
Maxir	num Build
	ture desiral place require to tild quantities
	carri decimal place maximum build quanticles
	OK Sauc

2. Enter the settings required, according to the following descriptions.

BOM Versioning	Select this if you want to use version control within the BOM module. This means you can have multiple revisions of a BOM but only one revision can be in active use at any one time. BOM details cannot be changed by more than one person at one time and, if a BOM is active (in use in the system), it cannot be changed.
	For more information on BOM Versioning, see Introducing Version Control on page 102 and Controlling a BOM on page 141.
	Note: You can clear the BOM Versioning check box when it has been in use. However, this affects processes that reference other BOMs, so you must confirm that you want to do this.
	You can also control the use of a BOM by putting the BOM on hold. This prevents any changes being made. For more information about the on hold setting on the BOM record, see <i>The Header Details tab</i> on page 118. You can also use On/Off Hold in the BOM Records menu or on the Bill of Materials List toolbar.
Warn when adding duplicate components	By default, you can add the same component to a BOM several times. Select this check box to display a warning when you do this.
Ask for recost when saving	Select this check box to prompt for a recost when you enter or amend a BOM.

Allow creation of BOM for Components	Select this check box to show component stock items in the product code drop-down list when you create a BOM as well as stock items that are marked as built or built/bought. For more information, see your <i>Stock</i> <i>Control</i> documentation.			
	You must do this if:			
	 You want to create a BOM for a component stock item. 			
	 You want to create a BOM for an item which you have previously bought and sold and now want to manufacture. 			
	Note: Selecting the check box will mean you have a large list of stock items to select from when creating a BOM.			
	The default setting is clear, so only stock items which are marked as built or bought are available when you create BOMs.			
Base qty for costing	Enter a typical batch quantity. When you enter a new BOM, the base quantity defaults to this quantity. You can change the figure for individual BOMs and also change this default.			
Markup Percentage	Set the system to suggest a selling price during costing, by entering a default markup percentage. For example, a total product cost of £1.50 with a 50% mark-up results in a suggested selling price of £2.25.			
	Note: The suggested selling price has no direct effect on any other figures.			
Return decimal place maximum build	Select this option for the Maximum Build Quantity routine to return values with decimal places.			
quantities	If you do not select the check box, the quantity is rounded down to the nearest whole number.			

3. To continue entering Bill of Material Settings, click the Resequencing tab. To save your Bill of Material Settings, click OK.

The Resequencing tab

To enter resequencing settings

1. In the Bill of Material Settings window, click the Resequencing tab.

The Resequencing settings appear.

neral	Resequencing	Costing/Tria	l Kitting 🛛 L	abels	
Comp	onents				
Starti	ing at 5.00	🔹 In ste	eps of	5.00 拿	
∏R	esequence in st	ock code order	r		
Opera	ations				
Starti	ing at 5	.00 🌲 In ste	eps of	5.00 🌲	
R	esequence in re	erence order			
Decin	nal precision for	sequence num	ibers	2 🔹	

2. Enter the settings required according to the following descriptions.

Resequence in stock code order	If you want to resequence the components of a BOM in stock code order, select this check box. This is useful if you make amendments to your list of components. You can resequence starting at any number and in steps of any number.
	Note: If you are unsure, set to resequence starting from '1' in steps of '1'. You can change this at any time.
Resequence in reference order	If you want to resequence the manufacturing operations, select this check box. This is useful if you make changes in the list of operations. You can resequence starting at any number and in steps of any number.
	Note: If you are unsure, set to resequence starting from '1' in steps of '1'. You can change this at any time.

Decimal precision for
sequence numbersEnter the number of decimal places for sequence numbers.You can enter a figure between zero and six.

3. To continue entering Bill of Material Settings, click the Costing/Trial Kitting tab. To save your Bill of Material Settings defaults, click OK.

The Costing/Trial Kitting tab

To enter costing/trial kitting settings

1. In the Bill of Material Settings window, click the Costing/Trial Kitting tab.

The Costing/Trial Kitting information appears.

eneral Resequenci Recost/Trial Kit Sub O Quantity Requir Default Quantity	ng Costing/Trial Kitting -Assemblies Using ed from BOM /	Labels		
- Trial Kitting - Action				
O Add to 'Make to	Stock'	🔿 Create Sales Order		
Create Works Order		No further action		
Settings				
Cost when Trial	Kitting			
Ignore zero cos	ts			
🔽 Ignore zero sto	:k levels			
Use 'Base No.of	People' when costing			
Rollup costs				
Always recost	5ub-Assemblies			
Include miscella	neous stock item costs			

2. Enter the settings required, according to the following descriptions.

Recost/Trial Kit Sub-Assemblies Using	Select Quantity Required from BOM to calculate costs using the quantities on the BOM sub-assemblies.
	Select Default Quantity to calculate costs using the quantity on the BOM header.
Trial Kitting - Action	Select a default action for Trial Kitting. You can change this each time you use the Trial Kitting option. For more information see <i>Using Trial Kitting</i> on page 146.
	 Select Add to 'Make to Stock' to add the BOM to the production plan as an entry in Make to Stock.

	 Select 'Create sales order' to create a sales order in Sales Order Processing.
	 Select 'Create works order' to bypass planning and generate a works order directly.
	 Select 'No further action' to close the Trial Kitting window without affecting planning.
Cost when Trial Kitting	Select this check box in order to perform and display a BOM costing when you use Trial Kitting.
Ignore zero costs	By default, a visual warning appears where the system encounters an item with a zero cost during the costing process. You can enter a cost later if necessary. Select the check box if you do not want to see the warning.
Ignore zero levels	By default, a visual warning appears where the system encounters an item with a zero stock quantity during costing. You can amend the stored cost in these circumstances, as the cost may be out of date. Select the check box if you do not want to see the warning.
Use 'Base No. of People' when costing	By default, Bill of Materials assumes that one person performs manufacturing operations. If you want costings to reflect that more than one person performs manufacturing operations, select this check box. For example, Bill of Materials costs an operation taking two people ten hours at the equivalent of 20 hours. If you select the check box, you can enter the base number of people for any operation within the BOM record. (For more information on operations, see the <i>Operations Register</i> on page 54.)
Rollup costs	Select this check box to provide a breakdown of non-material costs in the BOM.
Always recost Sub-Assemblies	Select this check box to calculate sub-assembly costs when you perform a costing. Leave blank to use the existing stored sub-assembly costs during costing.
	Note: If your BOM structure contains many sub-assemblies, calculating sub-assembly costs during costing will extend the time taken for costing.

Include miscellaneous	Miscellaneous items are not included in the standard stock
stock item costs	valuation reports.

Select this check box to:

- Include miscellaneous stock item costs when costing a BOM (see Costing a BOM on page 149).
- Post miscellaneous item costs to the Stock asset account when closing works orders (see *Closing Works Orders on page 470*).

You can also select the check box within the Works Orders Allocate/Issue/Complete settings (see *The Allocate/Issue/Complete tab on page 346*).

Note: Selecting it in one place automatically selects it in the other.

3. To continue entering Bill of Material Settings, click the Labels tab. To save your Bill of Material Settings, click OK.

The Labels tab

To enter labels settings

1. In the Bill of Material Settings window, click the Labels tab.

The Labels information appears.

Custom Fields	5
Field #	Value
#1	
#2	
#3	
#4	
#5	
#6	
#7	
#8	
#9	
#10	
#11	
#12	
Instruction Fi	eld
Label Instr	ruction

2. Enter the settings required, according to the descriptions below.

Custom Fields 1 to 12You can name 12 data boxes contained within each BOM
record. The boxes appear under the Custom Fields tab.Instruction Field LabelEnter the label that appears on each BOM record.

3. To save your Bill of Material Settings, click OK.

Viewing Settings for BOMs

If you need to provide details of your settings to the support team, use the 'view only' versions of the settings.

To view BOM Settings

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Bill of Materials and choose Setup > View BOM Settings.
- 2. When you have finished viewing the settings, click Close.

Creating a BOM

There are three ways of creating a BOM in Sage 200 Manufacturing.

New

You can set up the bill of materials within Sage 200 Manufacturing. For more information, see *To set up a new BOM* on page 117.

• Сору

You can copy an existing bill of materials and amend the details where required. For more information, see *Copying a BOM* on page 139 and *Amending a BOM* on page 135.

Import

You can import a bill of materials record from a CSV file. For more information on importing, see *Importing and Exporting Data* on page 43.

To set up a new BOM

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Bill of Materials and choose Records > Enter New BOM. The Bill of Material Details window appears.
- 2. Enter the BOM header details. These consist of the stock item product code, quality information and manufacturing instructions relating to the build. For more information, see *The Header Details tab* on page 118.
- 3. Enter the product codes for the component parts or raw materials. For more information, see *The Components tab* on page 120.
- 4. Enter details of the manufacturing operations needed. These may include machine processes, labour processes or both. For more information, see *The Operations tab* on page 124.
- 5. Enter the attached files to open with a BOM. For more information, see *The Attached Files tab* on page 127.
- 6. Enter drawing references for the BOM. For more information, see *The Drawings tab* on page 129.
- 7. Enter the custom fields if required. For more information, see *The Custom Fields tab* on page 131.
- 8. Add analysis codes for the BOM. For more information, see *The Analysis Codes tab* on page 132.
- 9. Save the BOM. For more information, see *Saving a BOM* on page 133.

For more information on each Bill of Material Details tab and on saving the BOM, please read the following sections.

The Header Details tab

To enter Bill of Materials header details

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Bill of Materials and choose Records > Enter New BOM.

An empty Bill of Material Details window appears.

5tock Item		*	Revision		Status		
leader Details Com	ponents Operations	Attached Files	Drawings	Latest Costs	Custom Fields	Analysis Codes	
Main Details					Dates		
Description					Entered [11 (2)	
Manufacturing				~	Last Updated	11	
Instructions					Valid From	11 🗊	
				~	Valid To	11 🗉	
Quality Standard/I	Defaults				Туре		
Quality Standard				~	On Hold		
Markup %	40.00000 📰	Default			Component	Traceability	
Costing Quantity	1.00000 1	De <u>f</u> ault			Phantom		
Stock Unit		1			Private		
Default Scrap %	0.00 11	1					
		1					

2. Select a stock code for the BOM from the Stock Item drop-down list. This code already exists in the Stock Control module. When you select the code, the description appears automatically in the Main Details section.

Note: If you have selected the Allow creation of BOM for Components check box in Bill of Material Settings, then the Stock Item drop-down list will show all stock items, including components.

- 3. If you are using version control, the Revision Number is assigned automatically when you save the BOM details. Status is assigned automatically as 'New (Checked Out)'. For information on using version control, see *The General tab* on page 107. For information on the Revision number and Status, see *Introducing Version Control on page 102*.
- 4. Enter any Manufacturing Instructions. These can be reproduced on works order documentation, if required.
- 5. The date entered defaults to the current system date. Enter a different date if required.

- 6. The date last updated is shown automatically.
- 7. Enter a 'valid from' and 'valid to' date for your BOM, if applicable. Bill of Materials displays a warning if you try to use the BOM outside this date range.
- 8. Enter the quality standard to which the product must be manufactured.
- 9. Enter a default markup percentage to use when calculating a suggested selling price during future costing operations.
- 10. Enter a default costing quantity for use during costing or trial kitting.

Note: The costing and kitting options always offer the option to use the default quantity.

- 11. The stock unit name automatically appears in the Stock Units box.
- Enter the default scrap percentage figure for the BOM components, if required.
 Note: If you amend this you are prompted to amend it for all components on the BOM.
- If you do not want to use the BOM immediately, select the On Hold check box.
 Note: You can change this by selecting the BOM and clicking On/Off Hold in the toolbar or using the On/Off Hold option on the BOM Records menu.
- 14. If full component traceability is required, select the Component Traceability check box. This setting is passed to any works order created using the BOM.
- 15. If the BOM is a phantom, the Phantom check box is automatically selected for you.

A phantom works in the same way as a standard sub-assembly, with one exception. The product code for the finished item does not appear on a higher level works order. Manufacturing blows through the phantom and adds its components and operations (including any nested phantoms) to the top-level works order. The phantom components and operations are given a sequence number of zero.

 If you are not using version control, you can select the Private check box. Select this if the BOM is undergoing design changes. It will not be included in calculations outside Bill of Materials.

Note: If a private BOM is used as a component on another BOM or works order, component priority comes into effect. The setting on the lower level item is ignored when processing the higher level item. You must set the 'private' flag on the component entry on the higher level BOM. For more information, see *To set up components* on page 120.

- 17. Click the Image button if you want to store a picture of this product.
- To continue entering BOM information, click the Components tab. Then, confirm that you want to save the BOM Header details when prompted. To save your BOM details, click Save.

The Components tab

To set up components

1. In the Bill of Material Details window, click the Components tab.

The Components information appears.

ader Deta	ils Components	Operations	Attached Files	; Drawings	Latest Costs	Custom	Fields Analy	sis Codes	
ieq /	Product Code	De	scription			1	Quantity	y Unit Of Measure	e
5.00							1.0000	10	

2. Click in the Product Code column and enter the code for the component that you want to use.

Note: Components are of type Stock or Miscellaneous. You cannot leave the code blank.

- 3. Enter additional component information by clicking in the Description box.
 - Click the box that appears at the right hand side of the Description box. The BOM Component window appears.

Memo		
Details		
Product Code	MOU/18INCHTYRE	
Description	18" Tyre	1
Instruction		ĺ.
Scrap Percent	0.00	
Sequence	5.00 \$	
Quantity	0.00000 🗉 Unit of measure 10 page	k 🗸
Unit Of Measure		
One Each is made of:	1.0000000 iii Each	
Each precision	0.00001 📺	
One 10 pack is made of:	10.0000000 🖩 Each	
10 pack precision	0.00001	
Hold Quantity		
🔲 Bulk Issue Item		
Private		

• You can enter the following details in the BOM Component window:

Description	Enter the component description.
Instruction	Enter any instructions relating to this particular component. The instructions you enter here display on the Indented Parts list. You can change the label of the Instruction box. For more information, see <i>To make label changes using the</i> <i>customiser</i> on page 31.
Scrap Percent	The allowance for scrap when issuing this BOM, defaults to the Scrap Percent on the BOM Header Details tab.
	You can amend this value for the component if required.
Sequence	BOM components are taken in a sequence determined by the sequence number. For more information on setting up sequence numbers, see <i>The Resequencing tab</i> on page 110.
	If you want to change the sequence number, enter a new sequence number here.

Quantity	Enter the quantity of this component or raw material required to manufacture the finished item.
	Note: If you enter a quantity which does not match the unit of measure, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.
Unit of Measure	The Unit of Measure displayed is from the stock record, but you can change it here.
Unit of Measure	Unit of measure ratio and precision default values are defined in the Stock Control module. For more information, see the <i>Stock Control</i> help system.
	You do not need to use these boxes when adding components to the BOM.
	If you change the ratio and precision values within Stock Control, use these boxes to enter the changed default values for the component unit of measure.
	This is because changes to unit of measure values within Stock Control have no effect on values within components already added to the BOM.
	 Enter the value and precision for the default stocked in unit of measure in the first pair of boxes.
	 If you selected an alternative unit of measure in the Unit of Measure box, use the second pair of boxes to enter the changes.
Hold Quantity	Select this check box if you do not want to multiply the quantity by the batch quantity when ordering.
	For example, if the component quantity is two, and the batch quantity is 1000, Manufacturing issues 2000 components. If you select the Hold Quantity check box, it issues two components.
Bulk Issue Item	Select the Bulk Issue Item box if you want to handle stock movements manually for this component.
	Note: Manufacturing clears the Update Stock flag on subsequent works orders by default.

Private If you are not using version control, you can select the Private check box. This is useful if the BOM is undergoing design changes. It will not be included in calculations outside Bill of Materials.

- Enter any further relevant information by clicking the Memo tab.
- When you have entered all additional details, click OK to return to the BOM components list.
- 4. Enter the component quantity required to manufacture the finished item.

Note: If you enter a quantity which does not match the unit of measure, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

- 5. Bill of Materials transfers units of measure from each Stock Control record into the BOM. If the item has multiple units of measure, select the required unit of measure from the drop-down list available.
- 6. Enter any Instruction relating to this specific component.
- 7. To delete a component, select it and press F8.
- 8. If a component is a sub-assembly, click Edit Sub-Assembly to edit it.
- 9. Click Re-Sequence to re-sequence the components.
- 10. To add several components to the BOM at the same time, click Select Multiple.
- 11. To continue entering BOM information, click the Operations tab. To save your BOM details, click Save.

The Operations tab

For each operation, you add the labour and machine processes required to manufacture items. You also specify the time, including machine setup time, required to complete the operation.

Note: You can enter operation details each time you create a BOM. However, we recommend you store operations in the Operations Register. You can use these operations within many BOMs. For more information, see the *Operations Register* on page 54.

To add operations

1. In the Bill of Materials Details window, click the Operations tab.

🚝 BOM - Bill Of Material Details		. DX
BOM Reference Stock Item F	Revision Status	
Header Details Components Operations Attached Files	Drawings Latest Costs Custom Fields Analysis Codes	
Seq / Reference	Description	
2000 1		
Reseguence		
Save Clear Delete Image	Undo Checkout	⊆lose

The Operations information appears.

- 2. If you are using the Operations Register, select the operation from the Reference drop-down list. All the operation details are entered against your BOM and you can amend these as required. For more information on the Operations Register, see *Operations Register* on page 54.
- 3. If you are not using Operations Register, enter the operation header information.

Reference	Enter the operation reference.
Description	Enter the operation description

Sequence Enter the sequence number for the operation.

- 4. Enter additional component information by clicking in the Description box.
 - Click the box that appears at the right hand side of the Description box.
- 5. Enter additional operation details by clcking in the Description box.
 - Click the box that appears at the right hand side of the Description box.
 The Operation Details window appears.

- Main Details	ptions Resource Details Components	
Reference	Gears pack Assembly	
Description	Assemble a gear pack	
Notes	Ensure gears work	~
		*
Do not prin	t this Operation	

This procedure is the same as entering Operation details into the Operations Register. For more information, see *Operations Register* on page 54.

Note: As you enter Operation Details, the total costs by category appear on the Resource Details tab.

• To print components on subcontract advice notes, associate components from the BOM with the operation on the Components tab. When you create a works order from Trial Kitting, the components are copied to the works order. They can then be printed on a subcontract advice note.

Note: If the component quantity does not match the unit of measure, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

- When you have finished entering details, click OK.
- 6. Continue to enter operations.
- 7. Click Resequence to change the sequence of the operations. For more information, see *Resequencing BOMs* on page 152.

8. To continue entering BOM information, click the Attached Files tab. To save your BOM details, click Save.

The Attached Files tab

You can associate files, such as Microsoft® Excel or Microsoft® Word documents, to save and open with a BOM. You can also attach the complete contents of a folder. This is useful for storing supporting documentation for the BOM.

To attach a file or folder to the BOM record

1. In the Bill of Material Details window, click the Attached Files tab.

The Attached Files information appears.

🖫 BOM - Bill Of Material Details	
BOM Reference	
Stock Item 🔍 Revision	Status
Header Details Components Operations Attached Files Drawing	gs Latest Costs Custom Fields Analysis Codes
File Name	Description
Attach File Attach Eolder	
Save Clear Delete Image U	nd <u>o</u> Checkout

- 2. To attach a file or folder to a BOM record, click Attach File or Attach Folder as appropriate. An Open or Choose File(s) window appears.
 - Select the file or folder you want to attach to the BOM record. Click Open to attach a file, or OK to attach a folder.

Note: You can only select one file or folder at a time.

The file or folder appears in the Attached Files list.

- To open the file or folder, click it.
- Enter a description for each attachment, if you require. This is used for information purposes only.
- 3. To delete an attached file, select it in the Attached Files list and press F8 The file is removed from the BOM; it is not removed from your computer.

4. To continue entering BOM information, click the Drawings tab. To save your BOM details, click Save.

The Drawings tab

You can cross-reference a BOM with any number of different drawings.

To work with drawings

1. In the Bill of Materials Details window, click the Drawings tab.

The Drawings information appears.

DM Reference			~ ₽	Revision		Status	[
ader Details	Components	Operations	Attached Files	Drawings	Latest Costs	Custom Fields	Analysis Codes	1
Drawing No.			6 Description				Valid From	Valid To
			E				11	11

2. Enter the following information, if required, for each drawing line.

Drawing No.	Enter a unique reference number for the drawing.
	If you are using the Drawing Register, select the drawing from the Drawing No. column drop-down list. Description, Valid From and Valid To are displayed automatically.
Description	Enter the drawing description.
Valid From Valid To	Enter a 'valid from' and 'valid to' date for your drawing, if applicable.

3. To edit the drawing details in the Drawing Register, select the drawing and click Amend Drawing. For more information, see *To amend a drawing* on page 65.

4. To continue entering BOM information, click the Custom Fields tab. To save your BOM details, click Save.

The Custom Fields tab

To enter custom fields to a bill of materials

1. In the Bill of Materials Details window, click the Custom Fields tab.

The Custom Fields information appears.

otion		

- 2. Enter details for up to twelve custom boxes for each BOM. You can customise the box names. For more information, see *The Labels tab* on page 115.
- 3. To continue entering BOM information, click the Analysis Codes tab. To save your BOM details, click Save.

The Analysis Codes tab

Analysis codes are used in reporting.

To enter BOM analysis codes

1. In the Bill of Material Details window, click the Analysis Codes tab.

The Analysis Codes information appears.

der Details Component	s Operations	Attached Files	Drawings	Latest Costs	Custom Fields	Analysis Codes	
Analysis Codes							
Analysis Code 1	_			~			
Analysis Code 2				*			
Analysis Code 3				~			
Analysis Code 4				~			
Analysis Code 5				~			

- 2. Enter up to five unique analysis codes for each BOM. You can use these for custom reporting.
- 3. To save your BOM details, click Save.

Saving a BOM

To save a BOM

- 1. In the Bill of Material Details window, click Save to save the BOM details you have entered.
- 2. If you are using version control, the Save BOM Revision window appears. For more information, see *Introducing Version Control* on page 102.

User	MANAGER	
Date	12/10/2007 14:43:36	
Comment		~
		2
Action Red	quired	
Leave	BOM Checked Out	
() Check	In	
O Make A	Active	

- 3. Enter a comment outlining the changes.
- 4. Select the Action Required.



Make ActiveSelect this to make the BOM revision active. It is saved
with a status of Active. You can allocate items to the BOM
revision. For more information, see Allocating Stock on
page 404.

Note: You must make one of the BOM revisions active if you are creating the BOM for a stock item component in order to build the item. You must select Built/Bought for the BOM details on the stock item record Details tab within the Stock Control module and you can only do this if one of the BOM revisions is active. For more information, see your *Stock Control* documentation.

- 5. To save the revision, click OK.
- 6. If you selected the 'Ask for recost when saving' setting, confirm if you want to cost the BOM. For more information, see *The General tab* on page 107.
 - Click Yes if you want to calculate costs and store them against the BOM.

Manufacturing costs the BOM, and writes the results to the Latest Costs tab of the BOM record for future reference.

Note: If the 'Ignore zero cost' and 'Ignore zero levels' settings are not selected, you are prompted for a cost for the sub-assembly in the 'Enter cost prices for BOM' window. For more information, see *The Costing/Trial Kitting tab* on page 112.

This window indicates that there is no cost or a zero stock level stored in the stock record for a component on the BOM.

Product Code	Description	Cost Price	In Stock	Cost At
TYRE STD001	Standard Tyre	20.00	0.0000	20.00
RIM ALU001	Aluminium Rim	40.00	0.0000	40.00
SPOKE SSTL001	Stainless Steel Spokes	2.00	0.0000	2.00
HUB ALU001	Aluminium Hub	80.00	0.0000	80.00

- Enter the cost prices that you want to use and click OK.
 The window clears to allow you to enter details of another BOM.
- 7. To close the Bill of Material Details window, click Close.

Amending a BOM

It is important to maintain accurate BOM records. Details such as 'markup' and 'valid from' or 'to' dates can change over time.

To amend a Bill of Materials

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Bill of Materials, and choose Records > Amend BOM Details.
- 2. Select the BOM required.

If you are using version control:

• The BOM status is checked. A message informs you if it is already checked out to another user. If not, it is checked out to you.

The Bill of Material Details window appears.

3. Make the changes you require to the BOM.

Note:The Bill of Material Details tabs function in the same way as when creating the BOM. For more information, see *Creating a BOM* on page 117.

If the selected BOM is on hold:

 Confirm that you want to continue to amend it. If you are using version control, a New (Checked Out) version will be created. If you are not using version control, you can continue to amend the BOM.

Note: You can change the BOM on hold status by selecting the BOM and selecting On/Off Hold in the toolbar or using the On/Off Hold option in the BOM Records menu.

- 4. To edit sub-assemblies, click Edit Sub-Assembly on the Components tab.
- 5. To save your revision changes, click Save.
- 6. If you are using version control, the Save BOM Revision window appears.
 - Enter a comment outlining the changes.
 - Select the Action Required, according to the following descriptions.

Leave BOM Checked Out Select this if you want to ensure that the BOM revision cannot be updated accidentally by another user. The BOM revision is saved with a status of New (Checked Out). To allocate items to the BOM revision, you must make the BOM revision active.

Check In	Select this to save the BOM revision with a status of New and make it available to be edited by anyone on the system. However, before any stock can be allocated to the revision, it must be made active.
	Note: If a component is a Built-Stock Item and has no active revision, confirm that you want to check it in.
Make Active	Select this to save the BOM revision with a status of active.
	Note: You can only have one active revision of the BOM. If another active revision of the BOM is found you can make this one active. The other will be made obsolete automatically.

The BOM revision number is incremented.

Note: Date of change, operator ID, revision number and revision text are stored in the Revision Details tab of the BOM Details window.

- 7. If you selected the 'Ask for recost when saving' setting, confirm if you want to cost the BOM. For more information, see *The General tab* on page 107.
 - Click Yes if you want to calculate costs and store them against the BOM.

Manufacturing costs the BOM, and writes the results to the Latest Costs tab of the BOM record for future reference.

Note: If the 'Ignore zero cost' and 'Ignore zero levels' settings are not selected, you are prompted for a cost for the sub-assembly in the 'Enter cost prices for BOM' window. For more information, see *The Costing/Trial Kitting tab* on page 112.

This window indicates that there is no cost or a zero stock level stored in the stock record for a component on the BOM.

Product Code	Description	Cost Price	In Stock	Cost At
TYRE STD001	Standard Tyre	20.00	0.0000	20.00
IM ALU001	Aluminium Rim	40.00	0.0000	40.00
POKE SSTL001	Stainless Steel Spokes	2.00	0.0000	2.00
IUB ALU001	Aluminium Hub	80.00	0.0000	80.00
• Enter the cost prices that you want to use and click OK.

The window clears to allow you to enter details of another BOM.

8. To close the Bill of Material Details window, click Close.

Deleting a BOM

You can remove redundant BOM records, if they conform to certain criteria.

If you are using version control you can remove Retired BOMs. For information on assigning the Retired status to BOMs, see *To change a BOM status* on page 141.

To delete BOM records

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Bill of Materials, and choose Records > Delete BOM.

The Delete Bill of Material window appears.

🖷 BOM - Delete Bill of Mat	erial 🛛 🗙
Select Bill of Material to Delete	
Description	<u> </u>
	OK Cancel

2. Select the BOM record that you want to delete and click Delete. The BOM record is deleted.

To purge retired BOMs

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Bill of Materials and choose Maintenance > Purge Retired BOMs.

A confirmation prompt appears.



2. To remove the retired BOMs, click Yes. The retired BOMs are removed.

Copying a BOM

You can copy a BOM. This lets you create another BOM quickly.

To copy the BOM

 From the Navigation Bar, click Bill of Materials, and choose Records > Copy BOM. The Copy BOM window appears.

Existing BOM Details	
BOM Reference	*
Description	ED00
New BOM Details	
BOM Reference	*
Description	mon
Copy what?	
Components	Drawings
Operations	Attached Files

2. Enter the information required according to the following descriptions.

Existing BOM Details	Select the reference of the BOM you want to copy from the drop-down list.
	Note: If you are using version control, you must select an active BOM.
New BOM Details	Select the reference for the new BOM from the drop-down list.
	Note: This must be a different reference from the BOM you are copying.
	The description appears automatically although you can amend this.

Copy What?

Select the check boxes to copy the following:

- Components
- Drawings
- Operations
- Attached Files
- 3. To copy the BOM, click Save.

Note: If you are using version control, the BOM is saved with new status.

The BOM appears in the Bill of Materials List. You can make amendments as required. For more information, see *Amending a BOM* on page 135.

Controlling a BOM

If you use version control, you have more control over the changes made to a BOM and to which revision of the BOM is used. For more information on choosing to use BOM Versioning, see *The General tab* on page 107. For more information on understanding version control, see *Introducing Version Control on page 102*.

Using version control means you can have several different revisions of a BOM in the system at once. For example, you can create a new revision, without having to delete the current active revision.

Changes are prevented from being made to BOMs by more than one person at once. When you create a BOM, the system automatically checks out the BOM to you. Noone else can make changes to it until you check it in again.

Note: You can also place BOMs on hold whether or not version control is activated.

To change a BOM status

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Bill of Materials and choose Bill of Materials List.

The Bill of Materials List is displayed in the work area.

2. Choose Change Version Status.

The Change BOM Status window appears.

BOM Reference	Revision	Description	Version Status	-
ACC/PAINT/BLUE		Blue Bike Paint	Active	±
MOU/18GEARSPACK	1	Mountain Bike 18 Gears Pack	Active	
MOU/21GEARSPACK	1	Mountain Bike 21 Gears Pack	Active	
MOU/24GEARSPACK	1	Mountain Bike 24 Gears Pack	Active	
MOU/ALU/18FINISHEDWH	1	18" Finished Aluminium Wheel	Active	
MOU/ALU/18WHEELFRAME	1	18" Aluminium Wheel Frame	Active	
MOU/ALU/20FINISHEDWH	1	20" Finished Aluminium Wheel	Active	
MOU/ALU/20WHEELFRAME	1	20" Aluminium Wheel Frame	Active	
MOU/ALU/BIKEPACK1	1	Bike Pack 1 - Aluminium	Active	
MOU/ALU/FINISHEDBIKE	1	Finished Aluminium Mountain Bike	Active	
MOU/ALU/STANDARDBIKE	1	Standard Aluminium Mountain Bike S	Active	Ŧ
MOU/ALU/SUSPENSIONBI	1	Suspension Aluminium Mountain Bike	Active	×
Select <u>All</u>	Clear			
Change status to				
) Active	O Obsolete			

- 3. In the list of BOMs, select the BOM or BOMs to process.
- 4. Select the status you want to change to.

Active	Select this if you want to use the New or New (Checked Out) or Obsolete BOM revision as the active BOM within the system and allocate stock to it.
	Note: You can also make a BOM active when you create or amend it. For more information, see <i>Saving a BOM</i> on page 133 and <i>Amending a BOM</i> on page 135.
Obsolete	Select this if you do not want the currently active BOM revision to be used in the short term. The details of the BOM remain on the system.
	Note: You cannot select this if there are any outstanding BOM allocations.
New	Select this if the BOM is New (Checked Out) and you want to check it in and make it available for other users to amend or use.
	Note: You can also check in a BOM revision as New when you create or amend an existing revision. For more information, see <i>Saving a BOM</i> on page 133 and <i>Amending a BOM</i> on page 135.
Retired	Select this if you are sure that the obsolete BOM revision should not be used again.

5. To apply the changes, click OK.

To check out a BOM revision

Note: When you create a BOM revision it is automatically checked out to you whilst you are making changes.

1. After making changes to a BOM revision, click Save.

The Save BOM Revision window appears.

User	MANAGER	
Date	30/04/2007 14:18:41	
Comment		^
		2
Action Red	quired	
Leave	BOM Checked Out	
🔿 Check	In	
O Make A	ctive	

- 2. Enter a comment, and select Leave BOM Checked Out.
- 3. Click OK.

The BOM Revision is listed in the Bill of Materials List with the Version Status of New (Checked Out). Only you can make changes to it.

To check in a BOM revision

1. After making changes to a BOM revision, click Save.

The Save BOM Revision window appears.

User	MANAGER	
Date	30/04/2007 14:18:41	
Comment		^
		×
Action Re	quired	
Leave	BOM Checked Out	
() Check	In	
O Make A	active	

- 2. Enter a comment, and select Check In.
- 3. Click OK.

The BOM Revision is listed in the Bill of Materials List with the Version Status of New. Any user can make changes to it.

To make a BOM active

Note: You can make new or obsolete BOMs active.

1. After making changes to a BOM revision, click Save.

The Save BOM Revision window appears.

User	MANAGER	
Date	30/04/2007 14:18:41	
Comment		<u>^</u>
		>
Action Re	quired	
Leave	BOM Checked Out	
() Check	In	
O Make A	ctive	

- 2. Enter a comment, and select Make Active.
- 3. Click OK.

The BOM Revision is listed in the Bill of Materials List with the Version Status of Active. This revision of the BOM is now used and allocations can be made to it.

Any previous active revision for the BOM is automatically give the status, Obsolete.

To turn BOM hold status on and off

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Bill of Materials and choose Records > On/Off Hold.

The Toggle On Hold window appears.

BOM - Toggle On Hold	 E
Select Bill of Material BOM Reference	
Change 'Hold' status to	
🔿 On Hold	
O Off Hold	

- 2. Select the BOM Reference.
- 3. Select On Hold if you want to place the BOM on hold.
- 4. Select Off Hold if you want the selected BOM to be available for processing.
- 5. To apply the changes, click OK.

Using Trial Kitting

Trial Kitting lets you check whether you can build a specified quantity of any BOM. It identifies and displays any potential shortages.

Note: You cannot perform trial kitting on phantom BOMs. If you are using version control, you can only perform trial kitting on active BOMs.

To run trial kitting

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Bill of Materials and choose Processing > Trial Kitting.

The Trial Kitting window appears.

Trial Kit Details BOM Reference Description Quantity Cumulative Lead Time	0.00000 #	Action To Take O Add to Make to Stock C Create Works Order
Quantity Cumulative Lead Time	0.00000 #	
Warehouses 🛛 🖓 All Build Sub-Assemblies 💿 Alwa	gelect	Create Sales Order No further action
Components Labour Machine	Subcontract Description	Actual Qty Required Qty Req From Stock Shortage

- 2. Select the BOM Reference from the drop-down list.
- 3. Enter the Quantity to manufacture. This defaults to the 'Base qty for costing' value set in Bill of Material Settings. For more information, see *The General tab* on page 107. You can amend this to any quantity you require.

Note: If you enter a quantity which does not match the unit of measure, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

- 4. Cumulative Lead Time shows the total time required to build the product. This is calculated by adding the time it takes to manufacture to the longest material lead time.
- 5. Specify the warehouses that you want to check for stock during the trial kitting process.
 - Select All warehouses to select all warehouses.
 - Clear the All warehouses check box and click Select to choose a warehouse or warehouses.
- 6. Specify when you want to build sub-assemblies.
 - Select Always if you always want to build sub-assemblies. This refreshes the component list with all of the components from the sub-assemblies included in the selected BOM.

Note: Phantom sub-assemblies operate on an Always setting.

- Select 'When required' if you want to build sub-assemblies only when required. This
 extends the component list to show sub-assembly components where there is a
 shortage of made up sub-assemblies.
- Select Never if you never want to build sub-assemblies.
- 7. Click Calculate.
 - Enter cost prices if prompted.

This happens if zero stock levels or cost prices are enountered and 'Ignore zero costs' or 'Ignore zero levels' settings are selected. For more information on these settings, see *The Costing/Trial Kitting tab* on page 112.

The results are calculated and displayed in the following tabs.

Components	Lists the material requirements and any shortages.
	If the required quantity (Required Qty) does not match the unit of measure, the automatically adjusted rounded up quantity (Actual Qty) is used. This is used to determine the quantity which is required from stock (Req From Stock), if there is a shortage.
	The rounding is done per BOM item line. The quantity required from stock is the sum of rounding on individual BOM item lines for the same item.
	For example, if there is BOM line for 1.2 of an item and a BOM line for 1.5 of the same item, Trial Kitting rounds each of these individual BOM lines up to 2. It then sums the rounded results to show a requirement of 4 for the component.
Labour	Shows the total labour hours required, analysed by process.

Machine	Shows the machine hours required on each machine.
Subcontract	Shows the total hours required for each subcontract operation.
Costs	Note: The Costs tab is shown if you selected the 'Cost when Trial Kitting' setting. For more information see <i>The Costing/ Trial Kitting tab</i> on page 112.
	Shows the cost of producing the required quantity of finished product, including overhead. Uses the required mark-up figure from the BOM record to calculate a suggested selling price. You can also see the latest actual selling price taken from the stock record.

8. Click 'Check for maximum build qty' to calculate the total quantity of finished product that you can produce. The calculation is based on the current free stock of components and sub-assemblies in your Stock Control records.

Note: If the quantity does not match the unit of measure, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value. This is shown in the Actual Qty column.

- 9. Click Print to produce a printed copy of your Trial Kitting results. You can print requirements and shortages, shortages only or a costing report.
- 10. Select any further Action To Take.
 - Select Add to Make to Stock to add the BOM to the Make to Stock module. You will also need to enter a Due Date.
 - Select Create Works Order to create a Works Order based on the details entered. You will also need to enter a Due Date.
 - Select Create Sales Order to create a sales order in Sales Order Processing. The sales order will be for the quantity specified.
 - Select 'No further action' if you do not want to take any further action.
- 11. To perform an action, click Perform Action. To close the Trial Kitting window, click Close.

Costing a BOM

BOMs need to be costed when prices, components or operations change.

To cost a BOM

 From the Navigation Bar, click Bill of Materials and choose Processing > Cost. The Cost Bill of Material window appears.

BOM - Cost Bill of Ma	terial					_ D >
Quantity to cost						
Use costing quantity fro	om Bill of Material					
Cost all ROMs using can	e guantitu					
Cost all boths using sail	ne quantity					
Quantity 1.00	0000					
O Use grid quantities						
O ese gris quantites						
BOM Reference	Costing Qty	Materials	Labour	Setup	Machine	Subcontract
MOU/ALU/FINISHEDBIKE	1.00000	1682.22168	9.00000	14.00000	37.12500	0.00000
MOU/STE/18FINISH	1.00000	95.98000	1.83333	1.25000	5.83333	0.00000
MOU/STE/20WHEELF	1.00000	60.04000	35.17222	91.50000	170.45000	0.00000

- 2. Select a BOM to cost by clicking in a blank BOM Reference box.
- 3. To cost using the costing quantity on the BOM record, select 'Use costing quantity from Bill of Material'.
- 4. To cost all BOMs using one quantity, select 'Cost all BOMs using same quantity' and enter the Quantity.
- 5. To cost each BOM using a different quantity, select 'Use grid quantities' and then change the 'Costing Qty' for each line.
- 6. Click Cost to update the grid with the costs.
- 7. Click Print to produce a report detailing the current BOM costs.
- 8. Click 'Breakdown of costs' to display a graphical breakdown of the costs.

Note: The unit cost of a manufactured item depends on the batch size. This is because setup and subcontract costs are shared by all units in the batch.

Displaying Current Latest Costs

You can view current latest costs at any time from the Bill of Material Details window.

To display current latest costs

- From the Navigation Bar, click Bill of Materials and choose Records > Amend BOM Details. The Bill of Material Details window appears.
- 2. Select the BOM that you want to view latest costs for.
- 3. Click the Latest Costs tab.
- 4. Click Cost Now to calculate BOM costs.
- 5. Click 'Breakdown of costs' to display a graphical breakdown of the costs.
- 6. Click 'Breakdown of overheads' to display a graphical view of the overhead costs.

Resequencing BOMs

Each BOM holds details of components and operations. Sequence numbers determine the sequence in which BOMs are processed and displayed on reports. Sequence numbers are applied automatically to components or operations as you add them to a BOM. The pattern for the numbers applied is set within the resequencing settings. For more information, see *The Resequencing tab* on page 110.

By default, sequence numbers are set in ascending numerical order, starting from '1.00', in steps of '1' (for example '1.00', '2.00', '3.00', '4.00', and so on). You can apply new sequence numbers to components or operations when required. Use the resequencing settings to specify new sequence numbers and defined steps for the sequence numbers. Incrementing by a number other than '1.00', for example '5.00' or '10.00', leaves a gap between sequence numbers. New components or operations fit into the sequence easily, since there are already gaps available in the numbering.

You can resequence BOMs individually or as a batch. If you resequence individually from the Bill of Materials Details window, you have the choice of resequencing either the components, or operations, or both.

To resequence a BOM

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Bill of Materials and choose Processing > Resequence.

The Resequence window appears, listing all BOMs which are not on hold.

- 2. Select the 'Show Bill of Materials On Hold' check box to include in the list BOMs which are on hold.
- 3. Select the BOMs you want to resequence and click OK.

Note: If you are using version control, you can only resequence active BOMs. A new version of the active BOM is created. If a new version already exists, resequencing does not take place.

Finding Maximum Build Quantity

You can determine the current maximum build quantity for a BOM using this option. Bill of Materials bases the maximum build quantity upon the availability of current free stock. For each component, the quantity required, quantity available, and quantity that you can build, are shown. You can also print the information for reference.

Note: Maximum Build Quantity is also available within Trial Kitting. You must use the option in Trial Kitting to check for maximum build quantity on sub-assemblies. For more information, see *Using Trial Kitting* on page 146.

To run the maximum build routine

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Bill of Materials and choose Processing > Maximum Build Quantity.

BOM - Maximu Maximum Build Det	ım Build Qty					
BOM Reference Description Warehouses	All Select	•		Maximum Build [Free Stock [Possible Stock [
Components						
Product Code	/ Description	n	Qty On BOM	Free Stock	Can Make Misc.	
Sub-Assem	oly 🔳 Phantom 📕	Single Batch Item	No Warehouse			

The Maximum Build Qty window appears.

- 2. Select the BOM Reference from the drop-down list. The Description appears automatically.
- 3. If stock is available in many warehouses, specify the locations to be used for estimating the maximum build quantity.

- To look at stock in all warehouses, select the All warehouses check box.
- To look at stock in specific warehouses, clear the All warehouses check box, and click Select. Select the required warehouses from the drop-down list.
- 4. Click Calculate.
 - If you are using version control and the BOM is checked out, you cannot continue.
 - If the BOM is on hold, confirm that you want to continue.

If you selected a warehouse where a component is not stored, this is highlighted in red.

Note: If the quantity does not match the unit of measure, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value. The quantity that can be made is shown in the Can Make column.

5. Click Close to close the Maximum Build Quantity window.

Viewing BOM Component Details

You can see different views of BOM component details. You can explode BOMs and view the component details within the BOMs. You can also implode the components to see which BOMs the components lie within.

To explode a single BOM

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Bill of Materials and choose Processing > Explosion > Single Bill of Materials.

🖷 BOM - Explode Bill of Material Bill of Material To Explode BOM Reference MOU/ALU/FINISHEDBIKE ~ G MOU/ALU/FINISHEDBIKE Finished Aluminium Mountain Bike MOU/24GEARSPACK (1.00000 - Each) Mountain Bike 24 Gears Pack MOU/24GEAR5 (1.00000 - Each) 24 Gears MOU/BIKECHAIN (1.00000 - Each) Mountain Bike Chain MOU/DISK-BRAKES (1.00000 - Each) Disk-Brakes MOU/ALU/20FINISHEDWHEEL (2.00000 - Each)20" Finished Aluminium Wheel 20" Tyre MOU/20INCHTYRE (2.00000 - Each) MOU/ALU/20WHEELFRAME (2.00000 - Each) 20" Aluminium Wheel Frame : MOU/ALU/20INCHRIM (2.00000 - Each) 20" Aluminium Rim Aluminium Hub MOU/ALU/HUB (2.00000 - Each) Aluminium Hub MOU/ALU/20INCHSPOKE (80.00000 - Each) 20" Aluminium Spoke ACC/PAINT/GREEN (2.00000 - Each) Green Bike Paint MOU/ALU/SUSPENSIONBIKESHELL (1.00000 - Each)Suspension Aluminium Mounta MOU/ALU/FRAME (1.00000 - Each) Aluminium Frame MOU/ALU/HANDLEBARS (1.00000 - Each) Aluminium Handlebars < > Expand All Collapse All Refresh Close

The Explode Bill of Material window appears.

- 2. Select the BOM Reference from the drop-down list.
- 3. To view the component details, click Expand All.
- 4. To close the window, click Close.

To explode all BOMs

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Bill of Materials and choose Processing > Explosion > All Bill of Materials.

The Bill of Materials Explosion window appears.

MOU/18GEARSPACK	Mountain Bike 18 Gears Pack	
MOU/21GEARSPACK	Mountain Bike 21 Gears Pack	
MOU/24GEARSPACK	Mountain Bike 24 Gears Pack	
MOU/ALU/18FINISHEDWHEEL	18" Finished Aluminium Wheel	
MOU/ALU/18WHEELFRAME	18" Aluminium Wheel Frame	
MOU/ALU/20FINISHEDWHEEL	20" Finished Aluminium Wheel	
MOU/ALU/20WHEELFRAME	20" Aluminium Wheel Frame	
MOU/ALU/BIKEPACK1	Bike Pack 1 - Aluminium	
MOU/ALU/FINISHEDBIKE	Finished Aluminium Mountain Bike	
MOU/ALU/STANDARDBIKESHELL	Standard Aluminium Mountain Bike Shell	
MOU/ALU/SUSPENSIONBIKESHELL	Suspension Aluminium Mountain Bike Shell	
MOU/STE/18FINISHEDWHEEL	18" Finished Steel Wheel	
MOU/STE/18WHEELFRAME	18" Steel Wheel Frame	
MOU/STE/20FINISHEDWHEEL	20" Finished Steel Wheel	
MOU/STE/20WHEELFRAME	20" Steel Wheel Frame	
MOU/STE/FINISHEDBIKE	Finished Steel Mountain Bike	
MOU/STE/STANDARDBIKESHELL	Standard Steel Mountain Bike Shell	
MOU/STE/SUSPENSIONBIKESHELL	Suspension Steel Mountain Bike Shell	
RAC/14GEARSPACK	Racing Bike 14 Gears Pack	
RAC/20GEARSPACK	Racing Bike 20 Gears Pack	
RAC/ALU/17FINISHEDWHEEL	17" Finished Aluminium Wheel	
RAC/ALU/17WHEELFRAME	17" Aluminium Wheel Frame	
RAC/ALU/19FINISHEDWHEEL	19" Finished Aluminium Wheel	
RAC/ALLI/19WHEELERAME	19" Aluminium Wheel Frame	
		Close

- 2. To view the component details, click the '+' (plus) sign next to the BOM.
- 3. To close the window, click Close.

To implode BOM components

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Bill of Materials and choose Processing > Implosion.

The Implosion window appears.



- 2. To view the BOM details for a component, click the '+' (plus) sign next to the component.
- 3. To close the window, click Close.

Preparing BOM Reports

The following reports are available from the Bill of Materials menu.

Bom Implosion

This provides a report on the BOMs from the component viewpoint. It lists the BOMs that each component is a part of.

Construction Report

This provides a report on the BOMs in construction. The report can be listed by BOM reference.

Indented Parts List

The report can be listed by level, with costs, with suppliers, with suppliers by level, or with suppliers and costs.

List

The BOM list may be organised by BOM reference, by date entered, by last costed, by last updated, by valid from or valid to, or in summary by BOM reference, by date entered, last costed or last updated.

Where Used

This report provides information on which BOMs use various elements. The report may be listed by components (by product code), drawings (by drawing reference), labour (by labour reference), machinery (by machine reference) or operation (by operation reference).

To prepare BOM reports

- 1. From the Navigation Bar select Bill of Materials, and choose Reports.
- 2. Select the report required from the list of available reports in the menu.

For more information on preparing reports, see the Sage 200 help.

To customise BOM reports

You can edit or copy report layouts, or create a new report layout, using Sage Report Designer. For more information, see *Sage Report Designer* documentation.

Note: We advise you to copy your existing report layouts before you edit them. If you edit the standard report layouts, future amendments by us will overwrite your changes.

Maintaining BOMs

You can add, replace or delete components in many BOMs at the same time. You can also update your Operations Register and/or BOMs with changes made to labour and machine hourly rates automatically.

Purging retired BOMs is described under Deleting a BOM on page 138.

Add Component

This lets you add a component to many BOMs at the same time.

Note: You cannot add components if you are using version control.

To add a component

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Bill of Materials and choose Maintenance > Add Component.

The Add Component window appears.

Component to add			
Product Code		*	
Description			
Instruction			
Memo			~
			~
Quantity	0.00000 📰	Unit of measure	~
Scrap Percent	0.00 📊		
🗌 Bulk Issue Item			
🔄 Hold Quantity			
Private			
🗌 Update Held BON	1s		

- 2. Select the Product Code. The Description appears automatically.
- 3. Enter the required information, according to the following descriptions.

Instruction Enter any instructions relating to this particular component. The instructions you enter here display on the Indented Parts list. You can change the label of the Instruction box. For more information, see *Registers* on page 47.

Memo	Enter any other information about the product that you want to record.
Quantity	Enter the quantity of the component or raw material required to manufacture the finished item.
	Note: If the quantity does not match the unit of measure, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.
Unit of Measure	The Unit of Measure displayed is from the stock record, but you can change it here.
Scrap Percent	If you want to build in an allowance for scrap when issuing this bill of materials, enter the percentage in the Scrap Percent box.
Bulk Issue Item	Select the Bulk Issue Item check box if you want to handle stock movements manually for this component.
	Note: Manufacturing clears the Update Stock flag on subsequent works orders by default.
Hold Quantity	Select Hold Quantity if you do not want to multiply the quantity by the batch quantity when ordering.
	For example, if you have a component quantity of two, and you are building 1000 of the finished product, Manufacturing would issue 2000 of the components. If you select the Hold Quantity check box, the system will issue only two components.
Private	Select the Private box if you do not want to include the component in any calculations outside Bill of Materials.
Update Held BOMs	Select the Update Held BOMs check box if you want to add components to BOMs that are currently on hold.

 To apply the component to selected BOMs, click Selected BOMs. The 'Apply changes to selected BOMs' window appears.

BOM - Apply chang Filter Field BOM Reference	value	Eind Clear
BOM Reference	Description	
MOU/18GEARSPACK	Mountain Bike 18 Gears Pack	
MOU/21GEARSPACK	Mountain Bike 21 Gears Pack	
MOU/24GEARSPACK	Mountain Bike 24 Gears Pack	
MOU/ALU/18FINISH	18" Finished Aluminium Wheel	•
MOU/ALU/18WHEELF	18" Aluminium Wheel Frame	
MOU/ALU/20FINISH	20" Finished Aluminium Wheel	
MOU/ALU/20WHEELF	20" Aluminium Wheel Frame	
MOU/ALU/BIKEPACK1	Bike Pack 1 - Aluminium	
MOU/ALU/FINISHEDBIKE	Finished Aluminium Mountain Bike	
MOU/ALU/STANDARD	Standard Aluminium Mountain Bike Shell	
MOU/ALU/SUSPENSIO	Suspension Aluminium Mountain Bike Shell	
MOU/STE/18FINISH	18" Finished Steel Wheel	
MOU/STE/18WHEELF	18" Steel Wheel Frame	<u>.</u>
Select <u>All</u> <u>S</u> wap	Clear	OK Cancel

- Select the BOMs that you want to add the component to, and click OK to return to the Add Component window.
- 5. To add the component to the BOMs, click OK.
- 6. Confirm that you want to add the component, when prompted.

Replace Component

This lets you replace a component in a BOM or works order. You can amend all records or select which records you want to amend.

Note: You cannot replace components if you are using version control.

To replace components

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Bill of Materials and choose Maintenance > Replace Component.

The Replace Component window appears.

🖷 BOM - Replace Compo	nent 🔀
Replace Product Code	Y
With Product Code Description	×
Update Modules Update Modules Update Held BOMs Selected BOMs	Works Orders
	OK <u>C</u> ancel

2. In the Replace area, select the Product Code for the item you want to be replaced from the drop-down list.

The Description appears automatically.

3. In the With area, select the Product Code for the item to use as a replacement from the drop-down list .

The 'Description' appears automatically.

Note: The replacement item must support the same unit of measure as the original item. Even if it does, it may not be a suitable alternative item. In this case, you must confirm the replacement when you click OK.

- 4. In the Update Modules area, select the modules you want to update (Bill of Materials and Works Orders).
- 5. Select Update Held BOMs if you want to replace components in BOMs that are currently on hold.
- 6. To specify the BOMs to replace the component in, click Selected BOMs.

The 'Apply changes to selected BOMs' window appears.

- Select the BOMs required and click OK.
- 7. To replace the component in the selected BOMs, click OK.

Note: The new component must support the same unit of measure as the original item. If not, the replacement cannot be performed and you must enter another new component.

8. Confirm the replacement when prompted.

Manufacturing finds all BOMs and/or works orders which contain the part to be replaced and substitutes the new item.

Note: You now need to recost your affected BOMs. For more information, see *Costing a BOM* on page 149. You can run the Where Used report in Bill of Materials to find out which BOMs have been altered.

Delete Component

This lets you delete a component from all BOMs.

Note: You cannot delete components if you are using version control.

To delete a component

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Bill of Materials and choose Maintenance > Delete Component.

The Delete Component window appears.

🕮 BOM - Delete Component	\mathbf{X}
Delete Component	
Product Code	~
Description	
Update Held BOMs	
Selected BOMs	<u>OK</u> <u>C</u> ancel

- 2. Select the Product Code of the component you want to delete from the drop-down list. The description is appears automatically.
- 3. Select Update Held BOMs if you want to delete components from BOMs that are on hold.
- To specify which BOMs to delete the component from, click Selected BOMs. The 'Apply changes to selected BOMs' window appears.
 - Select the BOMs required and click OK.
- 5. To delete the component from the selected BOMs, click OK.
- 6. Confirm the deletion when prompted.

Update Operations

This lets you automatically update your Operations Register and/or BOMs with changes to labour and machine hourly rates.

Note: You cannot update operations if you are using version control.

To update operations

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Bill of Materials and choose Maintenance > Update Operations.

The Update Operations window appears.

Select tasks to perform	
Update labour and machine rates in Opera	ations Register
Update Bill of Material Operations	
Operations - Update What?	
Operation Description/Notes	Labour Reference/Description/Notes
🗹 Qty Per Run	🗹 Labour Time
Run Time	🗹 Labour Rate
🗹 Setup Time	🗹 Delay/Overlap/Shrinkage
Setup Rate	✓ Tooling
Machine Reference/Description/Notes	Piece Work
🗹 Machine Time	Subcontract
Machine Rate	

2. Select or clear the following check boxes.

Update labour and	Select this check box to update the Operations Register
machine rates in	automatically with changes made in the Labour Register and
Operations Register	Machine Register.
Update Bill of Material Operations	Select this check box to update all or a selection of BOMs automatically with changes made in the Operations Register.

- 3. Select the check boxes for the features you want to update.
- 4. If you selected Update Bill of Material Operations, click the Bill of Materials to Update tab.
 - Select the BOMs to update.
- 5. To perform the selected updates, click OK.

- Confirm that you want to update the selected tasks, when prompted. You are prompted to recost your BOMs.
- Click OK to complete the process.
 Note: Remember that you may need to recost your BOMs.
 For more information, see *Costing a BOM* on page 149.

Chapter 5 Estimating

The Estimating module assists in the production of estimates for one-off items or non-repetitive batches. If you are working in a one-off jobbing environment, read this chapter.

Information for the estimate is drawn from Stock Control, the Labour Register, Machine Register and Operations Register. You can enter expected costs for each stage of the job under each of the job cost types.

You can copy, print, recost, cancel and delete estimates. These facilities are described in this chapter.

In this chapter:

Entering Settings for Estimates168
Viewing Settings for Estimates177
Creating an Estimate178
Creating Multiple Estimates209
Amending an Estimate214
Amending Multiple Estimates216
Deleting an Estimate219
Copying an Estimate220
Printing an Estimate222
Costing an Estimate223
Creating a Sales Order224
Converting an Estimate into a Works Order
Converting an Estimate into a BOM .228
Releasing All Stages229
Managing Multiple Estimates231
Preparing Estimating Reports237
Cancelling an Estimate238
Maintaining Estimates239

Entering Settings for Estimates

You can tailor the system to your company's needs through the setup process. This saves time when using the system. For more information, see *To enter the estimate default settings* on page 168.

Calculation of overhead recovery applies in Estimating. Once you enter estimate details, an amount is added to increase the estimate and ensure overheads are met.

Note: Enter overhead recovery settings before estimating. For more information, see *Overhead Recovery Settings* on page 27.

Estimates can have up to five analysis codes attached to them for analysis purposes. For more information, see *Analysis Codes* on page 21.

You can set up labour, machine and operation details prior to creating estimates. For more information, see *Labour Register* on page 47, *Machine Register* on page 50, *Operations Register* on page 54 and *Drawing Register* on page 62.

In addition, stage templates, prospects and expense types can apply within estimates. For more information, see *Stage Templates* on page 69, *Prospects* on page 79 and *Expense Types* on page 88.

To enter the estimate default settings

From the Navigation Bar, click Estimating and choose Setup > Estimate Settings.
 The Estimate Settings window appears.

eral Numbering	Resequencing Markup Defaults (%)
Coching	
The second	
✓ Use Base No. I	People' when costing
Materials:	Oost + Markup % O Selling Price
When BOM used o	n Estimate Header
Blow-through F	Phantoms
Stage Reference	BOM
Stage Description	Bill of Materials
Rapid Estimate Ent	ry
Stage Reference	DEFAULT
Stage Description	DEFAULT
On Creation of Wo	rks Orders
Use Estimate N	lumber as Works Order Number
Create Sales O	order
Estimates can l	be changed after creation of Works Order
Security	
2 good of	

For more information on each Estimate Settings tab, please read the following sections.

- The General tab on page 170
- The Numbering tab on page 173
- The Resequencing tab on page 175
- The Mark-Up Defaults (%) tab on page 176

The General tab

To enter general settings

1. In the Estimate Settings window, click the General tab.

The General settings appear.

neral Numberin	g Resequencing	Markup Defaults (%)
Costing		
🗹 Use 'Base No	. People' when co:	sting
Materials	: 💿 Cost + Ma	rkup % 🔘 Selling Price
When BOM used	l on Estimate Head	er
Blow-throug	n Phantoms	
Stage Referenc	e BOM	
Stage Description	Bill of Material	5
Rapid Estimate B	intry	
Stage Referenc	e DEFAULT	
Stage Description	DEFAULT	
On Creation of \	Works Orders	
Use Estimate	Number as Works	Order Number
Create Sales	Order	
Estimates ca	n be changed afte	r creation of Works Order
Security		

2. Enter the settings required, according to the following descriptions.

Use 'Base No. People' when costing	By default, it is assumed that manufacturing operations are to be performed by one person.
	Select this setting if more than one person is required to perform for an operation. This ensures accuracy in costing. For example, an operation taking two people 10 hours is costed at 20 hours.

Note: If in doubt, select the option.

Materials	When building estimates, you can:	
	• Enter selling prices and mark-up% for quantity breaks.	
	 Use the existing customer selling prices set up within the Price Book for each stock item. 	
	To enter both selling prices and mark-up% for quantity breaks when you create estimates, select Cost + Markup%.	
	Note: This is the default.	
	To use the customer selling prices for each stock item, select Selling Prices.	
Blow-through Phantoms	To accommodate one-off modifications to standard products, you can add a BOM as a product code on an estimate header.	
	Select this option to add the BOM components and operations to a special stage on the estimate.	
Stage Reference	If you select Blow-through Phantoms, enter the reference for the special stage.	
Stage Description	If you select Blow-through Phantoms, enter the description for the special stage.	
Rapid Estimate Entry	Estimates must have at least one stage. You can create estimates with a full range of stages or use the rapid option. If you use the rapid option, enter a default Stage Reference and Stage Description here. This stage is used automatically during rapid entry.	
Use Estimate Number as Works Order Number	Select this to use the estimate number for the works order if you convert the estimate to a works order.	
Create Sales Order	You can choose to create a sales order in Sales Order Processing when you put an estimate into production. To make this choice available, select Create Sales Order.	

Estimates can be changed after creation of Works Order	You may want to change estimates after they have gone into production or been converted to works orders.
	To allow changes, select 'Estimates can be changed after creation of Works Order'.
	To restrict the ability to make changes, click Security and set a password.
	Note: By default, the password is blank.

3. To continue entering Estimate Settings, click the Numbering tab. To save Estimate Settings, click OK.
The Numbering tab

To enter numbering settings

1. In the Estimate Settings window, click the Numbering tab.

The Numbering settings appear.

eneral Numbering	Resequencing Markup Defaults (%)	
Numbering		
Automatic Estim	nate Numbers	
Next Estimate N	Jumber 13 Prefix EST	
Format to (place	es) 4 🔹	
Multi Them Estimate		
Suffix Type	Number O Character	
Same ()po		
Suffix Separator	/	

2. Enter the settings required, according to the following descriptions.

Automatic Estimate Numbers	Manufacturing automatically generates estimate numbers. To enter your own estimate numbers using any 30 digit alphanumeric sequence, clear the check box.
Next Estimate No.	If you selected the Automatic Estimate Numbers check box, enter the number you would like to start with. The number is incremented by one each time you enter and save or abandon an estimate.
Prefix	If you selected Automatic Estimate Numbers, you can enter up to ten letters and/or numbers here. These will appear as a prefix before your estimate number.

Format to (places)	If you selected Automatic Estimate Numbers, enter the number of digits, including leading zeroes, for the estimate number.		
	This ensures estimates are displayed in the expected order. For example, entering '4' results in the sequence 0001, 0002, 0003, and so on.		
Suffix Type	You can create several estimates for one customer at one time. When you do this, a suffix is added to the estaimte number.		
	Select the type of suffix you want for multi item estimates:		
	• Choose Number if you want the suffix to be numeric. For example, 01, 02, 03, and so on.		
	• Choose Character if you want the suffix to be letters. For example, AA, AB, AC, and so on.		
Suffix Separator	Select from the drop-down list the separator character to use before the suffix in the Estimate Reference. For example, if you select the forward slash character (/), the suffix is shown as /01 or /AA.		

3. To continue entering Estimate Settings, click the Resequencing tab. To save Estimate Settings, click OK.

The Resequencing tab

To enter resequencing settings

1. In the Estimate Settings window, click the Resequencing tab.

The Resequencing settings appear.

eneral Numbering Resequencing Markup	Defaults (%)
Stages	
Resequence in reference order	
Starting at 1.00 🔹 In steps of	5.00 🜲
No.of decimal places for sequence nos.	2 🜲

2. Enter the settings required, according to the following descriptions.

Resequence in reference order	If you want the system to resequence the manufacturing stages by reference, select this check box. This is useful if you make changes in the list of stages. You can resequence stages starting at any number and in steps of any number.
	Note: If you are unsure, set to resequence starting from '1' in steps of '1'. You can change this at any time.
No. of decimal places for sequence nos.	Enter the number of decimal places for sequence numbers. You can enter a figure between zero and six.

3. To continue entering Estimate Settings, click the Mark-Up Defaults (%) tab. To save Estimate Settings, click OK.

The Mark-Up Defaults (%) tab

To enter mark-up defaults (%) settings

1. In the Estimate Settings window, click the Mark-Up Defaults (%) tab.

The Mark-Up Defaults (%) settings appear.

neral Numbering	Resequencing Markup Defaults (%)
Defaults	
Stock Items	10.00000 #
Non-Stock Items	10.00000 #
Labour	10.00000 #
Machine	10.00000 #
Setup	10.00000 #
Tooling	10.00000 #
Subcontract	10.00000 #
Other Expenses	10.00000 #

2. Enter the settings required, according to the following descriptions.

Defaults Manufacturing analyses costs under eight headings. For each heading, you can enter a default mark-up. This is applied to the total cost price to calculate a selling price.

For example, if you enter a mark-up of 50% on stock items, items bought for £1000 would be charged at £1500.

Mark-up can be adjusted for individual estimates, if required.

3. To save Estimate Settings, click OK.

Viewing Settings for Estimates

If you need to provide details of your settings to the support team, use the 'view only' versions of the settings.

To view estimate settings

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Estimating and choose Setup > View Estimate Settings.
- 2. When you have finished viewing the settings, click Close.

Creating an Estimate

Note: You cannot create an estimate for a foreign currency customer.

There are various ways of creating an estimate in Sage 200 Manufacturing.

Full

You can set up the estimate with detailed information about the stages involved in the estimate. For more information, see *To set up a full estimate* on page 178.

Rapid

You can set up an estimate quickly, using the Enter New Estimate - Rapid option. This is useful if you are not interested in setting up stages manually for the estimate. The default stage for the estimate (see *The General tab* on page 170) is created automatically. For more information, see *To set up an estimate quickly* on page 179.

• Сору

You can copy an existing estimate and amend the details where required. For more information, see *Copying an Estimate* on page 220 and *Amending an Estimate* on page 214.

Multi Item

You can create several estimates for a customer at one time. For more information, see *Creating Multiple Estimates on page 209*.

To set up a full estimate

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Estimating and choose Records > Enter New Estimate - Full.

The Estimate Details window appears.

- 2. Enter the estimate Main Details. These consist of an estimate description and customer details such as the account code (if any) contacts and reference numbers. This is also where quantity breaks are specified. For more information, see *The Main Details tab* on page 183.
- 3. Enter the Additional Details. These include information such as who was involved with the estimate, overall discounts applied to the estimate and overhead recovery. For more information, see *The Additional Details tab* on page 187.
- 4. Enter the Site Address details. This is the customer site address. For more information, see *The Site Address tab on page 189*.
- 5. Enter details about your manufacturing stages. Stages are the main elements into which the estimate may be broken down. For example, you may enter stages for Design, Manufacture, Install and so on.

Note: You must have at least one stage for each estimate you are entering in the Enter New Estimate - Full process.

Check that all prices are correct before moving on to the next stage. For more information, see *The Stages tab* on page 190.

- 6. Check the Totals to ensure that selling prices, mark-ups and margins are all correct. For more information, see *The Totals tab* on page 200.
- 7. Enter the path to additional files on your PC or network which you want to link with this estimate. For more information, see *The Attached Files tab* on page 202.
- 8. If required, enter additional text for the Invoice Description. For more information, see *The Invoice Description tab* on page 204.
- 9. Enter appropriate Analysis Codes for reporting purposes. For more information, see *The Analysis Codes tab* on page 205.
- 10. Add Drawings to the estimate. For more information, see The Drawings tab on page 206.
- 11. Add notes about the estimate for your reference, using the Memo tab. For more information, see *The Memo tab* on page 208.
- 12. When you have finished entering your estimate details, click Save.

The Estimate Details window closes and you are returned to the Estimate List. The list now includes your new, saved estimate.

To set up an estimate quickly

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Estimating and choose Records > Enter New Estimate - Rapid.

The Estimate Details - New Estimate (Rapid) window appears.

		×	Due Date Quantity No.of Pieces	10/09/2008		Estimate No. A/C Product Code Warehouse	FACTORY	Customer V
Type STK	Reference	Descripti	on	Quantity 0.00000	Cost Price 0.00000	Tot 0.0000	tal Unit of Sale	Stage DEFAULT

2. Click Copy Existing to copy the details from an existing estimate, or enter the following estimate details.

Due Date	Enter the date the estimate should be completed. This is the default date for the stages. It is also used in MPS and MRP, and is carried over into the works order upon conversion.
Quantity	Enter the number of finished items you want to manufacture. If you change the quantity at any stage, the quantities for each item are recalculated.
No. of Pieces	Enter the number of individual items required for each finished item. If you change the number at any stage, the quantities for each item are recalculated.
Estimate No.	Manufacturing automatically generates estimate numbers. To enter your own estimate numbers, clear the Automatic Estimate Numbers check box in Estimate Settings. For more information, see <i>The Numbering tab</i> on page 173. You can enter estimate numbers up to 30 digits using any alphnumeric sequence.

A/C		If the estimate is for an existing customer/prospect, select the customer/prospect from the drop-down list. The address appears automatically.
		If the estimate is for a new customer/prospect, enter the customer/prospect reference.
		Note: You can only create estimates for base currency customers.
Product Co	de	Select a product from the Product Code drop-down list.
		Note: If you select a product that has a BOM defined, the BOM components and operations appear in the items list.
Warehouse		Select a warehouse, set up for component supply in Stock Control, from the Warehouse drop-down list.
Enter the re	quired informa	ation, according to the following descriptions.
Туре		Click within the Type box and select the type of transaction. The type can be 'ST' (stock), 'NS' (non-stock), 'OP' (operations) and 'EXP' (expenses).
Reference		Click within the Reference box to select a description from the drop-down list.
Description		Enter the description for the item.
Quantity		Enter the quantity required for this estimate.
		Note: If you enter a quantity which does not match the unit of sale, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.
Cost Price		Enter the estimated cost price.
Total		Total cost is calculated as the quantity multiplied by the price. The calculation is done when you move out of the box.
		Note: You can use the TAB key to move out of the Total box to ensure that the total figure is calculated.

З.

Unit of Sale	If the item uses multiple units, click within the Unit of Sale box. Select from the drop-down list, the units this price relates to, for future reference. Otherwise, the product unit is displayed.
Stage	Each job for which you are preparing an estimate, can be broken down into stages. Click within the Stage box, and select the stage, if it already exists, from the drop-down list. If it does not already exist, select 'NEW' to create a new stage.
	Note: If you specified a Stage Reference and Stage Description in Estimate Settings, this stage is shown here by default.

As you add information to the estimate, the Total Cost, Markup (%), Total Selling Price, Margin (%) and Profit are updated. Depending on your Costing Materials setting within Estimate Settings, you either manually update the markup %, selling price and margin (%) or update the values automatically. For more information, see *The General tab* on page 170.

 If you selected the Cost + Markup % Materials setting, then Markup (%) is calculated from the default specified in Estimate Settings. For more information, see *The Mark-Up Defaults (%) tab* on page 176. You can change this and you can enter a Total Selling Price, or you can enter a Margin (%) value.

If you enter a Markup (%) and a Total Selling Price, then the Margin (%) value is calculated automatically.

If you enter a Margin (%) value, the Markup (%) and Total Selling Price are calculated automatically.

 If you selected the Selling Price Materials setting, then Markup (%) and Selling Price are taken from the stock item record. If the customer has special discounts these are also taken into account and the Markup (%) and Selling Price amended.

Note: You cannot amend the Markup (%) and Selling Price values and you cannot enter a Margin (%) value.

 To save your Estimate Details, click Save. To continue entering another fast entry estimate, click Save and New.

The Main Details tab

To enter estimate details

 From the Navigation Bar, click Estimating and choose Records > Enter New Estimate - Full. An empty Estimate Details window appears.

Estimate Details					Dates		
Estimate No.	<autonumb< td=""><td>er></td><td>~</td><td></td><td>Entered</td><td>09/09/2008</td><td>1</td></autonumb<>	er>	~		Entered	09/09/2008	1
Product Code			*	1	Due Date	09/09/2008	1
Description					Last Update	ed [/]	-
Warehouse	FACTORY		~	1	Follow Up	11 1	Qutlook
No.of Pieces	1.00	iii 000					
Customer Detail: A/C Name			ustomer 🗸 🗸) Middle	list		
Contact Reference No.					Last		
Quantity Breaks							
Active	Quantity	Total Co	st Unit	Cost Markup('	%) Total Selling Pri	ce Unit Price	Unit Of Sale
Yes	1.00000	0.0000	JU 0.01	0.000	0.000	0.00000	
4							r
			16				<u></u>

- 2. If you are using automatic numbering (see *The Numbering tab* on page 173), Manufacturing automatically generates the estimate number when you save the estimate. If you are entering estimate numbers, enter a number up to 30 digits, using any alphanumeric sequence.
- 3. Enter the number of individual items required for each finished item in the No. of Pieces box. If you change the number at any stage, the quantities for each item are recalculated.

Note: You must enter this before selecting or entering a product.

4. Select the product code from the Product Code drop-down list. The Warehouse and Description appear automatically.

The Description is entered automatically on the Invoice Description tab. The Invoice Description tab changes to capital letters.

Note: If you select a BOM product code for this estimate, stages that were set up to be added automatically to estimates must be manually added instead. For more information, see *Stage Templates* on page 69 and *The Stages tab* on page 190.

- 5. The Date Entered box defaults to 'today's date' but you can overwrite this.
- 6. If you know the date by which the estimate should be completed, enter it in the Due Date box. This is the default date for the stages (not to be confused with the due date on the stages). It is carried over into a resulting works order upon conversion.
- 7. The Follow Up box lets you enter a date on which to take further action, if required. Type a date in the field or use the calendar button.

Note: Microsoft® Outlook users may now click the Outlook button. An entry is made in your Microsoft Outlook diary. A reminder is set, ensuring that any follow up action is not forgotten. You can amend and save this entry in the usual way.

8. If you are preparing this estimate for an existing customer or prospect, select Customer or Prospect. Then select the A/C from the drop-down list.

Note: You can only prepare estimates for base currency customers.

- 9. If you are preparing the estimate for a new customer or prospect, ignore the A/C box. Enter the name of the person or company for whom the estimate is being prepared into the Name box.
- 10. The Contact boxes automatically display any data from the selected A/C. You can amend this information.
- 11. Enter an appropriate Reference No.
- 12. You can enter multiple quantity breaks for the finished items you want to manufacture. This gives you the ability to quote prices for different quantities when preparing estimates for customers. For more information about the Quantity Breaks Table, see *Using the Quantity Breaks Table* on page 185.
- 13. To continue entering estimate information, click the Additional Details tab To save your Estimate Details, click Save.

Using the Quantity Breaks Table

From within the full estimate Main Details tab, you can set up quantity breaks. You can use the same estimate to calculate different costs depending on different quantities. You can cost the estimate and print the estimate details for any or all of the quantity breaks that you set up.

Only one quantity break can be active at any one time. When the estimate goes into production or is converted to a works order, only one quantity can be used. The quantity that is used is the active quantity.

When you create an estimate, a default quantity break line is created with a status of 'Active' and a quantity of '1'. Any subsequent quantity breaks created by you are given an inactive status and are calculated on the basis of the active details.

To use quantity breaks

- 1. Enter the new quantity break in the next available row.
- 2. Enter the Quantity you require.

If you are using the quantity breaks correctly, you will not need to enter a duplicate quantity value.

If the quantity you enter already exists within the table, the system prompts you to enter another value.

If you enter a quantity which does not match the unit of sale, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

Note: You can change the Unit of Sale, if required. Click in the Unit of Sale box and select another unit of sale from the drop-down list.

- 3. Depending on your Costing Materials setting within Estimate Settings, you either manually update the Markup (%) and Total Selling Price or Margin (%) values, or update the values automatically. For more information, see *The General tab* on page 170.
 - If you selected the Cost + Markup % Materials setting, then Markup (%) is calculated from the default specified in Estimate Settings. For more information, see *The Mark-Up Defaults (%) tab* on page 176. You can change this and you can enter a Total Selling Price, or you can enter a Margin (%) value.

If you enter a Markup (%) and a Total Selling Price, then the Margin (%) value is calculated automatically.

If you enter a Margin (%) value, the Markup (%) and Total Selling Price are calculated automatically.

 If you selected the Selling Price Materials setting, then Markup (%) and Selling Price are taken from the stock item record. If the customer has special discounts these are also taken into account and the Markup (%) and Selling Price are amended.

Note: You cannot amend the Markup (%) and Selling Price values and you cannot enter a Margin (%) value.

- 4. If required, select an alternative Unit of Sale.
- 5. Set up as many breaks as you require.

			onite coole	manap(70)	Total Delining Price	UNICPTICE	Unit Of Sale
Yes	1.000	634.56	634.56	59.50	1012.16	1012.16	Each 🔺
No	50.000	31470.96	629.42	59.50	50197.46	1003.95	Each e
No	100.000	62936.67	629.37	59.50	100386.55	1003.87	Each —

When you print the estimate, all quantity breaks set up are displayed.

Quantity Breaks:		
Quantity	Unit Selling Price	Total Selling Price
1.000	1864.77	1864.77
50.000	1003.95	50197.46
100.000	1003.87	100386.55
Thankyou for this oppo quote the above refere	rtunity to quote for your r n ce and quantity break yo	equirements. We would be grateful if you woul ou require when placing your order.
Yours Sincerebr		

For more information on printing an estimate, see *Printing an Estimate* on page 222.

6. To make a quantity break active, select Yes in the Active column.

The new estimate uses the various cost items taken from the active entries on the Quantity Breaks Table, to provide costs estimates.

7. To make a quantity break inactive, select No in the Active column.

The Additional Details tab

To set up additional details

1. In the Estimate Details window, click the Additional Details tab.

The additional information appears.

EST - Estimate	Details - •		Stager Tr	stale (A)	tached Filer	INVOICE DE	SCRIPTION	Applusis Codes	Drawings	4
Mulu	onal Decails	DICE MULIESS	Judges II		cached thes	INVOICE DE	JCKIP HON	Analysis Codes	Diawings	60.00
- Additional Inform	ation									
Entered By	MANAGE	R								
Copied From			Status	Entere	d	*				
W.Order No.			Project No.							
S.Order No.										
Salesperson		First			Middle		Last			٦
By Date										
Linked										
						<u></u>	.			

Note: The description of the stock item selected on the Main Details tab is entered automatically on the Invoice Description tab. The Invoice Description tab is shown in capital letters to indicate this.

- 2. The Entered By box defaults to the current user name.
- 3. If appropriate, enter the name of the Salesperson. Otherwise, leave these boxes blank.
- 4. When entering a new estimate the status is Entered. When you begin processing the estimate, change the Status if you have Manager access rights.
- 5. The Copied From, W. Order No. and S.Order No. boxes are updated automatically.
- 6. Apply an Overall Discount to a sales order when it is created from the estimate. Enter the discount as a percentage or amount. This discount is applied in addition to any manual adjustments made in the system-generated sales price, shown in the Quantity Breaks table.

- 7. Overhead Recovery is calculated automatically as a percentage cost of the estimate. The calculation uses the default percentages (for total cost or individual cost types) you have defined in the Overhead Recovery Settings. For more information, see *Overhead Recovery Settings* on page 27.
- 8. The Last Recosted boxes are completed automatically by the system as it uses the information from your login and computer system date.
- 9. To set a flag against the estimate, which can be seen in the Estimate List, select the Follow Up check box.
- 10. To link purchase orders (raised to meet this estimate's demands) to one-off works orders, select the Linked check box. The box is clear, by default, but will be either selected or clear, depending on your last selection.

If you select this check box, then any associated orders raised will only be used to meet this estimate's demands.

Note: Another setting must be selected for MRP to raise linked works and purchase orders to the works order created for the estimate header. This is the 'Allow linked under MRP' check box on the Stock Item Manufacturing tab.

11. To continue entering estimate information, click the Site Address tab. To save your Estimate Details, click Save.

The Site Address tab

To set up the site address details

1. In the Estimate Details window, click the Site Address tab.

The site address information appears.

	Additional Details	Site Address	Stages	Totals	Attached Files	INVOICE DESCRIPTION	Analysis Codes	Drawings
Site Addre	955							
Address								
City								
County								
Postcode	-							
Country			1	5				
	1							

2. Enter the customer site address details.

Note: You can only enter City, County or Country information if the Use Segmented Addresses option in Accounting System Manager is selected.

3. To continue entering estimate information, click the Stages tab. To save your Estimate Details, click Save.

The Stages tab

Each manufacturing job for which you are preparing an estimate can be broken down into stages. You can accumulate costs (stock, non-stock, operations and expenses) stage by stage, and compare actual costs against estimated costs.



Note: Estimates must have at least one stage.

Stages contain two levels of information: header information and detailed information. At the detailed level you enter the type of cost information: stock, non-stock, operations or expenses.

Stages can be entered directly or from stage templates. Stage templates hold common information that can apply to many different stages. Creating stages for an estimate using stage templates saves time and allows you to create the stages that you require quickly and easily.

When you create a stage template, you can specify if you want the stage to be added automatically to a new estimate. This can save you time. Stages can be added automatically when you enter enter full estimate details, if the product code you select does not already exist for a BOM. Stages which are added automatically will have a status of Entered and the stage Due Date will be that on the Estimate header.

For more information see Stage Templates on page 69.

To enter stage header information

1. In the Estimate Details window, click the Stages tab.

Note: You must save your estimate header information before you can enter the estimate stages information. Click Yes to continue.

The Stages window appears.

ain Decalis	Additional Details	Site Address	Stages	Totals	Attached Files	INVOICE DESCRIP	TION Analysis	Codes	Drawings	4
Seq.	Reference		Descripti	ion			Due Date	Statu	IS	
1.00							11			
		_								
2										

- 2. If you are using stage templates, click within the Reference box and select the template you require from the drop-down list. For more information on stage templates, see *Stage Templates* on page 69. The template details are entered against your estimate and you can amend these as necessary.
- 3. If you are not using stage templates, enter the stage header information.

Stage Reference	Enter a reference for the stage. This may be up to 30 alphanumeric characters in length.
Stage Description	Enter a description for the stage. This may be up to 60 alphanumeric characters in length.
Due Date	This defaults to the date entered on the Main Details tab but you can change it if necessary. This is the due date used by MPS and MRP.

Status

To include an estimate in demands read by MPS, the estimate must be Released.

You can release each stage of an estimate by selecting Released from the Status drop-down list. Or you can release all stages of the estimate by clicking Release All.

Note: An estimate that has been converted to a works order has a status of Production.

4. Enter all stage header information required.

Then enter the stage details for each stage. For more information, see *To enter stage detail information*.

To enter stage detail information

1. Click within the stage Description box to open the Stage Details window.

Note: You must save your stage information before you can add items to it. Click Yes to continue.

The Stage Details window appears.

erence	1,00 e Mountain Bike Gears						
cription Mount	ain Bike Gears						
ock Items Non-St	ock Items Operations Other Ex	kpenses Totals Mem	0				
Stock Code	Description	Quantity	Cost Price	Total Unit of Sale	Supplier Acc.	Supplier Ref.	Lead Time.
MOLI/24GEARS	24 Casua						0
io of citating	24 Gears	55.00000	59.99000	3299,45000 Each	CHR001	Chrome De	3
MOU/BIKECHAIN	Mountain Bike Chain	1.00000	59.99000 24.99000	3299.45000 Each 24.99000 Each	CHR001 ATL001	Atlas Tyres Ltd	3
MOU/BIKECHAIN	21 gaars Mountain Bike Chan	55,0000	59.99000 24.99000	3299,45000 Each 24,99000 Each	CHR001 ATL001	Chrome De Atlas Tyres Ltd	3

Note: Stock items have a record set up within the Stock Control module.

2. Enter the stock item information according to the following information.

Stock Code	Select a code from the drop-down list.
Description	The description of the product code in the Stock Control module appears by default.
Quantity	Enter the required quantity of this item.
	Note: If you enter a quantity which does not match the unit of sale, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.
Cost Price	This automatically defaults to the last price paid for the product. Change this, if required, to the price you want to include in the estimate.
	Note: If you change the price and then cost the estimate, the price reverts to the price stored within Stock Control.
Total	The total cost is shown.
Unit of Sale	The unit of sale (used by Manufacturing as a unit of purchase) is displayed.
	If required, select an alternative unit of sale.
	Note: If you amend the Cost Price, make sure the amended price relates to the units displayed.
Supplier Acc.	Enter a supplier's account reference, if required.
Supplier Ref.	If you have a supplier reference, enter this.
Lead Time	This is the purchase lead time that should be used to offset the start date. It can also be applied to manufactured items.
	Note: If you define a supplier and lead time against a manufactured item (that is, a product with a BOM defined), the item will be purchased rather than manufactured.

Note: Stock items that have a BOM set up for them (that is 'manufactured' items) are highlighted in blue, by default. This can be customised in Manufacturing System Manager > Settings > Highlight Colours). When the estimate is processed, sub-assembly requirements are automatically added by MRP.

3. Continue to enter stock items until complete.

To speed up the entry of lines within the Stages tab, try these shortcuts:

- F8 deletes an item from the estimate.
- F7 inserts a line into the estimate.
- F6 copies the contents of the above cell.

As you enter items, the total cost accumulates in the Total box at the bottom right of the window.

4. Click on the Non-Stock Items tab.

EST - Stag	e Details - Cre	ate Mounta	in Bike Gears					_	_0
iequence No.	1.00	7							
eference	Create Mountain	n Bike Gears							
escription	Mountain Bike G	ears							
Stock Items	Non-Stock Items	Operations	Other Expenses	Totals Memo					
Description				Quantity	Cost Price	Total Unit of Sale	Supplier Acc.	Supplier Ref.	Lead Time.
N52				7.00000	14.99000	104.93000	ATL001	Atlas Tyres Ltd	0
								Total	104.93000
									K <u>C</u> ancel

Note: Non-stock items are bought in for manufacturing and do not have a product record in Stock Control.

5. Enter your non-stock item information now:

Description	Enter the description for the item needed.
Quantity	Enter the quantity required for this estimate.
Cost Price	Enter the estimated cost price.
Total	Total cost is calculated as the quantity entered multiplied by the price. The calculation is done when you move out of the box.
	Note: You can use the TAB key to move out of the Total box to ensure that the total figure is calculated.

Unit of Sale	Enter the units that this price relates to for future reference, if required.
Supplier Acc.	Enter a supplier's account reference, if required.
Supplier Ref.	If you have a supplier reference, enter this.
Lead Time	This is the purchase lead time that should be used to offset the start date. It can also be applied to manufactured items.
	Note: If you define a supplier and lead time against a manufactured item (that is a product with a BOM defined), the item will be purchased rather than manufactured.

- 6. Continue to enter non-stock items. As you enter items, the cost accumulates in the Total box.
- 7. Click the Operations tab.

📇 EST - Stag	ge Details - Create Mountain Bike Gears		
Sequence No.	1,00		
Reference	Create Mountain Bike Gears		
Description	Mountain Bike Gears		
Stock Items	Non-Stock Items Operations Other Expenses To	tals Memo	
Reference		Description	Sequence
Racing Bike	Wheel Assembly	I Assemble Racing Bike Wheel	1.00
No of pieces	Saha Correct	Labour 0.00000 Machine 0.000000	
	1.0000 <u>m</u> 500p 91.50000		

Note: Operations may come from the Operations Register, Labour Register and Machine Register.

8. Before entering details of your operation, confirm the number of pieces that you require as a default for this stage. This is the number of individual items required for each finished item. This is a default for the same box stored on each operation and is itself taken by default from the entry on the estimate header. For more information, see *To enter estimate details* on page 183.

- 9. If you are using the Operations Register, click the button within the Reference box to display the Select Operation list. Select the operation you require. The operation details are entered against your estimate and you can amend these as required.
- 10. If you are not using the Operations Register, enter the operations header information.

Reference	Enter the operation reference.
Description	Enter the operation description.
Sequence	Enter the sequence number for the operation.

11. To amend the operation details, click the button within the Description box to display the Operation Details window.

The procedure is almost the same as that for entering Operation details into the Operations Register. For more information, see *To add an operation* on page 54.

Note: As you enter operation details, the total costs by category appear.

- On the Options tab, confirm the number of pieces that you require as a default for the stage. This is the number of individual items required to make each finished item.
- On the Components tab, associate components from the estimate with the operation.
 When you create a works order from the estimate, the components are copied to the works order. You can print these on a subcontract advice note.

Note: If the component quantity does not match the unit of measure, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

- When you have completed the details, click OK to save your entry. You are returned to the Stage Details window.
- 12. Continue to enter operations.
- 13. Click the Other Expenses tab.

🗏 EST - Stag	ge Details - Create Mountain B	like Gears				
Sequence No.	1.00					
Reference	Create Mountain Bike Gears					
Description	Mountain Bike Gears					
Stock Items	Non-Stock Items Operations Oth	er Expenses Totals Memo				
Reference		Description	Quantity	Cost Price	Total Unit	
Packing	E	Packing Costs	3.00000	6.00000	18.00000 £	
					Total	8.00000
						Cancel

Note: You can enter details of expenses that are not covered by the other cost categories. These expenses are already set up. For more information, see *Expense Types* on page 88.

14. Click in the box within the Reference box and select the required Reference.

The Description appears automatically.

- 15. Enter the quantity requirement of this item. The quantity should relate to the units displayed in the end column.
- 16. The default expected price appears in the Cost Price box. You can change this, if required.
- 17. Use the TAB key to move to the Total box. The total cost of the item is calculated and displayed.
- 18. The Unit which is defined for the Expense Type is shown automatically.
- 19. Repeat the above procedure until all expense items have been included on your estimate.
- 20. Click the Totals tab.

The Totals information shows the results of this stage of your estimate, analysed under each of the eight cost types.

-Stock Items Operations Other Expenses Totals Memo					
	Total Cost	Markup(%)	Selling Price	Margin(%)	Profit
	3324,44000	10.00000	3656.88400	9.09091	332.44400
5	104.93000	10.00000	115.42300	9.09091	10.49300
	0.00000	10.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000
	0.00000	10.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000
	91.50000	10.00000	100.65000	9.09091	9.15000
	0.77778	10.00000	0.85556	9.09091	0.07778
	0.00000	10.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000
	18.00000	10.00000	19.80000	9.09091	1.80000
	3539.64778	10.00000	3893.61256	9.09091	353.96478
	-Stock Items Operations Other Expenses Totals Memo	-Stock Items Operations Other Expenses Total Memo Total Cost 3224.44000 0.00000 0.00000 91.50000 0.77778 0.00000 18.00000 3599.64778	Total S Memo Total Cost Markup(%) 3324.44000 10.00000 0.00000 10.00000 0.00000 10.00000 0.00000 10.00000 0.00000 10.00000 0.00000 10.00000 0.00000 10.00000 0.00000 10.00000 10.00000 10.00000 10.00000 10.00000 18,00000 10.00000 3539.64778 10.00000	Stock Items Operations Other Expenses Totals Memo Total Cost Markup(%) Selling Price 3324,44000 10.00000 3656.88400 104/93000 10.00000 115.42300 0.00000 10.00000 0.00000 0.00000 10.00000 0.00000 91.50000 10.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 10.00000 0.00000 91.50000 10.00000 0.85556 0.00000 10.00000 19.80000 18.00000 10.00000 3633;64778	Total Cost Markup(%) Selling Price Margin(%) 3324,4400 10.00000 3656.88400 9.00991 104,9300 10.00000 115.42300 9.00991 0.00000 10.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 10.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 10.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 10.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 10.00000 10.00000 0.00000 0.00000 10.00000 10.00000 0.00000 0.00000 10.00000 10.00000 0.00000 0.00000 10.00000 10.00000 0.00000 0.00000 10.00000 10.00000 0.00000 0.00000 10.00000 10.00000 0.00000 18.00000 10.00000 19.80000 9.09991 3539.64778 10.00000 3893.61256 9.0991

Note: The default mark-up percentages entered under Estimate Settings have been automatically applied.

The Margin % has been automatically calculated by taking the profit as a percentage of the selling price.

21. Amend the Mark Up (%), Selling Price and/or Margin (%) of any of the eight cost types.

Note: If you selected the Selling Prices for your Costing Materials setting within Estimate Settings (see *The General tab* on page 170), you cannot amend Markup (%) and Selling Price values or Margin (%) values for Stock Items.

As with a spreadsheet, each time you make an amendment, any cell that is affected by your change will automatically recalculate. Use the mouse to move the cursor to the cell you want to amend and insert your new figure.

You can manipulate the results of your costings until the stage estimate meets your own criteria (for example, minimum mark-up or margin percentages).

 To revert to the default mark-ups, click Revert to Default Markup. The figures shown before your amendments are displayed.

You can return to any previous entry made under a cost type by clicking the appropriate tab. Amendments, deletions or additional entries are reflected in the Totals tab when you return to it.

The Overhead Recovery Amount box shows the total overheads which are recovered against this stage, based upon your settings in Overhead Recovery Settings. For more information see *Overhead Recovery Settings* on page 27.

22. Click the Memo tab to enter any notes relevant to the stage details. You can enter an unlimited amount of text here.

Note: Immediately upon making an entry, the tab header changes to upper case. This indicates text has been entered.

23. To close the Stage Details window, click OK.

The Stage Details window closes and you are returned to the Estimate Details window displaying the Stages tab.

- 24. Repeat the above steps to add more stage details. When you have entered all estimated costs for all stages, continue to the next step.
- 25. To continue entering estimate information, click the Totals tab. To save your Estimate Details, click Save.

The Totals tab

To amend costs, mark-ups or selling prices, you must return to your stage details by clicking on the Stages tab. You can use the Totals tab to recalculate the cost of an estimate.

To use the Totals tab

1. In the Estimate Details window, click the Totals tab.

The Totals information appears.

Cost Type	Total Cost	Markup(%)	Selling Price	Margin(%)	Profi
Stock Trems	3324 44000	10.00000	3656 88400	9 09091	332 4440
Non-Stock Items	104.93000	10.00000	115,42300	9.09091	10.4930
abour	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.0000
Machine	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0,0000
ietup	91,50000	10.00000	100.65000	9.09091	9,1500
Fooling	0.77778	10.00000	0.85556	9.09091	0.0777
Subcontract	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.0000
Other Expenses	18.00000	10.00000	19.80000	9.09091	1.8000
TOTALS	3539.64778	10.00000	3893.61256	9.09091	353.9647

The Totals tab shows the total of all stages added together.

- 2. To recalculate the cost of the estimate, click the Recost Now button.
- 3. To convert non-stock items into stock items, click the 'Convert Non-Stock Items to Stock Items' button.

The Convert Non-Stock Items window appears listing all of the non-stock items, across all stages on this estimate.

nes you wish to convert to sta	andard stock items.		product code next to the
Stage Reference	Description	Quantity	Product Code
Create Mountain Bike Gears	New non stock item 2	7.00000	

- 4. Enter the Product Code for each item you want to convert. If you do not want to convert a specific entry, leave the Product Code column blank.
- 5. Click OK.

The Enter New Stock Item window appears for each item that you want to convert. For more information, on creating stock items, see your *Sage 200 Stock Control* documentation.

6. To continue entering estimate information, click the Attached Files tab. To save your Estimate Details, click Save.

The Attached Files tab

Using the Attached Files tab, you can associate files, such as a Microsoft® Word document, with an estimate. You can also attach the complete contents of a folder. This is useful for linking supporting documentation with each estimate.

To attach a file or folder to the estimate record

1. In the Estimate Details window, click the Attached Files tab.

The Attached Files information appears.

🖷 EST - Est	imate Details - I	ESTOOO6						- OX
Main Details	Additional Details	Site Address	Stages	Totals	Attached File	INVOICE DESCRIPT	ION Analysis Codes	Drawings (>
Filename					Descrip	ion		
					E			
Aṯta	ch File	Attach Fol <u>d</u> e	er 📄					
Save	Clear	Delete				Mail Merge	Modification History	

2. To attach a file or folder to an Estimate record, click Attach File or Attach Folder as appropriate.

An Open or Choose File(s) window appears.

3. Select the file or folder you want to attach. Click Open to attach a file, or OK to attach a folder.

Note: You can only select one file or folder at a time.

The file or folder appears in the list on the Attached Files tab.

4. To open the file or folder, click it.

- 5. Enter a description for each attachment, if required. This is for information only.
- 6. To continue entering estimate information, click the Invoice Description tab. To save your Estimate Details, click Save.

The Invoice Description tab

To enter an invoice description

1. In the Estimate Details window, click the Invoice Description tab.

The Invoice Description area appears.

	EST - Est	imate Details -	ESTOOO6							
ſ	Main Details	Additional Details	Site Address	Stages	Totals	Attached Files	INVOICE DESCRIPTION	Analysis Codes	Drawings	< >
	Knee and I	lbow Pads								8
	<u>S</u> ave	Clear	Delete				Mail Merge Modi	fication History		se

The Invoice Description shown is the stock Item Description entered on the stock code. This is entered here automatically when you select the stock code on the Main Details tab. For more information, see your *Stock Control* documentation and *The Main Details tab on page 183*. The Invoice Description header changes to upper case to indicate there is text on the tab.

If you selected a stock code which has no Item Description, no text is entered automatically on this tab. The Invoice Description header remains in mixed case until you enter a description of the job being estimated.

- 2. Enter a full description of the job being estimated. The text you enter can be printed on sales orders and subsequent sales invoices.
- 3. To continue entering estimate information, click the Analysis Codes tab. To save your Estimate Details, click Save.

The Analysis Codes tab

To enter estimate analysis codes

1. In the Estimate Details window, click the Analysis Codes tab.

The Analysis Codes information appears.

🖷 EST - Estimate Details - E	ST0006							
Main Details Additional Details	Site Address	Stages	Totals	Attached Files	INVOICE DESCRIPTION	Analysis Codes	Drawings	< >
- Analysis Codes								
Analysis Code 1				*				
Analysis Code 2				~				
Analysis Code 3				*				
Analysis Code 4				*				
Analysis Code 5				~				
Save Clear	Delete				Mail Merge Mod	ification History		ise

2. Enter up to five analysis codes for the estimate.

You can use these for custom reporting.

3. To continue entering estimate information, click the Drawings tab. To save your Estimate Details, click Save.

The Drawings tab

To work with drawings

1. In the Estimate Details window, click the Drawings tab.

The Drawings information appears.

🖷 EST - Est	imate Details - I	ESTOOO6							
Main Details	Additional Details	Site Address	Stages	Totals	Attached Files	INVOICE DESCRIPTION	Analysis Codes	Drawings	< >
Drawing No),		Descrip	tion			Valid From	Valid To	
		E							
Amend [)rawing								
Save	Clear	Delete				Mail Merge Mod	lification History		ose

2. Enter the required information for each drawing, according to the following descriptions.

Drawing No.	Enter a unique identifier for the drawing.
Description	Enter a description for the drawing.
Valid From Valid To	Enter valid dates for your drawing, if applicable.

Note: You can cross-reference an estimate with any number of different drawings.

3. To edit the drawing details, select the drawing and click Amend Drawing.

4. To continue entering estimate information, use the right scroll icon () in the tab bar to reveal the Memo tab and click the Memo tab. To save your Estimate Details, click Save.

The Memo tab

To enter a memo

1. In the Estimate Details window, click on the Memo tab.

Note: You may need to use the right scroll icon () in the tab bar to reveal the Memo tab. The memo area appears.

🖷 EST - Estimat	e Details - E	ST0006						_	- • ×
Additional Details	Site Address	Stages	Totals	Attached Files	INVOICE DESCRIPTION	Analysis Codes	Drawings	Memo	< >
									~
									<u> </u>
<u>S</u> ave	Clear	D <u>e</u> lete			Mail Merg	je Modi <u>f</u> ica	ation History		⊆lose

2. Enter additional notes about the estimate.

Note: Immediately upon making an entry, the tab header changes to upper case. This indicates the presence of an entry.

3. To save your Estimate Details, click Save.
Creating Multiple Estimates

You can create groups of estimates. However, the estimates must be for products that already exist within Stock Control.

Note: You cannot create multiple item estimates for new products.

Multiple item estimates share common information which is held on the multiple estimate header. The estimates are created through a grid on the Multiple Estimate Details form. This information is used by default for each new estimate on the grid. However, if you change the default header information for an estimate, this change applies to each new estimate added subsequently in the grid.

To create multiple item estimates

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Estimating and choose Records > New Multi Item Estimate.

The Multiple Estimate Details - New Estimate window appears.

EST - Multiple Estir	nate Details - N	ew Estimate						- 0>
Main Details Additional D	Details							
Estimate Details	1					Dates		
Estimate No.	AutoNumber>	*				Entered Due Date	09/09/2008 II 09/09/2008 II	
Customer Details						Eollow Up		Outlook
A/C	v (c.	istomer 🗸				T OILOW OP		
Name						Default Option	ns	
Reference No.						Create G	RN on completion	
Contact	First	Middle	Last			E Follow Up		
Estimate No.	Stock Code	Description	Qty Req.	Due Date	No. Pieces	s Status	Cust. Ref. No.	Proj. No.
			No estimate	s entered				
1								
Release Cre	ate Sales Order	Create Works Orde	er Edit	Remo	ove Estimati	e Select A		
Save Clear	Delete			Mail Me	rge	Print		Close

2. On the Main Details tab, enter the following estimate header information.

Estimate Details	If you are using automatic numbering (see <i>The Numbering tab on page 173</i>), Manufacturing automatically generates the estimate number when you save the estimate. If you are not using automatic numbering, you can enter estimate numbers up to 27 digits in an alphanumeric sequence.
	Note: Fewer digits are allowed for multi item estimate references because suffixes are added to this reference to differentiate between the multiple items.
Dates	The Date Entered box defaults to 'today's date'. You can overwrite this.
	If you know the date by which the estimate should be completed, enter it in the Due Date box. This is the default date for the stages (not to be confused with the due date on the stages). It is carried over to the works order upon conversion.
	Enter a date in the Follow Up box on which to take follow up action, if required.
	Note: To use Microsoft® Outlook, click the Outlook button. An entry is made in your Microsoft Outlook diary. A reminder is set. This ensures that any follow up action is not forgotten. You can amend and save this entry in the usual way.
Customer Details	If you are preparing the estimates for an existing customer or prospect, select Customer or Prospect. Then select the A/C from the drop-down list.
	Note: You can only prepare estimates for base currency customers.
	If you are preparing the estimates for a new customer or prospect, ignore the A/C box. Enter the name of the person or company for whom the estimates are being prepared in the Name box.
	Enter an appropriate Reference No.

The Contact boxes automatically display information from the selected A/C. You can amend this information.

Default Options You can set these options on the estimate header.

These settings apply to multi item estimates created in the grid. Any change you make to the defaults apply to new estimates added in the grid subsequently.

To print a Goods Received Note upon completion of the works order raised from the estimate, select the Create GRN on completion check box.

Note: A GRN can only be produced if product codes have been defined for the estimates.

To set a flag against the estimates which require follow up action, select the Follow Up check box.

To link purchase orders (raised to meet the demands of these estimates) to one-off works orders, select the Linked check box. By default, the box is clear, but will display your last selection.

If you select the Linked check box, then any associated orders raised will only be used to meet the demands of these estimates.

Note: Another setting must be selected for MRP to raise linked works and purchase orders to the works order created for the estimate header. This is the 'Allow linked under MRP' check box on the Stock Item Manufacturing tab.

3. On the Additional Details tab, enter the following estimate header information:

Overall Discount	Apply a discount to a sales order when it is created from the estimate. Enter the discount as a percentage or amount. This discount is applied in addition to any manual adjustments made in the system-generated sales price. The price is shown in the Quantity Breaks table for each individual estimate item. For more information, see Using the Quantity Breaks Table on page 185.
Last Recosted	These boxes are completed automatically by the system as it uses the information from your login and computer system date.
Overhead Recovery	Overhead recovery is calculated automatically as a percentage cost of the estimate. The calculation uses the default percentages (for total cost or individual cost types) you have defined in the Overhead Recovery Settings. For more information, see <i>Overhead Recovery Settings on page 27</i> .
Additional Information	The Entered By box defaults to the current user name.
	Enter the name of the Salesperson, if required.
	Enter a Project Number, if required. The project number is useful if you have multiple estimates for a project.
Customer Site Address	Enter the customer site address, if required.
	Note: You can only enter City, County or Country information if the Use Segmented Addresses option in Accounting System Manager is selected.

- 4. Enter each estimate detail line on the Main Details tab, as follows.
 - Click in the first empty line within the Estimates grid.

Note: The Estimate No. will not be shown until you click the Save button. The number will be the estimate header number plus a suffix, specified in Estimating settings (see *The Numbering tab on page 173*).

 Select the product code from the Stock Code drop-down list, if required. The Description appears automatically.

- Enter or change the description required.
- Enter the quantity required in the Qty Req. box.

Note: If the quantity you enter does not match the default stocked unit of measure, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

- The Due Date defaults to the date entered on the estimate header but you can change this, if required.
- The number of individual items required for each finished item defaults to '1' in the No.
 Pieces box. Change the number, if required. The quantities for each item are recalculated.
- When entering a new estimate the status is Entered. If you have Manager access rights, you can change the Status.
- Enter a customer reference in the Cust. Ref. No. box.
- Enter a project number in the Proj. No. box. This defaults to the Project Number entered on the estimate header. You can change this, if required.
- The Create GRN, Follow Up and MRP Linked settings default to the settings entered on the estimate header. You can change these, if required.
- 5. To save your estimates, click Save.

Note: You can add or amend details for individual multi item estimates through the Amend Multi Item Estimate option (see *Amending Multiple Estimates on page 216*) or through the Amend Estimate option (see *Amending an Estimate on page 214*).

Amending an Estimate

You can change estimates, depending on the estimate status.

Entered	You can change anything.
Production	You can change some things.
Cancelled	You cannot make changes.
	Note: You can copy a 'cancelled' estimate

You can change estimates after converting them to works orders if you selected the required setting whilst entering estimate settings. You can put password protection on this, if required. For more information, see *The General tab on page 170*.

Note: You cannot change the customer or product after a sales order has been created from the estimate.

To amend an estimate

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Estimating and choose Records > Amend Estimate or Amend Estimate - Rapid.

The Estimate Details or Estimate Details (Rapid) window appears.

- 2. Select the Estimate No. required.
- 3. Make changes to the estimate.

Note: The tabs of the Estimate Details windows function in the same way as when adding the estimate. For more information, see *To set up a full estimate* on page 178 and *To set up an estimate quickly* on page 179.

4. To record details of changes, click Modification History.

The Enter Modification History window appears.

nter Modificatio	History 🔀
Reasons for modificat	on:
	~
	~

- Enter the change details.
- Click OK.
- 5. To save your changes, click Save.

Amending Multiple Estimates

You can amend groups of estimates if they were created as multiple item estimates. For more information, see *Creating Multiple Estimates on page 209*.

To amend multiple item estimates

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Estimating and choose Records > Amend Multi Item Estimate.

The Multiple Estimate Details - New Estimate window appears.

2. Select the estimate number required from the Estimate No. drop-down list.

The estimates for the multiple item group are listed in the estimate grid.

Note: You can only select estimates which are part of a multiple item group.

EST - Multi Est	imate Details - EST	0003					
ain Details Additi	onal Details						
Estimate Details					Dates		
Estimate No.	EST0003	~	New Estimate		Entered Due Date	09/09/2008 II 08/09/2008 II	
Customer Details					Last Updated	11 1	
A/C	FUTOD1	ustomer v			Follow Up		Outlook
Name	Fukue Dilas				Default Option	ns	
Defense Me	Fucure bikes				Create GF	RN on completion	
Reference No.					Follow Up		
Contact	First	Catherine Middle	Last Jansen		Linked		
Estimate No.	Stock Code	Description	Qty Req. Due Date	No. Pieces	Status	Cust. Ref. No.	Proj. No.
EST0003/AA		Tyre Pump	4.00000 08/09/2008	1.0000	0 Entered		
EST0003/AB	ACC/PAINT/RED	Red Bike Paint	1.00000 08/09/2008	1,0000	0 Entered		
Release	Create Sales Order	Create Works Orde	er Edit Rer	nove Estimate	Select Al		
<u>S</u> ave	Clear Delete		Mail M	erge	Print		⊆lose

- 3. Make any changes required to the estimate header details. For more information, see *Creating Multiple Estimates on page 209*.
- 4. Within the estimate grid, perform the following actions for each estimate that you want to amend.

5. Select the check box of the Estimate No. you want to amend.

You can change:

- Estimates with a status of Entered.
- Estimates with a status of Production.
- Estimates which have been converted to works orders if the 'Estimates can be changed after creation of Works Order' setting is selected. For more information, see *The General tab on page 170*.

You cannot change:

- Cancelled estimates.
- The estimate customer or product once a sales order has been created from the estimate.
- 6. Click Edit.

Note: You can only click Edit when one estimate is selected.

The Estimate Details window appears.

				1			
-Estimate Details					Dates		
Estimate No.	EST0003/AA		~		Entered	09/09/2008	1
Product Code	ACC/PUMP			Due Date	08/09/2008	1	
Description	Tyre Pump				Last Updated	09/09/2008	-
Warehouse	FACTORY		*		Follow Up	11 1	Outlook
No.of Pieces	1.000	in 000					
Name Contact Reference No.	Future Bikes	First Ca	atherine	Middle	Last Janse	n	
Quantity Breaks							
Active	Quantity	Total Cos	t Unit Cos	t Markup(%) Total Selling Price	Unit Price	Unit Of Sale
Yes	4.00000	0.0000	0 0.0000	0.0000	0 0.00000	0.00000	Each
							1

7. Make changes to the estimate.

Note: The tabs of the Estimate Details windows are the same as a full individual estimate. For more information, see *To set up a full estimate* on page 178.

 To record details of the changes, click Modification History. The Enter Modification History window appears.

Reasons for modil	ition:	
		~
		~

- Enter the change details.
- Click OK.
- 9. To save your changes, click Save.

Deleting an Estimate

You can remove estimates if they become redundant.

Note: You can use the Multi Item Estimate option to remove multiple item estimates. For more information, see *Managing Multiple Estimates on page 231*.

To delete estimates

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Estimating and choose Records > Delete Estimate.

The Delete Estimate window appears.

🖷 EST - Delete Estimate	
Select Estimate To Delete Estimate No.	
	Dglete

2. Select the Estimate No. of the estimate to remove, and click Delete. The estimate is deleted.

Copying an Estimate

You can use Copy Estimate to quickly create another estimate. Once you have copied it you can amend the details as required. You can choose to copy attached files, stages and each of the cost types.

To copy an estimate

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Estimating and choose Records > Copy Estimate.

The Copy Estimate window appears.

🖷 EST - Copy	Estimate	1	_			- D×
Existing Estimat	e Details					
Estimate No.						~
Description						
New Estimate D	etails					
Estimate No.	<autonuml< td=""><td>oer></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></autonuml<>	oer>				
A/C		*	Customer 😽			
Name						
Contact		First		Middle	Last	
Copy what?						
🗹 Attached Fi	es					
Stages						
🗹 Stock Ite	ems		Operations			
🗹 Non-Sto	ck Items		Other Expen	ses		
Quantity Br	eaks					
🗹 Due Dates						
<u>S</u> ave	Cļear					Close

- 2. Select the existing estimate to copy from the Estimate No. drop-down list in Existing Estimate Details.
- 3. Enter the required information, according to the following descriptions.

Estimate No. Assign the estimate a new Estimate No. This appears in the Estimating window when you have copied the estimate.

Note: This number is automatically generated if you are using automatic numbering. For more information see *The Numbering tab* on page 173.

A/C	Select the customer or prospect account for whom the new estimate is being prepared. If no account exists, leave A/C blank and enter an account Name instead.					
	Note: You cannot select a customer who is on hold or does not use base currency.					
Name	Enter the account name if no account exists already.					
Contact	Enter the contact details.					
Copy What?	 Select the relevant check boxes to copy the following: Attached Files Stages Stock Items Non-Stock Items Operations Other Expenses Quantity Breaks Due Dates 					

4. To copy the estimate, click Save.

The new estimate appears in the Estimate List. Make amendments as you require. For more information, see *Amending an Estimate* on page 214.

Printing an Estimate

Note: You can use the Multi Item Estimate option to print multiple item estimates. For more information, see *Managing Multiple Estimates on page 231*.

To print an estimate

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Estimating and choose Print > Estimate.

The Print Estimates window appears.

Reference	Description	Printed
EST0001	Blue Bike Paint	No
EST0002	Blue Bike Paint	No
EST0004	MANAGER	No

- 2. Select the estimates that you want to print.
- 3. To print quantity breaks, select the Print Quantity Breaks check box.
- 4. Click Print.

The estimates are printed.

Reports are printed to the output mode of your choice, set using File > Choose Output Mode on the Menu Bar. For more information, see *Sage 200 help*.

Costing an Estimate

You can recost estimates if stock prices change.

To cost an estimate

 From the Navigation Bar, click Estimating and choose Processing > Recost Estimate. The Recost Estimate window appears.

Estimate Detai	5
Estimate No.	~

- Select the Estimate No. to recost from the drop-down list and click OK.
 A confirmation message appears advising that existing costs will be overwritten.
- To recalculate the estimate cost, click Yes. The estimate is recosted.

Creating a Sales Order

You can choose to create a sales order when you convert the estimate to a works order. For more information, see *The General tab* on page 170.

To create a sales order before you convert the estimate to a works order, use the Create Sales Order option.

Note: You can use the Multi Item Estimate option to create sales orders for groups of multiple item estimates. For more information, see *Managing Multiple Estimates on page 231*.

To create a sales order

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Estimating and choose Processing > Create Sales Order.

The Create Sales Order window appears.

🕮 EST - Create	Sales Order		×
Estimate Details Estimate No.			~
		ОК	Cancel

2. Select the Estimate No. that you want to create a sales order for and click OK. The estimate is converted and the Sales Order Confirmation window appears.

The Estimate ha	is bee	n successfully converted.	
Order detail			
Order no:		TBA	
Customer Order n	D:		
order totals			
Order discount:		0.00	%
Order discount:	£	0.00	
Total gross:	£	4574.99	
xchange rate			
Rate:		1.000000	
Currency:		Pound Sterling	

3. Check the details displayed and, if correct, enter the 'Customer Order no' and click OK. Otherwise, click Cancel.

- 4. When the sales order has been created, the Document Number Confirmation window appears. This shows the system generated number for the sales order.
- 5. Click OK and confirm whether you want to view the order or not. For more information on working with sales orders, see your *Sage 200 Sales Order Processing* documentation.

Note: If the quantity on order does not match the unit of measure, it is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

Converting an Estimate into a Works Order

You can convert estimates into works orders without the need to enter more information. If there is a difference between an order and the estimate, change the estimate before converting it to a works order.

We recommend you use planning to create works orders for estimates. This ensures you have sufficient resources to complete the job within the allotted time. For more information on using planning to plan estimate production, see *MRP* (*Material Requirements Planning*) on page 287.

Note: You can use the Multi Item Estimate option to create works orders for groups of multiple item estimates. For more information, see *Managing Multiple Estimates on page 231*.

To convert an estimate into a works order

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Estimating and choose Processing > Create Works Order.

The Create Works Order window appears.

🗏 EST - Create Wor	ks Order		
Estimate Details			
Estimate No.			~
		OK	Cancel

2. Select the Estimate No. that you want to create a works order for, and click OK. The Create Works Order window expands for you to enter more information.



- 3. Enter a Customer Order No. for your converted estimate.
- 4. Enter the works number you want to use.

Note: If you chose Automatic Works Order Numbers in Works Order Settings, or 'Use Estimate Number as Works Order Number' in Estimate Settings, the works order number is shown. For more information on works order settings, see *The Numbering tab* on page 339, and on estimate settings, see *The General tab* on page 170.

- 5. To create a customer record for this prospect, select the appropriate check box and enter an A/C reference. The customer record is created in the Sales Ledger.
- 6. To use the customer's address as the site address for the works order, select the appropriate check box. If you leave the check box blank, the customer site address on the estimate is used.
- 7. To create a sales order for this estimate, select the Create a Sales Order check box.
- 8. To save the works order information, click OK.
- 9. To raise works orders for sub-assemblies, click Yes when prompted.

Note: We recommend using MRP to create works orders for sub assemblies as MRP takes into account other demand for common products.

The Raise Works Orders for Sub-Assemblies window apears.

Product Code	Description	Required	Shortag
10U/ALU/20FINISHEDWHEEL	20" Finished Aluminium Wheel	2.00000	2.0000
10U/ALU/SUSPENSIONBIKESHELL	Suspension Aluminium Mountain Bike Shell	1.00000	1.0000
10U/ALU/20WHEELFRAME	20" Aluminium Wheel Frame	2.00000	2.0000

- To raise the works orders for the sub-assemblies, click OK.
- Confirm that you want to create works orders for the sub-assemblies shown, when prompted.

The estimate status changes to Production. Within Works Orders the status of the newly formed works order(s) is 'Entered'.

Converting an Estimate into a BOM

You can convert an estimate into a BOM.

During the process you may be directed to create stock items in the Stock Control module. For more information on creating stock items, see your *Sage 200 Stock Control* documentation.

Note: Any other expenses that have been set up for the estimate are not created on the BOM.

To convert an estimate into a BOM

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Estimating and choose Processing > Convert to BOM.

The Create Bill of Materials window appears.

🖷 EST - Create Bill (of Materials 🛛 🔀
Estimate Details	v
	OK Cancel

2. Select the Estimate No. that you want to convert to a BOM, and click OK.

If you have non-stock items on this estimate, the Enter New Stock Item window appears for each item. You must enter a stock code for every non-stock item on the estimate. For more information, see your *Sage 200 Stock Control documentation*.

When you have entered your product codes, the new BOM appears in the Bill of Materials List and the estimate is cancelled.

Releasing All Stages

Estimate stages must be released in order for estimates to be passed into planning. You can release individual or multiple stages within an estimate from within the estimate Stages tab. For more information, see *The Stages tab* on page 190.

If you want to release all stages on many estimates at one time, use this option.

Note: You can use the Multi Item option to release stages for groups of multiple item estimates. For more information, see *Managing Multiple Estimates on page 231*.

To release all stages

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Estimating and choose Processing > Release All.

The Release All window appears. Estimates are listed, with the status of 'Entered' or 'Part Released'.

5	ST - Release All				
S	elect Estimates to Release				
	Estimate No.	Description	A/C	Name	Status
	EST0001	Blue Bike Paint			Entered
L P	EST0004	18 Gears			Entered
l í					
	Select All				
1					

Note: By default, all estimates are selected.

- 2. Clear the check box for each estimate you do not want to release.
- To release all stages for the selected estimates, click Release. The status of the estimates' stages changes to released. The estimates can now be used within MPS.

Run Mail Merge

You can choose to open a new document or to merge an estimate with an existing document.

Note: You can use mail merge for multiple item estimates from within the Multi Item Estimate option. For more information, see *Managing Multiple Estimates on page 231*.

To run mail merge

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Estimating and choose Processing > Mail Merge.

The Mail Merge window appears.

	Description	Frinceu
EST0001	Blue Bike Paint	No
EST0002	Blue Bike Paint	No
EST0004	18 Gears	No
EST0005	Bike Pack 1 - Aluminium	No
EST0006	Finished Aluminium Mountain Bike	No

- 2. Select the estimates that you want to merge.
- To open a new document, click Merge to New Document.
 To add the estimate to an existing document, click Merge to Existing Document.

The estimates are merged accordingly and the document is opened.

You can now work with the document in the usual way.

Managing Multiple Estimates

You can create multiple estimates using the Enter New Multi Item Estimate option. For more information, see *Creating Multiple Estimates on page 209*.

Each multi item estimate has a common estimate number with a unique suffix. For example, EST0001/01, EST0001/02, EST0001/03, and so on.

These estimates share common information from the estimate header. However, you can change the details of any individual multi item estimate.

You can work with the estimates as individual estimates. For example, you can amend, copy, print, cost, delete, cancel, release or create a sales order or a works order from EST0001/02.

You can also manage a number of these activities for the multi item estimates from within the Amend Multi Item Estimate option. This lets you perform actions on groups of multiple items.

To manage multiple estimates

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Estimating and choose Records > Amend Multi-Item Estimate.
- On the Main Details tab, select the estimate number from the Estimate No. drop-down list. The existing multi item estimates are displayed in the grid.

Estimate Details – Estimate No.	EST0013	*				Dates Entered Due Date	25/06/2008 <u>s</u> 24/06/2008 s	
Customer Details A/C		Customer 🗸				Last Updated Follow Up Default Optior	11 m 11 m	Qutlook
Name Contact Reference No.	Kate Murray Renova					☑ Create GF ☑ Follow Up ☑ Linked	RN on completion	
Estimate No.	Stock Code	Description	Qty Req.	Due Date	No. Pieces	Status	Cust. Ref. No.	Proj. No
ESTUD13/AA	ACC/KNEE/ELBO	Knee and Elbow Yellow Bike Paint	1.00000	24/06/2008 24/06/2008	1.00000	Entered	dasrdasdfas dasfdasdfas	

Note: You can select individual items within the grid, or click Select All to select all the items. Select All switches the selection on and off. For example, if everything is selected and you click Select All, all the check boxes are cleared.

To amend default header information	Whe hea Deta <i>Mul</i>	en you add new items, you can change the default der information on the Main Details or Additional ails tabs. For more information, see <i>Creating</i> <i>tiple Estimates on page 209</i> .
	Not info in th	e: When you change this information, the changed rmation applies by default to the next item you create ne grid.
To amend header information	1.	Select a multi item estimate.
for a grid item	2.	Select the information in the header that you want to amend.
	З.	Overtype it.
To amend detailed information for a grid item		can amend details for multi item estimates if the mate status is Entered or Production.
	1.	Select the multi item estimate.
	2.	Click Edit.
		Note: You can only click Edit when one item is selected.
	The as fo <i>To s</i>	tabs of the Estimate Details windows are the same or a full individual estimate. For more information, see set up a full estimate on page 178.
	For <i>Am</i> e	more information on amending multiple items, see ending Multiple Estimates on page 216.
	For Ame	more information on amending individual items, see ending an Estimate on page 214.
To delete items	1.	To delete one or more items, select the items and click Remove Estimate.
	2.	To delete all items, click Delete.
	Not Dele indiv 219	e: You can also delete multi item estimates using the ete Estimate option. For more information on deleting vidual estimates, see <i>Deleting an Estimate on page</i> .

To release multi item estimates	1.	Select the multi item estimates.
	2.	Click Release.
		• The status of the selected estimates' stages changes to Released.
		• The estimates can now be used within MPS.
	Not the relea 229	e: You can also release multi item estimates using Release All Stages option. For more information on asing estimates, see <i>Releasing All Stages on page</i>
	lf vo	nu salaat tha Craata Salas Ordar ahaak hay 'an
Io create sales orders for multi item estimates	a sa orde befo	ation of works orders' within estimating settings (see General tab on page 170) you can choose to create ales order when you convert an estimate to a works er. But you can also create sales orders for estimates bore you create works orders for them using the wing steps.
Io create sales orders for multi item estimates	a sa orde befo follo	ation of works orders' within estimating settings (see General tab on page 170) you can choose to create ales order when you convert an estimate to a works er. But you can also create sales orders for estimates bore you create works orders for them using the twing steps. Select the multi item estimates.
Io create sales orders for multi item estimates	The a sa orde befo follo 1.	ation of works orders' within estimating settings (see General tab on page 170) you can choose to create ales order when you convert an estimate to a works er. But you can also create sales orders for estimates ore you create works orders for them using the owing steps. Select the multi item estimates. Click Create Sales Order.

The Create Sales Order window appears.

		C C
Estimate Details		
Estimate No.		~

3. Select the Estimate No. that you want to create a sales order for and click OK.

The estimate is converted and the Sales Order Confirmation window appears.

The Estimate ha	s bee	n successfully converted.	
Order detail			
Order no:		TBA	
Customer Order no	D:		
Order totals			
Order discount:		0.00	%
Order discount:	£	0.00	
Total gross:	£	4574,99	
xchange rate			
Rate:		1.000000	
Currency:		Pound Sterling	

- 4. Check the details displayed and, if correct, enter the 'Customer Order no' and click OK. Otherwise, click Cancel.
- 5. When the sales order has been created, the Document Number Confirmation window appears. This shows the system generated number for the sales order.
- 6. Click OK and confirm whether you want to view the order or not. For more information on working with sales orders, see your *Sage 200 Sales Order Processing* documentation.

Note: Sales orders can also be created for multi item estimates using the Create Sales Order option. For more information, see *Creating a Sales Order on page 224*.

To create works orders for multi item estimates You can convert estimates into works orders without the need to enter more information. However, we recommend you use the Planning module to create works orders for estimates. This ensures you have sufficient resources to complete the job within the allotted time. For more information on planning estimate production, see *MRP* (*Material Requirements Planning*) on page 287.

1. Select the multi item estimates.

2. Click Create Works Order.

The Create Works Order window appears for each estimate in turn.

Works Order Details —	
stimate Number	EST0002
Customer Order No.	
Works Order Number	W00007
A/C JIM001	
Use the Customer's	address as the bite Address

- 3. Enter a Customer Order No. for your converted estimate.
- 4. Enter the works number you want to use.

Note: If you chose Automatic Works Order Numbers in Works Order Settings, or 'Use Estimate Number as Works Order Number' in Estimate Settings, the works order number is shown. For more information on works order settings, see *The Numbering tab* on page 339, and on estimate settings, see *The General tab* on page 170.

- 5. To create a customer record for this prospect, select the appropriate check box and enter an A/C reference. The customer record is created in the Sales Ledger.
- 6. To use the customer's address as the site address for the works order, select the appropriate check box. If you leave the check box blank, the customer site address on the estimate is used.
- 7. To create a sales order for this estimate, select the Create a Sales Order check box.
- 8. To save the works order information, click OK.

	9.	To raise works orders for sub-assemblies, click Yes when prompted.
		The Raise Works Orders for Sub-Assemblies window apears.
	10.	To raise the works orders for the sub-assemblies, click OK.
	11.	Confirm that you want to create works orders for the sub-assemblies shown, when prompted.
		The estimate status changes to Production.
		 Within Works Orders the status of the newly formed works order(s) is 'Entered'.
	For <i>Wor</i> wor	more information, see <i>Converting an Estimate into a</i> <i>ks Order on page 226</i> . For more information on ks orders, see <i>Works Orders on page 335</i> .
To run mail merge for a multi item estimate	1.	Select the multi item estimate.
	2.	Click Mail Merge.
	Note: You can also run Mail Merge using the Mail Merg option. For more information, see <i>Run Mail Merge on</i> <i>page 230</i> .	
To print multi item estimates	1.	Select the multi item estimates.
	2.	Click Print.
		e: Estimates can also be printed using the Print on. For more information, see <i>Printing an Estimate</i> page 222.

3. To save changes to the multiple item estimate, click Save.

Preparing Estimating Reports

The following reports are available from the Estimating menu.

List

This provides a list of estimates. You can produce a list of estimate details, including stages, or just a summary list of estimates.

Modification History

This report provides a history of the changes that have been made to the estimate.

Quantity Breaks List

This provides a list of the quantity breaks used in the estimate.

Schedule

This report may be detailed or summary.

Statistics

This report provides statistical information (percentage conversion) on the ratio of successful estimates to cancelled estimates. The report may be listed by customer, by date entered, by estimate number, by last updated, by status, or by works order number.

Totals Report

This provides a report on totals. It may be for all quantity breaks.

Transaction Report

This provides a report on estimate transactions. It may be by stage or for all stages.

To prepare estimating reports

- 1. From the Navigation Bar select Estimating, and choose Reports.
- 2. Select the report required from the list of available reports in the menu.

For more information on preparing reports, see Sage 200 help.

To customise estimating reports

You can edit or copy report layouts, or create a new report layout, using Sage Report Designer. For more information, see *Sage Report Designer* documentation.

Note: We advise you to copy your existing report layouts before you edit them. If you edit the standard report layouts, future amendments by us will overwrite your changes.

Cancelling an Estimate

You can cancel estimates when the customer is not going to place an order.

Note: You can analyse the ratio of completed estimates to cancelled estimates using the Statistics report. For more information, see *Preparing Estimating Reports on page 237*.

To cancel an Estimate

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Estimating and choose Records > Cancel Estimate.

The Cancel Estimates window appears.

🖷 EST - Cancel Estimate		- DX
Select Estimate(s) to Cancel		
Reference	Description	Status
EST0001	Blue Bike Paint	Entered
EST0004	18 Gears	Entered
Select All Swap	Clear	OK Cancel

- 2. Select the Reference for the estimates that you want to cancel.
- 3. Click OK.
- If sales orders are linked to the estimate, confirm that you want to cancel the estimate.
 Note: Cancelling an estimate with linked sales orders does not affect the sales orders.
 The estimate status changes to cancelled.

You can still view the estimate details and copy it (see *Copying an Estimate* on page 220) but you cannot process it any further.

To view cancelled estimates, use the filters. For more information see Sage 200 help.

Maintaining Estimates

You can update hourly rates for all labour categories and for all or a selection of employee categories.

Update Labour Categories

You can change hourly rates in all labour categories at once, using this option.

Note: The changes do not apply to existing estimates.

If you only want to change rates for certain employee categories, use the Update Employees option. For more information, see *Update Employees* on page 239.

To change all labour categories hourly rates

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Estimating and choose Maintenance > Update Labour Categories.

The Update Labour Categories window appears.

🖷 EST - Update Lab	our Categories 🛛 🗙
- Increase/Decrease Ra Enter the percentage t Percentage 0.0000	tes :o increase/decrease the rate by.
	OK Cancel

- 2. Enter the Percentage you require to increase or decrease the rate.
- 3. To complete the changes, click OK.
- 4. Confirm the change when prompted.

Update Employees

You can change the hourly rates attached to all of your employee categories or to a specific employee category.

Note: The changes do not apply to existing estimates.

To make a global change to employees hourly rates

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Estimating and choose Maintenance > Update Employees.

The Update Employees window appears.

🗄 EST - Update Employ	rees 🔀
Rate Enter the percentage to in Percentage	crease/decrease the rate by.
Scope	
Category	×
	<u>OK</u> <u>Cancel</u>

- 2. Enter the Percentage you require to increase or decrease the rate.
- 3. Select the employees to apply the rate change to.

To apply the rate change to all employees, select the All Employees check box. To apply the rate change to a specific category, clear the All Employees check box and select the Category.

- 4. To complete the changes, click OK.
- 5. Confirm the change when prompted.

Chapter 6 Introducing Planning

You do not have to plan, but it helps in the manufacturing process if you do.

Planning is based around demands. The Sales Order Processing, Estimating, Make to Stock and Sales Forecasts modules allow you to create demands.

Two modules allow detailed planning:

- MPS (Master Production Schedule) This considers demands, and constructs an inventory of work that needs to be done to meet them.
- MRP (Material Requirements Planning)

This considers the inventory of work created by MPS. It generates recommendations for buying or making stock in order to meet demands.

Graphical Planner works alongside MRP. It shows, graphically, the schedule of work required to meet the demands. For more information, see *Sage Graphical Planner* documentation.

In this chapter:

How Planning Works	.242
Creating Demands for Planning	.244
Creating the Master Production Schedule (in MPS)	.245
Considering the Material Requireme (in MRP)	nts .248
Modifying Recommendations	.249
Actioning Recommendations	.250
Changing Planning Lists	.251
Finding Out More about Planning	.252

How Planning Works

The following description illustrates how planning works within Manufacturing.

The planning process

The following diagram illustrates the planning process.



There are four source modules used to create demands for planning:

- Sales orders are added in the Sales Order Processing module.
- Manual entries are added to plans, ad-hoc, using the Make to Stock module.
- Sales forecasts are added in the Sales Forecasts module.
- Estimates are added in the Estimating module.

Demands from these modules feed into the MPS module. The list of demands is then broken down through material requirements planning in the MRP module. Recommendations are made to raise purchase orders or works orders, depending on stock levels.

You can use Graphical Planner to modify your plans and optimise resource planning. For more information on how to use the graphical planner, see *Sage Graphical Planner* documentation.

Creating Demands for Planning

The first step in planning is to create the demands.

Demands can be created in the following ways.

• Entering sales orders in the Sales Order Processing module. For more information on entering this information, see *Sage 200 Sales Order Processing* documentation.

Note: You can specify within Sales Order Processing settings if you want sales orders to be linked with works orders that are created to satisfy the demand for sales orders. In this case a batch works order is raised automatically for the sales order when the sales order is saved. You can remove the link within Works Order Processing. For more information, see *Unlinking Works Orders on page 395*. If you don't use the Sales Order Processing method, you can still link sales orders to works orders within the MPS module. For more information, see *Linking Sales Orders on page 279*.

- Entering estimates, planned by stage, in the Estimating module.
 Note: You must release estimates within Estimating so that MPS can pick them up.
 For more information on estimating, see *Estimating* on page 167.
- Entering sales forecasts within the Sales Forecasts module.
 Note: You must release forecasts within Sales Forecasts so that MPS can pick them up.
 For more information on sales forecasts, see *Sales Forecasts* on page 261.
- Entering items, for which there are no specific demands, in the Make to Stock module.
 Note: You must release the items within Make to Stock so that MPS can pick them up.
 For more information on make to stock items, see *Make to Stock* on page 253.
Creating the Master Production Schedule (in MPS)

MPS reads demands and creates a Master Production Schedule.

Estimates, make to stock items and sales forecasts must be released to be included in the Master Production Schedule. For information on releasing estimate stages, see *Estimating* on page 167. For information on releasing Make to Stock items, see *Make to Stock* on page 253. For information on releasing sales forecasts, see *Sales Forecasts* on page 261.

Below is an introduction to MPS. For more information on MPS, see MPS (Master Production Schedule) on page 269.

Time fences

There are two controls in MPS which you can use to determine which sales orders and forecasts are read by MPS.These are the Time Fences, set within the Planning Settings MPS tab. Time fences are numbers of days added onto today's date to give a date in the future. So you can calculate two future dates from today's date, adding the number of days stored for Time Fence 1 and the number of days stored for Time Fence 2. For more information on time fences, see *The MPS tab on page 273*.



Between today's date and the date calculated by adding the number of days stored in Time Fence 1 to today's date are all sales orders. Any forecasts within this time period cannot be fulfilled if they become orders at this time, therefore they are not read by MPS.

Time Fence 2 is used for long term planning. From the date calculated by adding the number of days stored in Time Fence 2 to today's date, any sales orders are ignored by MPS because they are too far in the future. However, sales forecasts are read.

Between Time Fences 1 and 2, the quantities of sales orders and sales forecasts are netted off and are read by MPS.

Exclusions

Once demands are read, they are included in the Master Production Schedule or in a list of excluded demands. Demands may be excluded for the following reasons.

- The sales order is on hold.
- The demand is beyond the horizon date. This defaults to today's date but you can change it when you read demand or set a default for it within the MPS tab of Planning Settings. For more information, see *Entering Settings for MPS on page 270*.
- The item does not have a due date.
- The sales order is a proforma or quotation.
- The sales order has been cancelled.
- The BOM is private. For more information, see *The Header Details tab on page 118*.
- The sales order was created by Estimating.
- The item has not been released to production.
- The sales forecast falls within the Time Fence #1 number of days.
- The sales order due date falls outside the Time Fence #2 number of days.
- The sales order line is flagged for exclusion from MPS.
- Sales Order fulfilment method is set to 'From supplier direct to customer'. For more information, see the *Sage 200 Stock Control* documentation.
- The customer is on hold.
- A warehouse has not been specified.
- The sales order has been completed.

Back-to-back ordering

MPS facilitates back-to-back ordering (the generation of purchase orders to satisfy sales orders) for non-manufactured items.

Linking sales orders

Sales orders can be linked with batch works orders that are created specifically to meet the demands in the sales orders. The link can be set up within the Sales Order Processing module when the sales order is created and saved (see *Creating Demands for Planning on page 244* and your *Sales Order Processing* documentation). If links are not made within Sales Order Processing, you can link sales orders with works orders within the MPS - List.

This is done in the following way:

1. Within MPS, select the sales orders that you want to link (see *Linking Sales Orders on page 279*).

Note: The Linked column within the MPS - List is set to Yes.

2. Within MRP, run MRP to make a recommendation to raise a works order to fulfil the sales order. The Linked To column within the MPS - List displays the MRP Recommendation reference number.

If you set up links within MPS you can remove them (see Unlinking Sales Orders on page 281).

Note: You cannot remove links within MPS that have been set within Sales Order Processing. To remove those links you must do so through the works orders. For more information, see *Unlinking Works Orders on page 395*.

Considering the Material Requirements (in MRP)

When you have a Master Production Schedule, you can Run MRP in the MRP module. For most items, this considers stock levels and looks at items where stock is below the reorder point. The list of demands is exploded through BOM structures, taking into account the current and projected stock levels. From this, a series of recommendations is generated. Recommendations may be to make other items (raise a works order) or buy them (raise a purchase order).

Note: 'Buy' recommendations are not made if the Order Generation setting within Purchase Order Processing is set to Use Generate Orders. In this case MRP will also not suggest any existing purchase orders are cancelled. We recommend you select another Order Generation setting if you are using MRP. For more information, see your *Sage Purchase Order Processing* documentation.

Items may be linked so that a purchase order meets the demands for a specific works order. If so, the demands for the specific works order are not included with the demands for other items.

Items may also be linked so that a raised batch works order fulfils the demands from a specific sales order. This can be set up within the Sales Order Processing module. For more information, see *Creating Demands for Planning on page 244*.

It can also be set up within MPS. For more information, see *Creating the Master Production Schedule (in MPS) on page 245* and *Linking Sales Orders on page 279*. If it is set up within MPS then when MRP is run, the sales order is linked to the MRP Recommendation number for raising the works order.

For information on considering material requirements and producing recommendations using Material Requirements Planning, see *Running MRP* on page 298.

For information on raising or cancelling works orders and purchase orders, see *Estimating* on page 167 and *Works Orders* on page 335.

Modifying Recommendations

You can modify recommendations within MRP, or you can export data to Graphical Planner and use it. You must import data into MRP after you have modified it in Graphical Planner. This updates the works orders and recommendations as if they had been modified within MRP.

For more information on modifying the recommendations manually within 'MRP', see *Amending Recommendations* on page 311.

For more information on using Graphical Planner, see Sage Graphical Planner documentation.

Actioning Recommendations

Actioning recommendations raised within MRP creates a number of purchase and works orders.

You can action individual recommendations, a range of recommendations (by product, supplier, date, product family), or all recommendations.

Purchase recommendations are consolidated by supplier automatically. If you select multiple recommendations with the same supplier, and click Action, they are combined in one purchase order. If the due dates are the same, the recommendations are combined in one line on the order. If the due dates are different, multiple order lines are created.

For more information on creating purchase orders and works orders, see *Actioning Recommendations* on page 319.

Changing Planning Lists

You can display different lists for the four planning modules. The lists are useful when you are working in the respective planning modules. If you are working in Sales Forecasting, you can display the Sales Forecast List list in the work area.

To select a list

From the Navigation Bar, click Planning, choose the required planning module and then choose the module list.

The title of the work area changes to correspond to the module you choose and the selected list appears in the work area.

For example

To select the MPS List, choose Planning > MPS and then choose MPS List.



The Planning work area title changes to MPS and the work area shows the available MPS lists.

You can maximise a list to display it more clearly in the work area. The other lists are available by selecting the list title at the foot of the work area.

For more information on the Sage 200 desktop, see Sage 200 help.

Finding Out More about Planning

The planning modules are described in further detail in separate chapters. For information on Make to Stock, see *Make to Stock* on page 253. For information on Sales Forecasts, see *Sales Forecasts* on page 261. For information on MPS, see *MPS (Master Production Schedule)* on page 269. For information on MRP, see *MRP (Material Requirements Planning)* on page 287.

Chapter 7 Make to Stock

You can use the Make to Stock module to create demands for items that are not required for sales.

In this chapter:

Creating a Make to Stock Item	.254
Amending a Make to Stock Item	.256
Deleting a Make to Stock Item	.257
Entering Repeating Items	.258
Preparing Make to Stock Reports	.260

Creating a Make to Stock Item

This section explains how to set up a new Make to Stock item.

Note: You can import Make to Stock items. For more information on importing data, see *Importing and Exporting Data* on page 43.

To set up a new stock item

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning > Make to Stock and choose Records > Enter New Record.

🖷 PLN - Make	e to Stock Item Details	
Product Code Warehouse Description Quantity Completed Outstanding Due Date Status	0.00000 H 0.00000 0.00000 11. H	Ignore Stock and Inventory policy
Memo		<u> </u>
Save	Clear Delete	Gose

The Make to Stock Item Details window appears.

2. Select a Product Code for the Make to Stock item from the drop-down list.

Note: This code must exist in the Stock Control module.

When you enter the code, the description appears automatically and the stock unit is shown alongside the Quantity box.

If you are using multiple locations, the warehouse name appears automatically. **Note:** You can select another warehouse from the Warehouse drop-down list.

3. Enter the quantity of items to make.

Note: If you enter a quantity that does not match with the unit of measure, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

This quantity is compared with existing stock and any replenishments. If any exist, the resulting works or purchase order will be for the 'difference' quantity.

Note: If you are using traceability and the item is serial number traceable, you cannot enter decimal places.

4. Select the Ignore Stock and Inventory policy check box to ignore any physical stock or inventory policy associated with the stock item. This means that the full quantity you enter here will be processed by MRP.

Clear the check box to take into consideration the physical stock and inventory policy associated with the stock item. This means the quantity you enter here is offset against physical stock and may be increased. The increase depends on the configured inventory policy.

Note: The value defaults from the MPS Settings. For more information, see *Entering Settings for MPS on page 270*.

- 5. Enter the Due Date for the items.
- 6. The status defaults to 'Entered'. This means that it has not been processed through MPS and MRP.

When you want the item to be processed in MPS, change the status to released. For more information, see *MPS* (*Master Production Schedule*) on page 269.

Once the item is processed through MRP, the status may change to part complete, complete or cancelled.

- 7. Enter any notes relating to the item in the Memo box.
- 8. To save your item details, click Save.

Amending a Make to Stock Item

To amend a stock item

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning > Make to Stock and choose Records > Amend Record.

The Make to Stock Item Details window appears.

🗏 PLN - Mak	e to Stock Item Details	
Item Details		
Product Code		~
Warehouse		~
Description		
Quantity	0.00000 📓	Ignore Stock and Inventory policy
Completed	0.00000	
Outstanding	0.00000	
Due Date	/// m	
Status	Entered V	
Memo		~
		~
	1	
Save	Clear Delete	Close

- 2. Select the item from the Product Code drop-down list.
- 3. Amend the information required.

For more information, see Creating a Make to Stock Item on page 254.

4. When you have entered all the required information, click Save.

Deleting a Make to Stock Item

Note: You cannot delete items that are released or part complete.

To delete a stock item

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning > Make to Stock and choose Records > Delete Record.

The Delete Make to Stock Records window appears.

MOLL'STE/FINISHED	Einished Steel Mountain Bike	EACTORY	Qty Outstanding 8.00	Due Date 16/10/2007
moor step-master	Finished Steel Houritain bike	FACTORT	0.00	10/10/2007

2. Select the products that you want to delete, and click OK. The items are deleted.

257

Entering Repeating Items

You can schedule the same item to be made regularly, for example,100 oak desks every week.

To enter repeating items

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning > Make to Stock and choose Records > Repeat Items.

The Repeat Items window appears.

Product Code		Warehouse	1	Descriptio	n	
]					
٠		r			1	•
<		2. .			1	

2. Click in the Product Code box and select the code from the drop-down list.

Note: The Product Code must exist in the Stock Control module.

When you enter the code, the description appears automatically and the stock unit is shown alongside the Quantity box.

If you are using multiple locations, the warehouse name appears automatically.

Note: You can select another warehouse from the Warehouse drop-down list.

3. Enter the quantity of items to make.

Note: If you enter a quantity that does not match with the unit of measure, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

This quantity is compared with existing stock and any replenishments. If any exist, the resulting works or purchase order will be for the 'difference' quantity.

Note: If you are using traceability and the item is serial number traceable, you cannot enter decimal places.

- 4. Scroll right to enter any notes required in the Memo box.
- 5. In the 'First due on' box, enter the manufacture start date.

- 6. Select how frequently you want to repeat the job in the Frequency box. If you select Weekly, the item is scheduled to be made each week.
- 7. Specify how many times you want to repeat the job in the No. of Times box. If you enter '5', the item is scheduled to be made five times.
- 8. To release items automatically, select the Mark all items as Released check box.
- To save the repeating item, click OK.
 The item is added to the list of stock items in the Make to Stock window.

Preparing Make to Stock Reports

The following reports are available from the Make to Stock menu.

Make to Stock

This provides a report on the make to stock items, grouped by due date or by product.

 Make to Stock - List This report may be detailed or summarised.

To prepare make to stock reports

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, select Planning > Make to Stock and choose Reports.
- 2. Select the report required from the list of available reports.

For more information on preparing reports, see the Sage 200 help.

To customise make to stock reports

You can edit or copy report layouts, or create a new report layout, using Sage Report Designer. For more information, see *Sage Report Designer* documentation.

Note: We advise you to copy your existing report layouts before you edit them. If you edit the standard report layouts, future amendments by us will overwrite your changes.

Chapter 8 Sales Forecasts

The Sales Forecasts module allows you to create demands with a consideration for potential sales.

In this chapter:

Creating a Sales Forecast	.262
Amending a Sales Forecast	.264
Deleting a Sales Forecast	.265
Copying a Sales Forecast	.266
Preparing Sales Forecasts Reports.	.267

Creating a Sales Forecast

You can create a sales forecast, in one of the following ways.

Create

Set up a new sales forecast. For more information, see *To set up a new sales forecast* on page 262.

Copy

Copy an existing sales forecast. For more information, see *Copying a Sales Forecast* on page 266.

Import

Import a sales forecast. For more information, see *Importing and Exporting Data* on page 43.

To set up a new sales forecast

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning > Sales Forecasts and choose Records > New Sales Forecast.

PLN - Sales	Forecast D)etails						
Reference				*				
Warehouse	FACTORY			~				
/ear	2008	\$	Financial					
cart Date	01/01/20	D8 🗸						
nd Date	31/12/20	08 ~						
ntered By	ALISON							
tatus	Entered		~					
roduct Code	D	escription		Selling Price	Unit of Measure	Annual Total	WK 1/2008 01/01/2008	WK 2/200 07/01/200
1								
(·								
		_						

The Sales Forecast Details window appears.

- 2. Enter a unique reference.
- 3. Enter a warehouse.

Note: You cannot change the warehouse when products have been added.

4. Select the forecast year.

Note: You can enter a number of forecasts for the same period.

5. To use your company's financial year, select the Financial check box. To use the calendar year, leave the check box clear.

The Start Date and End Date of the chosen year display automatically.

6. The status defaults to 'Entered'. This means that it has not been processed through MPS and MRP.

When you want the item to be processed in MPS, change the status to released. For more information, see *MPS* (*Master Production Schedule*) on page 269.

Once the item is processed through MRP, the status may change to part complete, complete or cancelled.

- 7. Select the product or products that you want to add to the forecast.
 - To select individual products, click in the Product Code box and select the product from the drop-down list.
 - To select multiple products, click Select Multiple Products and select the products from the Select Product window.
- 8. Enter the total quantity of forecasted sales for the year in the Annual Total box.

Note: If you enter a quantity that does not match with the unit of measure, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

The WK boxes display the annual total quantity divided by 53.

Note: If you are using traceability and the item is serial number traceable, you cannot enter decimal places.

9. Change any of the weekly totals required.

Note: If you enter a quantity that does not match with the unit of measure, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

The Annual Total is automatically updated.

10. To save your forecast, click Save.

This calculates the last date in each week as the forecast date.

Amending a Sales Forecast

Note: You cannot amend a sales forecast that is part complete or completed.

To amend a sales forecast

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning > Sales Forecasts and choose Records > Amend Sales Forecast.

The Sales Forecast Details window appears.

Forecast Detai	Forecast	Details			_	_	_	
Reference				*				
Narehouse	FACTOR	Y		~				
/ear	2008	4 2	Financial					
itart Date	01/01/2	208 V	1					
nd Date	31/12/20	- 80C						
ntered By	ALISON							
itatus	Entered		~					
roduct Code	ľ	Description		Selling Price	Unit of Measure	Annual Total	WK 1/2008 01/01/2008	WK 2/200 07/01/200
, r								1

- 2. Select the required forecast from the Reference drop-down list.
- Amend the information required.
 For more information, see *Creating a Sales Forecast* on page 262.
- 4. When you have entered all the required information, click Save.

Deleting a Sales Forecast

Note: You cannot delete a sales forecast that is released or part complete.

To delete a sales forecast

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning > Sales Forecasts and choose Records > Delete Sales Forecast.

The Delete Sales Forecasts window appears.

Reference	Forecast Start	Forecast End	Status	Warehouse	
SF 053	01/01/2007	31/12/2007	Entered	WAREHOUSE	
	1007 - SY				

2. Select the forecasts to delete and click OK.

The forecasts are deleted.

Copying a Sales Forecast

This option provides a quick way of creating a sales forecast.

To copy the sales forecast

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning > Sales Forecasts and choose Records > Copy Sales Forecast.

The Copy Sales Forecast window appears.

Existing For	recast			
Reference		_		
Vew Foreca	ast Details			
Reference	-			
Reference /ear	2007	**	Financial	
Reference Year 5tart Date	2007	**	Financial	

- 2. Select the existing forecast to copy.
- 3. Enter a unique reference for the new forecast.
- 4. To use your company's financial year, select the Financial check box. To use the calendar year, leave the check box clear.

The Start Date and End Date of the chosen year display automatically.

5. To save the forecast, click OK.

The forecast is saved with the new reference.

You can make further changes as required. For more information, see *Amending a Sales Forecast* on page 264.

Preparing Sales Forecasts Reports

The following reports are available from the Sales Forecasts menu.

List

The sales forecast list may be detailed or summarised.

To prepare sales forecasts reports

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, select Planning > Sales Forecasts and choose Reports.
- 2. Select the report required from the list of available reports.

For more information on preparing reports, see the Sage 200 els documentation.

To customise sales forecasts reports

You can edit or copy report layouts, or create a new report layout, using Sage Report Designer. For more information, see *Sage Report Designer* documentation.

Note: We advise you to copy your existing report layouts before you edit them. If you edit the standard report layouts, future amendments by us will overwrite your changes.

Chapter 9 MPS (Master Production Schedule)

The MPS module considers all demands and provides a master schedule for production of finished items and sub-assemblies sold separately.

Whilst reading demands, MPS looks at items that are:

- Outstanding from a sales order in Sales Order Processing.
- Marked for release in Make to Stock.
- Unfulfilled in Sales Forecasts.
- Required to fulfil estimates in the Estimating module.

Note: MPS also processes bought items so the MRP module can facilitate back-to-back ordering. For more information, see *Processing Items That Are Not Manufactured* on page 284.

You can also include and exclude demands manually.

In this chapter:

Entering Settings for MPS	.270
Viewing Settings for MPS	.275
Reading Demands	.276
Removing Items from MPS	.278
Linking Sales Orders	.279
Unlinking Sales Orders	.281
Excluding Items	.282
Including Items	.283
Processing Items That Are Not	
Manufactured	.284
Viewing Time Phased Demand	.285
Preparing MPS Reports	.286

Entering Settings for MPS

To save time when using the system, you can tailor the system to your company's needs through the setup process.

Planning considers the company working times. These are set up here. It also considers company shutdown times as these affect capacities and job start and end dates. For more information, see *Non-working Periods* on page 26.

To enter the MPS default settings

From the Navigation Bar, click Planning and choose Setup > Planning Settings.
 The Planning Settings window appears.

ieneral MPS MRP Graphical Planne	ar 🛛			
Days Per Week				
Five				
◯ Six				
O Seven				
Date Calculations				
Top Level Safety Planning Time (days)	0 🔹	20 1		
	′≖ hrs	1 30 -	mins	
Select the Contact Role that represents	the Buyer			
Role	~			
Default Tags View To				
O Expanded				
Ollapsed				

For more information on each Planning Settings tab relevant to MPS, please read the following sections.

- The General tab on page 271
- The MPS tab on page 273

The General tab

To enter general settings

1. In the Planning Settings window, click the General tab.

eneral MPS MRP Graphical Planne	er				
- Davs Per Week					
Eive					
O Six					
O Seven					
Date Calculations					
Top Level Safety Planning Time (days)	0 🜩				
Working Hours Per Day	7 🗐 📖	30 🚖			
		,	111113		
Select the Contact Role that represents	the Buyer				
Role	~				
D. C. J. T					
Derault rags view to					
O Expanded					
Ollapsed					

2. Enter the settings required according to the following descriptions.

Days Per Week	Select the number of working days in a week. Planning calculates backwards from the due date to determine the order start date.
Date Calculations	Enter a number of days to act as a buffer to lead times in the Top Level Safety Planning Time (days) box.
	Enter the number of Working Hours Per Day in the 'hrs' and 'mins' boxes.
Role	Select the contact role from the drop-down list. This list contains roles defined in the Maintain Contact Roles window. For more information, see <i>Maintain Roles</i> on page 41.

- Default Tags View ToSelect the default setting for viewing tags within MRP
Recommendation Details and Tags and Exceptions windows.Select Expanded to view tags set by default as expanded.
You can collapse the tags manually.Select Collapsed to view tags set by default as collapsed. You
can expand the tags manually.
- 3. To continue entering Planning Settings, click the MPS tab. To save your Planning Settings, click OK.

The MPS tab

To enter MPS settings

1. In the Planning Settings window, click the MPS tab.

The MPS settings appear.

ieneral MPS MF	P Graphical Planner	
Time Fences		
#1 (days)		
#2 (days)	30 🚖	
	,	
Defaults		
Extend Horizon Da	te By 0 🔹 Months	*
I Iapore Stock	nd Inventory Policy for Make To Stock De	
I Ignore Stock o	The inventory Policy for Make To Scock Re	connertations
Options		
Perform Nettin	a Off In Buckets	
E ronominioca	g on modelado	

2. Enter the settings required according to the following descriptions.

Time Fence #1 (days) Enter the number of days from the System Date that sales forecasts are ignored by MPS. This defaults to seven days.Time Fence #2 (days) Enter the number of days from the System Date that sales order Due Date is compared to the sales forecast for an item. This defaults to 30 days.

Extend Horizon Date By	The horizon date is the date up to which demands are read within MPS. For more information, see <i>Reading Demands on page 276</i> .		
	By default, the horizon date is the current system date, or today's date. To set a horizon date in the future, you must define an extension to this date. Enter a number and select units to specify an extension. For example, entering '2 months', sets the Read Demand default horizon date two months ahead in time.		
	Note: The Horizon Date is also used when you run MRP. For more information, see <i>Running MRP on page 298</i> .		
Ignore Stock and Inventory Policy for	This acts as a default for the setting that is displayed in the Make to Stock Item Details window.		
Make To Stock Recommendations	Select the check box to ignore any physical stock or inventory policy associated with the stock item. This means that the full quantity entered on the Make to Stock item will be processed by MRP.		
	Clear the check box to take into consideration the physical stock and inventory policy associated with the stock item. This means that the quantity entered on the Make to Stock item will be offset against physical stock.		
Perform Netting Off In Buckets	Select this check box to perform the netting off on a weekly basis. This takes into account the amount of sales orders and forecasts within a weekly bucket, where the week number is calculated from the Sales Forecast and Sales Order due date.		
	Note: This is the recommended option.		
	Clear the check box to perform the netting off for the length of time the time fences are set. This means that sales orders may be netted off against forecasts in earlier weeks.		

3. To save your Planning Settings, click OK.

Viewing Settings for MPS

You can only view settings using the View Planning Settings window. To edit the settings, see *Entering Settings for MPS on page 270*.

To view MPS Settings

- From the Navigation Bar, click Planning' and choose Setup > View Planning Settings.
- When you have finished viewing the settings, click Close.

Reading Demands

This section explains how to read demands from Sales Order Processing, Estimating, Make to Stock and Sales Forecasts.

To read demands

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning > MPS and choose Read Demand.

The Read Demand window appears.

Encer Horizo	n
Read up to	01/01/2008
Information	to read
All Inform	nation (Recommended)
⊖ Selected	Information
🔽 Sales	Orders
	iow Completed or Cancelled Orders
🔽 Make	to Stock
🔽 Sales	Forecasts
🔽 Estim	ates
Progress	

- 2. Enter the date up to which you want to read demands. By default, this is the current system date, or today's date. If you have set a date in the future within the MPS Settings then this date is shown here automatically. For more information, see *Entering Settings for MPS on page 270*.
- 3. To read all information, select All Information.

Note: This is recommended.

4. To read selected information, select Selected Information, and make further choices from the following check boxes.

Sales Orders	Select this check box to read demands from sales orders.
Show Completed/ Cancelled Orders	Select this check box if you want to show completed and cancelled orders in the excluded view.

Make to Stock	Select this check box to read demands from Make to Stock items.
Sales Forecasts	Select this check box to read demands from Sales Forecasts.
Estimates	Select this check box to read demand from estimates.

5. Click OK.

Demands are read up to the horizon date.

The Master Production Schedule - List shows included sales forecasts, make to stock items, estimates and sales orders.

If you are using multiple locations, the warehouses are listed, showing the quantity at each warehouse.

The Master Production Schedule - Excluded list shows excluded items. Items are excluded in the following circumstances.

- The sales order is on hold.
- The demand is beyond the horizon date.
- The item does not have a due date.
- The sales order is a proforma or quotation.
- The sales order has been cancelled.
- The BOM is private. For more information, see *The Header Details tab on page 118*.
- The sales order was created by Estimating.
- The item has not been released to production.
- The sales forecast falls within the Time Fence #1 number of days. For more information, see *Entering Settings for MPS on page 270*.
- The sales order Due Date falls outside the Time Fence #2 number of days. For more information, see *Entering Settings for MPS on page 270*.
- The sales order line is flagged for exclusion from MPS.
- Sales Order fulfilment method is set to 'From supplier direct to customer'. For more information, see the *Sage 200 Stock Control* documentation.
- The customer is on hold.
- A warehouse has not been specified.
- The sales order has been completed.

Removing Items from MPS

You cannot remove items directly from the Master Production Schedule. You must take the following actions to remove items.

- Cancel a sales order.
- Clear the released status on a make to stock item.
- Clear the released status on a sales forecast.
- Clear the released stages of an estimate.

When you Read Demand again, MPS will not read the items and they will not be included in the Master Production Schedule.

Linking Sales Orders

You can link sales orders with batch works orders in the Sales Order Processing module so that the specific works orders fulfill specific sales orders. This can occur even if the sales order due dates change. For more information, see your *Sales Order Processing* documentation.

If you have not linked sales orders within Sales Order Processing, you can use this option within MPS to link sales orders with works orders.

To link sales orders

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning > MPS and choose Link Sales Orders.

The Link Sales Orders window appears. This shows sales orders which are not currently linked and do not have allocations.

.Order No.	A/C	Name	Product Code	Description	Due Date	Quantity	Cust.Order No.
0000000001	CHE001	Cherrie Ltd	RAC/PADDEDSEAT	Padded Seat	30/07/2008	5.00000	

- 2. Select the sales orders you want to link.
- 3. Click OK.

The status of the sales orders is updated to Yes in the Linked Column within the Master Production Schedule - List.

Note: To see this column, right click within the Master Production Schedule - List, select Columns and then select Linked.

When you run MRP next, a recommendation is made to raise a batch works order to fulfil this sales order. The MRP Recommendation reference number is displayed in the Linked To column within the Master Production Schedule - List.

Note: To see the Linked To column, right click within the Master Production Schedule - List, select Columns and then select Linked To.

When you action the recommendation and raise the batch works order to fulfil the sales order, the exact quantity defined in the sales order is used.

To unlink a sales order which you have linked within MPS, use the Unlink Sales Orders option. For more information, see *Unlinking Sales Orders on page 281*.

Note: You cannot unlink a sales order within MPS if it has been linked within Sales Order Processing. In that case you must use the option with the Works Orders module. For more information, see *Unlinking Works Orders on page 395*.
Unlinking Sales Orders

Use this option to unlink sales orders that you have linked within MPS (see *Linking Sales Orders on page 279*).

Note: You cannot use this option to unlink sales orders you have linked within Sales Order Processing. To unlink those orders, you must use the option within the Works Orders module. For more information, see *Unlinking Works Orders on page 395*.

To unlink sales orders

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning > MPS and choose Unlink Sales Orders.

The Unlink Sales Orders window appears. This contains the sales orders which are currently linked.

		he contractor	1.0.00.00000000000		1.0000000000000000000000000000000000000		
.Order No.	A/C	Name	Product Code	Description	Due Date	Quantity	Cust.Order No.
0000000001	CHEOU1	Cherrië Ltd	RAC/PADDEDSEAT	Padded Seat	30/07/2008	5.00000	
	Curre	Class					

- 2. Select the sales orders you want to unlink.
- 3. Click OK.

The status of the sales orders is updated to No in the Linked column.

When you re-run MPS, the reference in the Linked To column is removed.

Note: To see these columns within the Master Production Schedule - List, right click within the list, select Columns and then select Linked.

Excluding Items

MPS follows rules for excluding items when reading demands. For more information, see *Reading Demands on page 276*. You can manually exclude items if you use this option.

To exclude items

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning > MPS and choose Exclude.

The Exclude Item window appears.

Due Date	Quantity	Product Code	Description	Туре	Warehouse Name	Reference	A/C	Name
30/07/2008	0.00000	ACC/PAINT/GREEN	Green Bike Paint	s/o	FACTORY	0000000001	CHE001	Cherrie Ltd
30/07/2008	0.00000	ACC/PAINT/RED	Red Bike Paint	5/O	FACTORY	0000000001	CHE001	Cherrie Ltd
30/07/2008	5.00000	RAC/PADDEDSEAT	Padded Seat	5/0	FACTORY	0000000001	CHE001	Cherrie Ltd
30/07/2008	24.00000	ACC/PUMP	Tyre Pump	5/0	FACTORY	000000002	COU001	Country Cycles

All items which have not been excluded automatically are shown.

- 2. Select the items you want to exclude.
- 3. Click OK.

The items will be excluded and listed in the Master Production Schedule - Excluded list until you manually include them again. For more information, see *Including Items on page 283*.

Including Items

You can include items if you have excluded them manually. For more information, see *Processing Items That Are Not Manufactured on page 284*.

Note: You cannot include items that are automatically excluded following the Read Demand process. For more information on the reasons for automatic exclusion, see *Reading Demands on page 276*.

To include items

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning > MPS and choose Include.

ue Date	Quantity	Product Code	Description	Туре	Warehouse Name	Reference	A/C	Name
		ACC/PAINT/GREEN	Green Bike Paint		FACTORY	0000000001	CHE001	Cherrie Ltd
30,07,2008	0.0000	ACC/PAINT/RED	Red Bike Paint	510	FACTORY	000000001	CHEUUI	Cherne Ltd
Select All	ap Cit	aar)						

The Include Item window appears.

All items which have been manually excluded are shown.

- 2. Select the items you want to include.
- 3. Click OK.

The items are included in the Master Production Schedule - List and will be read the next time you read demand. For more information, see *Reading Demands on page 276*.

Processing Items That Are Not Manufactured

MPS picks up demand for items from sales orders. When MRP processes items, it raises recommendations to buy (purchase order) or make (works order) the items. Works orders are recommended if BOMs exist for the items. Otherwise purchase orders are recommended.

For more information on material requirements planning, see *MRP* (Material Requirements *Planning*) on page 287.

Viewing Time Phased Demand

You can view a summary of items spread across time periods.

To view time phased demand

1. From the Navigation Bar, select MPS and choose View Time Phased Demand.

The Time Phased Demand window appears.

Calendar Basis Frequency	Calendar Year Daily	FromTo	15/10/2007 II Show on	ly periods with demand
Product Cod	le	7	Description	15/10/2003
ACC/PAINT/BLUE			Blue Bike Paint	1.0000
MOU/ALU/BIKEPACK1			Bike Pack 1 - Aluminium	1.0000
MOU/ALU/FINISHEDBIKE			Finished Aluminium Mountain Bike	2.0000

- 2. Select Calendar Year or Financial Year from the Calendar Basis drop-down list. This shows time periods that reflect the calendar year or the financial year.
- 3. Select Daily, Weekly, Four Weekly or Monthly from the Frequency drop-down list. Time periods reflect the selection.
- 4. Enter the date range From and To.
- 5. To show only periods with demands, select the 'Show only periods with demand' check box.
- 6. To view the demands, click Refresh.
- To view the demands for a particular time period, click in the time period box.
 The 'Demand for ...' window appears showing details of the demands for that date.

Preparing MPS Reports

The following reports are available from the MPS menu.

Items

The items in this report may be grouped by period, product or type.

Items List

The items list may show all items or only those that have been excluded.

To prepare MPS reports

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, select Planning > MPS and choose Reports.
- 2. Select the report required from the list of available reports.

For more information on preparing reports, see Sage 200 help.

To customise MPS reports

You can edit or copy report layouts, or create a new report layout, using Sage Report Designer. For more information, see *Sage Report Designer* documentation.

Note: We advise you to copy your existing report layouts before you edit them. If you edit the standard report layouts, future amendments by us will overwrite your changes.

Chapter 10 MRP (Material Requirements Planning)

MRP looks at stock projections in relation to demands and generates appropriate recommendations.

After reading demands in MPS, use MRP to explode demands through the BOM levels and produce make or buy recommendations. MRP produces recommendations after considering the following:

- Product Manufactured setting.
- Supplier lead time.
- BOM lead time.
- Stock levels.
- Work in progress.
- On order quantities.
- Minimum levels.
- Batch sizing rules.
- Locations of stock components.
- Whether version control is being used.

You can refine recommendations manually.

You can raise purchase orders and works orders from within MRP. This ensures uninterrupted manufacture of the items listed on MPS.

Graphical Planner works alongside MRP. For more information, see *Sage Graphical Planner* documentation.

In this chapter:

Entering Settings for MRP	.288
Viewing Settings for MRP	.297
Running MRP	.298
Looking at the Content of the MRP Output Log	.303
Amending Recommendations	.311
Splitting Recommendations	.314
Combining Recommendations	.316
Deleting Recommendations	.318
Actioning Recommendations	.319
Viewing Stock Projection	.326
Viewing Tags and Exceptions	.328
Preparing MRP Reports	.331

Entering Settings for MRP

You can tailor the system to your company's needs through the setup process. This saves time when using the system. For more information, see *To enter the MRP default settings* on page 288.

Planning takes account of when the company shuts down as this affects capacities and the start and end dates of jobs. Five years of United Kingdom public holidays are entered in the system by default. You can amend, delete or add new dates. For more information, see *Non-working Periods* on page 26.

When MRP runs, it searches for available stock to make recommendations. The 'Valid for component source' check box within Stock Control indicates components are available from the warehouse. Within Manufacturing System Manager, you must maintain your warehouse hierarchy, indicating which warehouses supply components to other warehouses. This means that MRP can make recommendations at specific locations. For more information, see your *Stock Control* documentation and *Maintain Warehouse Hierarchy* on page 24.

To enter the MRP default settings

From the Navigation Bar, click Planning and choose Setup > Planning Settings.
 The Planning Settings window appears.

🗏 PLN - P	lanning Settings				_		2
General	MPS MRP Gr	phical Planner					
Days F	Per Week ve x						
Date C Top Le Workin Select Role	calculations evel Safety Planning ing Hours Per Day t the Contact Role th	ime (days)	0 ‡ 7 ⊉ hrs Buyer	30 🍨	mins		
Defau O Ex I Co	ult Tags View To xpanded ollapsed						
						<u>O</u> K	

For more information on each Planning Settings tab relevant to MRP, please read the following sections.

The General tab

To enter general settings

1. In the Planning Settings window, click the General tab.

eneral MPS MRP Graphical Plan	ner			
Days Per Week				
Five				
O Six				
O Seven				
Date Calculations				
Top Level Safety Planning Time (days)	0 🌩			
Working Hours Per Day	7 🔹 hrs	30 🌲	mins	
	ts the Buver			
Role	~			
Default Tags View To				
O Expanded				
Ollapsed				

2. Enter the settings required according to the following descriptions.

Days Per Week	Select the number of working days in a week. Planning uses this to calculate backwards from the due date to determine the start date for orders.
Date Calculations	Enter a number of days to act as a buffer to lead times in the Top Level Safety Planning Time (days) box.
	Enter the number of Working Hours Per Day to be included in planning calculations.
Role	Select the contact role from the drop-down list. This list contains roles defined in the Maintain Contact Roles window. For more information, see <i>Maintain Roles</i> on page 41.

- Default Tags View ToSelect the default setting for viewing tags within MRP
Recommendation Details and Tags and Exceptions windows.Select Expanded to view tags set by default as expanded.
You can collapse the tags manually.Select Collapsed to view tags set by default as collapsed. You
can expand the tags manually.
- 3. To continue entering Planning Settings, click the MRP tab. To save your Planning Settings, click OK.

The MRP tab

To enter MRP settings

1. In the Planning Settings window, click the MRP tab.

The MRP settings appear.

Filters	Firm Planning Period (days)				
Cancel Works Orders	Works Orders 7 🚖				
Cancel Purchase Orders	Purchase Orders 7 🚔				
Make Recommendations					
Copy Sales Order comment lines					
Buy Recommendations					
Copy drawing revision number					
Use base unit of measure					
MRP Run Defaults	MRP Record Defaults				
Production safety lead time 🛛 0 🚖	Automatically Update Dates				
Purchase safety lead time 0 🌻	When changing supplier, which dates should be updated?				
Replenishment Horizon 0 🜩	 Start Date 				
	C End Date				
Aggregate Demand					
Aggregate Demand Standard Optimised					
Aggregate Demand Standard Track Overders Revelates Orders as due for delevenu today.					

2. Enter the settings required, according to the following descriptions.

Filters	Select the Cancel Works Orders check box if you have permission to cancel works orders for the product.
	Select the Cancel Purchase Orders check box if you have permission to cancel purchase orders for the product.
Firm Planning Period (days)	Set a number of days before the System Date when purchase orders or works orders cannot be cancelled within MRP.

Make Recommendations	Select the 'Copy Sales Order comment lines' check box to copy sales order comments to the works order.					
	Sales order comments copied are sales order comment lines '1' and '2' in Sales Order Processing.					
	The comments can be printed on documentation, for example, route cards.					
Buy Recommendations	Select 'Copy drawing revision number' to copy the drawing revision number to purchase orders generated in Purchase Order Processing.					
	Select 'Use base unit of measure' to ensure MRP raises ourchase orders using quantities expressed in the base unit of measure instead of the stock unit. The default is to use the stock unit.					
Production safety lead time	Set a number of working days to add to the lead time of every works order recommendation.					
	Note: This does not change the due date on the works order. The start and end dates are recalculated to include the safety lead time.					
Purchase safety lead time	Set a number of working days to add to the lead time of every purchase order recommendation.					
	Note: This does not change the due date on the purchase order. The start and end dates are recalculated to include the safety lead time.					
Replenishment Horizon	Set a number of days to add to due dates to find the Replenishment Horizon. Demands can be tagged to future replenishments rather than MRP suggest additional replenishments. This value defaults when MRP is run although you can overwrite the value at that time.					
	Note: To store specific replenishment horizon values for stock items, enter the Replenishment Horizon (days) value on the Manufacturing tab of the Stock Item Details form. The stock item replenishment horizon value overrides replenishment values entered in Manufacturing. For more information, see your <i>Sage 200 Stock Control</i> documentation.					

Aggregate Demand Select the Aggregate Demand check box to group together demand for like products within a product time bucket. The product time bucket is determined from the Aggregate Demand (days) value set on the stock item. For more information, see your Sage 200 Stock Control documentation.

There are two ways of aggregating demand: standard and optimised. The default is optimised.

Optimised aggregation will create all buckets due to demand. It will not start a new bucket if there is no demand on that day.

Standard aggregation will create the first bucket due to demand but will then create the subsequent buckets automatically. Therefore, standard aggregation will lead to empty buckets.

For example, a stock item has an Aggregate Demand (days) value of 2. The pattern of demand is as follows:

		Aggregation								
Days	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	
Demand	0	10	5	0	0	20	0	10	5	
Standard		1		2		3		4		
Optimise	ed		1			1	2	3	3	

Standard and optimised buckets both start the first bucket on the first demand day, day 2. However, the next optimised bucket will start on day 6. Standard aggregation will create an empty bucket for days 4 and 5.

Treat Overdue Purchase	Select this check box to ensure:		
Orders as due for delivery today	 Unfulfilled purchase orders with a due date earlier the MRP run date (i.e. purchase orders where deli late) are not cancelled automatically. 		
	•	New orders are issued when MRP is run.	
		Note: If the Replenishment Horizon is greater than the overdue period then new orders are not issued.	
	Warnings about overdue purchase orders are listed in the MRP output log. For more information, see <i>Exceptions List on page 307</i> .		
	You is ca	can leave the check box clear to ensure the original order incelled and a new order issued.	
	Note be o	e: If you leave the check box clear, too much stock could rdered.	
Automatically Update Dates	Sele date supp	ct the Automatically Update Dates check box to update s for recommendations automatically when you change pliers.	
When changing supplier, which dates should be updated?	Sele Date	ct whether you want to update the Start Date or End e, when changing supplier.	

3. To continue entering Planning Settings, click the Graphical Planner tab. To save your Planning Settings, click OK.

The Graphical Planner tab

Use this tab to record the settings that identify how Manufacturing integrates with Graphical Planner. For more information about Graphical Planner, see *Sage Graphical Planner* documentation.

To enter graphical planner settings

1. In the Planning Settings window, click the Graphical Planner tab.

The Graphical Planner settings appear.

eneral MPS M	RP Graphical Planner		
Configuration			
Primary Resource	Machines 🗸 🗸		
Path to Program	C:\Program Files\Sage\Lir	ne 50 Graphical Planner\preactor.exe	~
Configuration			~
Import Path			~
Export Path			~
MRP Recomment Primary Resour Secondary Res Non Working Pr	ndations rces ources eriods	Purchase Order Recommendations Sales Forecasts Sales Orders Recommendations	
Product Catego	pries	Stock Quantities	
Pass Works Or	der dates (these are autom	atically locked)	
Pass MRP Reco	mmendations dates		

2. Enter the settings required according to the following descriptions.

Configuration	In the Primary Resource box, select whether labour or machines are to be the primary resource in Graphical Planner.	
	In the Path to Program box, enter the path to the Graphical Planning Executable file (.exe). This should include the path and file name.	
	Note: By default the Graphical Planner program folder is in your program files folder, for example, c:\program files. If you installed Graphical Planner in a different directory you will need to change the path displayed.	

	Note: By default, the Configuration, Import Path and Export Path folders are installed at My Documents\Sage\Graphical Planner.
	In the Configuration box, enter the path to the Graphical Planning Configuration file (*.prcdf). This should include the path and file name.
	In the Import Path box, enter the path where Graphical Planner imports data from. This is where MRP exports data to.
	In the Export Path box, enter the path where Graphical Planner exports data to. This is where MRP imports data from.
Export	Select the check boxes for items to export to Graphical Planner.
Pass Works Order dates (these are automatically locked)	Select this check box to pass dates to and from Works Orders and Graphical Planner.
Pass MRP Recommendations dates	Select this check box to pass dates to and from MRP and Graphical Planner.

3. To save your Planning Settings, click OK.

Viewing Settings for MRP

If you need to provide details of your settings to the support team, use the 'view only' versions of the settings.

To view MRP Settings

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning and choose Setup > View Planning Settings.
- 2. When you have finished viewing the settings, click Close.

Running MRP

You need to run MRP to calculate demands and see make or buy recommendations.

The results are listed in a log file. You can view the log file and check the details. You can also send it via email to other users.

To run MRP

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning > MRP and choose Processing > Run MRP.

The Run MRP window appears.

Horizon Date	00/2003 1
Production safety lead time	0 🚔
Purchase sarety lead time	0 单
Replenishment Horizon	0 🔹
Aggregate Demand	
Include demand from	Include replenishments from
Ill Sources (Recommended)	 All Sources (Recommended)
Selected Sources	 Selected Sources
Sales Orders	Purchase Orders
Sales Forecasts	Works Orders
Make to Stock	Free Stock
Estimating	
Stock below reorder level	
💟 Even if sole demand item	
Works Orders	
Ranges	
 All Information (Recommended) 	
Selected Information	
Product Code - From	v
То	v
Product Group	~

2. Specify how you want to run MRP, by entering the following information.

Horizon Date

The cut-off date for processing demands defaults to the date entered when demands are read in MPS. You can change the default, if required.

Note: Items with a due date after this date are ignored.

Production safety lead time	This defaults to the number of days defined within the Planning Settings. It adds a number of working days to the lead time of every works order recommendation. You can change the default, if required.
Purchase safety lead time	This defaults to the number of days defined within the Planning Settings. It adds a number of working days to the lead time of every purchase order recommendation. You can change the default, if required.
Replenishment Horizon	This defaults to the number of days defined within the Planning Settings. It adds a number of calendar days to due dates to find the horizon for replenishments. You can change the default, if required.
	Note: Use the Replenishment Horizon (days) box on the Manufacturing tab of the Stock Item Details form to store the horizon values for individual stock items. The stock item replenishment horizon value overrides replenishment values entered in Manufacturing. For more information, see your <i>Sage 200 Stock Control</i> documentation.
Aggregate Demand	Select the Aggregate Demand check box to group together demand for like products within a product time bucket. The product time bucket is determined from the Aggregate Demand (days) value set on the stock item. For more information, see your <i>Sage 200 Stock Control</i> documentation.
	If you select Aggregate Demand, the method of aggregating demand defaults to the method specified in Planning Settings. For more information, see <i>The MRP tab on page 291</i> .
	Note: Sales orders which are linked with batch works orders are not included in aggregated demand.
Include demand from	Choose which items are included.
	Note: We recommend you include demands from all sources.
Include replenishments	Choose which replenishments are included.
IFOL	Note: We recommend you include replenishments from all sources.

Ranges

Choose the product ranges over which MRP is run.

Note: We recommend you choose ranges which cover all information.

3. To run MRP, click OK.



MRP processes demands for each product that qualifies in the Master Production Schedule. In addition, demands are considered for all products that are below reorder level. The demands are grouped by product and sorted by order date. Sales orders which are linked, are processed as precise quantity and are excluded from MRP ordering and batch rules.

Replenishment is listed on a new line for each stock item that has a replenishment value.

If the 'Treat Overdue Purchase Orders as due for delivery today' setting is selected in MRP Settings, purchase orders that are overdue on the MRP Horizon Date are listed as Exceptions in the MRP output log. For more information, see *Exceptions List on page 307*.

Once all demands have been processed, MRP explodes estimates and BOMs to the next level. Phantom BOMs are blown through a level. Exploded demands are added to the MRP considerations.

The results of the MRP calculations are displayed in the MRP window. Current and projected stock levels can be viewed. Action can be taken on recommendations made by the routine.

The results of the MRP calculations are saved in a text file in a folder of the company's Attachments path. For more information on the path, refer to your System Administrator. The file name is <company name>_MrpOutputLog.txt.

To view the MRP output log

1. From the Navigation Bar, click MRP and choose MRP Output Log > View Log.

The View MRP Output Log window appears.



To close the log, click the Close button in the top right-hand corner of the window.
 For more information about the log, see *Looking at the Content of the MRP Output Log* on page 303.

To send the MRP output log

1. From the Navigation Bar, click MRP and choose MRP Output Log > Send To.

The Send MRP Output Log window appears.

🖷 Send M	RP Output Log	\mathbf{X}
Send To]
Send To	5age200support@sage.com	
		<u>QK</u> <u>C</u> ancel

- 2. Enter the user's email address.
- 3. To open the email window, click OK.

The default email window opens, displaying a new message with the log file as an attachment.



Complete the message as required and send the message in the usual way.
 For more information about the log, see *Looking at the Content of the MRP Output Log* on page 303.

Looking at the Content of the MRP Output Log

The MRP Output Log is produced during the Run MRP process within MRP.

It allows you to see what has happened during the Run MRP process, and also lists exclusions. This lets you have a better understanding of the MRP status.

The output log layout

The initial display provides a list of the selected Planning settings available for alteration prior to the run.

The product range is blank in the following example, as the All Information option (recommended)', was taken.



The example log has the setting Aggregate Demand selected – are we going to group the demands for like products based on a setting in the Stock Control module. Whether we are or not depends on the setting configured within Planning Settings but can be overridden when you Run MRP.

Product time buckets are set in the Stock Control module. Each product can be set to Aggregate Demand within a certain number of days. Prior to the assembly structure explosion,

MRP checks for any product time buckets. The number of days is entered against the product record.

Within Planning settings (see *The MRP tab on page 291*) a default setting (Aggregate Demand) controls whether the number of days is used. You can change this default when you run MRP.

If you are using optimised aggregation, the number of days still applies. But, each bucket only starts on days when there is demand. This eliminates the empty time buckets which can arise if you use standard aggregation.

All Replenishment sources selected when you run MRP have their quantities combined by Product Code filter within specific order dates. If Make to Stock items are excluded from aggregation and replenishment checks then this is noted in the log.



Top Level Demand is obtained from Read Demand in MPS.

Processing Items

Estimates are processed initially, followed by products in order of usage level.

Provided within each breakdown are the mathematical calculations as performed by Run MRP. The replenishment quantities are defined within Run MRP from one or all of the following: Purchase Orders, Works Orders, Free Stock and any excess from MRP recommendations.



The following excerpt shows demand for Product=MOU/ALU/20FINISHEDWHEEL, created as the result of a BOM structure explosion:



The following excerpt shows demand for Product=MOU/20INCHTYRE, also created as the result of a BOM structure explosion which results in an MRP recommendation:

<u>MrpOutputLog.txt - Notepad</u> File Edit Format View Help Product Code: MOU/20INCHTYRE	Demand entries are split into sections by Product Code.	
Aggregate Days: 0 *** Demand: ID=22 Type=XPL Ref=w00003 Qty=10.000000 Start=30/10/2007 End=02/11/2007 Due=11 Physical Stock=0.00000 Warehouse=WAREHOUSE Physical Stock=0.00000 Warehouse=KACTORY Teardner Rules: mou=0.00000 Replentishment Rules: mou=0.0000 Net Frees=7 [Physical Stock - Demand qty + Replenishments] warehouses:wAREHOUSE, FACTORY Net Frees=10w Zero/Rol: Rec1=7.00000 Calculated Adjusted Quantity: Rec2=9 Found Supplier Cost Price: Cost=7.090 Retagging Exploded Item: old Tag=(DEMAND)22 New Tag=MRP000001 New Tag Display=MRP MRP0 Physical Stock CFWD=0.00000, warehouse:wAREHOUSE Physical Stock CFWD=0.00000, warehouse:wAREHOUSE	/10/2007 *** s=waREHOUSE,FACTORY 00000 supplier=JOHOO1 start (00001	
	×	

Exceptions List

	Netword	
_mrpourputtog.txt	- Notepad	
File Edit Format View	Help	
Exploding	RKS ORDERS ***	
Exploding - - - -	Batch works order: ID-3 Ref=w00003 Adding Demand: ID-27 Jypes-XPL Product=M0U/20INCHTYRE Desc=2 Adding Temporary Tag: SRC=W00003 DEST={DEMAND}?2 Adding Demand: ID-23 Types-XPL Product=M0U/ALU/20WHEELFRAME Adding Temporary Tag: SRC=W00003 DEST={DEMAND}23	0" Tyre Qty=10.000000 Make=No Needed= 11, Desc=20" Aluminium Wheel Frame Qty=10.00(
Product Code: MOU	/ALU/SUSPENSIONBIKESHELL	
Aggregate Days: O		-
*** Demand: ID=17 Physical Stock=-3 Physical Stock=0. Total Replenishme	Type=XPL Ref=W00002 Qty=1.000000 Start=30/10/2007 End=31/10/2 .00000 Warehouse=WAREHOUSE 00000 Warehouse=FACTORY nt otv (Excluding Type MRP)=4 Between 01/01/1899 and 11/10/200	007 Due=11/10/2007 *** 7 Warehouses=WAREHOUSE.FACTORY
Replenish Saved Reorder Rules: RO	ment: Type=w/o Ref=W00022 bue=11/10/2007 oty In=3.000000 oty U Tag: To Cover=XPL W00002 Tagged To=w/o W00022 Qty=1.00000 L=0.0000	sed=0.000000 Qty Availáble=3.000000 Wareł
Replenishment Rul Net Free=0 [Physi Calculated Adjust Order Quantity No	e:ExactQuantity cal stock - Demand qty + Replenishments] warehouses:WAREHOUSE, ed quantity: Rec2=0 : Present: Ves	FACTORY
Retagging Exp Raised Except Physical Stock CF Physical Stock CF	UONS NELUDU Toded Item: Old Tag={DEMAND}17 New Tag=SUFFICIENT New Tag Disp MMM: Type=XPL Due=11/10/2007 qty=1.000000 Src=XPL w00002 Ref=W wD=0.00000, warehouse:WAREHOUSE wD=0.00000, warehouse:FACTORY	lay=SUFFICIENT D0002 Message=Can be satisfied from stock
		×
<		3

Exceptions are listed within each Product Code grouping and can be any of the following:

- Version control is enabled but the top level BOM for the item is not active, or it is active but the sub-assembly BOMs are not active.
- Non-stock Item.
- Free stock will drop below reorder level.

This can occur when suggesting to cancel works orders or purchase orders.

- Can be satisfied from stock/replenishments.
- Cancel Prevented PO Invoiced.
- Bulk issue item.
- Within Firm planning period.

This can occur when suggesting to cancel works orders or purchase orders within the setup firm planning period.

Filter prevented Cancellation.

Within the Planning Settings, on the MRP tab, there are two check boxes - Cancel Works Orders/Cancel Purchase Orders. These must be selected to give permission to cancel.

- Invalid Start, End or Due Date.
- Overdue Purchase Order.

Other information and alerts can be generated, providing extra help with understanding the MRP results. These can appear as the result of the choices made during Run MRP.

🖡 _MrpOutputLog.txt - Notepad	
File Edit Format View Help	
Net Free Below Zero: Rec1=0 Calculated Adjusted Quantity: Rec2=0 order Quantity Not Present: Yes NO RECOMMENDATIONS NEEDED Baicad Exception: ThreeEET Due=18/10/2007 oty=1 000000	Sec-EST ESTODOR/ROW Rof-7 Massion-Can be esticided from stack
Kaised Exception. Type-Est Due-10/10/2007 (ty-1.00000	SIC-ESI ESI0000,00M Kei-7 Message-Cail be satisfied from stock
<pre>*** Demand: ID=7 Type=EST Ref=EST0008/DEFAULT Qty=1.000000 Total Replenishment Qty (Excluding Type MRP)=1 Replenishment: Type=w/0 Ref=W00027 Quantity=1</pre>	Start=30/10/2007 End=30/10/2007 Due=18/10/2007 ***
Saved Tag: To Cover=EST EST0008/DEFAULT Tagged Reorder Rules: RoL=0 Net Free Below Zero: Rec1=0 Calculated Adjusted Quantity: Rec2=0 Order Quantity Not Present: Yes	To=₩/0 ₩00027
NO RECOMMENDATIONS NEEDED Raised Exception: Type=EST Due=18/10/2007 Qty=1.000000	Src=EST EST0008/DEFAULT Ref=7 Message=Can be satisfied from s
Product Code: MOU/21GEARSPACK	For example, 'No Demand' appears for
	Product Code MOU/21GEARSPACK due to
Aggregate Days: 0	the selection of the full range of products.
NO DEMAND	
	×
<	<u>ک</u>

Error Logging

The Run MRP window can show errors occurring within the separate steps which are output to the log. When MRP related errors occur, the software will proceed, although you can cancel the process, if required.

🖡 _MrpOutputLog.txt - Notepad	
File Edit Format View Help	
Aggregate Days: 0	~
40.020 401 100.04	
NO DEMAND	
product code: pac/auu/HUB	
	1
Aggregate Days: 0	1
NO DEMAND	
Product Code: zero cost item	
Aggregate Days: 0	
(1991)	
NO DEMAND	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	The nature of errors that occur can have a dramatic effect
ERROR: NO product code	on the final recommendations which is why the window is
Product Code: ACC/PAINT/BLUE	shown at the end of the process and why the errors are
	logged. By presenting the errors within the log, you can
	determine appropriate action, if any to take
Aggregate Days: U	determine appropriate action, in any, to take.
S	الـi

Note: When viewing the output log, you can use any search facilities available within your default text editor to find occurrences of the word 'ERROR'.

_MrpOutputLog.txt - Notepad File Edit Format View Help				.ex
Setting Buyer Codes				^
Identifying Cancellations				
Building Routing			The last section of t	the loa
Updating Delivery Addresses			reveals the end date	e and time of
Commit Transaction			the Run MRP proce	ess.
MRP RUN ENDED - User: MANAGER, Date/T	ime: 30/10/2007 12:59:21			
1 errors reported.		The last sect reveals if erro	ion of the log also ors are reported.	
 TIMINGS 				
Overall Time Calculating Usage Levels Time Combine ReplentStments Time Obtain Top Level Demand Time Get Items Below ROL Time Removing Excluded Items Time Updating Matescrued Flag Time Updating Bought In Items Time Processing Items Time Setting Buyer Codes Time Identifying Cancellations Time Building Routing Time Updating Delivery Addresses	00:09 <1 sec (140ms) <1 sec (233ms) <1 sec (249ms) <1 sec (171ms) <1 sec (171ms) <1 sec (102ms) <1 sec (102ms) <1 sec (102ms) <1 sec (124ms) <1 sec (124ms) <1 sec (124ms) <1 sec (124ms) <1 sec (109ms)			
<				> .:

Amending Recommendations

You can review and amend recommendations made by the Run MRP process. Recommendation Details can be selected from the MRP - Recommendations list. Recommendation details are also available by drilling down from the Stock Projection List window. For more information, see *Viewing Stock Projection* on page 326.

Note: You can amend the recommendations graphically using Graphical Planner. For more information, see *Sage Graphical Planner* documentation.

To amend recommendations

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning > MRP and choose Recommendation Records > Amend Recommendation.

The MRP Recommendation Details window appears.

etails	Delivery Address	Tags Excep	tions	Splits F	Routing		
Recor	mmendation Details						
Rec.	Number				*		
Туре							
Actio	n						
Mess	age						
Produ	uct Code						
Desci	ription						
Statu	IS						
Ware	house				~		
Actua	al Quantity	0.00	000		(and a second		
Adjus	sted Quantity	0.00000	ni				
Cost	Price	0.00000	iil				
Start	Date	11	m 4	at 🗌			
End [Date	11	11 A	At	_		
Due I	Date	11	_				
Supp	lier		*				
Priori	ty	9 🗘					
Buyer	Code						
	First		Middle		Last		
] Foll	ow Up		Exclude	e from Sto	ck Projection		
Link	ed		Exclude	e from Gra	phical Planne	ər	

- 2. You can amend the following Recommendation Details, if required:
 - Warehouse.

The warehouse delivery address (set up within Stock Control Locations) is displayed on the Delivery Address tab.

Note: A supplier must be selected.

Adjusted Quantity

Note: If you enter a quantity that does not match with the unit of measure, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

If the recommendation is a sales order and the sales order is linked, you cannot adjust the quantity to less than the quantity on the linked sales order line.

- Cost Price (using the supplier's currency)
- Start Date and time (At)
- End Date and time (At)
- Supplier

Click the down arrow in the Supplier box.

The Select Supplier window appears.

Select the supplier you want from the list. For example, you might need a supplier with a lower minimum order quantity. Click View All Suppliers to select a supplier from the complete list of suppliers.

Note: If you are changing from a make to a buy item by adding a supplier, and the recommendation is linked, you are prompted to confirm you want to replace the permanent link with a temporary tag when you save the changes.

- Buyer Code
- Priority

The Priority of the works order is shown. The priority range is from -32000 to 32000. The lower the number, the higher the priority, so -32000 is the highest priority and 32000 is the lowest priority. This information passes into Graphical Planner and is used during planning. For more information see *Sage Graphical Planner* documentation.

Note: When a Make MRP Recommendation is actioned, the priority is copied to the works order. For more information about actioning recommendations, see *Actioning Recommendations* on page 319.

Note: If you change Supplier, Adjusted Quantity, Start Date or End Date, you must action the recommendation before running MRP. If you do not, your changes will be lost. Actioning the recommendation and running MRP will show the effect of your changes.

3. Select the Follow Up check box if you want to perform any follow up action on the recommendation.

- 4. Select the Exclude from Stock Projection check box if you want to exclude the item from the stock projection list.
- 5. Select the Exclude from Graphical Planner check box if you want to exclude the recommendation from export to Graphical Planner.
- 6. Click the Delivery Address tab to review the delivery address.

Note: The delivery address is the address of the warehouse selected on the Details tab. You cannot amend it here. If you need to amend it, this can be done within Stock Control Locations.

7. Click the Tags tab to review the links between other items.

Linked sales orders are indicated by the suffix (LINKED).

Note: You can action recommendations from this tab. For more information, see *Actioning Recommendations* on page 319.

- 8. Click the Exceptions tab to show items that may not be needed.
- 9. Click the Splits tab to view all associated MRP records if the item has been split.
- 10. Click the Routing tab to view the operations routing of the items against make recommendations only.
- 11. To save your changes to the recommendations, click Save.

Splitting Recommendations

You can raise multiple orders for a specified product, supplier and date combination by splitting the recommendation. You might need to do this if the customer wants a phased delivery of the order.

You cannot split the following:

- Service type items, typically non-stock items from an estimate or a subcontract operation.
- Linked recommendations.

To split a recommendation

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning > MRP and choose Processing > Split Recommendation.

The Split MRP Recommendation window appears.

Rec. Number		120
Tune		×
Deaduct Cada		
Description		
Adjusted Quantity	0.00000	
Splits Quantity	0.00000	
plic the Adjusted Quantic	y as rollows:	Quanti
Rec. Number		
Rec. Number <autonumber></autonumber>		0.000
Rec. Number <autonumber></autonumber>		0.000
Rec. Number <autonumber></autonumber>		0.000

- 2. Select the record number of the recommendation that you want to split.
- 3. Split the adjusted quantity as follows:
 - Click in the Quantity column on the first line, and enter the quantity for the first part of the split.
 - Click in the Quantity column on the next line, and enter the quantity for the second part of the split.
 - Repeat until you have entered the quantities for all the required splits.

Note: The total quantity for the splits must equal the adjusted quantity. If any of the quantities you enter does not match with the unit of measure, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

4. To save the splits, click OK.

A new recommendation is created for each split you have made. The new lines are displayed in the MRP - Recommendations window.

Combining Recommendations

To simplify ordering, you can combine recommendations for the same Make to Stock item into one works order. You can also combine items with the same supplier into one purchase order.

However, you cannot combine buy recommendations linked to demands for sales order items with the fulfilment type 'from supplier direct'. This is because the purchase order items need to hold the delivery address from the sales order.

If multiple locations are used for component store and supply, the items being combined must come from the same warehouse.

You cannot combine the following:

- Service type items, typically non-stock items from an estimate or a subcontract operation.
- Linked recommendations.

To combine recommendations

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning > MRP and choose Processing > Combine Recommendations.

The Combine Recommendations window appears.

Rec.Number	Туре	Action	Product Code	Warehouse	Adjusted Qty
MRP000001	BUY	NEW	ACC/PUMP	FACTORY	12.000000
	MAKE	NEW	MOU/ALU/SUSPENSIONB	FACTORY	3.000000
_ MRP000003	BUY	NEW	MOU/20INCHTYRE	FACTORY	9.000000
_ MRP000004	BUY	NEW	MOU/ALU/20INCHRIM	FACTORY	9.000000
_ MRP000005	BUY	NEW	MOU/ALU/20INCHSPOKE	FACTORY	420.000000
MRP000006	BUY	NEW	MOU/ALU/HUB	FACTORY	6.000000

- 2. Select the recommendations that you want to combine.
- 3. To save the selection, click OK.

The combined adjusted quantity must be valid for the unit that the item is stocked in. If not, you cannot proceed with combining the recommendations.

If the adjusted quantity is valid for the unit that the item is stocked in, the recommendations are combined into the first recommendation that you selected. You can see this in the MRP - Recommendations list. The status of the other recommendations changes to 'Deleted'.
All recommendations have a Created Reference which is the first combined recommendation Rec. Number.

Deleting Recommendations

You can delete a recommendation.

To delete a recommendation

1. From the Navigation Bar, click MRP and choose Recommendation Records > Delete Record.

The Delete MRP Recommendation window appears.

Select Recommendation to	Delete			
Rec. Number		*		
Туре				
Product Code				
Description				
Adjusted Quantity	0.00		37	
Status				

- 2. Select the recommendation required.
- 3. To delete the recommendation, click OK.
- Confirm the deletion when prompted.
 The Recommendation status changes to deleted.

Actioning Recommendations

Recommendations to make and buy products are generated by the Run MRP process.

MRP can raise recommendations to buy items which do not have an associated supplier. You cannot action these recommendations. They are listed with a zero cost price unless a cost price has been entered on the estimate. You must associate the items with a supplier and then run MRP again to regenerate the recommendations. You can then action them.

Note: You cannot action a buy recommendation for a quantity greater than 9999999.99999.

Two types of action may be taken on recommendations.

New	This action allows you to raise a new works or purchase order.
	Note: Purchase Order Processing must be set to automatically generate purchase order numbers in order to raise purchase orders from recommendations.
Cancel	This action allows you to cancel a recommendation.

You can action a recommendation when its status is 'Entered'

Note: If it is a linked recommendation, you can action it if all its parent recommendations have already been actioned.

Actioning a recommendation changes the recommendation status to 'Actioned'.

There are different ways you can action recommendations.

- To action all recommendations:
 - From the Navigation Bar, click Planning and choose MRP > Processing > Action Recommendations.
 - Whilst none of the recommendations is selected, click Action in the MRP Recommendations list in the MRP list window.
- To action selected recommendations:
 - Use the Tags tab on the MRP Recommendation Details window.
 - Use the MRP Recommendations list in the MRP list window.

Note: Using the Filters before clicking Action will offer greater flexibility. You can action all buy recommendations, those with a specific buyer code or for a particular supplier.

 Use the Tags/Exceptions window. (From the Navigation Bar, click Planning and choose MRP > Tags/Exceptions).

To action recommendations from the Navigation Bar

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning > MRP and choose Processing > Action Recommendations. 2. Confirm at the prompt that you want to process all recommendations.

The Action Recommendations window appears.



- 3. In the Action Recommendations window, choose whether to action actual or adjusted quantities. Adjusted quantities are actual quantities adjusted to take account of any reorder quantities.
- 4. To apply the quantities, click OK.

The status of the recommendation changes to 'Actioned'.

Note: When you action a make recommendation, the priority is copied to the works order.

To action recommendations from the Tags tab

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning > MRP and choose Recommendation Records > Amend Recommendation.

The MRP Recommendation Details window appears.

- 2. Select the record number of the recommendation that you want to action.
- 3. Click the Tags tab.

🕮 PLN - MRP Recommendation Details - MRP00	00001
Details Delivery Address Tags Exceptions Splits	Routing
W00001 MRP MRP000001 (11/10/2007 - Buy 1 WIO W00002 (11/10/2007 - Make 5.0000 MRP MRP000002 (11/10/2007 - Make 10.0 WIO W00003 (11/10/2007 - Make 10.0 MRP MRP000003 (11/10/2007 - Make 10.0 MRP MRP000003 (11/10/2007 - Make 10.0 MRP MRP000003 (11/10/2007 - Make 10.0 MRP MRP000004 (11/10/2007 - Make 10.0 MRP MRP000005 (11/10/2007 - Make 10.0 MRP MRP000006 (11/10/2007 - Make 10.0	12.00000 ACC/PUMP) 10 MOU/ALU/FINISHEDBIKE Finished 10.0000 MOU/ALU/SUSPENSIONBIK 10.0000 MOU/ALU/SUSPENSIONBIK 10.00000 MOU/ALU/SUSPENSIONBIK 10.00000 MOU/ALU/SUSPENSION 10.00000 MOU/ALU/SUSPENSION 10.0000 MOU/SUSPENSION 10.0000 MOU/SUSPENSION
	>
Expand All Collapse All Action	Show All
Save Clear Delete	

Note: Depending on the Default Tags View To setting on the Planning Settings General tab, the recommendations are displayed as expanded or collapsed. If you selected Expanded as the default view, the recommendation you selected is displayed in bold. All other linked recommendations are shown in a tree view structure. If you selected Collapsed as the default view, you must click Expand All to display the tree view structure.

- 4. Select the recommendation within the tree view that you want to action.
- 5. Click Action and select one of the following actions.

Action this recommendation	Select this to action only the selected recommendation without affecting any recommendations it is linked to.
Action selected recommendations	Select this to action all selected recommendations without affecting any descendents.
Action selected and descendents	Select this to action only the selected recommendation and its descendents.

Action all related Select this to action all related recommendations.

6. If you choose 'Action this recommendation', the Action Recommendations window appears.

Select the quantity you	wish to action
 Actual Quantities 	
 Adjusted Quantities 	
	OK Cancel

Selecting any of the other three actions produces the Select Types to Action window first.

Select the recomm	endation type you wish to action
🗹 Make	
🗹 Buy	

- Choose whether to action make or buy recommendations, or both.
- To apply the types, click OK.

The Action Recommendations window appears.

- 7. In the Action Recommendations window, choose whether to action actual or adjusted quantities. Adjusted quantities are actual quantities adjusted to take account of any reorder quantities.
- 8. To apply the quantities, click OK.

The status of the recommendation changes to 'Actioned'.

Note: When you action a make recommendation, the priority is copied to the works order.

To action recommendations from the MRP list

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning and choose MRP > MRP List.
- 2. In the MRP Recommendations list, select the recommendations that you want to action, and click Action.

Note: To action all recommendations, do not select any recommendations before clicking Action. Then, confirm that you want to action all recommendations.

The Action Recommendations window appears.

Select the quantity you	wish to action
🔵 Actual Quantities	
Adjusted Quantities	
) Adjusted Quantities	
	OK Cancel

- 3. Choose whether to action actual or adjusted quantities. Adjusted quantities are actual quantities adjusted to take account of any reorder quantities.
- 4. To apply the quantities, click OK.

The status of the recommendation changes to 'Actioned'.

Note: When you action a make recommendation, the priority is copied to the works order.

To action recommendations from the Tags/Exceptions window

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning > MRP and choose Tags/Exceptions.

The Display Tags/Exceptions window appears.

PLN - D)isplay Tags/	Exceptio	ns		_		
Tags F	vcentions						Go
	xceptions						
Expan	d All Collaps	se All	Action	Show	All		~
						_	
						9	lose

2. Select the Reference of the recommendation that you want to action.

Depending on the Default Tags View To setting on the Planning Settings General tab, the recommendations are displayed as expanded or collapsed. If you selected Expanded as the default view, the recommendation you selected is displayed in bold. All other linked recommendations are shown in a tree view structure. If you selected Collapsed as the default view, you must click Expand All to display the tree view structure.

- 3. Select the recommendation within the tree view that you want to action.
- 4. Click Action and then select from the following actions available.

Action selected recommendations	Select this to action all selected recommendations without affecting any descendents.
Action selected and descendents	Select this to action only the selected recommendation and its descendents.
Action all related recommendations	Select this to action all related recommendations.

The Action Recommendations window appears.

PLN - Action Recor	nmendations 🛛 🛛
Select the quantity you v	wish to action
 Actual Quantities 	
Adjusted Quantities	
	OK Cancel

- 5. Choose whether to action actual or adjusted quantities. Adjusted quantities are actual quantities adjusted to take account of any reorder quantities.
- To apply the quantities, click OK. The status of the recommendation changes to 'Actioned'.
 Note: When you action a make recommendation, the priority is copied to the works order.

Viewing Stock Projection

You can look at a list of predicted stock for all or a range of products in each time period. If you are using multiple locations, you can also look at a range of products from an individual warehouse. You can see stock predictions for products below minimum level, those with negative stock, or those above maximum level.

You can drill down and look at the details for a particular stock item.

To view the stock projection list

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning > MRP and choose Stock Projection > List.

🕮 PLN - Stock Projectio	n List		
Range			
 All Information (Recommendation) 	ended)		
Selected Information			
Product Code - From		~	
То		~	
Product Group		~	
Warehouse		~	
Туре	al 🖂		
MDD Lash Dura 14	4000007 11 10:00		
MKP Last KUN 10	/10/2007 11:10:03		
All Products Below Minimum	Negative Above Maxim	um	
Durature carta			
Product Code	warenouse		
1			
Selected Product Details			
Product Code		Minimum Level a coope	
Description		Maximum Level 0.00000	
Description			Close

The Stock Projection List window appears.

Note: The date and time MRP was last run indicates how current the information is.

- 2. Choose the range of products you want to view information for. To display the products within the range, click Go.
- 3. Choose to view stock projections for All Products, or for those products Below Minimum, Negative or Above Maximum levels.

Note: Selecting a Product Code in the list displays the product details in the Selected Product Details portion of the window.

- 4. To view the details for an item, select and double-click the item in the list. This displays the Stock Projection Item Details window. For more information, see *To view stock projection details* on page 327.
- 5. To close the Stock Projection List window, click Close.

To view stock projection details

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning > MRP and choose Stock Projection > Item Details.

PLN - Stock	Projection	item Details	
Product Details			
Product Code			*
Warehouse			*
Description			
Minimum Stock I	.evel	0.00000	
Maximum Stock	Level	0.00000	
MRP Last Run	16/10/2	007 11:10:03	Go
List Graph			
Date	Туре	Reference	Qty In
4	,		5
•			Þ

The Stock Projection Item Details window appears.

Note: The date and time MRP was last run indicates how current the information is.

- 2. Select the Product Code.
- 3. If you are using multiple locations, select the Warehouse of the item.
- 4. Click Go.

The details are displayed in a list and as a graph. Access these views by clicking the List or Graph tabs.

Note: To view the MRP Recommendation Details for an item, select and double-click an item in the list.

5. To close the Stock Projection Item Details window, click Close.

Viewing Tags and Exceptions

You can view tags and exceptions with a recommendation reference, purchase order number, works order number or sales order number.

Note: You can also action recommendations from the display.

To view tags and exceptions

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Planning > MRP and choose Tags/Exceptions.

The Display Tags/Exceptions window appears.

PLN - D	isplay Tags	/Exceptio	ons		-	
Reference						Go
Tags E>	ceptions					
					3	
Expand	JAII <u>⊂</u> olla	pse All	Action	Show	All	*
						⊆lose

- 2. Enter the Reference required.
- 3. To view the details, click Go.

The tags and exceptions are displayed on the Tags and Exceptions tabs. By default, the tags are fully expanded.

- 4. To collapse tags or exceptions, click the minus sign ('-') next to the higher level tag or exception, or click Collapse All.
- 5. To expand tags or exceptions, click the plus sign ('+') next to the higher level tag or exception, or click Expand All.

- 6. To action recommendations, select the recommendation and click Action. For more information, see *To action recommendations from the Tags/Exceptions window* on page 323.
- 7. To close the window, click Close.

Viewing Demand Forecast

You can view a summary of items by product, spread across a series of time periods.

To view demand forecast

 From the Navigation Bar, select MRP and choose Processing > Demand Forecast. The Time Phased Demand window appears.

Settings							
Calendar Basis	Calendar Yea	~	From	11/10/2007	Ŧ		
Frequency	Daily	~	То	16/10/2007	III V	Show only period:	; with demand
Product Cod	e /	Descripti	on		11/10/2007	15/10/2007	16/10/2007
ACC/HELMET	r.	Helmet			5:00000	0.00000	0.00000
ACC/KNEE/E	LBOWPADS	Knee and	Elbow	Pads	5.00000	0.00000	0.00000
ACC/PAINT/	BLUE	Blue Bike	Paint		0.00000	1.00000	0.00000
ACC/PUMP		Tyre Pum	ιp		5.00000	0.00000	18.00000
MOU/20INCH	HTYRE	20" Tyre			10.00000	0.00000	0.00000
MOU/ALU/20	FINISHEDW	20" Finish	ned Alur	ninium Wheel	20.00000	0.00000	0.00000
MOU/ALU/20	INCHRIM	20" Alumi	nium Rii	n	10.00000	0.00000	0.00000
MOU/ALU/20	INCHSPOKE	20" Alumi	nium Sp	oke	440.00000	0.00000	0.00000
MOU/ALU/20	WHEELFRAME	20" Alumi	nium W	neel Frame	20.00000	0.00000	0.00000
MOU/ALU/BI	KEPACK1	Bike Pack	1 - Alu	ninium	5.00000	1.00000	0.00000
MOU/ALU/FI	NISHEDBIKE	Finished	Aluminiu	m Mountain Bike	10.00000	2,00000	0.00000
MOU/ALU/FR	AME	Aluminiun	n Frame		0.00000	0.00000	3.00000

- 2. Select the Calendar Basis. You can view time periods by calendar or financial year.
- 3. Select the Frequency of the time periods to view.
- 4. Enter the date range From and To.
- 5. To view only those periods with demands, select the check box 'Show only periods with demand'.
- 6. To view the demand forecast, click Refresh.

Preparing MRP Reports

The following reports are available from the MRP menu.

Demand

This report lists the demands considered in the Run MRP process.

Exceptions

This provides a list of exceptions generated during the Run MRP process. This lists items which have been excluded.

Late Recommendations

This report lists late recommendations.

Recommendations

Recommendations can be listed in detail, with or without routing. They can be listed in summary. You can also produce a report of routing for make items only.

To prepare MRP reports

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, select Planning > MRP and choose Reports.
- 2. Select the report required from the list of available reports.

For more information on preparing reports, see Sage 200 help.

To customise MRP reports

You can edit or copy report layouts, or create a new report layout, using Sage Report Designer. For more information, see *Sage Report Designer* documentation.

Note: We advise you to copy your existing report layouts before you edit them. If you edit the standard report layouts, future amendments by us will overwrite your changes.

Chapter 11 Graphical Planner

Graphical Planner is a powerful graphical scheduling tool, which works alongside MRP.

Different plans can be produced and saved for the same set of demands, so that you can assess the impact of your resources on your day-to-day scheduling needs. For example, you can add overtime or extra shifts to be able to meet a particular deadline. Once you have defined your production plan in Graphical Planner, you can action the MRP recommendations.

The following sections highlight the steps to follow when using Graphical Planner. Before proceeding, we recommend that you read *Sage Graphical Planner* documentation in full.

In this chapter:

How Graphical Planner integrates wi	th
MRP	.334
How Graphical Planner integrates wi	th
MRP	.334
Setting Up Graphical Planner within Planning	.334
Using Graphical Planner	334

How Graphical Planner integrates with MRP

You can export information from MRP to Graphical Planner in order to modify it. After modifying it in Graphical Planner you must import the information back into MRP. You can then action the recommendations within MRP.

For more information, see Sage Graphical Planner documentation.

Setting Up Graphical Planner within Planning

Before you use Graphical Planner you must set up the appropriate planning settings. These are described in the MRP and Graphical Planner tabs. For more information, see *The General tab on page 289* and *The Graphical Planner tab on page 295*. A full description of how these settings affect the behaviour of Graphical Planner is provided in *Sage Graphical Planner* documentation.

Using Graphical Planner

To use Graphical Planner

From the Navigation Bar, click Planning and choose MRP > Graphical Planner.

Graphical Planner is a complex and powerful tool. For more information on using graphical planner, see *Sage Graphical Planner* documentation.

Chapter 12 Works Orders

Use Works orders to produce parts, using components specified on the BOM or in the estimate, and following the process specified on the works order operations.

Manufacturing provides a variety of order documentation (picking lists, job sheets, operation and route cards and labels).

You can raise orders in the following ways:

- By saving sales orders if works order linking is set up. Batch works orders are raised. For more information, see Sales Order Processing help.
- By actioning recommendations within the MRP module. For more information, see MRP (Material Requirements Planning) on page 287.
- From the Trial Kitting window in Bill of Materials. For more information see Using Trial Kitting on page 146.
- By turning an estimate into a works order. For more information, see *Converting an Estimate into a Works Order* on page 226.
- By direct entry manually creating a works order. For more information, see *Creating Works Orders* on page 355.

Use this chapter to learn more about creating and working with orders.

In this chapter:

Changing Works Orders Lists
Entering Settings for Works Orders337
Creating Works Orders355
Amending a Batch Works Order358
Amending a One-Off Works Order376
Linking Works Orders
Unlinking Works Orders
Printing Works Order Documents396
Amending Picking Lists
Checking a Works Order is Ready to be Made402
Allocating Stock404
Issuing Stock and Reversing Stock
Scrapping Finished Items
Scrapping Finished Items417 Scrapping Components419
Scrapping Finished Items417 Scrapping Components419 Substituting Traceable Components 422
Scrapping Finished Items417 Scrapping Components419 Substituting Traceable Components 422 Entering Operation Times and Costs429
Scrapping Finished Items417 Scrapping Components419 Substituting Traceable Components 422 Entering Operation Times and Costs429 Costing a Works Order (Batch Works Orders Only)
Scrapping Finished Items417 Scrapping Components419 Substituting Traceable Components 422 Entering Operation Times and Costs429 Costing a Works Order (Batch Works Orders Only)
Scrapping Finished Items417 Scrapping Components419 Substituting Traceable Components 422 Entering Operation Times and Costs429 Costing a Works Order (Batch Works Orders Only)
Scrapping Finished Items417 Scrapping Components419 Substituting Traceable Components 422 Entering Operation Times and Costs429 Costing a Works Order (Batch Works Orders Only)
Scrapping Finished Items417 Scrapping Components419 Substituting Traceable Components 422 Entering Operation Times and Costs429 Costing a Works Order (Batch Works Orders Only)
Scrapping Finished Items417 Scrapping Components419 Substituting Traceable Components 422 Entering Operation Times and Costs429 Costing a Works Order (Batch Works Orders Only)

Changing Works Orders Lists

There are two lists that you can display in the Works Orders work area: Works Orders List and Subcontracting List.

The Works Orders List is used for working with works order records, whilst the Subcontracting List is used for working with subcontracting records.

To select the works orders list

 From the Navigation Bar, choose Works Orders > Records and then choose Works Order List.

To select the subcontracting list

 From the Navigation Bar, choose Works Orders > Subcontracting and then choose Subcontracting List.

For example

To select the Subcontracting List, choose Works Orders > Subcontracting and then choose Subcontracting List.



The Works Orders work area title changes to Subcontracting and the work area shows the Subcontracting List.

For more information on the desktop, see Sage 200 help.

Entering Settings for Works Orders

You can tailor the system to your company's needs through the setup process. This will save you and other users time when using the system.

You can produce certificates of conformity for products produced and despatched within Works Orders. For this reason you must enter certificates of conformity settings. For more information, see *Certificates of Conformity* on page 92.

When you cost or complete works order details, the system calculates an additional amount to ensure overheads are met. For this reason you must enter overhead recovery settings before costing or completing Works Orders. For more information, see *Overhead Recovery Settings* on page 27.

Works orders may be raised for specific locations so you must maintain a warehouse hierarchy. Locations are set up in the Stock Control module and the 'Valid for component source' check box can be selected when you set up the warehouse. For more information, see the *Sage 200 Stock Control* documentation. You can maintain the warehouse hierarchy within Manufacturing System Manager. For more information, see *Maintain Warehouse Hierarchy* on page 24.

You can also set up and use Labour Categories, Employees and Non-Chargeable Time prior to working with works orders. You can use the same details in more than one works order. For more information, see *Labour Categories* on page 82, *Employees* on page 84 and *Non-chargeable Time* on page 90.

To enter the works orders default settings

 From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Setup > Works Order Settings.

The Works Order Settings window appears.

umbering	Documents	Record	Timesheets/Labels	Allocate/Issue/Complete	Operation Times	Scrap Reason Codes
Works O V Auto Next Wo Format I	rders matic Works C orks Order No to (places)	rder Num 23 4	bers Prefix (wo		
Advice N Next Ad Format t	lotes vice Note No :o (places)	4	Prefix	ADV		

For more information on each Works Order Settings tab, please read the following sections:

- The Numbering tab on page 339
- The Documents tab on page 341
- The Record tab on page 343
- The Timesheets/Labels tab on page 344
- The Allocate/Issue/Complete tab on page 346
- The Operation Times tab on page 350
- The Scrap Reason Codes tab on page 352

The Numbering tab

To enter numbering settings

1. In the Works Order Settings window, click the Numbering tab.

The Numbering settings appear.

lumbering	Documents	Record	Timesheets/Labe	s Allocate/Issue/Complete	Operation Times	Scrap Reason Codes
Works O V Autor Next Wo Format I	rders matic Works C orks Order No to (places)	rder Num 23 4	ibers Prefix	wo		
- Advice N Next Ad Format I	lotes vice Note No to (places)	4	Prefix	ADV		
						Of Carrel

2. Enter the settings required, according to the following descriptions.

Automatic Works Order Numbers	Select this check box if you want the system to generate works order numbers automatically for you.
	Leave the check box clear to enter your own works order numbers.
Next Works Order No	If you left the Automatic Works Order Numbers check box clear, enter the next works order number.
	You can use up to 30 alphanumeric characters.
Prefix	If you left the Automatic Works Order Numbers check box clear, enter a prefix for your works order numbers. For example, WO.

Format to (places)	If you left the Automatic Works Order Numbers check box clear, enter the number of digits, including leading zeroes, for the works order number.
	This ensures that works orders are always displayed in the expected order. For example, entering '4' would result in a sequence of '0001',' 0002', '0003', and so on.
Next Advice Note No	Enter the next advice note number.
Prefix	Enter a prefix for your advice note numbers, if required. For example, AN.
Format to (places)	Enter the number of digits, including leading zeroes, for the advice note number.
	This ensures that advice notes are always displayed in the expected order. For example, entering '4' would result in a sequence of '0001', '0002', '0003', and so on.

3. To continue entering Works Order Settings, click the Documents tab. To save your Works Order Settings, click OK.

The Documents tab

To enter documents settings

1. In the Works Order Settings window, click the Documents tab.

The Documents settings appear.

Jumbering	Documents	Record	Timesheets/Labels	Allocate/Issue/Complete	Operation Times	Scrap Reason Codes
Documer	nts to print —					
Pickin	ng List					
Route	e Card					
V Oper	ation Card					
🗹 Job S	iheet					
Options						
🔽 Print	One Off Worl	ks Orders	by Stage			
Print	Sales Orders					
Print	Barcodes					
Print	Drawings					
Print	Tagged Orde	rs				
Print	Components					

2. Enter the settings required, according to the following descriptions.

Picking List	Select this check box to print a picking list.
Route Card	Select this check box to print a route card.
Operation Card	Select this check box to print an operation card.
Job Sheet	Select this check box to print a job sheet.
Print One Off Works Orders by Stage	Within the Works Orders module, you can print various documents. For example, the picking list, route card, operation card and job sheet. By default, these are set to print for one-off works orders.
	Select this check box to separate one-off works orders into stages for the reports you choose.
Print Sales Orders	Select this check box to print sales orders on your works orders documents.

Print Barcodes	Select this check box to use barcode facilities in the Operation Times module.
Print Drawings	Select this check box to print drawings associated with the works order.
Print Tagged Orders	Select this check box to print tagged works orders (those which are linked to purchase orders).
Print Components	Select this check box to print a list of components at the end of your works order documents.

3. To continue entering Works Order Settings, click the Record tab. To save your Works Order Settings, click OK.

The Record tab

To enter record settings

1. In the Works Order Settings window, click the Record tab.

The Record settings appear.

Jumbering	Documents	Record	Timesheets/Labels	Allocate/Issue/Complete	Operation Times	Scrap Reason Codes
-Record -						
Conv	Attached File	e from BC	M/Estimate			
Coby	Accorned Tile	strolinoo	initestinate			
Allowabl	e Variance (%) 0.00	÷			
Show Pla	anning Period .	As Wee	skly	*		

2. Enter the settings required, according to the descriptions below.

Copy Attached Files from BOM/Estimate	Select this check box to attach to the works order, any documents that are attached to a BOM or estimate.
Allowable Variance (%)	Enter an Allowable Variance (%) value, for the difference between estimated and actual costs.
	The Works Orders module offers reports, which highlight any variances between estimated and actual costs.
	Note: If the variance between estimated and actual costs is greater than this value, the items are highlighted on the reports.
Show Planning Period As	Select how you want to show the planning period on reports. The planning period is calculated according to your selection.

3. To continue entering Works Order Settings, click the Timesheets/Labels tab. To save your Works Order Settings, click OK.

The Timesheets/Labels tab

To enter timesheets/labels settings

1. In the Works Order Settings window, click the Timesheets/Labels tab.

The Timesheets/Labels settings appear.

lumbering	Documents	Record	Timesheets/Labels	Allocate/Issue/Complete	Operation Times	Scrap Reason Codes
Timeshe	ets ult machine tii Employee Rat	me to labo e	ur time			
🗌 Total	/Analysis Che Normal hrs p	:cking ier week	0.00			
-Labels	barcode					

2. Enter the settings required according to the following descriptions.

Default machine time to labour time	Select this check box if you want the machine time to default to that entered for labour when entering timesheets.
Use Employee Rate	Select this check box to override the labour rate against operations. This option also modifies the way Operation Times calculates costs.
Total/Analysis Checking	Select this check box to double-check the amount of time entered on timesheets. This option provides a way of checking for input errors when entering data. With this option selected, you cannot exit from the timesheet entry screen until the hours analysis is equal to the total hours worked.
Normal hrs. per week	Enter the normal hours worked per week. This is the default used on the Timesheet Entry window.
	Note: The total hours worked can be changed when entering timesheets.

Print barcode Select this check box if you want to include a barcode on finished goods labels.

3. To continue entering Works Order Settings, click the Allocate/Issue/Complete tab. To save your Works Order Settings, click OK.

The Allocate/Issue/Complete tab

To enter allocate/issue/complete settings

1. In the Works Order Settings window, click the Allocate/Issue/Complete tab.

The Allocate/Issue/Complete settings appear.

Jumbering	Documents	Record	Timesheets/Labels	Allocate/Issue/Complete	Operation Times	Scrap Reason Codes
Allocate/ Defau Allow Allow Use V Incluc	Issue Ilt to 'As much Multiple Alloca Multiple Issue Varehouse Hid le miscellanec	n as possib ate e erarchy ous stock i	ole' tem costs			
Complete Alloca Alloca Allow Allow	e ate Sales Ordi ate Parent Wo at any time matically delei Multiple (bati	ers orks Order te Works (ches only)	s Orders (when Closed	Back Flushing - None Single Leve Multi Level	I	

2. Enter the settings for allocating, issuing and completing works orders, according to the following descriptions.

Default to 'As much as possible'	Select this check box to default to as much as possible during allocation and issue.
Allow Multiple Allocate	Select this check box to allocate to many works orders at the same time.
Allow Multiple Issue	Select this check box to issue to many works orders at the same time.

Use Warehouse Hierarchy	This checkbox is the default setting for the Allocate/Issue from Completion Warehouse option on the works order record.
	Select the check box to specify which components can be drawn from the full warehouse hierarchy.
	Clear the check box to specify which components can only be drawn from the warehouse specified on the works order header.
	You can change the default setting on individual works orders.
Include miscellaneous stock item costs	Miscellaneous items are not included in the standard stock valuation reports.
	Select this check box to:
	 Include miscellaneous stock item costs when costing a BOM (see <i>Costing a BOM on page 149</i>).
	 Post miscellaneous item costs to the Stock asset account when closing works orders (see <i>Closing Works Orders on</i> page 470).
	You can also select the check box within the BOM Costing/ Trial Kitting settings (see <i>The Costing/Trial Kitting tab on page</i> <i>112</i>).
	Note: Selecting it in one place automatically selects it in the other.
Enter the settings for co	mpleting works orders, according to the following descriptions.
Allocate Sales Orders	Select this check box to allocate stock to sales orders on works order completion.

Allocate Parent Works	Select this check box to allocate stock to parent works orders
Orders	on works order completion.

З.

Allow at any time Select the check box if you want to mark a works order as completed even if all the components have not been issued to it.

Note: If you do not select this check box, then all the components must be fully issued before you can mark the order as completed.

Automatically delete Works Orders (when Closed)	Select this check box to delete works orders automatically on completion of production.
	Note: If you do not select the check box, you can delete works orders manually from the Works Orders window.
	Sage recommends that you do not select this check box. Until you are familiar with Manufacturing, delete works orders manually from the Works Orders window.
Allow Multiple (batches only)	Select this check box to complete multiple batch works orders at the same time.
	Click Security to set a password for this option.
	To prevent unauthorised personnel making entries which affect finished stock quantities, on either full or part completion of works orders, click Security.

The Security window appears.

Security	Č.	×
	Security - Enter your passw Old Password New Password Confirm New Password	ord below:

- If you have an existing password, enter this in the Old Password box.
- Enter a new password in the New Password box.
- Enter the new password again in the Confirm New Password box.
- To save the changes, click OK.

Note: You must enter this password before making entries for finished production.

BackflushingSelect whether to enable backflushing for a single works
order, works orders with multiple levels, or not at all.Note: Multi Level backflushing is only available if you are using
MRP to raise works orders.Select Multi Level if you want to backflush a completed top
level works order. The components are issued through each

You can override this for individual works orders.

level and finished items are put into stock.

4. To continue entering Works Order Settings, click the Operation Times tab. To save your Works Order Settings, click OK.

The Operation Times tab

If you use the Operation Times module, you can configure the way it works here.

To enter operation times settings

1. In the Works Order Settings window, click the Operation Times tab.

The Operation Times settings appear.

Numbering	Documents	Record	Timesheets/Labels	Allocate/Issue/Complete	Operation Times	Scrap Reason Codes
Debasta						
Behavio	Jr					
Use E	3atch Updates	;				
Retro	ospective Post	aing				
Allow	confirmation	of times				
Preve	ent multiple lo	gons per c	operator			
Monit	tor barcode re	ader				
Allow	selection of a	company				
		~ >				
Sounds	Machine Spec	lific)				
Transact	ion Accepted					~
Transact	ion Rejected					~
		<u></u>				

- 2. Enter the settings required according to the descriptions below.
 - Use Batch Updates Select this check box to send your information to a holding area (the waiting postings file). You can review the postings there before posting them to the works order and the Nominal Ledger. For more information, see *Waiting to be posted on page 450*.

Clear the check box if you want Operation Times to update your works orders directly as the operation times are posted from the shop floor.

Note: Sage recommends that you select the check box and use batch updates.

Retrospective Posting	Select Retrospective Posting to record job details after the job is completed.
	Clear the check box to record information in real time. In this case, you log on and tell the computer you are starting the job. When you finish the job, you log on and tell the computer you have have finished working on the job.
	Note: Sage recommends that you clear the check box and use online processing.
Allow confirmation of times	This check box is only available if you have cleared the Retrospective Posting check box.
	Select the check box to prompt workers to confirm the time calculated by the computer when they log off an operation.
	Clear the check box to ensure that employees cannot change the times calculated by the system.
Prevent multiple logons per operator	Select this check box to prevent employees from working on many jobs at once. This can affect the accuracy of job times and costs.
	Clear the check box to let employees log onto and work on multiple jobs at the same time.
Monitor barcode reader	Select this check box if you want to enter data in Operation Times using bar codes produced on documentation within Manufacturing. For more information, see your Sage 200 Operation Times documentation
	Clear the check box if you want to enter data using the keyboard and the mouse.
Allow selection of company	Select this check box to be able to choose different companies when you run Operation Times.
Sounds (Machine Specific)	Select the sound files that you want to use for accepted and rejected transactions.
	Note: Sage recommend that you only assign a sound file for a rejected transaction. This ensures that you are prompted to problems as soon as they arise.

3. To continue entering Works Order Settings, click the Scrap Reason Codes tab. To save your Works Order Settings, click OK.

The Scrap Reason Codes tab

Components and finished items can be scrapped. You can add scrap reason codes using this tab to help analyse the reasons behind the scrap.

To enter scrap reason codes settings

1. In the Works Order Settings window, click the Scrap Reason Codes tab.

The Scrap Reason Codes tab displays a list of codes and their descriptions and indicating which codes are active.

Note: A code must be active in order to be used.

	Documents	Record	Timesheets/Labels	Allocate/Issue/Complete	Operation Times	Scrap Reason Codes
Code			Description			Active
			There are currently	y no scrap reason codes st	ored	

2. To add a scrap reason code, click Add.

The Scrap Reason Code window appears.

Scrap Reason Code Details	
Code	
Description	
Active	

- Enter the Code and Description for the scrap reason.
- Select Active if you want to make the code available for use.
- To apply the details, click OK.
- 3. To amend a scrap reason code, select the code and click Edit.
 - Amend the Code, if required.
 - Amend the Description, if required.
 - Change the Active setting, if required.
 - To apply the changes, click OK.
- 4. To make a code inactive, select the code and click Edit.
 - Clear the Active check box.
 - To apply the changes, click OK.
- 5. To delete a code, select the code and click Delete.
- 6. To save your Works Order Settings, click OK.

Viewing Default Settings for Works Orders

If you need to provide details of your settings to the support team, use the 'view only' version of the system settings.

To view Works Orders Settings

- From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Setup > View Works Order Settings.
- When you have finished viewing the settings, click Close.

Creating Works Orders

Works orders may be raised for repetitive jobs (batches) or for one-off jobs.

Works orders can be generated automatically in the following ways.

- Batch works orders can be generated from the Sales Order Processing module. Sales Order Processing must be set up for this to be done. This allows sales orders to link with works orders. For more information, see your Sales Order Processing help.
- Batch and one-off works orders can be generated from the MRP module. For more information, see *Actioning Recommendations* on page 319.

Note: If you want to link sales orders with batch works orders and it is not set up in Sales Order Processing, use MPS. For more information, see *Linking Sales Orders on page 279*. When MRP is run and the recommendation to raise a batch works order is actioned, the batch works order is linked with the specified sales order.

- Batch works orders can be generated automatically from the Trial Kitting window in the Bill of Materials module. For more information, see *Using Trial Kitting* on page 146.
- One-off works orders can be generated automatically from the Estimating module. For more information, see *Converting an Estimate into a Works Order* on page 226.

Automatic generation checks the availability of materials and requirements for labour and machine hours, including sub-assemblies, before generating the Works Order record.

You can create batch and one-off works orders manually through the Works Orders module. This is described in the following sections. After raising the works orders this way, you must check the requirements manually. For more information, see *Amending a Batch Works Order on page 358* and *Amending a One-Off Works Order on page 376*.

To create batch works orders

1. From the Navigation Bar, select Works Orders and choose Records > Batch > Enter New Works Order.

The batch Works Order Details window appears.

ain Details Additional	Details	Sales Orders	Memo	Allocations	/Issues	Tracking	Latest Costs	Attached Files	Analysis Codes	
Works Order Details							Dates			
Works Order Number	<a< td=""><td>utoNumber></td><td></td><td>~</td><td>New \</td><td>N/O</td><td>Entered</td><td>16/10/20</td><td>07</td><td></td></a<>	utoNumber>		~	New \	N/O	Entered	16/10/20	07	
BOM Reference				~			Due Date	11	n	
Description							Last Complet	ted 77		
Warehouse	Ţ			_			Starts	11	TAL :	
Unit			1	-		_	Ends	11	II At _:	
Qty Required	Ē	0.00000 🗑	1					•		
Qty Completed	i –	0.00000	Ê				Options	MRP Replenishm	ients	
Qty Scrapped	Ē	0.00000	Ē.				Include in	MRP Demand	UTICS .	
Qty Outstanding	Ē	0.00000	Č.				Exclude fr	rom Stock Project	aion	
							Exclude fr	rom Graphical Pla	nner	
							Allocate/I	ssue from Compl	etion Warehouse	
							Componer	nt Traceability Or	n Completion	

2. Enter the works order information.

Note: The information required is the same as for amending works orders. For more information, see *Amending a Batch Works Order* on page 358.

3. When all required information has been entered, click Save.

To create one-off works orders

1. From the Navigation Bar select Works Orders and choose Records > One-Off > Enter New Works Order.

The one-off Works Order Details window appears.

Norks Order Details		Dates
Works Order Number Product Code Description Warehouse Qty Required Qty Completed Qty Scrapped Qty Ostrapped Qty Ostranding		Entered 10/09/2008 III Due Date ///III III Last Completed ///IIII IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
Customer Details	,	Options
A/C ref: Short name: Postcode: Contact	Name Order Number First Midde Last	

2. Enter the works order information.

Note: The information required is the same as for amending one-off works orders. For more information, see *Amending a One-Off Works Order* on page 376.

3. When all required information has been entered, click Save.

Amending a Batch Works Order

You can amend the detail of a works order at any time. During this process you can also view important information such as the sales order breakdown, costs and progress of the works order.

To amend or view a batch works order

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Records > Batch > Amend Works Order.

The Works Order Details window appears.

- 2. Make amendments to the batch works order Main Details. For more information, see *The Main Details tab (Batch Works Order)* on page 359.
- 3. Make amendments to the additional details. For more information, see *The Additional Details tab (Batch Works Order)* on page 362.
- 4. Make amendments to the batch works order Sales Orders details. For more information, see *The Sales Orders tab (Batch Works Order)* on page 364.
- 5. Make amendments to the batch works order Memo details. For more information, see *The Memo tab (Batch Works Order)* on page 365.
- 6. Make amendments to the batch works order Allocations/Issues. For more information, see *The Allocations/Issues tab (Batch Works Order)* on page 366.
- 7. Make amendments to the batch works order Tracking. For more information, see *The Tracking tab (Batch Works Order)* on page 369.
- 8. Make amendments to the batch works order Latest Costs. For more information, see *The Latest Costs tab (Batch Works Order)* on page 372.
- 9. Make amendments to the batch works order Attached Files. For more information, see *The Attached Files tab (Batch Works Order)* on page 373.
- 10. Make amendments to the batch works order Analysis Codes. For more information, see *The Analysis Codes tab (Batch Works Order)* on page 375.
- When you are satisfied with your entries, click Save. The works order window closes.

The Main Details tab (Batch Works Order)

To amend batch works order main details

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Records > Batch > Amend Works Order.

The Works Order Details window appears, open at the Main Details tab.

n Details Additional D	etails Sales Orders	Memo Allocations	/Issues	Tracking	Latest Costs	Attached Files	Analysis Codes	
Vorks Order Details Works Order Number 30M Reference Description Warehouse Jinit Qty Required Qty Completed Qty Scrapped Qty Outstanding	AutoNumber> O.00000 <u>#</u> O.00000 O.00000 O.00000 O.00000		New 1		Dates Entered Due Date Last Complet Starts Ends Options V Include in Exclude fr Exclude fr Exclude fr	I 6/10/20 I / / I / I / I / I / MRP Replenishm MRP Demand om Stock Project om Graphical Pla ssue from Compl	07 II II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At II At At At At At At At At At At	

- 2. Select the Works Order Number.
- 3. Enter the changes required, according to the following descriptions.

BOM Reference Select a BOM Reference if you are creating a batch works order.

Do not change the BOM Reference, if you are amending a batch works order.

Note: If you change the reference, the tags assigned by planning are not updated. This could distort any linked requirements calculated within Graphical Planner.

Warehouse/Bin	If the stock item is linked to more than one bin, select the bin required from the drop-down list.
	If the stock item is only linked to one bin, the bin is displayed automatically alongside the completion warehouse.
	Note: If you change the warehouse and the BOM contains operations, the works order will be excluded from Graphical Planner.
Unit	The Stock Control record unit of sale is displayed.
Qty Required	Enter or amend the quantity required.
	Note: The quantity you enter must be valid for the stocked unit of the BOM finished product. If you enter a quantity that is not valid, it is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.
	If the works order is linked with a sales order, you cannot enter a quantity which is less than the sales order quantity.
	If you change the quantity, you are prompted to update component requirements, and to specify what you want to do with manually added or phantom components.
	Choose the Quantity Calculation and click OK.
Due Date	Enter or amend the date the works order is due.
	Note: If you change the due date on a works order which is linked with a sales order, the sales order may not be fulfilled on time.
Starts	Enter or amend the date the works order starts.
	Note: If you enter the Starts date and time, click on the '' (calculate) button alongside to calculate the Ends date and time.
Ends	Enter or amend the date the works order ends.
	Note: If you enter the Ends date and time, click on the '' (calculate) button alongside to calculate the Starts date and time.

Include in MRP Replenishments	Select this check box if you want finished items on this works order to be included as available to use when MRP demands are calculated.
	Note: We recommend you do not change this setting if the works order is tagged to a sales order.
Include in MRP Demand	Select this check box if you want the components required to fulfil this order to be included when MRP demands are calculated.
	Note: We recommend you do not change this setting if the works order is tagged to a sales order.
Exclude from Stock Projection	Select this check box if you want to exclude this works order from the stock projection calculations.
Exclude from Graphical Planner	Select this check box if you want to exclude this works order from being exported to Graphical Planner.
	Note: This check box is automatically selected. You cannot change it if you have changed the warehouse from that stored on the stock item.
Allocate/Issue from Completion Warehouse	Select this check box if components can only be allocated or issued from the completion warehouse.
Component Traceability On Completion	Select the check box to choose traceable components when completing the works order.
	Note: The check box is automatically selected if the BOM item on the works order uses component traceability.
	Clear the check box if you do not need to specify traceable components during completion.

4. To continue making changes to the batch Works Order Details, click the Additional Details tab.

To save your batch Works Order Details, click Save.

The Additional Details tab (Batch Works Order)

To amend batch works order additional details

1. In the Works Order Details window, click the Additional Details tab.

The Additional Details information appears.

Main Decails	dditional Details	Sales Orders	Memo	Allocations/Issues	Tracking	Latest Costs	Attached Files	Analysis Codes	
Related Inform	nation								
Status	Entered	~							
Reissued from									
Period									
WIP Account	91200	AD	M Ger	neral Expenses					
Scrap Percent	0.0	00 11 00							
Additional Info	ormation								
Entered By	ALISON								
Project Numbe	er 🗌								
Works Number									
% Complete	0 🗘								
	9 🗘								
Priority	·			L MARAINE C	Lact				

2. Enter the changes required, according to the following descriptions.

Status	Change the current 'Status'.
	Note: Changing the status here does not apply in the planning modules.
Reissued from	The works order that this works order was issued from is displayed (if applicable).
	Note: If a works order has been raised to replace 'Scrapped Finished Product', this box highlights the related works order from which the product was scrapped.
Period	The period in which the works order starts, is displayed

WIP Account	Enter a nominal account code to hold nominal postings associated with this works order.
	The default is to leave this box clear. All transactions will then default to the code specified in Works Order Settings.
Scrap Percent	Amend the default value (displayed from BOM default scrap factor), if you need to make changes to component quantities on the works order.
Project Number	Enter a Project Number for information purposes. This is useful if you have multiple works orders against a project.
Works Number	Enter any alpha/numeric reference. This is for information purposes only.
% Complete	Enter a percentage to indicate how complete the works order is. This is not updated automatically and is for information purposes only.
Priority	The Priority of the works order is shown. Priority range is from -32000 to 32000. The lower the number, the higher the priority, therefore -32000 is the highest priority and 32000 is the lowest priority. This information passes into Graphical Planner and is used during planning. For more information see <i>Sage Graphical Planner</i> documentation.
Salesperson	Enter a reference, if required. This is for information purposes only.

 To continue making changes to the batch Works Order Details information, click the Sales Orders tab.
 To converse heateh Works Order Details, click Source

To save your batch Works Order Details, click Save.

The Sales Orders tab (Batch Works Order)

If the works order has been generated within the MRP module, the Sales Orders tab shows any relevant sales orders.

To display batch works order sales orders

1. In the Works Order Details window, click the Sales Orders tab.

The Sales Orders information appears.

	Additional Details	Sales Orders	MEMO	Allocations/Issues	Tracking La	itest Costs	Attached Files	Analysis Codes	
5.Order No.	/ A/C			Customer Order No	J.		Due Date	Quan	tity Top Level

2. To display sales orders, select one of the following options from the Show drop-down list.

Current OrdersShows sales orders currently tagged to this works order, as
calculated by MRP.Original OrdersShows sales orders that gave rise to the works order being
created.

3. To continue making changes to the batch Works Order Details, click the Memo tab. To save your batch Works Order Details, click Save.

The Memo tab (Batch Works Order)

To enter notes or comments relating to batch works orders

1. In the Works Order Details window, click the Memo tab.

Note: If any text has been added to this tab already, the word Memo will appear in upper case.

The memo area appears.

WOP - Works Order Details -	W00010				-D×
Main Details 🛛 Additional Details 🗍 Sales	s Orders MEMO Allocations/Issues	Tracking Latest Costs	Attached Files	Analysis Codes	
20 inch wheel standard					
					×.
Save Clear De	elete Image				⊆lose

- 2. Enter or amend your notes or comments.
- 3. To continue making changes to the batch Works Order Details, click the Allocations/Issues tab.

To save your batch Works Order Details, click Save.

The Allocations/Issues tab (Batch Works Order)

Use the Allocations/Issues tab to view details of components and raw materials allocated and issued to date.

When the works order is created, the BOM components are copied to the Allocation/Issues section of the works order. Manufacturing functions involving stock are based on the information held on this tab, not on the original BOM. The design of the product might need to be modified for this specific works order. There might be a specific customer request for a modification, or a component might be unavailable. You can add, amend or remove components from the works order. This does not affect other works orders created from the original BOM.

Note: You can update the BOM with amendments, if required. For more information, see *Creating/Updating BOM (Batch Works Orders Only)* on page 444.

To maintain components in the batch works order

1. In the Works Order Details window, click the Allocations/Issues tab.

The Allocations/Issues information appears.

ain Details	Additional Details	Sales Orders	Memo Alloc	ations/Issues	Tracking	Latest Costs	Attached Files	Analysis Codes	
Seq.	Product Code	Description		Unit		Required	Allocated	Issued	Scrapped
5.00 🚔	MOU/ALU/FRAME	Aluminium Fr	rame	Each		7.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000
10.00	MOU/ALU/HANDL	Aluminium H4	andlebars	Each		7.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000
15.00	MOU/ALU/STAN	Aluminium St	tandard Forks	Each		7.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000

2. To add a component, click within the Product Code box in a new line, and enter the item details.

Note: A new 'Seq' number is automatically calculated for this new component although you can change this if required.

3. To amend a component, select the required component and change the details where necessary.

Note: You can change any details of a component as long as it has not been allocated or issued.

The description is updated automatically but you can also change this if required.

- 4. Enter additional information about the component, if required.
 - Click the Description box.

The Component Details window appears.

etails Memo			
Works Order Deta	ls		
Product Code	MOU/BIKECHAIN		
Description	Mountain Bike Chain		
Instruction			
Quantity	1.00000 #	Unit Each	·
Update Stock			

- Enter the component details.
- Enter the quantity required to manufacture the finished item.

This should be the total quantity required of this component. If you enter a quantity which does not match the unit, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

Note: If a unit of measure was stored against an item in the stock record Unit of Sale box, this unit is displayed. The unit here, is not a unit of sale as it is a component and not a sales item. Sage 200 Manufacturing uses the stock record unit of sale value as a default, in the absence of a stock record unit of cost.

 Select the Update Stock check box if the component is to be allocated and issued in Stock Control.

Note: This setting depends on the Bulk Issue Item setting on the BOM component. If the Bulk Issue Item is set on the BOM component Additional Details (see *The Components tab* on page 120), the Update Stock flag is cleared, and vice versa. The Bulk Issue Item setting is used as the default.

- To add notes about the component, click the Memo tab and add these.
- To return to the Allocations/Issues tab, click OK.
- 5. Enter the quantity required in the Required column.

Note: This should be the total quantity required of this component. If you enter a quantity which does not match the unit of the item, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

- 6. To view a list of purchase orders and works orders tagged to the works order, click Order Enquiry.
- 7. To re-sequence the components, click Re-sequence.
- 8. To delete a component that has not been allocated or issued, select it and press F8.
- 9. To continue making changes to batch Works Order Details, click the Tracking tab. To save your batch Works Order Details, click Save.

The Tracking tab (Batch Works Order)

Use the Tracking tab to outline the operations required to complete the works order, and the progress of each of those operations.

When the works order is created, the BOM operations are copied to the Tracking section of the works order. Manufacturing functions involving operations are based on the information held on this tab, not on the original BOM. The design of the product might need to be modified for this specific works order. There might be a specific customer request for a modification, or a component might be unavailable. You can add, amend or remove operations from the works order. This does not affect other works orders created from the original BOM.

Note: You can update the BOM with amendments, if required. For more information, see *Creating/Updating BOM (Batch Works Orders Only)* on page 444.

To maintain operations in the batch works order

1. In the Works Order Details window, click the Tracking tab.

The Works Order Tracking information appears.

ain Deta	ails	Additional Details Sales Orders MEMO	D Allocations/Issues Tracking Latest Costs Attac	thed Files Analysis	s Codes
Seq.	1	Reference	Description	Quantity	Complete Type
0.00	\$	Gears pack Assembly	Assemble a gear pack	1.00000	0.00000
5.00		Mountain Bike Painting	Painting a Mountain Bike	0.00000	0.00000

- To add an operation, click within the Reference box in a new line, and enter the details.
 Note: A new 'Seq' number is automatically calculated for this operation although you can change this if required.
- 3. To amend an operation, select the required operation and change the details where necessary.

Note: You can change any details of an operation as long as it has not been progressed.

The description is brought in automatically from the Operations Register if the item was selected there. You can change this, if required.

- 4. Enter additional information about the operation, if required.
 - Click within the Description box.
 - Click the button that appears in the Description box.

The Operation Details window appears.

eration De	lails			
Main Details	Options	Resource Details	Components	
- Main Detai	s			
Reference	Gears	pack Assembly		
Descriptio	Assem	nble a gear pack		
Notes	Ensur	e gears work		~
Do not p	rint this C	peration		

This procedure is the same as entering Operation details into the Operations Register. For more information, see *Operations Register* on page 54.

Note: As you enter Operation Details, the total costs by category appear on the Resource Details tab.

 To print components on subcontract advice notes, associate components from the BOM with the operation on the Components tab. When you create a works order from the BOM through Trial Kitting, the components are copied to the works order for printing on a subcontract advice note.

Note: If the component quantity does not match the unit of measure, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

- To save the operation details and return to the Works Order Details window, click OK.
- 5. To record progress of an operation, click Qty Complete.

The Qty Complete window appears, prompting for the quantity complete. For more information on tracking works order progress through operations, see *To record progress of a batch* on page 465.

6. To print the works order tracking report, click Print.

- 7. To re-sequence the operations, click Re-sequence.
- 8. To view operation time breakdown for the works order, click Times/Costs.
- To delete an operation if it has not been progressed, select it and press F8.
 Note: The operation is not removed from the original BOM.
- 10. To continue making changes to the batch Works Order Details, click the Latest Costs tab. To save your batch Works Order Details, click Save.

The Latest Costs tab (Batch Works Order)

Use the Latest Costs tab to view a breakdown of the total costs incurred in building the works order.

To view the cost breakdown in a batch works order

1. In the Works Order Details window, click the Latest Costs tab.

The Latest Costs information appears.

Cost Heading	Planned	Actual Last Cos	ed	17/10/2007	
laterials	111.940000	0.000000 Ouantity	Costed For	1.00	Each
abour	23.166666	0.000000		1100	
etup	30.000000	0.000000 - Selling			
lachine	58.791666	0.000000 Suggest	d Price	335.20	
ubcontract	0.000000	0.000000 Account	Price	2000.00	
ooling	1.333333	0.000000		2999199	
Init Cost	239.425666	0.000000			
Breakdown of <u>Pl</u> anne	d Costs Breakdown (of <u>A</u> ctual Costs	ost Now		

- 2. To view a graphical breakdown of planned costs, click Breakdown of Planned Costs.
 - To return to the Latest Costs window, click Close.
- 3. To view a graphical breakdown of actual costs, click Breakdown of Actual Costs.
 - To return to the Latest Costs window, click Close.
- 4. To perform an updated costing on the works order, click Cost Now.
- 5. To continue making changes to the batch Works Order Details, click the Attached Files tab. To save your batch Works Order Details, click Save.

The Attached Files tab (Batch Works Order)

Use the Attached Files tab to open and save any file (for example, Microsoft® Word or Microsoft® Excel documents) connected with a works order. You can also attach the complete contents of a folder. This is particularly useful for storing supporting documentation for each works order, for example, works order specifications.

If you selected 'Copy attached files from BOM/Estimates' within the Works Order Settings (see *The Record tab* on page 343), when you create a works order, any files or folders attached to the BOM or estimate are automatically attached to the works order.

To attach a file or folder to a batch works order record

1. In the Works Order Details window, click the Attached Files tab.

The Attached Files information appears.

WOP - W	orks Order Deta	ils - W0001	0							
Main Details	Additional Details	Sales Orders	MEMO	Allocations/Issues	Tracking	Latest Costs	Attached Files	Analysis Codes		
FileName					Description					
				<u> </u>						
Atta	ch File	Attach Eolde	er							
<u>S</u> ave	Clear	Delete	Im	age					⊆los	e

2. To attach a file or folder to a works order record, click Attach File or Attach Folder as appropriate.

A Choose File(s) or Choose Folder(s) window appears.

- Select the file or folder you want to attach to the works order.
- Click Open if selecting a file, or OK if selecting a folder.

Note: You can only select one file or folder at a time.

The file or folder you selected appears in the Attached Files list.

3. To open a file or folder, click within the Filename, and click the down arrow alongside the Filename.

4. Enter a description alongside each attachment, if required.

Note: This is for information purposes only. Manufacturing does not use the description anywhere else.

5. To delete an attached file, select the file and press F8.

Note: The file is removed from the works order. It remains on your hard disk.

 To continue making changes to the batch Works Order Details information, click the Analysis Codes tab.
 To save your batch Works Order Details, click Save

To save your batch Works Order Details, click Save.

The Analysis Codes tab (Batch Works Order)

Use the Analysis Codes tab to see the analysis codes assigned to the works order.

These are brought across from the BOM when a works order is created. You can change the analysis codes assigned here, if required.

To maintain analysis codes for a batch works order

1. In the Works Order window, click the Analysis Codes tab.

The Analysis Codes information appears.

ain Details Additional Details	Sales Orders	MEMO	Allocations/Issues	Tracking	Latest Costs	Attached Files	Analysis Codes	
- Analysis Codes								
Analysis Code 1				~				
Analysis Code 2				~				
Analysis Code 3				~				
Analysis Code 4				~				
Analysis Code 5				~				

- 2. Enter or amend the details for up to five unique analysis codes for each works order. You can use these for custom reporting.
- 3. To save your batch Works Order Details, click Save.

Amending a One-Off Works Order

You can amend the detail of a works order at any time. During this process you can also view important information such as the customer details, estimates and actuals, and stages information.

To amend or view a one-off works order

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Records > One-Off > Amend Works Order.

The Works Order Details window appears.

- 2. Make amendments to the one-off works order Main Details. For more information, see *The Main Details tab (One-Off Works Order)* on page 377.
- 3. Make amendments to the one-off works order Additional Details. For more information, see *The Additional Details tab (One-Off Works Order)* on page 381.
- 4. Make amendments to the one-off works order Invoice Description details. For more information, see *The Invoices/Credit Notes tab (One-Off Works Order)* on page 383.
- 5. Make amendments to the one-off works order Estimate/Actual details. For more information, see *The Estimate/Actual tab (One-Off Works Order)* on page 384.
- 6. Make amendments to the one-off works order Stages details. For more information, see *The Stages tab (One-Off Works Order)* on page 386.
- 7. Make amendments to the one-off works order Attached Files details. For more information, see *The Attached Files tab (One-Off Works Order)* on page 389.
- 8. Make amendments to the one-off works order Analysis Codes. For more information, see *The Analysis Codes tab (One-Off Works Order)* on page 391.
- 9. When you are satisfied with your entries, click Save.

The works order window closes.

The Main Details tab (One-Off Works Order)

To amend one-off works order main details

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Records > One-Off > Amend Works Order.

The Works Order Details window appears, open at the Main Details tab.

Works Order Details				Datas			
Works Order Number Product Code Description Warehouse Qty Required Qty Completed Qty Scrapped Qty Outstanding	AutoNumber> 0.00000 a 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000	v New	w/o	Entered Due Date Last Completed Last Updated Last Cost Last Inv/Crd Starts Ends	09/09/2008	M M M M M M	00:00
- Customer Details		Name		Options	Replenishments		
Short name:		Order Number		 Include in MRP	Demand		
Postcode:				 🗌 Linked			
Contact	First	Middle	Last	Exclude from S	itock Projection		
,				Exclude from G Alloc/Issue fro	iraphical Planner m Completion Wa	rehouse	

- 2. Select the Works Order Number.
- 3. Enter the changes required, according to the following descriptions.

Product Code

Select a Product Code for the one-off works order. The Description appears automatically.

If the works order is for an item which does not appear in the Stock Control module, leave the Product Code box empty. For example, a service order item.

Warehouse/Bin	Select the warehouse from the Warehouse drop-down list.
	If you have entered a Product Code, and the stock item is linked to more than one bin, select the bin required from the drop-down list.
	If the stock item is only linked to one bin, the bin is displayed automatically alongside the completion warehouse.
	Note: If you change the warehouse and the BOM contains operations, the works order will be excluded from Graphical Planner.
Qty Required	Enter or amend the quantity required.
	You must enter the quantity of finished items you want to manufacture, even if that quantity is '1'.
	Note: If you are entering a stock item, the quantity you enter must be valid for the stocked unit of the item. If you enter a quantity that is not valid, it is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.
Due Date	Enter or amend the date by which the works order must be completed. This is also used as the default due date for each stage.
Starts	Enter or amend the date the works order starts.
	Note: If you enter the Starts date and time, click on the '' (calculate) button alongside to calculate the Ends date and time.
Ends	Enter or amend the date the works order ends.
	Note: If you enter the Ends date and time, click on the '' (calculate) button alongside to calculate the Starts date and time.

Customer Details	If you are entering details for a customer with an account record in the Sales Ledger:
	 Select the customer account, using the drop-down lists in the A/C, Short name or Postcode boxes.
	The customer details are displayed in the window automatically.
	If there is no existing account record in your Sales Ledger:
	Leave the A/C box blank.
	 Enter the name of the person or company for whom the job is being done in the Name box.
	 Fill in the Contact and Order Number boxes as appropriate.
Include in MRP Replenishments	Select this check box to include finished items on this works order as available to use when MRP demands are calculated.
Include in MRP Demand	Select this check box if you want the components required to fulfil this order to be included when MRP demands are calculated.
Linked	Select Linked if you want to link the works order with a purchase order.
	The check box is clear by default, but subsequently it will be either selected or clear, depending on your last selection.
	If you select this check box, any associated purchase orders will only be used to meet the demands for this works order.
Exclude from Stock Projection	Select this check box if you want to exclude this works order from the stock projection calculations.
Exclude from Graphical Planner	Select this check box if you want to exclude this works order from being exported to Graphical Planner.
	Note: This check box is automatically selected and you cannot change it if you have changed the warehouse from that stored on the stock item.
Alloc/Issue from Completion Warehouse	Select this check box if components can only be allocated or issued from the completion warehouse.

4. To continue making changes to the one-off Works Order Details, click the Additional Details tab.

To save your one-off Works Order Details, click Save.

The Additional Details tab (One-Off Works Order)

To display the one-off works order additional details

1. In the Works Order Details window, click the Additional Details tab.

The Additional Details information appears.

	i boccaib	Trivoices/Credic Noces	Estimate/Actual	stages	Accacited Files	Mildly	sis coues	6				_
Related Informatic	1				Additional Inform	ation						
Status	Entere	ad		~	Entered by	ALISON	4					
S.Order No.					Project Number							_
WIP Account	♥ 94	999	Migration crea	ited	Works Number							
From Estimate			10		% Complete	0 (\$					
Period					Priority	9	\$					
Linked To					Salesperson			First	Mid	dle	Last	_
												_
												_
(h) [_
City												
City												
City County Postcode												

2. Enter the changes required, according to the following descriptions.

Status	Change the current status, if you are logged on as Manager.				
	By default, when creating a new works order the status is set to 'Entered'.				
	The status can be: 'Entered', 'Active', 'Part Complete', 'Completed', 'Retention' or 'Cancelled'.				
S. Order No.	If you created a sales order when the estimate was put into production, the sales order number will automatically appear within the S.Order No. box.				
WIP Account	Enter a nominal account code to hold nominal postings associated with this works order.				
	The default is to leave this box clear. All transactions will then default to the code specified in Works Order Settings.				

From Estimate	If the works order is derived from an estimate, the estimate number is displayed.
Period	The period in which the works order starts, is displayed.
Linked To	This shows the Estimate Number the works order is linked to, if appropriate.
	This works order will only be used to meet the demands from this estimate.
Entered By	This shows who entered the works order.
Project Number	Enter a Project Number for information purposes. This is useful if you have multiple works orders against a project.
Works Number	Enter any alpha/numeric reference. This is for information purposes only.
% Complete	Enter a percentage to indicate how complete the works order is. This is not updated automatically and is for information purposes only.
Priority	The Priority of the works order is shown. Priority range is from -32000 to 32000. The lower the number, the higher the priority, therefore -32000 is the highest priority and 32000 is the lowest priority. This information passes into Graphical Planner and is used during planning. For more information, see <i>Sage Graphical Planner</i> documentation.
Salesperson	Enter a salesperson reference, if required. This is for information purposes only.
Customer Site Address	Enter the customer site address, if required.
	Note: You can only enter City, County and Country information if the Use Segmented Addresses option is selected in Accounting System Manager.

 To continue making changes to the one-off Works Order Details, click the Invoices/Credit Notes tab.
 To save your one-off Works Order Details, click Save.

The Invoices/Credit Notes tab (One-Off Works Order)

To amend one-off order invoices/credit notes

1. In the Works Order Details window, click the Invoices/Credit Notes tab.

The Invoices/Credit Notes information appears.

🗏 WOP - Works Order Details - W00009		
Main Details Additional Details Invoices/Credit Notes Estimate/Actual Stages Attached Files Analysis Codes		_
Type Invoice Number	Invoice Date Invoice Total User Name	
Invoiced to date 0.00 Credited to date 0.00 Outstanding 2621.25		
Save Clear Dglete		•

This tab shows all of the sales invoices/credit notes that have been posted to this works order.

Note: If no sales order is linked to the works order the form will be blank.

2. To continue making changes to the one-off Works Order Details, click the Estimate/Actual tab.

To save your one-off Works Order Details, click Save.

The Estimate/Actual tab (One-Off Works Order)

To view one-off works orders estimate/actual details

1. In the Works Order Details window, click the Estimate/Actual tab.

The Estimate/Actual information appears.

Coscillate	Estimated Profit	Est. Selling Price	Estimated Cost	Actual Cost	Cost Variance	Detail
Stock Items	258.47509	2843.22597	2584.75089 I	0.00000	2584.75089	Suppliers
von-Stock Items	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	
Labour	1.41667	15.58334	14.16667	0.00000	14.16667	Labour
Machine	2.16667	23.83334	21.66667	0.00000	21.66667	Machines
Setup	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	macrimes
Tooling	0.06667	0.73333	0.66667	0.00000	0.66667	Order Enguiry
Subcontract	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	
Other Expenses	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	0.00000	
TOTALS	0.00000	2621.25090	2621.25090	0.00000	2621.25090	
Costs Exceed Estimate	0.00000	2621.25090	2621.25090	0.00000	2621.25090	
Costs Exceed Estimate Overhead Recovery	0.00000	2621.25090 Discount	2621.25090	0.00000	2621.25090	
Costs Exceed Estimate Overhead Recovery Estimate Overhead Recovery Invoicing Invoiced To Date	0.00000	2621.25090 Discount Percent	2621.25090 0.00000 <u>m</u>	0.00000	2621.25090	

This window shows all of the accumulated costs that have been posted to this works order. It also shows current profitability (or loss).

Note: The Cost Variance box is highlighted if a loss is being made in any of the cost headings.

Additional information is displayed showing discounts, the overhead recovery position, the current value of invoices and the remaining balance to be invoiced.

2. View a breakdown of either estimated or actual costs for any cost heading, by double-clicking in the cell showing the required figure.

A window opens detailing all of the individual postings.

3. View additional details by clicking one of the following.

Suppliers

Click Suppliers to show a list of suppliers who have supplied goods or services for this works order.

Note: You can drill-down on a specific supplier (by left clicking twice) to see individual transactions.

Labour	Click Labour to show a list of labour processes that have been used on this works order.
	Note: You can drill-down on a specific process (by left clicking twice) to see individual transactions.
Machines	Click Machines to show a list of machine processes that have been used on this works order.
	Note: You can drill-down on a specific process (by left clicking twice) to see individual transactions.
Order Enquiry	Click Order Enquiry to display a list of purchase orders and works orders that are on-order for the components required by this works order.

Note: All of the information shown is an accumulation of costs for all stages. In addition to this option, profitability can be examined on a stage by stage basis from the Stages tab.

4. To continue making changes to the one-off Works Order Details, click the Stages tab. To save your one-off Works Order Details, click Save.

The Stages tab (One-Off Works Order)

Each works order can be broken down into stages. You can then accumulate costs (Stock, Non-Stock, Operations and Other Expenses) stage by stage.

Note: Works orders must have at least one stage.

To maintain one-off work orders stage details

1. In the Works Order Details window, click the Stages tab.

The Stages information appears.

	Description	Due Date	Completed Date Sta	tus
SOM 3	Bill of Materials	15/10/2007	11	

- 2. For each stage:
 - Enter a Stage Reference. This can be 30 alpha/numeric characters in length.
 - Enter a Stage Description. This can be 60 alpha/numeric characters.
- 3. To see detailed information about this stage, or to add, amend or remove operations from this works order, click within the Description box. For more information, see *To maintain operations in the one-off works order* on page 386.
- 4. To continue making changes to the one-off Works Order Details, click the Attached Files tab.

To save your one-off Works Order Details, click Save.

To maintain operations in the one-off works order

- 1. In the one-off Works Order Details window, click the Stages tab.
- 2. Click within the Description box and click the button that appears in the box.

Note: If the stage has not yet been saved you are prompted to save it now.

- 3. The Stage Details window appears.
 - Select the Tracking tab.

Seq.	$E_{\rm c}$	Reference	Description	Quantity	Complete Type
Reseg	gue	nce	Print		

Note: The tracking quantity is the required quantity taken from the estimate.

4. To add an operation, click in the Reference box underneath the last operation displayed, and enter the details.

A new sequence number is automatically calculated for the operation although you can change this, if required.

5. To amend an operation, select the required operation and change the details where necessary.

You can change any details of an operation as long as it has not been progressed. The description is brought in automatically from the Operations Register if the item was selected there. You can change it if required.

6. To enter additional information about the operation, click within the Description box and click the button that appears in the box.

The Operations Details window appears.

ain Details	Options	Resource Details	Components		
Main Details					
Reference	Gears p	ack Assembly			
Description	Assemb	le a gear pack			
Notes	Ensure	gears work			~
					3
					2
	rint this O	neration			2

This procedure is the same as entering Operation details into the Operations Register. For more information, see *Operations Register* on page 54.

Note: As you enter Operation Details, the total costs by category appear on the Resource Details tab.

To print components on subcontract advice notes, associate components from the BOM with the operation on the Components tab. When you create a works order from the BOM through Trial Kitting, the components are copied to the works order for printing on a subcontract advice note.

Note: If the component quantity does not match the unit of measure, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

- To save the operation details and return to the Stage Details window, click OK.
- 7. To resequence the operations, click Resequence.
- 8. To view operation time breakdown for the works order, click Times/Costs.
- To delete an operation that has not progressed, press F8.
 Note: The operation is not removed from the original BOM.
- 10. To print an operation, click Print.
- 11. To save the Stage Details, click OK.
The Attached Files tab (One-Off Works Order)

Use the Attached Files tab to open and save any file (for example, Microsoft® Word or Microsoft® Excel documents) connected with a works order. You can also attach the complete contents of a folder. This is particularly useful for storing supporting documentation for each works order, for example, works order specifications.

To attach a file or folder to a one-off works order record

1. In the Works Order Details window, click the Attached Files tab.

The Attached Files information appears.

1 (55)	WOP - Works Order Details - WO0009	
	Iain Details Additional Details Invoices/Credit Notes Estimate/Actual Stages Attached Files Analysis Codes	
	FileName Description	
	3	
	Altach File Attach Eolder	
	Save Clear Delete Cl	lose

2. To attach a file or folder to a works order record, click Attach File or Attach Folder as appropriate.

A Choose File(s) or Choose Folder(s) window appears.

- Select the file or folder you want to attach to the works order.
- Click Open if selecting a file, or OK if selecting a folder.

Note: You can only select one file or folder at a time.

The file or folder you selected appears in the Attached Files list.

- 3. To open a file or folder, click within the Filename, and click the down arrow alongside the Filename.
- 4. Enter a description alongside each attachment, if required.

Note: This is for information purposes only. Manufacturing does not use the description anywhere else.

5. To delete an attached file, select the file and press F8.

Note: The file is removed from the works order. It remains on your hard disk.

6. To continue making changes to the one-off Works Order Details, click the Analysis Codes tab.

To save your one-off Works Order Details, click Save.

The Analysis Codes tab (One-Off Works Order)

Use the Analysis Codes tab to see the analysis codes assigned to the works order.

To maintain analysis codes for a one-off works order

1. In the Works Order window, click the Analysis Codes tab.

The Analysis Codes information appears.

WOP - Wo	rks Order Deta	ils - WO0009			_	_		_	_	_	-0
Main Details	Additional Details	Invoices/Credit Notes	Estimate/Actual	Stages	Attached Files	Analysis Codes					
Analysis C	odes										
Analysis (lode 1			~							
Analysis (lode 2			~							
Analysis (lode 3			~							
Analysis (Iode 4			~							
Analysis (lode 5			~							
Save	Clear	Delete									Close

- 2. Enter or amend the details for up to five unique analysis codes for each works order. You can use these for custom reporting.
- 3. To save your one-off Works Order Details, click Save.

Linking Works Orders

Sales orders can be linked with batch works orders within Sales Order Processing or within MPS. For more information, see your *Sales Order Processing* documentation and *MPS (Master Production Schedule)* on page 269.

If you add additional items to the sales orders you can use this option. You can also make changes to existing links and change temporary tags into permanent links.

To link works orders

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Processing > Link Works Order.

The Link Works Order window appears.

Wanka Ondan		
Works Order		
w.Order No.	*	
Reference		
This Works Order is currently ta	agged to: (NONE)	Change

2. Select the works order.

It can display one of the following 'tagged to' settings:

(NONE)	The works order is not linked to a sales order.
	You can add a link.
(MULTIPLE)	There is more than one tag present for this works order.
	Note: You cannot change the link for the works order.
(SINGLE - NOT SALES	The demand item is not a sales order.
ORDER)	Note: You cannot change the link for the works order.

(Tag)	There is already a single dynamic tag associated with the sales order. The sales order document number is shown within {}.
	You can change a tag to a link.
(Link)	A sales order is already linked to the works order. The sales order document number is shown within {}.
	You can change a link.

3. If the 'tagged to' setting is (Tag), click Change.

A message appears which prompts you to confirm that you want to change the tag to a link. Click Yes to continue.

- 4. If the 'tagged to' setting is (NONE) or (Link), click Change.
 - If the 'tagged to' setting is (Link), a message appears which prompts you to confirm that you want to change the sales order. Click Yes to continue.

The Select Sales Order Item window appears.

W Order No				Warahaura	Decision			
MOTOPINO.	WOODUI			Deswickies	FACTO	DRY		
SOM Reference	ACC/PAINT/	BLUE		Description	Blue B	.ke Paint		
S.Order No.	A/C	Name	Due Date	Qu	antity	Cust.Order No.	Linked	Tagged To
			nore die no bab.	s order items a	o dispidy	z.		
				o o del reins a	o dispilar	y		

Note: Each sales order item displayed matches the following criteria:

- Sales order item lines are fully outstanding.
- Sales order is not linked or tagged to another works order.
- The sales order is for the same product as specified in the works order.
- The sales order warehouse matches with works order warehouse.
- The sales order quantity is equal to or less than the works order quantity.
- 5. Select the sales order item required.
- 6. Click OK.

The new sales order item number is shown in the 'tagged to' setting in the Link Works Orders window.

- 7. Click OK.
 - The sales order item is linked with the works order.
 - The batch works order shows 'Linked To' with the sales order document number in the header.
 - If you re-run MPS, the Master Production Schedule List shows the sales order is linked and identifies the works order in the Linked To column.

Unlinking Works Orders

You can remove the link between the batch works order and sales order if necessary.

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Processing > Unlink Works Order.

The Unlink Works Order window appears.

WOP - Unlink Works Order		
Works Order		
W.Order No.	*	
Reference		
Description		
This Works Order is currently tagged t	0:	
	OK	Cancel

2. Select the works order that you want to modify.

The 'tagged to' setting will show (Link) and the sales order document number the works order is linked to.

3. Click OK.

You are prompted to unlink the works order.

- 4. Click Yes to confirm that you want to unlink the works order.
 - The link is removed between the sales order and the works order and any sub assembly works orders.
 - The batch works order will no longer show 'Linked To' and the sales order document number in the header.
 - If you re-run MPS, the Master Production Schedule List shows the sales order is not linked. The works order number no longer appears in the Linked To column.

Printing Works Order Documents

You can pint four types of works order documents: Picking List, Route Card, Job Sheet and the Operation Card.

Picking lists can be produced if stock has been allocated. The picking list shows all the components required for the build, the quantity required, and the bin location of the component. You can amend the picking list if required. For more information, see *Amending Picking Lists* on page 399.

The Route Card, Job Sheet and Operation Card show the same information in varying levels of detail.

Note: Defaults for the documents produced can be selected in Works Order Settings. For more information, see *The Documents tab* on page 341.

To produce works order documents

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Print > Documents.

The Print Documents window appears.

W.Order No.	Reference	Qty Outstanding	Status	Printed	Start Date
WO0015	MOU/ALU/20FINISHED	2,000000	Entered	No	31/12/1899
WO0016	MOU/ALU/SUSPENSION	1.000000	Entered	No	31/12/1899
WO0017	MOU/ALU/20WHEELFRA	2.000000	Entered	No	31/12/1899
WO0010	MOU/ALU/FINISHEDBIKE	1.000000	Entered	No	31/12/1899
WO0011	MOU/ALU/20FINISHED	2.000000	Entered	No	31/12/1899
WO0012	MOU/ALU/SUSPENSION	1.000000	Entered	No	31/12/1899
- WO0013	MOU/ALU/20WHEELFRA	2.000000	Entered	No	31/12/1899
WO0019	MOU/ALU/20FINISHED	2.000000	Entered	No	31/12/1899
- wooo20	MOU/ALU/SUSPENSION	1.000000	Entered	No	31/12/1899
WO0021	MOU/ALU/20WHEELFRA	2.000000	Entered	No	31/12/1899
- woooos	MOU/ALU/20WHEELFRA	10.000000	Entered	No	11/10/2007
WO0001	MOU/ALU/BIKEPACK1	5.000000	Entered	No	11/10/2007
WORRN2	MOLI/ALLI/ETNISHEDBIKE	5.00000	Part Issued	No	11/10/2007
Select <u>Al</u> l	Swap Clear				
or monto to print					

- 2. Select the required works orders.
- Select the check boxes for the 'Documents to print'. This does not change the defaults you have set up under Works Order Settings. Note: You cannot print a picking list if components are not allocated for a works order.
- 4. To print the selected documents, click Print.

The documents are printed.

Documents are printed to the output mode of your choice, set using File > Choose Output Mode on the Menu Bar. For more information, see *Sage 200 help*.

Printing Labels

You can print labels for completed batch works orders if the finished stock item on the works order is set to print labels.

To print labels

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Print > Labels.

The Print Labels window appears.

Select Works Order	to print labels for	
Works Order No		
World Order No.	Twonnna Twonnna	Ŀ
Select Completion t	o Print	
Reference		Quantity
WO0004		5,0000
		Print Gose

- 2. Select the required works order.
- 3. If there is more than one completion on the batch, select a completion from the completion list.
- 4. To print the labels, click Print.

The labels are printed.

Labels are printed to the output mode of your choice, set using File > Choose Output Mode on the Menu Bar. For more information, see *Sage 200 help*.

Amending Picking Lists

If you need to amend your picking list once you have produced it, you can do so using this process.

Whilst you cannot amend a picking list for an allocation that has already been fully issued, you can amend the picking list for the unissued element of a partially issued works order.

To amend picking lists

1. From the Navigation Bar select Works Orders and choose Processing > Amend Picking List.

Order No. WO0010	1	×		
ocated Stock Items				
Product Code	Description	Qty In Stock	Qty Available	Qty Allocated
ACC/PAINT/GREEN	Green Bike Paint	25.00000	22.00000	2.00000
		23,0000	22,0000	
Edit Allocation				

The Amend Picking List window appears.

2. Select the works order.

The works order allocation lines are displayed.

3. Select an allocation and click Edit Allocation.

The Amend Picking List Allocation Warehouses window appears.

Warehouse	Qty In Stock	Qty Available	Qty Originally Allocated	Allocated Qty
FACTORY	15.00000	12.00000	3.00000	3.00000
WAREHOUSE	10.00000	10.00000	0.00000	0.00000
Totals	25.00000	22.00000	3.00000	3.00000

This lists all warehouses which contain stock items on order.

Note: You can choose to supply different quantities from different warehouses but the total you select must not exceed the total allocated quantity.

- 4. Select the warehouse and click Edit Allocation.
- 5. If the component is not traceable, then all bins linked to the allocation warehouse are displayed.

ode	MOLI/24GEARS	Name	24 Gears			
.000	110 april 1 diar 11 co		1 0001 J			
ins cor	ntaining items at					
Bin				Free Stock	Original Allocation	New Allocation
F	wy Bin 1			2 00000	3.00000	3.00000
Factor	a y chi i z			2100000	2010/01/01/01/01	
Factor	ry Bin 2			10.00000	0.00000	0.0000
Factor	ry Bin 2			10.00000	0.00000	0.0000

You can:

Select the bin used for the allocation and enter a New Allocation value.

- Select a bin not already linked to the allocation (if Free Stock exists for the bin) and enter a New Allocation value.
- When you have finished making adjustements, click OK.

Note: The New Allocation value must match the stock item unit of measure. If not, it is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

6. If the component is traceable, then traceable items currently used at the selected warehouse are displayed with any unallocated traceable items held in the same warehouse.

Serial No	Bin	Supplier	Received	Use By	Allocated
35489875	Factory Bin 1		11/10/2007	15/12/2007	This
35489876	Factory Bin 1		11/10/2007	15/12/2007	This
35489877	Factory Bin 1		11/10/2007	15/12/2007	This
35489878	Factory Bin 1		11/10/2007	15/12/2007	This
· 35489879	Factory Bin 1		11/10/2007	15/12/2007	This
35489880	Factory Bin 1		04/10/2007	15/12/2007	Not
35489881	Factory Bin 1		04/10/2007	15/12/2007	Not
35489882	Factory Bin 1		04/10/2007	15/12/2007	Not
35489883	Factory Bin 1		04/10/2007	15/12/2007	Not
35489884	Factory Bin 1		04/10/2007	15/12/2007	Not
ttributes) Find) Auto Select) Refresh			Serial number	s selected:	5.000

• To change a component allocation, clear the box for an item that is currently selected and select the box for an item that you want to use instead.

Note: If the item is batch traceable, enter the quantity of the item to adjust.

- When you have finished making adjustments, click OK.
- 7. Repeat the adjustment process until all allocation adjustments have been made. Works order allocations and stock balances are adjusted.
- 8. Click Close on the Amend Picking List window.

Checking a Works Order is Ready to be Made

This option lets you check whether a works order is ready to be made, that is, if all necessary materials have been received into stock.

To check a works order

1. From the Navigation Bar select Works Orders and choose Processing > Ready to process?

🖷 WOP - Ready To Process Select Works Order Works Order No. × Exclusion List The following stock items have been excluded as there is insufficient stock to issue the Works Order. The non-stock items have been excluded as the required quantity has not been received. Product Code Description Free Stock Shortage Unit Name Qty Required No items to display Single Batch Shortage Allocate ⊆lose

The Ready To Process window appears.

2. Select the required works order.

Shortages are listed.

Note: Single batch shortages are shown in colour.

- 3. To allocate the components that are not excluded, click Allocate and then follow the steps outlined in *To allocate/unallocate stock against single works orders on page 405*.
- 4. To return to the Works Orders List, click Close.

Updating Non-stock Deliveries

Non-stock deliveries for one-off works orders can be part or fully received, using this option. This is for information only. You can note what is outstanding if a partial receipt is made.

Note: You do not need to use this option to permit further processing of the order.

To update non-stock deliveries

1. From the Navigation Bar select Works Orders and choose Processing > Update Non-Stock Deliveries.

The Update Non-Stock Deliveries window appears.

OK Carel

- 2. Select the Works Order No. from the drop-down list.
- 3. Click OK.

The Update Non-Stock Deliveries window appears.

Description	Quantity	Delivered	Deliver	r Not
		1	0.0000	P

- Enter the delivery quantity in the Deliver Now column.
- To complete the update, click OK.

Allocating Stock

Note: You must allocate stock before issuing it.

Stock Control records are automatically updated with allocations. This effectively sets the stock aside as marked for production. Since, by definition, allocated stock no longer forms part of your available stock, it cannot be used for sales (for example, spares) and will be excluded from future shortage calculations for trial kitting or production planning.

There are different ways of allocating and unallocating.

To allocate or unallocate stock for multiple works orders:

Note: You can allocate or unallocate stock for multiple works orders, if you have chosen to allocate multiple works orders in Works Orders Settings. For more information see *The Allocate/Issue/Complete tab* on page 346.

- From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Works Orders List. Then, select the works orders required in the Works Orders List and choose Stock > Allocate Stock.
- To allocate or unallocate stock for single works orders:
 - From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Processing > Allocate Stock.
 - From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Works Orders List. Then, ensure that no more than one works order is selected in the Works Orders List and choose Stock > Allocate Stock.

The procedure described below (*To allocate or unallocate stock against multiple works orders on page 404*) should also be followed when unallocating previously allocated stock for multiple works orders. You can also allocate or unallocate stock for individual works orders, whatever the setting in Works Orders Settings. For more information, see *To allocate/unallocate stock against single works orders* on page 405.

To allocate or unallocate stock against multiple works orders

Note: Ensure that the Allow Multiple setting is selected in Works Order Settings. For more information see *The Allocate/Issue/Complete tab on page 346*.

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Works Order List.
- 2. In the Works Order List, select the works orders you want to allocate and choose Stock > Allocate Stock.

The Batch Allocate window appears.

Choose /	Action
Alloca	ite
() Unalle	ocate

- 3. Choose whether you want to Allocate or Unallocate stock.
- 4. To confirm your choice, click OK.

When the allocating/unallocating process is complete, the status of the works order(s) in the Works Orders List changes to 'Allocated' or 'Part Allocated'. When unallocating, the status of the works order(s) reverts to 'Entered'.

5. Repeat the process for further works orders if necessary.

Note: You can see the quantities of each item allocated by selecting the Allocations/Issues tab on the works order record. For more information, see *The Allocations/Issues tab (Batch Works Order)* on page 366.

To allocate/unallocate stock against single works orders

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Processing > Allocate Stock.

The Enter Stock Allocations for window appears.

Works Order Number	✓ Allocation Date: 13/10/2008 ■		/2008 🔳	<u>31</u>			
Product Code	Description	Required	Allocated	Issued	Allocate Now	Free Stock	Scrapped Stocked Ur

2. Select the Works Order Number from the drop-down list.

- 3. If you are allocating a one-off works order, select the stage you are allocating to from the Stage drop-down list.
- 4. Select the Allocation Date.
- 5. You can:
 - Allocate/unallocate as much stock as possible to the selected works order (see To allocate/unallocate as much stock as possible on page 406.)
 - Allocate a specified quantity automatically to the selected works order (see *To allocate a quantity automatically* on page 406).
 - Allocate a specified quantity manually to the selected works order (see *To allocate/unallocate a quantity manually* on page 407)
 - Add components to allocate manually (see *To manually add components to the allocations list* on page 407).

Note: Quantities entered must be valid for the stocked unit of the item. If not, they are automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

- 6. To save the changes, click OK.
- 7. Repeat for as many works orders as required.

Note: You can see the quantities of each item allocated by selecting the Allocations/Issues tab on the works order record. For more information ,see *The Allocations/Issues tab (Batch Works Order)* on page 366.

To allocate/unallocate as much stock as possible

- 1. To allocate as much stock as possible, in the 'Enter Stock Allocations for' window, select the check box and select Allocate from the drop-down list.
- 2. To unallocate as much stock as possible, in the 'Enter Stock Allocations for' window, select the check box and select Unallocate from the drop-down list.

To allocate a quantity automatically

1. In the 'Enter Stock Allocations for' window, select an item, clear the check box and click Suggest Qtys.

The Suggest Qtys window appears.

WOP - Sugg	est Qtys
Quantity To make	0.00000 🔳 finished items.
) As much as p	OK Cancel

• To request suggested quantities sufficient to make a certain amount of finished items, select the 'To make' option and enter the number of finished items.

Note: The number of finished items must be valid for the stocked unit of the item. If not, it is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

- To suggest as much as possible (obviously restricted by the original required quantity and the current available stock), select the 'As much as possible' option.
- To save the suggested quantities, click OK.

To allocate/unallocate a quantity manually

- 1. In the 'Enter Stock Allocations for' window, select an item and click in the Allocate Now column to manually enter the quantity to be allocated.
- 2. Enter a positive quantity to allocate or a negative quantity to unallocate.

Note: The quantity you enter must be valid for the stocked item. If not, it is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

You cannot unallocate more than the quantity currently allocated.

3. Repeat the process for other items as required.

To manually add components to the allocations list

1. In the 'Enter Stock Allocations for' window, click Add Component.

The Add Component Allocation window appears.

🖷 WOP - Add Compon	ent Allocation	×
Component Details		
Product Code	*	
Description		
Quantity Required	0.00000 🔟	

- 2. Select the component you want to add.
- 3. Enter the quantity required.

Note: The quantity must be valid for the stocked unit of the item. If not, it is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

4. To add the component allocation, click Add.

The component is added to the stock allocations list for the works order. You can now allocate or unallocate the quantity as required. For more information, see *To allocate/*

unallocate as much stock as possible on page 406, To allocate a quantity automatically on page 406 or To allocate/unallocate a quantity manually on page 407.

Issuing Stock and Reversing Stock Issues

Note: You must allocate stock before you issue it. For more information, see *Allocating Stock* on page 404.

There are different ways of issuing stock and reversing stock issues.

To issue stock for multiple works orders:

Note: You must have chosen to issue multiple works orders in Works Orders Settings. For more information on setting the system to issue multiple works orders, see *The Allocate/ Issue/Complete tab* on page 346.

 From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Works Orders List. Then, select the works orders required in the Works Orders List and choose Stock > Issue Stock.

The process of issuing stock to multiple works orders is entirely automatic. You cannot amend the quantities to be issued during the process.

Note: You cannot reverse issues for multiple works orders. If you want to reverse issues for a works order you must select the works order as a single works order.

- To issue stock for single works orders:
 - From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Processing > Issue Stock.
 - From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Works Orders List. Then, ensure that no more than one works order is selected in the Works Orders List and choose Stock > Issue Stock.

The process of issuing stock for single works orders is manual and you can amend the quantities to be issued during the process.

- To reverse issue stock for single works orders:
 - From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Processing > Reverse Stock Issue.

Your stock records are automatically updated when you issue stock or reverse stock issues.

If you are using traceability and you have set up the Stock Control module to allocate batch or serial numbers at despatch, you can select the traceable items manually, for which issues are to be made.

To issue stock for multiple works orders

Note: You must have chosen to issue multiple works orders in order to issue stock for multiple works orders. For more information, see *The Allocate/Issue/Complete tab* on page 346.

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Works Order List.

2. In the Works Order List, select the works orders you want to allocate and choose Stock > Issue Stock.

The Batch Issue window appears.

Choose Action	- Batch Iss	ue 🗙
⊙ Issue	e Action	
	ue	
OK Cancel	Or	

- 3. Select Issue.
- 4. To perform the issue, click OK.

The system checks for the following conditions in each works order.

- No outstanding allocations.
- Negative stock levels for a component that does not allow negative stock.
- Temporary traceable numbers on traceable components that are linked to the allocation on the works order.

If any are found in a works order, stock cannot be issued. Therefore, you must confirm that you want to continue issuing stock for the remaining works orders.

For all other works orders, stock is issued and the material costs are updated on the works order.

Note: If you are issuing unplanned materials, the works order costs to update will be calculated using the issue quantity and the costing method of the stock item.

To issue stock for a single works order

1. From the Navigation Bar click Works Orders and choose Processing > Issue Stock.

The 'Enter Stock Issues for' window appears.

duct Code	Description	Required	Allocated	Issued	Issue Now	Free Stock	Scrapped Stocked Unit
	-85		20	8)	18	12	20

- 2. Select the required works order from the drop-down list.
- 3. If you are issuing a one-off works order, select the stage you are issuing to from the Stage drop-down list.
- 4. Select the Issue Date.
- 5. Enter the quantities of stock to issue using one of the following methods.
 - Issue as much as possible automatically to the selected works order. For more information, see *To issue as much stock as possible* on page 412.
 - Issue a specified quantity automatically to the selected works order. For more information, see *To issue a quantity automatically* on page 412.
 - Issue a specified quantity manually to the selected works order. For more information, see *To issue a quantity manually* on page 412.

Note: Quantities entered must be valid for the stocked unit of the item. If not, they are automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

- 6. Manually confirm traceable item numbers. This is required for the following items.
 - All traceable items, if Sage 200 is not set to allocate traceable items with stock balances.
 - Any traceable item where the quantity to issue is not the full quantity outstanding on the allocation, and the system is set to allocate traceable items with stock balances.

For more information on manually confirming traceable item numbers, see *To manually confirm traceable numbers* on page 413.

7. When all amendments have been made, click OK to make the issue.

Note: The issue will not proceed if the total quantity of each component selected does not match the quantity needed for the build. In this event, a message appears, identifying the component in question.

To issue as much stock as possible

In the 'Enter Stock Issues for' window, select the 'Issue as much as possible' check box.

To issue a quantity automatically

1. In the 'Enter Stock Issues for' window, clear the 'Issue as much as possible' check box and click Suggest Qtys.

The Suggest Qtys window appears.

Quantity		
⊙ To make [0.00000 📷	finished items.
O As much as p	ossible	

2. To request suggested quantities to issue, select the 'To make' option and enter the number of finished items.

Note: The number of finished items must be valid for the stocked unit of the item. If not, it is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

- 3. To suggest as much as possible (restricted by the original required quantity and the current available stock), select the 'As much as possible' option.
- 4. To proceed, click OK.

To issue a quantity manually

- 1. In the 'Enter Stock Issues for' window, click in the Issue Now column for an item.
- 2. Enter a quantity to issue.

Note: The quantity you enter must be valid for the stocked item. If not, it is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

3. Repeat the process for other items as required.

To manually add components to the issues list

1. In the 'Enter Stock Issues for' window, click Add Component.

The Add Component Allocation window appears.

Component Details	
Product Code	*
Description	
Quantity Required	0.00000 🖬

- 2. Select the Product Code you want to add.
- 3. Enter the quantity required.

Note: The quantity must be valid for the stocked unit of the item. If not, it is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

4. To add the component allocation, click Add.

The component is added to the stock issues list for the works order. You can now issue the quantity as required. For more information, see *To issue as much stock as possible* on page 412, *To issue a quantity automatically* on page 412 or *To issue a quantity manually* on page 412.

Note: If you are using multiple locations, you must also select the warehouse and bin for the component.

To manually confirm traceable numbers

1. In the 'Enter Stock Issues for' window, click Amend Batch/Serial No.

	Serial No	Warehouse	Bin	Supplier	Received	Sell By
Т	23	FACTORY	Factory Bin 1		11/10/2007	11/10/2007
1	24	FACTORY	Factory Bin 1		11/10/2007	11/10/2007
-	25	FACTORY	Factory Bin 1		11/10/2007	11/10/2007
7	26	FACTORY	Factory Bin 1		11/10/2007	11/10/2007
-	27	FACTORY	Factory Bin 1		11/10/2007	11/10/2007
Aţţtı	ibutes) Eind Auto Select) Befresh			Serial numbe	rs selected;	0.0000

- 2. Select the batch or serial traceable number items required.
 - If you are amending serial traceable items, select the total quantity of serial items.
 - If you are amending batch traceable items, enter the quantity you want issued against each batch.
- 3. To save the quantity details, click OK.

To reverse issues for a single works order

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Processing > Reverse Stock Issue.

The Reverse Stock Issue window appears.

WOP - Reverse	Stock Issue		✓ Reverse Date	24/11/2008		
Product Code	Description	Free Stock	Required items to display	Issued	Available	Reverse No
Reverse as much	as possible			Amend Batch/Seri	al No OK	<u>C</u> ancel

- 2. Select the required works order from the drop-down list.
- 3. To reverse as much as possible automatically, select the 'Reverse as much as possible.' check box.
- 4. To manually enter a quantity to reverse, enter a quantity in the Reverse Now box.

Note: The quantity you enter must be valid for the stocked item. If not, it is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

Note: You can only reverse a quantity that has not been scrapped or completed.

• If the items to be reversed contain serial numbers, the Serial Numbers for Item window appears, listing the serial numbers to reverse.

Confirm the serial numbers for reversal.

Click OK.

- If the items do not contain serial numbers but are split across bins, confirm the quantity to be issued at each location.
 Click OK.
- 5. When you have entered quantity requirements, click OK.

Goods are returned to the location they were in prior to being issued.

Stock balances are increased for the returned items using the cost price on the original issue.

1	Serial No	Warehouse	Bin	Supplier	Received	Sell By
1^{i}	23	FACTORY	Factory Bin 1		11/10/2007	11/10/2007
1,	24	FACTORY	Factory Bin 1		11/10/2007	11/10/2007
- ;	25	FACTORY	Factory Bin 1		11/10/2007	11/10/2007
1 ;	26	FACTORY	Factory Bin 1		11/10/2007	11/10/2007
1	27	FACTORY	Factory Bin 1		11/10/2007	11/10/2003
łįţţŗ	butes Eind Auto Select Refresh			Serial numbe	rs selected:	0.0000

Scrapping Finished Items

You can scrap traceable finished items and allow replacement materials to be issued. This may mean updating the production plan or raising new works orders or purchase orders.

Note: Untraceable items cannot be traced to a works order. Therefore, these are written off in Stock Control.

To scrap traceable finished items

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Processing > Scrap > Scrap Finished Items.

Details			
Works Order No.		•	
Location			
Reference			
Write Off Category			
Scrap Reason Code	sc01	~	
Reason Text			<u>_</u>
			9
Qty to Scrap	0.00000		
Reissue Qty	0.00000		

The Scrap Finished Products window appears.

- 2. Select the works order.
- 3. Select the location.
- 4. Enter a reference, if required.
- 5. Select the Write-Off Category.
- 6. Select the Scrap Reason Code.
- 7. Enter the reason for the goods being scrapped in the Reason Text box.
- 8. Enter the quantity to scrap.

Note: The quantity must be valid for the stock unit. If not, it is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

9. Enter the quantity to re-issue, if required.

Note: The quantity must be valid for the stock unit. If not, it is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

- 10. To proceed, click OK.
- 11. If you are re-issuing a quantity, the Scrap Traceable Finished Products Selection window appears.

Serial/Batch No.	Available Quantity	Bin	Received	Sell By
24	1	Factory Bin 1	11/10/2007	11/10/2007
			Total Selected	[
			TOCGI DOIOCCOG	

- Select the item to re-issue from the available serial or batch numbers.
 Note: The Total Selected must match the Scrapped Quantity.
- 13. To proceed, click OK.
- Confirm that you want to save changes when prompted.
 A works order is created for the re-issue quantity you specified.

Scrapping Components

During manufacture, components or raw materials may become spoilt or damaged and need to be scrapped. You can scrap materials after issue. The stock levels are automatically adjusted in the Stock Control module.

If components are traceable and part of a completed item on the works order, they cannot be scrapped. However, you can substitute components to scrap. You may need to do this if you need to replace an item that has failed quality control processes. For more information, see *Substituting Traceable Components* on page 422.

To scrap components for a one-off works order

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Processing > Scrap > Scrap Components.

WOP - Scrap (Components								
ielect Works Ord	er and Stage								
N.Order No.		~							
itage		*							
roduct Code	Description	Free Stock	Required	Issued	Scrapped	Available	Scrap Now	Scrap Code	Scrap Text
				No items to disp!	ay				
r.									
1									
								Ōĸ	

The Scrap Components window appears.

- 2. Select the works order from the drop-down list.
- 3. Select the required Stage from the drop-down list.

Components issued against this works order are listed. You can view the amount required and the number of components that have been scrapped already.

4. Enter the amount of the components to scrap in the Scrap Now box.

Note: This must not exceed the quantity that has already been issued. It must be a valid stock unit quantity. If it is not valid, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

If the component is traceable, a list of issued traceable items is displayed when you move from the Scrapped box. Select from the list of traceable item numbers those which are to be scrapped to the value of the quantity in the Scrapped box. If you select a traceable component that has been incorporated in a finished item (a completed works order) then you cannot scrap the item. However, you can substitute the item in the finished item and then scrap the component. For more information, see *Substituting Traceable Components* on page 422.

- 5. Select the Scrap code relating to the reason behind the scrapping.
- 6. Enter any additional text required in the Scrap Text box.
- 7. To proceed, click OK.
- 8. Confirm that you want to save the changes when prompted.

If the component is traceable, the record is retained showing that the items were issued to the works order but the record is marked as scrapped.

A scrap transaction is created and linked to the works order. This shows the date, time, operator, quantity and reason code together with the works order and product.

To scrap components for a batch works order

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Processing > Scrap > Scrap Components.

WOP - Scrap Components		_			_			
elect Works Order and Stage								
W.Order No.	~							
Stage	4							
Product Code Description	Free Stock	Required	Issued	Scrapped	Available	Scrap Now	Scrap Code	Scrap Tex
			No items to displ	ay				

The Scrap Components window appears.

2. Select the works order from the drop-down list.

The components issued against the works order are listed. You can view the amount required and the number of components that have been scrapped already.

3. To scrap components, select the required component and enter the total number of components scrapped in the Scrap Now box.

Note: This must not exceed the quantity that has already been issued. It must be a valid stock unit quantity. If it is not valid, the quantity is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

4. If the component is traceable, and you enter a scrapped quantity that is less than the quantity issued to the works order, a list of traceable items is displayed when you move from the Scrapped box. You must select from the list of traceable item numbers those which are to be scrapped to the value of the quantity in the Scrapped box.

If you select a traceable component that has been incorporated in a finished item (a completed works order) then you cannot scrap the item. However, you can substitute the item in the finished item and then scrap the component. For more information, see *Substituting Traceable Components* on page 422.

- 5. Repeat the above steps for each component.
- 6. To proceed, click OK.
- 7. Confirm that you want to save the changes when prompted.

If the component is traceable, the record is retained showing that the items were issued to the works order but the record is marked as scrapped.

A scrap transaction is created and linked to the works order. This shows the date, time, operator, quantity and reason code together with the works order and product.

Substituting Traceable Components

If a traceable component fails a quality check, you can substitute it within a complete batch works order if:

- The component has been used in the manufacture of a traceable finished item.
- The finished item has not been sold or issued.

To substitute traceable components

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Processing > Substitute Traceable Components.

The Substitute Traceable Components window appears.

WOP - Substitute Trace	able Components		
raceable Assembly			
Works Order:		~	
Assembly Serial/Batch No:		Find By Component	
raceable Components			
Stock Code	Stock Name	Traceable Identification Number	Quantity

- 2. Select the Traceable Assembly. You can use one of the following methods:
 - Enter the works order number. Traceable components identified for the assembly, are displayed.
 - Enter the Assembly Serial/Batch No. Traceable components identified for the assembly, are displayed.
 - Click Find By Component.

The Find Assembly by Component window appears.

nponent Details	
Stock Code:	×
Identification No:	

- Select the Stock Code of the component.
- Select the Identification No of the component.

Note: If the item is present on multiple works orders, you must select the works order.

Traceable components identified for the assembly, are displayed.

- 3. Select the operation that you want to perform for the assembly, from the Amend Traceability drop-down list. You can:
 - Swap a component. See *To swap a component on page 423*.
 - Change a component's assembly. See To change the component's assembly on page 425.
 - Add a component. See *To add a component on page 425*.
 - Return the component to stock. See *To return the component to stock on page 426*.
 - Scrap the component. See To scrap the component on page 427.
- 4. To compare the stock quantities and the stock items with the current active BOM, click Compare with BOM.

Note: If you are using BOM Versioning, and have a more recent version of the BOM than the one that was used to create the works order, then the comparison will not be valid because it will be between the works order created from the original BOM and the current active BOM which will be different.

- 5. To view a list of the changes you have made, click Audit.
- 6. To clear the displayed details, click Clear.
- 7. Click OK when you have finished substituting traceable components.

To swap a component

- 1. Select the traceable component you want to swap, from the list of Traceable Components.
- 2. Select Swap from the Amend Traceability drop-down list.

The Swap Traceable Component window appears.

tock : Serial Comp	oonent 1 ID : 2345	Qty :	1.00000
omponent			
Stock Code:		*	
Identification No:			
ee Stock Complete	ed Works Orders		
ee Stock Complete Warehouse	ed Works Orders Bin No items to	Quantity	Qty To Add
ee Stock Complete Warehouse	ed Works Orders Bin No items to	Quantity display	Qty To Add
ee Stock Complete Warehouse	ed Works Orders Bin No items to	Quantity display	Qty To Add

3. Select the Component source.

You can swap a component from free stock (Stock Code), or a component from an existing completed full component traceability works order (Identification No).

Note: The stock code does not have to match the code on the component you are swapping. However, you cannot swap a component which is linked to other allocations, or a temporary traceable item.

- 4. Select the component you want to swap.
 - If you selected from Stock Code, select the component from the Free Stock list.
 - If you selected from Identification No, select the component from the Completed Works Orders list.

The available components are listed.

5. If the component is batch traceable, enter the Qty To Add.

Note: You can enter a different quantity from the component you are swapping. However, you should ensure that the quantity you are swapping is sufficient to make the finished assembly quantity.

6. Click OK.
The traceable component is swapped with the original component on the assembly's list of traceable components.

To change the component's assembly

- 1. Select the traceable component from the list of traceable components.
- Select Change Component's Assembly from the Amend Traceability drop-down list. The Change Assembly window appears.

raceable Comp	onent	
Stock : Serial	Component 1 ID : 2346	Qty: 1.00000
love Componer	t To Assembly:	
ove componer	e to Hasolibly.	
Works Order:	WO0004	*
ssembly		
1000mony		
Serial/Batch No:		
Serial/Batch No.		

- 3. Select the Move Component To Assembly details from the drop-down lists.
 - Select a Works Order.

Note: The current works order is selected by default.

- Select an Assembly Serial/Batch No.
- 4. Click OK.

The traceable component is moved from the current assembly to the selected assembly selected.

To add a component

 Select Add Component from the Amend Traceability drop-down list. The Add Component window appears.

WOP - Add Com	iponent		
dd Component			
Stock Code:	Serial Component 1		~
Identification No:			
ee Stock Complet	ed Works Orders		
Warehouse	Bin	Free Stock	Quantity

- 2. Select the component identification.
 - Select the Stock Code.
 - Select the Identification No.

You can add a component from free stock (Stock Code) or from an existing completed full component traceability works order (Identification No).

The available components are listed on either the Free Stock tab or the Completed Works Orders tab.

- 3. Select the Free Stock or Completed Works Orders tab.
- 4. Select the component from the list of available components.

If the component is a serial item, only one component item will be listed. If it is part of a batch, many component items may be listed.

- 5. Enter the Quantity to add for the selected component.
- 6. Click OK.

The traceable component is added to the assembly's list of traceable components.

To return the component to stock

- 1. Select the traceable component from the list of traceable components.
- 2. Select Return Component To Stock from the Amend Traceability drop-down list.

The Return To Stock window appears.

Traceable	e Component				×
Stock :	Batch Component 2	ID:	6543	Qty :	16,00000
loture C	meanant To Stady				
Return Ci	omponent to stock: -				
Location	FACTORY		Unspecified		
Quantity:	16.00000 #				
-	[

- Select the Location to return the component to.
 Note: By default, the location displayed is where the component was issued from originally.
- 4. If the component is batch traceable, enter the Quantity of the component you are returning to stock.
- 5. Click OK.

The component is returned to stock.

To scrap the component

- 1. Select the traceable component from the list of traceable components.
- 2. Select Scrap from the Amend Traceability drop-down list.

The Scrap Component window appears.

:ock : MO	U/ALU/FRAME	ID: 35481234	Qty: 1.00	000
icrap Compo	nent			
crap Code:	52	•		
escription:	Scrap Descript	ion 1		
eason:				
uantity:	1.00000	1		

- 3. Select the Scrap Code. The Description is shown automatically.
- 4. Enter Scrap Text which describes the reason for scrapping the component.

- 5. If the component is batch traceable, enter the component Quantity you are scrapping.
- 6. Click OK.

The component is written off.

Entering Operation Times and Costs

You can enter progress and times of operations against a works order. For those works orders created from an estimate (one-off works orders) you can compare actual times entered here, against your original estimated times.

For works orders not created from an estimate (batch works orders), the procedure for entering operation times varies slightly. It is assumed these entries will be made using one of the works order documents, for example the Job Card, Route Card or Operation Card.

To enter operation times

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Processing > Enter Costs > Operation Times/Costs.

The Enter Operation Times/Costs window appears.

Works Order D	etails					
W.Order No.	1		*	Time 13:44	*	
Stage			~			
Reference		Description	Date	Completed	Labour	Machin
			21 1994 - 3 00 1993 - 5 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	N STATISTICS IN		
			17/10/2007	0.00000		
			17/10/2007	0.00000		

- 2. Select the works order from the drop-down list.
- 3. If the works order is a one-off operation, select the Stage from the drop-down list. The operation details are displayed in the window.
- 4. If the operation is not on the list (it is an addition to the estimated operations) or if the works order is a batch order (the works order was not created from an estimate), you will need to enter a Reference and Description manually.

Note: Once created, operations are permanently stored against works orders.

5. If appropriate, enter the quantity now completed.

If this is not a batch works order, leave the quantity as '0' (zero), or enter '1' as appropriate.

6. Enter the labour, machine, setup and subcontract cost times.

Note: Manufacturing has a unique entry system for entering times. You can enter time in any of the following formats:

Entering 65 would display 65h 0m (65 hours zero minutes).

Entering 6{space}5 would display 6h 5m (6 hours 5 minutes). Entering 6h5m would display 6h 5m (6 hours 5 minutes). Entering 65m would display 1h 5m (1 hour 5 minutes).

7. Enter the costs by clicking within the Costs box and clicking the down arrow.

The costs so far recorded against the operation are displayed, broken down over the various cost headings.

Cost Type	Rate	Cost
Labour	17.00000	0.00000
Machine	26.00000	0.00000
Setup	12.00000	0.00000
Tooling	0.00000	0.00000
Subcontract	0.00000	0.00000
votes:		
Ensure gears work		~
		~

 If the operation has been stored via an estimate or from the Operations Register, the cost of the time entered will already have been calculated for each category.

If this is an additional operation not drawn from the Operations Register you will need to enter rates as appropriate.

- Enter any notes required on this screen for information purposes only.
- To save the details, click OK.
- 8. To save the information, click Save.

To view operation details for a one-off works order

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Records > One-Off > Amend Works Order.
- 2. Select the works order.
- 3. Select the Stages tab.
- 4. Click within the Description box.
- 5. Click on the box at the right hand edge of the Description box, to display the Stage Details information.
- 6. Click the Tracking tab.

The Tracking information appears.

	Estimate/Actual Invoices/C	redit Notes Allocations/Issues Tracking Memo		
5eq. /	Reference	Description	Quantity	Complete Type
0.00	Gears pack Assembly	Assemble a gear pack	1.00000	0.00000
		Print		

- 7. Select the operation Reference and click Times/Costs to view additional information about times and costs entered against each cost category for the operation.
 - When you have finished viewing additional information, click Close.
- 8. To continue, click OK.

Note: You can view the cost that you entered, and see if what you estimated was greater or less than the actual costs by looking at the Estimate/Actual tab for the works order against the stage. For more information, see *The Stages tab (One-Off Works Order)* on page 386.

9. To close the Works Order Details window, click Close.

To view operation details for a batch works order

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Records > Batch > Amend Works Order.
- 2. Select the works order.
- 3. Click the Tracking tab.

The Tracking information appears.

ain Details	Additional Details Sales Orders	MEMO Allocations/Issues Tracking Latest Costs	Attached Files Analysis	s Codes
Seq. /	Reference	Description	Quantity	Complete Type
0.00 🚔	Gears pack Assembly	Assemble a gear pack	1.00000	0.00000
5.00	Mountain Bike Painting	Painting a Mountain Bike	0.00000	0.00000

- 4. Select the operation Reference and click Times/Costs to view additional information about times and costs entered against each cost category for the operation.
 - When you have finished viewing additional information, click Close.
- 5. To close the Works Order Details window, click Close.

Posting Actual Times and Costs to Works Orders

The Timesheets option lets you post actual times and costs to works orders. This is similar to what you can do from within Operation Times, but the information is entered from employee timesheets rather than Route Cards, Job Sheets or Operation Cards.

All of the employees time can be entered on this screen, even if it does not directly apply to a works order. The Non-Chargeable Time option lets you record these costs.

Before continuing, ensure that you have set up any necessary records in the following modules:

- Labour Categories. For more information, see Labour Categories on page 82.
- Employees. For more information, see *Employees* on page 84.
- Non-Chargeable Time. For more information, see Non-chargeable Time on page 90.

To enter timesheets

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Processing > Enter Costs > Timesheets.

The Enter Timesheets window appears.

🗏 WOP - Enter Tir	nesheets			
Employee Details Employee No, Surname	~		Date Total Hours	17/10/2007 💌 Oh Om
Breakdown (Use NA fo	r Non-Chargeable Time)			
W.Order No.	Op.Reference	Date	Started	Finished
		17/10/2007		
٠	,			<u>}</u>
Hours Entered	m Stage F	Reference		
Save Cle	ar <u>M</u> emorise	Recall		

2. Select the required Employee No. from the drop-down list.

The employee's surname appears automatically.

- 3. Enter the date you want to use as a default for the breakdown entry.
- 4. If you have turned on the option to enable Total/Analysis Checking in Works Order Settings, enter the total number of hours the employee has worked in this period. For more information, see *The Timesheets/Labels tab* on page 344.

Note: The hours analysed for the breakdown must equal the total hours entered here.

- 5. Enter chargeable or non-chargeable time. For more information see *To enter chargeable time* on page 436 and *To enter non-chargeable time* on page 435.
- 6. Click within the Category Ref. box and select the required labour category.

Note: The category applies to this one entry; further postings will use the category stored against the employee record. If you want to change the labour category an employee is assigned, you should do this through the Employees module. For more information, see *Employees* on page 84.

- 7. Repeat the process for the other items until the whole timesheet has been entered.
- 8. To post the timesheet, click Save.

Note: Remember that if you have turned on the option to enable Timesheet Total/Analysis Checking in Works Order Settings, you will not be able to leave this screen unless the breakdown hours analysed is equal to the total hours entered.

9. To store this timesheet as a template for future timesheets, click Memorise.

The Memorise window appears.

🖷 WOP -	Memorise Timesheet]
Enter a nar	rative so that this timesheet can be easily recalled at a later date.	
Narrative		

- Enter a narrative to be associated with this timesheet.
- To save the timesheet with the narrative, click OK.
- 10. To recall a memorised timesheet, click Recall.

The Recall Timesheet window appears.

Employee	Date	Narrative
1537/Stephen	17/10/2007	Employee 1

Select the timesheet you want to recall.

- To recall the timesheet, click OK.
- The timesheet details are displayed on screen. You can process the timesheet as normal.
- 11. To delete a memorised timesheet, click Recall.

The Recall Timesheet window appears.

- Select the timesheet you want to delete.
- To delete the timesheet, click Delete.

To enter non-chargeable time

- 1. In the Enter Timesheets window, click within the W. Order No. column.
- 2. To enter times and costs which apply to a works order, select the works order in the following way.
 - Click on the box at the right hand edge of the W.Order No. box, to display the Select Works Order and Stage window.

The Select Works Order and Stage window appears.

Select Works Order and Stage	
W.Order No.	~
Stage	~

- 3. To enter times and costs which do not directly apply to any works order, enter 'NA' in the W. Order No. column.
- 4. Enter the labour time spent on this non-chargeable activity.

Note: Manufacturing has a unique entry system for entering times. You can enter time in any of the following formats:

Entering 65 would display 65h 0m (65 hours zero minutes).

Entering 6{space}5 would display 6h 5m (6 hours 5 minutes).

Entering 6h5m would display 6h 5m (6 hours 5 minutes).

Entering 65m would display 1h 5m (1 hour 5 minutes).

Note: Machine, setup and quantity completed are irrelevant for non-chargeable entries.

5. Click within the Costs column and click the down arrow to enter rates and costs for the entry.

Any costs so far recorded against the entry are displayed and broken down over the various cost headings.

17.00000 #1 26.00000 12.00000	0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
26.00000 12.00000	0.00000
12.00000	0.00000
	~
	~
	2

- If you have decided not to use the employee rate for timesheets then you will need to
 enter the rate of this activity manually. If you don't enter the rate manually, the cost of
 the time entered will already have been calculated.
- Enter any notes on this screen for information purposes only.
- To save your details, click OK.

To enter chargeable time

- 1. In the Enter Timesheets window, click within the W. Order No. column.
- 2. Click on the box at the right hand edge of the W.Order No. box, to display the Select Works Order and Stage window.
 - Select the works order from the drop-down list.
 - If you choose a one-off works order, select the stage from the Stage drop-down list.
 - Click OK.
- 3. Click within the Op. Reference column.
- 4. Click on the box at the right hand edge of the Op. Reference box, to display the Select Operation window.
 - Select the operation that this employee has performed. This is important so the works order can be progressed automatically.
 - To proceed, click OK.
- 5. Enter the quantity completed.
- 6. Enter the period of time taken for Labour, Machine and Setup.

You can enter a Started and a Finished time. These values are used as to calculate the time spent on a works order. After you have entered both times, the duration will be calculated and then entered automatically in the Labour box.

Note: Manufacturing has a unique entry system for entering times. You can enter time in any of the following formats:

Entering 65 would display 65h 0m (65 hours zero minutes). Entering 6{space}5 would display 6h 5m (6 hours 5 minutes). Entering 6h5m would display 6h 5m (6 hours 5 minutes). Entering 65m would display 1h 5m (1 hour 5 minutes).

7. Click within the Costs column and click the down arrow to enter rates and costs for the entry.

The costs so far recorded against the entry are displayed, broken down over the various cost headings.

Cost Type	Rate	Cost
Labour	17.00000	0.00000
Machine	26.00000	0.00000
Setup	12.00000	0.00000
Notes:		
Notes: Ensure gears work		~

- If you have decided not to use the employee rate for timesheets then the rate from the operation will be used.
- You may also enter any notes on this screen for information purposes only.
- To save the details, click OK.

Making Postings for Non-stock/Other Expenses

(One-off Works Orders Only)

Most costs entered through Manufacturing can be posted using the Stock, Operation Times and Timesheets routines. The Non-Stock/Other Expenses option enables postings against one-off works orders for costs which cannot be entered elsewhere within the system. Examples of such costs are payments made out of petty cash, or purchases of items not being processed through the Purchase Ledger. These Non-Stock/Other Expenses may optionally update your Nominal Ledger, depending upon your setting in Nominal Ledger Settings. For more information, see *Nominal Settings* on page 37.

To make postings for non-stock or other expenses

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Processing > Enter Costs > Non-Stock/Other Expenses.

not restrict storage and the	penses to				
/orks Order/Stage					
/orks Order Number		~			
tage		~			
-					
on-Stock Items Other Expenses					
Description	Quantity	Cost Price	Total	Nom. Ref	Date

The Post Non-Stock/Other Expenses window appears.

Note: Since the cost types Operation Times and Stock Items are entered under their own headings, only two cost types are available on this screen, Non-Stock Items and Other Expenses. If non-Stock items are processed through the Purchase Ledger, they would be entered under Purchase Invoices.

For more information about the options on the tabs, please see the following sections.

Non-stock Items

To enter non-stock items

- 1. In the Post Non-Stock/Other Expenses window, select the Works Order Number.
- 2. Select the Stage.
- 3. Select the Non-Stock Items tab.
- Enter a description for this entry, followed by a quantity and cost price'. The Total will then be calculated.
- 5. If you are updating your Nominal Ledger with this posting, you may now enter an appropriate Nom.Ref. and confirm or amend the accounts to be debited and credited.
- 6. Repeat the above procedure to make further entries.
- 7. On completion click OK.

Other Expenses

Specific other expenses must be set up prior to using this option. If you have not already defined these costs see *Expense Types* on page 88.

To enter other expenses

- 1. In the Post Non-Stock/Other Expenses window, select the Works Order Number.
- 2. Select the Stage.
- 3. Select the Other Expenses tab.

ris order Number	WO0009		~			
ge	BOM		*			
n-Stock Items Othe	er Expenses					
leference	Description	Quantity	Cost Price	Total	Nom. Ref.	Date

- 4. Click within the Reference box.
- 5. Click on the box at the right hand edge of the Reference box to display the Select Expense Type window.

The Select Expense Type window appears.

elect Expense Ty	pe	×
Reference	/ Description	
Delivery	Delivery Costs	
Packing	Packing Costs	
		OK Cancel

Select the Expense Type and click OK to return to the Other Expenses tab.

The Reference, Description, Cost Price and Date are automatically entered in the relevant columns of the Other Expenses tab. The Nom. Ref. is entered if this has been set up within the Expense Types register.

6. Enter a quantity and move to the Total box.

Manufacturing calculates and inserts the total automatically for you.

- 7. Repeat the above procedure to make further entries.
- 8. On completion, click OK.

Costing a Works Order

(Batch Works Orders Only)

Manufacturing keeps a record of the theoretical cost of each batch works order. This record is not automatically updated when individual costs change, or for the first calculation of the costs, but is updated when the works order has been completed. As a result, you may notice an apparent discrepancy between the results of a costing, before and after production. This is because when production is complete, Manufacturing calculates the costing using actual costs.

To cost a works order

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Processing > Cost Works Order.

The Cost Batch Works Order window appears.

🖥 WOP - Cost Be	atch Works Order				
Reference	BOM Reference	Qty Required	Materials	Labour	Setup
•	r]		Þ
Cost	Breakdown of Costs	it.		(⊆lose

Note: You can also cost works orders from on the Latest Costs tab within the batch Works Order Details window. For more information see *To display current latest costs on page* 443.

- 2. Select the required works order from the Reference drop-down list.
- 3. To calculate the costs, click Cost.
- 4. If the Ignore Zero Costs check box is not selected, and the costing process encounters an item with a zero cost, the Enter Cost Prices window appears.

WOP - Enter Cost Prices		_	_	_
Product Code	Description	Cost Price	In Stock	Cost /
MOU/ALU/20WHEELFRAME	20" Aluminium Wheel Frame	0.00000	0.00000	.00000
		ĺ	ок	Cancel

- Enter the cost for the item.
- Click OK to return to the Cost Batch Works Order window.
- 5. To produce a report detailing the current works order costs, click Print.
- 6. To display a graphical breakdown of the costs, click Breakdown of costs. For more information on viewing current latest costs and graphical breakdown, see *The Latest Costs tab (Batch Works Order)* on page 372.

Note: The unit cost of any manufactured item may vary depending upon the size of the batch. This is due to the setup costs and any variable subcontract costs which may be spread over a greater number of units.

7. To close the Cost Batch Works Order window, click Close.

To display current latest costs

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Records > Batch > Amend Works Order.
- 2. In the Works Order Details window, display the details for the required works order.
- 3. Click the Latest Costs tab.
- 4. Click the Breakdown of Planned Costs option to display a graphical breakdown of the planned costs or click Breakdown of Actual Costs to display a graphical breakdown of the actual costs.
- 5. Click Cost Now to calculate the works order costs.
- 6. Click Close, to close the window.

Creating/Updating BOM

(Batch Works Orders Only)

For batch works orders, as you can amend the working BOM, you can also update the amendments and write these amendments back to the Bill of Materials module, either as an update to the original BOM, or as a completely new BOM.

To update the BOM

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Processing > Update BOM.

The Update Bill of Materials window appears.

🕮 WOP - Update Bill of Ma	aterials 🛛 🗙
W.Order No. BOM Reference Description	×
Replace existing Bill of Mater New BOM Details BOM Reference Description	ial details
	OK Cancel

- 2. Select the required works order from the drop-down list.
- 3. To update the original BOM and replace the existing information, select the 'Replace existing Bill of Material details' check box.

Note: This replaces any information you had previously for this bill of materials.

- 4. To write a new bill of materials, clear the 'Replace existing Bill of Material details' check box, and choose a product to create the new bill of materials for.
 - Select an existing product in the Stock Control module from the BOM Reference drop-down list.
 - Create a new product by clicking New Product, and entering the details in the Stock Control module directly.

Note: You cannot choose an existing product that already has a BOM created.

5. To confirm the amendments, click OK.

Converting a One-off Works Order into a BOM

(One-off Works Orders Only)

You can convert your one-off works orders into standard BOMs. This option handles the creation of stock items in the Stock Control module automatically. In addition, you are prompted to create stock items for all of the non-stock items that exist on the works order.

To convert a works order into a BOM

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Processing > Convert One-Off to BOM.

WOP - Convert to Bill of Material
Works Order to Convert
Works Order No.
New BOM Details
Product Code
Description
OK Cancel

The Convert to Bill of Material window appears.

- 2. Select the required works order from the drop-down list.
- 3. Enter the Product Code and Description for the new BOM.

Note: You cannot enter an existing Product Code.

4. To convert the works order to a BOM, click OK.

If you have non-stock items on this works order, the Enter New Stock Item window appears for each item. You must enter a stock code for every non-stock item on the estimate.

When you have entered your product codes, the new BOM appears in the Bill of Materials List.

Enquiring on Orders

Use Order Enquiry to check whether you have ordered everything you need to fulfil the works order.

For Order Enquiry to give accurate results, perform the following before running the process.

- Allocate Stock
- Run MRP

Order Enquiry relies on the tags generated by the Run MRP process.

The enquiry will show a list of components for the works order selected in the Works Order No. box. If the Multi-Level check box is selected, components are also listed for all associated sub-assembly works orders.

The enquiry also lists purchase orders or works orders raised for components.

Note: You can also access the Order Enquiry window through the Order Enquiry button on the Allocations/Issues tab for batch works orders, or the Estimate/Actual tab for one-off works orders.

To enquire on orders

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Processing > Order Enquiry.

The Order Enquiry window appears.

	nquiry					- D ×
Works Order Detail Works Order No. BOM Reference Enquiry Status						✓ Multi-Level
Items:						
Works Order No.	Stage Reference	Product Code	Description	Required	Allocated	Issued
•						
					ŀ	Þ
Order Type	Order Number	A/C	Name No orders to display	Due Date	Status	Quantity

2. To show components for associated sub-assembly works orders along with the highest level works order in the Works Order No. item section of the window, select the Multi-Level check box.

This ensures all works orders associated with the one you enter in the Works Order No. box are displayed in the Works Order No. item section of the window.

Note: The Multi-Level check box is selected by default. Clear the Multi-Level check box if you do not want to list all associated works orders in the Works Order No item section of the window.

- 3. Select the required works order from the Works Order No drop-down list.
- 4. Click Go.

Works orders are shown in the Works Order No. section of the window.

The Enquiry Status box indicates generally how many items are outstanding and need to be ordered to fulfil the works orders.

- 5. If some or all items are outstanding in the Enquiry Status box, check the figure in the Qty Outstanding column to determine the stock shortfall that still needs to be ordered.
- 6. Select a component in the Works Order No. item list to display purchase or works orders raised for that component. Purchase or works orders raised are displayed in the Order Type section of the window.
- 7. Double-click the purchase order or works order to display further information about when it was raised, when the due date is, and so on.
- 8. To close the enquiry screen, click Close.

Viewing Tags and Exceptions

You can find and view all tags and exceptions with a particular recommendation reference, purchase order number, works order number or sales order number.

To view tags and exceptions

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Tags/Exceptions.

The Display Tags/Exceptions window appears.

PLN - I	lisplay	Tags/Exce	ptions			
eference.	WOOD	05				Go
Tags E	xception	s				
	XPL WOO P/O (W/O V/O V/O V/O V/V V/V V/V V/V	0001 0000000004 (1 W/O WO0003 MRP MRP(W/O WO0022 MRP h W/O WO0022 W/O WO0022	(11/10/2007 - E /10/2007 - Ma (11/10/2007 - 000003 (11/10/ 0000000005 (11, 4RP000005 (11, 4RP000005 (11, 2 (11/10/2007 - 2 (11/10/2007 -	uy 12.00000 ke 5.00000 N Make 10.000 2007 - Buy 9 2007 - Mai 10/2007 - Bu 10/2007 - Bu 10/2007 - Bu 10/2007 - Bu Make 3.0000 Make 3.0000	ACC/PUMP) 10U/ALU/FINI00 00000 MOU/ALU 00000 MOU/ ce 10.00000 Jy 6.00000 M Jy 9.00000 M Jy 920.00000 10 MOU/ALU/ 00 MOU/ALU/	ISHEDBIK /20FINIS /20INCHT MOU/A OU/ALU/ OU/ALU/ MOU/AL SUSPENS SUSPENS
< Expan	d All)	 	Action	Shov	All	>
					. [

2. Enter the Reference required and click Go.

The tags and exceptions are displayed on the Tags and Exceptions tabs. By default, tags are fully expanded.

- 3. To collapse tags or exceptions, click the minus sign ('-') next to the higher level tag or exception, or click Collapse All.
- 4. To expand tags or exceptions, click the plus sign ('+') next to the higher level tag or exception, or click Expand All.
- 5. To close the window, click Close.

Viewing Subcontracting Operations

(Batch Works Orders Only)

By default, when you click Works Orders from the Navigation Bar, the Works Orders List is displayed. You can switch to the Subcontracting List to view all the subcontracting operations for all of the live works orders.

To view subcontracting operations

- From the Navigation Bar, choose Works Orders > Subcontracting > Subcontracting List. The Subcontracting List appears.
- 2. Select the option that you require from the icons at the top of the Subcontracting List or from the Navigation Bar.

Record	Click Record to display details about the subcontract operation.
Raise Purchase Orders	Click Raise Purchase Orders to raise purchase orders for the selected subcontract operations.
	 Select the works orders you want to raise purchase orders for.
	• Change the supplier, quantity to order, cost price, lead time, order date or due date, if required.
	Click Raise Orders.
Despatch	Click Despatch to enter the quantity being despatched to a subcontractor.
	 Select a supplier to whom you are despatching subcontract materials, and then select the subcontract operation from the W. Order No. drop-down list.
	The system checks whether or not a purchase order has been placed with the supplier for this operation. If not, the row is highlighted as a warning but you can continue to despatch to the supplier.
	The system also checks whether the quantity despatched exceeds the outstanding quantity for the operation.
Print Advice Note	Click Print to print or re-print advice notes.

Waiting to be posted

Note: This option is only applicable if you are using the Operation Times module. For more information, see the *Sage 200 Operation Times* documentation.

If you have selected Use Batch Updates (see *The Operation Times tab* on page 350) then all postings made using Operation Times, whether manually, or via terminals, will be stored in the waiting postings file for review before they are posted to the works orders. This option allows complete control over postings made on the shop-floor and also allows for additional postings to be made to the Nominal Ledger.

To view the waiting postings file

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Operation Times > Waiting to be Posted.

🚟 WOP - Operation Times Waiting To Be Posted - 🗆 × Actual Lab. Mins Actual Mach Stage Reference Op.Reference Liser Name W.Order No. BOM Reference Description Entry Date/Time ₩00001 MOU/ALU/20WH ... 20" Aluminium Mountain Bike 19/10/2007 10:18 4 Totals Select All Swap Clear Print OK Cancel

The Operation Times Waiting To Be Posted window appears.

This window shows all of the postings that have been made, either manually or from terminals, using Operation Times.

2. The postings are grouped by works order number, stage and then operation reference.

Note: This is for ease of reference, but you can change this by dragging and dropping the column headers.

- 3. As these are actual postings from the shop floor, you must take care when modifying the information.
- 4. To delete postings, highlight the entry and press F8.
- 5. To update the actual costs against the various works orders, click Post Operation Times and click Yes to confirm that you want to make the postings.

Note: Postings cannot be reversed once they have been posted.

The actual costs are updated, nominal postings are made (if nominal integration is set), and entries removed from the waiting postings file.

Monitoring Employees Logged onto Works Orders

Note: The Monitor option is only applicable if you are using the Operation Times module. For more information, see the *Sage 200 Operation Times* documentation.

This option allows you to monitor in real-time the number of employees logged onto works orders. You can also review the log files that Operation Times collates, so that proper analysis can be undertaken.

To monitor employees logged onto works orders

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Operation Times > Monitor > Summary.

'OP - Monitor O	peration Times (F	Running)		And the second	2 4 3	
resh every 10	econds.	Start Sto	p Delete	∥ 🖬 🛍 🗠 🌢		a 😔
nployee	W.Order No	. BOM Refer	ence	8 100		+- Employe
16483/Simon				5 50- ≩ 3	,	
6483/Simon	WO0001	MOU/ALU/3	20WHEELF	장 0 1 물 10:14	10:14	-+- W/Orde
				Po	lled	
at Chabian		From Ottoplas		/2007		Defrech
Le Station J <u>MLL</u>				12007		Kerresi
ory Analysis H	istogram					
Zeenlausee	Turne	Data/Tima	W. Order No.	Cha Defevence	On Deference	Chabian
Employee 41537	Type LOGON	Date/Time 19/10/2007 10:11:57	W.Order No. WO0001	Stg.Reference	Op.Reference Mountain Bike Whe	Station SAGE004385
Employee 41537	Type LOGON	Date/Time 19/10/2007 10:11:57	W.Order No. WO0001	Stg.Reference	Op.Reference Mountain Bike Whe	Station SAGE004385
Employee 41537	Type LOGON	Date/Time 19/10/2007 10:11:57	W.Order No. WO0001	Stg.Reference	Op.Reference Mountain Bike Whe	Station SAGE004385
Employee 41537	Type LOGON	Date/Time 19/10/2007 10:11:57	W.Order No. WO0001	Stg.Reference	Op.Reference Mountain Bike Whe	Station 5AGE004385
Employee 41537	Type LOGON	Date/Time 19/10/2007 10:11:57	W.Order No. W00001	Stg.Reference	Op.Reference Mountain Bike Whe	Station SAGE004385
Employee 41537	Type LOGON	Date/Time 19/10/2007 10:11:57	W.Order No. WO0001	Stg.Reference	Op.Reference Mountain Bike Whe	Station SAGE004385
Employee 41537	Type LOGON	Date/Time 19/10/2007 10:11:57	W.Order No. W00001	Stg.Reference	Op.Reference Mountain Bike Whe	Station SAGE004385
Employee 41537	Type LOGON	Date/Time 19/10/2007 10:11:57	W.Order No. W00001	Stg.Reference	Op.Reference Mountain Bike Whe	SAGE004385

The Monitor Operation Times window appears.

Note: If you use the Retrospective Posting mode to enter data, you will have only one entry in the log file for a job. If you use the online processing mode where you log on and log off jobs, you will have two entries for each time you log on and off that job.

- 2. To monitor the activity, confirm the 'Refresh every' interval; then click Start.
- 3. To stop monitoring, click Stop.

- 4. The grid in the top left hand side of the window shows a list of works orders that each employee is currently logged onto.
- 5. If you need to force an employee to log off, highlight the entry, and click Delete.

Note: This does not log the employee off; it permanently deletes the entry from the database. Therefore, any times that have accumulated for that entry will not be written to the works order.

- 6. On the right-hand side, a graph shows the number of employees and the number of works orders that are logged on at each interval level.
- 7. At the bottom of the screen, you can perform an analysis of the logs generated by each station.
 - Select a station, ensure the dates are correct for the time period you want to analyse, and click Refresh.

The log file information appears.

8. To view the information graphically, click the Histogram tab.

Note: The scale of the graph defaults to showing 100 employees. You can amend the scales to what is most appropriate for your needs.

- Double-click on a bar on the histogram to drill down and see the detail for that bar.
- 9. To close the window, click Close.

Maintaining Works Orders

You can replace components in many works orders and BOMs at the same time, using the Replace Component routine.

The routine in 'Works Orders' is exactly the same as in Bill of Materials. For more information, see *Replace Component* on page 161.

To replace components

 From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Maintenance > Replace Component.

Preparing Works Orders Reports

Works order reports are available in three categories from the 'Works Orders' menu: 'Batch', 'One-Off' and 'Subcontracting'.

Batch Works Orders Reports

The following batch works orders reports are available.

Actual Labour Summary

This provides a summary on the actual labour used in the works order. It may be listed by BOM reference, or by works order.

Actual Labour Times

This report provides detail on the labour times in the works order. You may produce the report with or without costs for individual or for all employees.

Actual Op Times

This indicates the actual times taken during the works order operations. You may produce the report with or without costs for all works orders, by BOM reference, by works order, for outstanding works orders, or for works orders that have work in progress.

Allocations/Issues

This report shows the works orders allocations and issues.

Costing Analysis

This shows an analysis of the works order costs.

Labour Time Comparison

This provides a comparison of the time taken in various labour activities. It may be by works order, for all works orders, or by BOM reference.

List

You can produce a detailed or a summary list of batch works orders.

Operation Times - Currently Processing

This provides a list of operation times for operations that are currently processing.

Outstanding Works Orders

This lists your outstanding works orders. It may be by BOM reference or by status.

Waiting Postings

This lists postings that have not yet been made to the works order.

What's Needed

List what is needed for the works order by BOM reference or by status.

Work In Progress

This report shows the work that is in progress in the works orders and may show all costs for the current work in progress or a valuation of the costs. Valuation may be presented by works order.

Work To Report

This lists the work that is needed to report on the works orders.

Works Order Tracking

This report tracks the works orders and shows where they are in their operational sequence.

Works Orders by Sales Order

This report will show you which works orders apply to your sales orders.

One-Off Works Orders Reports

The following one-off works orders reports are available.

Actual Labour Summary

This provides a summary on the actual labour used in the works order. It may be by works order.

Actual Labour Times

This report provides detail on the labour times in the works order. You may produce the report with or without costs for individual or for all employees.

Actual Op Times

This indicates the actual times taken during the works order operations. You may produce the report with or without costs for all works orders, by works order or for outstanding works orders.

Allocations/Issues

This report shows the works orders allocations and issues. It may be listed by product.

Costs vs Revenue

This shows an analysis of the works order costs against the expected revenue, for all stages or by stage.

Detailed Estimated vs Actual

This provides a comparison of the estimate against the works order. It may show variances only or those works orders that fall outside the allowed variance.

Due Date Report

This report shows the due dates for all works orders.

Job Tracking Report

This report indicates how the works orders have progressed.

Labour Time Comparison

This provides a comparison of the time taken in various labour activities. It may be by works order or for all works orders.

List

You can produce a detailed or a summary list of one-off works orders.

Non-Stock Entries

This lists non-stock entries for the works orders.

Operation Times - Currently Processing

This provides a list of operation times for operations that are currently processing.

Operation Times - Estimate vs Actual

This report provides a comparison of the operation times listed in the estimate against the actual operation times in the works order.

Stock Items Report

This provides a list of stock items used in the works orders.

Transaction Report

This provides a list of works orders transactions.

Waiting Postings

This lists postings that have not yet been made to the works order.

Work In Progress

This report shows the work that is in progress in the works orders and may show all costs for the current work in progress or a valuation of the costs. Valuation may be presented by works order.

Work To Report

This lists the work that is needed to report on the works orders.

Works Order Tracking

This report tracks the works orders and shows where they are in their operational sequence.

Subcontracting Reports

The following subcontracting reports are available.

Work In Progress Report

This report on the progress of subcontracts may be for all works orders, by product, supplier or works order.

To prepare works orders reports

- 1. From the Navigation Bar select Works Orders, and choose Reports.
- 2. Select the required sub-category of report Batch, One-off or Subcontracting.
- 3. Select the report required from the list of available reports in the menu. For more information on preparing reports, see *Sage 200 help*.

To customise works orders reports

You can edit or copy report layouts, or create a new report layout, using Sage Report Designer. For more information, see *Sage Report Designer* documentation.

Note: We advise you to copy your existing report layouts before you edit them. If you edit the standard report layouts, future amendments by us will overwrite your changes.

Cancelling Works Orders

Cancelling a works order prevents any further processing on that works order. Upon cancellation, any stock allocation entries are reversed and, where appropriate, issues are returned to stock. Once cancelled, the works order cannot have stock issued to it, or be marked as completed.

To cancel works orders

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Records > Cancel Works Order

Components		
 Return unused of 	omponent stock	
(Recommended)		
🔿 Do nothing		
NB, Manual stoc	k adjustments may be required	

The Cancel Works Order window appears.

- 2. Select the required works order from the drop-down list.
- 3. If the works order has been part completed, or is being made to satisfy sales orders, select what you want to do with issued component stock.
- 4. To continue, click OK.

The works order status changes to cancelled.

Allocations are reversed and issues are returned to stock.

Note: Any necessary adjustments in stock are made directly in the Stock Control module.

- 5. If the works order is being made to satisfy sales orders, choose how you want to handle any sales orders attached to the works order.
- 6. Click OK to complete the cancellation.

Completing Works Orders

When manufacturing processes are complete, works orders need to be flagged as Completed. Completion increases the stock levels of the finished item.

In addition to completing works orders, in order to update the costs of the finished items and update the Nominal Ledger, if required, you also need to close works orders after you have completed them. For more information, see *Closing Works Orders* on page 470.

The processes for completion differ depending on whether you are working with batch works orders or one-off works orders. For more information see, *Completing Batch Works Orders* on page 460 and *Completing One-Off Works Orders* on page 466.

Completing Batch Works Orders

You can complete a batch works order with a quantity above the value requested on the order.

Note: You cannot fully complete a works order that is linked with a sales order, if the works order quantity does not satisfy the sales order quantity.

The recording of a works order as Completed can either be done on final completion of the whole batch, part completion of a batch, or production can be tracked through the various operations to completion.

Note: Stock must be issued to the works order before it can be flagged as complete unless you have set the Allow at any time completion option within Works Order Settings. For more information, see *The Allocate/Issue/Complete tab* on page 346.

The procedure for completing works orders in whole or part batches depends on whether you have chosen to allow multiple (batches) works orders and are in fact processing more than one works order at one time.

- If you have selected the Allow Multiple (batches only) option within Works Order Settings (see *The Allocate/Issue/Complete tab* on page 346) and are processing more than one batch works order at one time, you cannot record completion of part of a batch. The system will complete the full quantity on the works order regardless of the levels of components issued to the works order. For more information, see the section *To complete multiple batch works orders* on page 461.
- If you have selected the Allow Multiple (batches only) option but are only processing one batch works order, or if you have not selected the option to allow multiple batch works orders, you can record part completions and leave balances outstanding. You can also mark a works order as complete even though a different quantity has been manufactured. If MRP has been run and you have set the Allocate Parent Works Orders option within Works Order Settings, you can also allocate completed stock to tagged works orders (those works orders that have given rise to the current works order). For more information, see the section *To complete single batch works orders* on page 461.

To track goods through the manufacturing process, enter the quantities currently completed at each operation. Once the goods have passed through all the operations required, you can mark
the works order as completed. For more information, see *To record progress of a batch* on page 465.

In order to update the costs of the finished items and update the Nominal Ledger, if required, you also need to close works orders after you have completed them. For more information, see *Closing Works Orders* on page 470.

To complete multiple batch works orders

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Works Orders List.
- 2. In the Works Orders List, select the batch works orders to complete.
- 3. Click Complete.
- 4. Confirm that you want to complete the works orders.

An order is excluded from completion if it has:

- No component issued to it.
- Outstanding allocations.
- Traceable finished items with traceable components.
- A link to a sales order with a higher quantity than that entered for completion on the works order.

Manufacturing updates your stock records in the Stock Control file.

The status of your selected works order changes to 'Completed'.

To complete single batch works orders

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Processing > Complete.

The Complete Works Order window appears.

Norks Order No.		~	
BOM Reference			
Description			
Outstanding	0.00000		
Completion Details			
Date Completed	I		
Jack Flush None	 Single Level O Multi Level 		
Back Flush None Complete regardless of	e O Single Level O Multi Level quantity		Quantitu
Back Flush None Complete regardless of Warehouse	e OSingle Level OMutti Level quantity Bin No items to display		Quantity
Back Flush None Complete regardless of Warehouse	e Single Level Multi Level quantity Bin No items to display		Quantity
Back Flush None Complete regardless of e Warehouse	e Single Level Multi Level guantity Bin No items to display		Quantity
Back Flush None Complete regardless of t Warehouse	e O Single Level O Multi Level quantity Bin No items to display		Guantity

- 2. Select the required works order from the drop-down list.
- 3. Enter the Date Completed. This defaults to the system date.
- 4. The Backflushing selection defaults to the default entered in the Allocate/Issue/Complete tab in Works Order Settings.

Note: Backflushing cannot take place where there is a shortage of components, and multi level backflushing is only available if you are using MRP to raise works orders.

- To issue raw materials retrospectively for the works order, select Single Level.
- To issue raw materials retrospectively for sub-assemblies, select Multi Level.
- To issue no materials retrospectively, select None.
- 5. Select the 'Complete works order regardless of quantity' check box, to mark the works order as entirely complete whether the quantity corresponds to the original works order quantity or not. Leave the check box clear to show an outstanding balance against partially complete works orders.
- 6. Enter the completed quantity in the Quantity column.

If the works order is linked with a sales order, the quantity must be equal to or greater than the sales order quantity.

Note: If the quantity does not match the stocked unit of the finished product it is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

- 7. Enter the location of the components.
 - If you are using multiple locations, enter the completion quantity over the various Warehouse and Bin locations.
 - If the finished item is traceable, and the Stock Control is set to generate traceable numbers automatically then you can change the location from that entered, if required. Otherwise, confirm the traceable item numbers to be given to the completed stock and specify the location into which each item is placed. If there are traceable components, you must match the traceable components to traceable finished items on an additional form. You will not be able to do this if you are fully completing a works order where the quantity of the serial numbered components is not divisible by the works order quantity. In this case, the form will not appear.

Note: If you are part completing a works order that has serial number components, the component quantity must be divisible by the works order quantity.

- If you have set works orders to Allocate Sales Orders on completion, a list of sales that have unallocated lines for the completed item is shown, allowing you to allocate the stock to the relevant lines. By default, completed stock will be allocated to the sales orders linked to the works order but you can change this. The entire completed quantity does not have to be allocated to the sales orders.
- 8. To complete the process, click OK
- 9. Confirm the quantity completed when prompted.
- 10. If any tagged works orders exist for the completed works order, the Allocate Parent Works Orders window appears.

Note: MRP must have been run and the Allocate Parent Works Orders option within Works Order Settings must be set.

ompleted Works Or	der Number	W00004	1		Quantity Comple	ed		5	
ompleted BOM Refe	rence	MOU/ALL	MOU/ALU/SUSPENSIONBIKESHELL		L Total to allocate		5		
orks orders awaitin	g stock allocat	ion							
Works Order	Stage	Reference	Due Date	Issued	Allocated	Outstanding		To Allocate	
NO0002	N/A		11/10/2007		0	0	5		1

The orders are sorted by delivery date.

- 11. Amend the quantity To Allocate.
 - To use default quantities, click Default Quantities.

The quantities are fully allocated against order, from oldest to newest until the completion quantity has been exhausted.

- To enter quantities manually, enter the quantities in the To Allocate box for each order. **Note:** You cannot allocate more than the outstanding quantity.
- 12. To perform the allocations, click OK.

The program checks that physical stock is available for allocating by comparing the free stock with the To Allocate quantity. The Quantity Allocated figure on the product record and the Allocations/Issues record for the product are updated. The status of the works order is changed to 'Part Allocated' or 'Allocated' if the status is 'Entered' or 'Part Allocated'.

- 13. Labels will be printed or previewed (if necessary) and the Latest Costs window appears automatically if you set the relevant option. For more information, see *The Allocate/Issue/Complete tab* on page 346.
- 14. If you entered a completed quantity less than the original works order quantity, and have chosen to complete the works order regardless of the quantity entered, a confirmation message appears.

- Click Yes to return all unused components relating to the difference between the original works order quantity and the quantity now declared as completed. You do have the opportunity to adjust the quantities to be returned to stock.
- Click No to prevent any adjustments to stock.

Manufacturing automatically updates the stock record with the quantity of stock completed and the cost to complete the works order.

Note: The quantity used for costing purposes is always the original works order quantity. This is so that large batches of daily counts can be entered without affecting the overall unit cost.

To record progress of a batch

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Records > Batch > Amend Works Order.

The Works Order Details window appears.

- 2. Select the works order.
- 3. Click the Tracking tab.

The Works Order Tracking information appears.

Complete Type 0.00000 0.00000
0.00000
0.00000

Operations required to complete the works order are listed in sequence order.

- 4. To record the progress of production, select an operation.
- 5. Click Qty Complete.

The Qty Complete window appears.

Enter Completi	on Details	
Reference	Gears pack Assembly	
Description	Assemble a gear pack	
In Progress	1.00000	
Qty Complete	0.00000	
Completed	1.00000 #	

• Enter the quantity that has now passed through the selected operation in the Completed box.

This defaults to the outstanding quantity.

This quantity is automatically rolled forward as the In Progress quantity for the following operation, leaving any balance still to be completed.

6. Continue as necessary to record the progress of the works order.

When you have entered a completed quantity for the final operation, the Complete Works Order window appears.

You can now enter the completed information. For more information on entering the information see *To complete single batch works orders* on page 461.

Completing One-Off Works Orders

When a one-off works order has been finished you should record its completion so that final profitability reports may be printed.

If MRP has been run and you have set the Allocate Parent Works Orders option within Works Order Settings, you can also allocate completed stock to tagged works orders (those works orders that have given rise to the current works order).

In order to update the costs of the finished items and update the Nominal Ledger, if required, you also need to close works orders after you have completed them. For more information, see *Closing Works Orders* on page 470

To complete one-off works orders

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Processing > Complete.

The Complete Works Order window appears.

Works Order No.		*
BOM Reference		
Description		
Outstanding	0.00000	
Completion Details		
Date Completed	a	
Back Elush	○ Sindle Level ○ Multi Level	4
Back Flush 💿 None	O Single Level O Multi Leve	ł
Back Flush None Complete regardless of qu	◯ Single Level ◯ Multi Leve antity	4
Back Flush None Complete regardless of qu Warehouse	○ Single Level ○ Multi Leve lantity Bin	quantit
Back Flush 💿 None	O Single Level O MultiLeve antity Bin Noitems to display	a Quantit
Back Flush None Complete regardless of qu Varehouse	Single Level O Multi Leve antity Bin No items to display	a Quantit
Back Flush None Complete regardless of qu Warehouse	Single Level O Multi Leve	d Quantit
Back Flush	Single Level O Multi Leve	Quantit
Back Flush	Single Level O Multi Leve	Quantit
Back Flush ⊙ None ☐ Complete regardless of qu Warehouse	Single Level O Multi Leve	d Quantit
Back Flush	Single Level Multi Leve Bin No items to display	Guantit

2. Select the required works order from the drop-down list.

The BOM Reference, Description and Outstanding quantity are displayed automatically.

- 3. Select the 'Complete works order regardless of quantity' check box, to mark the works order as entirely complete whether the quantity corresponds to the original works order quantity or not. Leave the check box clear to show an outstanding balance against partially complete works orders.
- 4. Enter the completed quantity in the Quantity column. This defaults to the number Outstanding.
- 5. Enter the location of the components:
 - If you are using multiple locations, enter the completion quantity over the various Warehouse and Bin locations.
 - If the finished item is traceable, and the Stock Control is set to generate traceable numbers automatically then you can change the location from that entered, if required. Otherwise, confirm the traceable item numbers to be given to the completed stock and specify the location into which each item is placed. If there are traceable components, you must match the traceable components to traceable finished items on an additional form. You will not be able to do this if you are fully completing a works order where the quantity of the serial numbered components is not divisible by the works order quantity. In this case, the form will not appear.

Note: If you are part completing a works order that has serial number components, the component quantity must be divisible by the works order quantity.

- If you have set works orders to Allocate Sales Orders on completion, a list of sales that have unallocated lines for the completed item is shown, allowing you to allocate the stock to the relevant lines. By default, completed stock will be allocated to the sales orders linked to the works order but you can change this. The entire completed quantity does not have to be allocated to the sales orders.
- 6. To complete the process, click OK.
- 7. Confirm the quantity completed when prompted.

Note: If the quantity does not match the stock unit of the finished product, it is automatically adjusted to the nearest appropriate value.

8. If any tagged works orders exist for the completed works order, the Allocate Parent Works Orders window appears.

Note: MRP must have been run and the Allocate Parent Works Orders option within Works Order Settings must be set.

mpleted Works Orr	der Number	W00004				Quantity Completed		5	
mpleted BOM Refe	rence	MOU/ALL	MOU/ALU/SUSPENSIONBIKESHELL		Total to allocate			5	
rks orders awaiting	g stock allocat	ion							
Works Order	Stage	Reference	Due Date	Issued		Allocated	Outstanding	To Allocate	-
/00002	N/A		11/10/2007						
					0	0	5		1
					,0	0	5		

The orders are sorted by delivery date.

- 9. Amend the quantity To Allocate.
 - To use default quantities, click Default Quantities.

The quantities are fully allocated against order, from oldest to newest until the completion quantity has been exhausted.

- To enter quantities manually, enter the quantities in the To Allocate box for each order. **Note:** You cannot allocate more than the outstanding quantity.
- 10. To perform the allocations, click OK.

The program checks that physical stock is available for allocating by comparing the free stock with the To Allocate quantity. The Quantity Allocated figure on the product record and the Allocations/Issues record for the product are updated. The status of the works order is changed to 'Part Allocated' or 'Allocated' if the status is 'Entered' or 'Part Allocated'.

- 11. Labels will be printed or previewed (if necessary) and the Latest Costs window appears automatically if you set the relevant option. For more information, see *The Allocate/Issue/Complete tab* on page 346.
- 12. If you entered a Completed quantity less than the original works order quantity, and have chosen to complete the works order regardless of the quantity entered, a confirmation message appears.
 - Click Yes to return all unused components relating to the difference between the original works order quantity and the quantity now declared as completed. You do have the opportunity to adjust the quantities to be returned to stock.
 - Click No to prevent any adjustments to stock.

Manufacturing automatically updates the stock record with the quantity of stock completed and the cost to complete the works order.

Note: The quantity used for costing purposes is always the original works order quantity. This is so that large batches of daily counts can be entered without affecting the overall unit cost.

Closing Works Orders

Some costs associated with a works order may not be known until after the finished item has been completed and added to the company's stock so that it can be sold.

When you have completed works orders, stock levels of the finished item are increased. You must close the works orders in order to update the costs of the finished items and update the Nominal Ledger. For more information on completing works orders, see *Completing Works Orders* on page 460.

Note: You can only close a completed works order.

To close works orders

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Processing > Close.

The Close Works Order window appears.

🕮 WOP - Close Works	Order			_		_ = ×
Close Works Order Works Order Number: Nominal Code:			 			~
	10	1			OK	Cancel

- 2. Select the Works Order Number that you want to close.
- 3. By default, the default asset nominal account to post the cost to is displayed.

If the works order is for a stock item, this defaults to the asset account for the stock item. If it is for a service one-off works order, it defaults to the one-off asset account set in Manufacturing System Manager (see *Nominal Settings on page 37*).

Select a different account if required, from the Nominal Code drop-down list.

4. Click OK.

The unit cost of the finished goods is calculated by dividing the total cost of the works order by the number of completed items. The stock records are updated with the calculated unit costs, and the work in progress and asset of stock records are updated in the Nominal Ledger. The works order is marked as closed.

Creating an Estimate from a Completed Works Order

(One-off Works Orders Only)

You can create an estimate based on the items used in a completed one-off works order. All of the stock items, non-stock items, operations and other expenses that have been used during production will be included in the estimate.

Note: Any items originally estimated for but not used in the completed works order, will not be included in the new estimate.

To create an estimate from a completed one-off works order

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Processing > Create Estimate from One-Off.

The Create Estimate For One-Off Works Order window appears.

Wasks Order No.		1058
Works Order No.		Y
New Estimate Det	ails	
Estimate No.	<autonumber></autonumber>	
A/C ref:		
Short name:		
Postcode:		
Name		_
Contact	First Middle Last	_

- 2. Select the required works order from the drop-down list.
- 3. Enter the Estimate No.

Note: If the setting Automatic Estimate Numbers is set in Estimate Settings then the estimate number will be created automatically. For more information, see *The Numbering tab* on page 173.

4. The customer account on the existing works order is displayed by default. Select the account for whom you are creating the estimate, from the A/C, Short name or Postcode drop-down list.

The Name and Contact details appear automatically.

5. To create the estimate, click OK.

The new estimate will be listed in the Estimating module.

Deleting Works Orders

As Works Orders are cancelled or closed you can remove them.

To delete works orders

1. From the Navigation Bar, click Works Orders and choose Records > Delete Works Order.

The Delete Works Order window appears.

V.Order No.	Reference	Qty Outstanding	Warehouse	Status	Printed	Start Date
W00008	MOU/ALU/18FINISHEDW	4.00000	FACTORY	Entered	No	
WO0009	MOU/ALU/18WHEELFRAME	0.00000	FACTORY	Entered	No	
WO0010	MOU/STE/STANDARDBIK	5.00000	FACTORY	Entered	No	
WO0011	MOU/STE/SUSPENSIONB	6.00000	FACTORY	Entered	No	

- 2. Select the required works orders.
- 3. To delete the works orders, click OK.

Chapter 13 Operation Times

Operation Times is an additional Manufacturing module which puts you in charge of your manufacturing shop floor operation times. It runs alongside Works Orders.

The following sections provide a high level introduction to using Operation Times. Before proceeding, we recommend that you read *Sage Operation Times* documentation in full.

In this chapter:

How Operation Times integrates wir Works Orders	th 474
Setting Up Operation Times within Works Orders	474
Using Operation Times	474
Monitoring Activity	474

How Operation Times integrates with Works Orders

You can use operation times to collect information about job times. You set up preferences for how you want Operation Times to work within Works Orders. For more information, see *The Operation Times tab on page 350*.

Depending on how you set it up, you can enter information after the jobs are completed, or record the time as you do the jobs. For more information, see *Sage Operation Times* documentation.

If you are using Operation Times, you can monitor the work jobs and times from within Works Orders. For more information, see *Waiting to be posted on page 450* and *Monitoring Employees Logged onto Works Orders on page 452*.

Setting Up Operation Times within Works Orders

Operation Times lets you collate times and costs for employees on works orders. By default, it works with the company chosen when it is installed. You can change the company if you select the 'Allow selection of companies' setting within the Operation Times tab of Works Orders Settings. For more information on this setting and all other Operation Times settings, see *The Operation Times tab on page 350*.

Using Operation Times

You can run Operation Times retrospectively, or in real time. This depends on whether you selected the Retrospective Posting check box within Works Orders Settings. For more information, see *The Operation Times tab on page 350*.

When you enter job information retrospectively, you enter all the information at once. When you enter the information in real time, you log onto the works order, then do the work. When you finish you log off the job and confirm the time spent on the job. For more information, see *Sage Operation Times* documentation.

The information is posted either to the waiting postings file or direct to the works order, depending on how you set up 'Operation Times'. For more information, see *The Operation Times tab on page 350*

To use operation times

Run Operation Times.

For more information, see Sage Operation Times documentation.

Monitoring Activity

If you are using waiting postings, you can make adjustments within Works Orders. For more information, see *Waiting to be posted on page 450*. You can also check jobs and times by *Monitoring Employees Logged onto Works Orders on page 452*.

Chapter 14 Glossary of Terms

This chapter contains definitions of frequently used manufacturing terms and a list of acronyms that are used in Manufacturing.

In this chapter:

List of Acronyms	476
Glossary	477

List of Acronyms

A/C	Account
AI	Adjustment In
AO	Adjustment Out
ATP	Available to Promise
BOM	Bill of Materials
CRP	Capacity Requirements Planning
ERP	Enterprise Resource Planning
GI	Goods Inward
GRN	Goods Received Note
JIT	Just In Time
MI	Movement In
MPS	Master Production Schedule
MRP	Materials Requirements Planning
MRP II	Manufacturing Resource Planning
MSM	Manufacturing System Manager
NA	Not Applicable
NS	Non-stock
O/B	Opening Balance
ODBC	Open Database Connectivity
OE	Other Expenses
O/S	Outstanding
PC	Purchase Credit Note
PI	Purchase Invoice
POP	Purchase Order Processing
POP SC	Purchase Order Processing Sales Credit
POP SC SCM	Purchase Order Processing Sales Credit Supply Chain Management
POP SC SCM SI	Purchase Order Processing Sales Credit Supply Chain Management Sales Invoice
POP SC SCM SI SOP	Purchase Order Processing Sales Credit Supply Chain Management Sales Invoice Sales Order Processing
POP SC SCM SI SOP SR	Purchase Order Processing Sales Credit Supply Chain Management Sales Invoice Sales Order Processing Sales Receipt
POP SC SCM SI SOP SR WC	Purchase Order Processing Sales Credit Supply Chain Management Sales Invoice Sales Order Processing Sales Receipt Works Order Cancellation
POP SC SCM SI SOP SR WC WI	Purchase Order Processing Sales Credit Supply Chain Management Sales Invoice Sales Order Processing Sales Receipt Works Order Cancellation Works Order Issue

Glossary

Α

Action Date	The date whereby the next stage in the process is actioned.
Advice Note	A note to a purchaser advising on the intended purchase.
Analysis Codes	Codes used for analysing and reporting on your estimates. You may attach five different analysis codes to each estimate for reporting purposes. For example, you might want to analyse your estimates by industry type and area. Therefore, you would set up analysis codes, 'Industry Type' and 'Area'.
ATP	For more information see <i>Available to Promise</i> on page 477.
Automatic Resolution of Conflict	Conflict in a schedule is automatically resolved within the system. This option is not currently offered within Sage 200 Manufacturing although you can resolve conflicts yourself manually using Graphical Planner. For more information, see <i>Production Scheduling</i> on page 487.
Available to Promise	Stock or planned stock not committed to a definite customer order.
В	
Backflush	The process of moving materials automatically from stock to work in progress based on standard quantity required.
	Note: Without data accuracy and discipline, backflushing can lead to inaccurate inventory records and is therefore not recommended.
Backwards Planning	The system works out when you should start work in order to meet the delivery date.
Balance Sheet	A report on the assets and liabilities of a business, usually at the end of an accounting period. A balance sheet must balance: debits must equal credits.

Barcode	A unique code identifiable by a barcode reader. This can be printed out on various works order documentation, such as picking lists. Using barcodes allows you to speed up the entry of information into the system.
Bill of Materials	The Bill of Materials module allows stock explosion with unlimited components on unlimited levels.
Blow-through Phantom	A phantom BOM usually contains components that are assembled and used in other BOMs. During assembly, the phantom's components are listed in the top level instead of the phantom BOM itself. The components are 'blown through' to the top level. Blow-through phantom is a term that describes the process of blowing through components from a phantom BOM to the top level. For more information see, <i>Phantom Bill of Materials</i> on page 486.
BOM	A list of components that are needed to make up an item of stock or a sub-assembly.
BOM Header	The product code for the finished item or sub-assembly, and any manufacturing instructions relating to the whole build.
Bucket	A time period (for example, a day) in which all demands or requirements are added together and treated as one.
Bulk Issue	The issue of stock in bulk.
С	
Calibration	The process of testing and measuring a machine's response against its expected response.
Calibration History	A record of the tests and results of the calibration process on the machines used within the system.
Calibration Interval	The length of time between required calibration testing for a machine.
Capacity Requirements Planning	The method of evaluating what quantity of materials can be processed on a machine or in a production unit.

Certificate of Conformity	A certificate, issued with a product, which states that the product conforms to standard.
Charge Rate	The rate at which a product or service is charged. It tends to be related to the unit of sale. For example, in 35 pence per mile, 35 pence is the charge rate. Per mile is the unit of sale.
Chargeable Time	Time which can be charged to a specific works order.
Components	Raw materials used to manufacture finished goods.
Conflict	Demands for resource are too high on a particular date.
Consignment Stock	Stock that is only paid for when it is used.
Critical Resource	Anything which limits the company's ability to accept an order from a customer. Often this is final assembly labour or equipment. It can include, however, the capacity of earlier processes or even a vendor's capabilities.
Cross Machine Planning	Machine groups are used to assist planning. All machines in a group typically perform the same function. Instead of applying a single machine to a BOM, you apply a machine group to the BOM. Graphical Planner automatically selects a machine from the machine group to perform the work, based on capacity and loading.
CRP	For more information see <i>Capacity Requirements Planning</i> on page 478.
Cumulative Lead Time	The total time required to make a part.
Custom Layouts	Alternative layouts to standard reports.
D	
Day Code	A code used to identify the day during receipt of goods. It is used as standard in food processing industries. It is also used in other inustries, for example, the pharmaceutical industry.
Default	Information that your computer uses in the absence of other information. Your computer operates in a default way,

	using default information it has been provided with. It will continue to do this until you instruct it otherwise.
Despatch Note	A note issued with goods to the customer.
Direct Expenses	Expenses incurred in the manufacture and sale of a product or service, that is, trading expenses. For example, wages, advertising, sales promotions and machine costs.
Discount	The amount by which a bill is reduced. Discount can be given because the customer is buying in bulk, spending large amounts or receiving discount for prompt payment. It can also be given to a preferred customer.
Down Time	The time that machines, or people are unavailable for production work.
Drawing Register	A record of drawings relating to manufactured items. Details include drawing number, revision details and the physical location of the drawing. Drawings can be cross-referenced to BOMs so that drawing numbers and revision dates appear on Works Orders documentation.
E	
Effectivity Dates	These specify the date to change from using one stock component to another. If you are using old stock before new, these dates need to be continually adjusted. This is because the production schedule changes, stock adjustments are made, and so on. A better route is via the Phantom Bill of Materials. For more information, see <i>Phantom Bill of Materials</i> on page 486.
Employees	The option to store details about your employees. For example, you can store name, address, clock number, charge rate, labour category and so on.
Enterprise Resource Planning	Manufacturing Resource Planning (MRPII) plus resource planning for non-manufacturing areas (plant maintenance, human resource planning, and so on).
ERP	For more information, see <i>Enterprise Resource Planning</i> on page 480.

Estimates	Forecast project costs, based on expected costs of labour, machinery and operation times. In Manufacturing, estimates are produced for one-off items or non-repetitive batches.
Estimating	The process of forecasting your project costs.
Expense Types	Costs which do not fall into any other category. These can be used in estimates and in actual transactions.
Explosion	Breakdown of an item into a greater level of detail. For example, BOM requirements can be exploded into component parts. Items planned in MPS can be exploded by MRP to produce detail material and capacity requirements for the item.
F	
Fence	For more information, see <i>Time Fence</i> on page 491.
Finished Goods	Top level BOM. Contains raw materials and/or components.
Finite Capacity Planning	Computer controlled rescheduling of works orders based on preset capacity resource levels and fixed scheduling rules.
Forwards Planning	You enter the date to start work in order to meet delivery.
G	
Goods Received Notes	Notes which record delivery of goods from suppliers.
Graphical Planner	For more information, see <i>Production Scheduling</i> on page 487.
н	
Horizon Date	A date beyond which data will not be included in the schedule. Data with a due date beyond the horizon date will not be read into the production schedule by MPS

(Master Production Scheduling).

I

Infinite Capacity Planning	Material and capacity planning which is not constrained by anything.
J	
JIT	For more information, see Just In Time on page 482.
Job	The physical tracking of a manufacturing operation within a factory.
Job Card	A job report that shows the original status of the job in production. It also shows the job stages, with the most recent update, the current job time elapsed and expenses.
Job Ready	The option to check whether a job is ready for manufacture, that is, whether all materials have been received into stock.
Just In Time	The reduction of wasteful activities, that is, anything that adds cost but not value to the end product. Examples include production or delivery in excess of requirements, movement of parts and inspection not integrated into the system.
К	
Kaizen	Continuous improvement by small changes.
Kanban	A communication method used to authorise that the system is ready to receive a part. For example, an allocated space on the floor indicates that a part is needed to fill the space. An empty container indicates that parts are needed to fill the container.
Kitting	The act of picking parts from stock that are required to produce a released works order.

L

Labour Category	A skillset definition that allows employees to be grouped according to their function within the production process. This grouping can be used when entering timesheet information or in the Operation Times module.
Labour Costing	Details of labour costs required by a particular operation.
Labour Process	The definition in the Labour Register of a process such as cutting, drilling, assembly or inspection. The record defined has a unique reference, a description, notes and an hourly charge rate for the process.
Labour Register	Holds details of all labour manufacturing processes including times and related costs.
Lead Time	The number of working days elapsing between placing an order for an item and taking delivery. Within some systems lead time means the total time to manufacture.
Μ	
Machine Costing	Details of machine costs required by a particular operation.
Machine Record	The definition in the Machine Register of a machine. The record defined has a unique reference, a description, notes and an hourly charge rate for the machine. It may also hold the number of operating hours before full service and/or ordinary service. Machine type, serial number, location, certificate requirements, calibration requirements and history are stored. Also stored are the operating hours the machine may be used each day.
Machine Register	Holds details of machines used in manufacturing processes, including hourly rates.
Manufacturing Operations	Tasks, such as 'Installing' or 'Fitting', which can be used across BOMs or estimates.

Manufacturing Resource Planning	The integrated planning of a company's material, equipment and people to meet the business plan. The integration requires that the same information (sales forecast, BOM, actual orders, and so on) is used throughout the company.
Manufacturing System Manager	The Manufacturing System Manager module lets you set up common controls to use in the other Manufacturing modules. It is also where you set up the common registers, such as Operations, Machine and Labour.
Master Production Scheduling	The planning of production (usually end item production) to satisfy current and forecast sales orders. The sum of MPS items must equal the agreed sales and operations plan for the items over each planning period. Planning periods are normally a month or a four week period. Items planned within MPS are exploded by MRP (Materials Requirements Planning) to produce the detail material and capacity requirements.
Materials Requirements Planning	A software option that automatically recommends purchase orders, transfers and work orders to balance supply and demand.
Materials Traceability	The ability to track the movement historically of materials used in production and manufacture of jobs. This is normally by means of serial or batch numbers assigned to the items.
Maximum Build Quantity	The maximum number of finished goods you can build with current levels of stock.
Microsoft® SQL Server Database	A relational database management and analysis system.
	Note: A Microsoft® SQL Server database must be installed on your computer before you install Sage 200 Manufacturing. The server database manages your data and ensures the optimisation of networked resources within your system.
MPS	For more information, see <i>Master Production Scheduling</i> on page 484.

MRP	For more information, see <i>Materials Requirements Planning</i> on page 484.
MRP II	For more information, see <i>Manufacturing Resource Planning</i> on page 484.
MSM	For more information, see <i>Manufacturing System Manager</i> on page 484.
Ν	
Nominal Ledger	This is the core ledger in the accounting system. It is updated by most of the transactions posted in all other accounting ledgers. Nominal Account balances provide the Trial Balance, Profit and Loss and Balance Sheet financial statements.
Non-chargeable Time	Time which does not directly apply to any job and therefore cannot be charged to a works order.
Non-stock Items	Items which do not have a product record set up in Stock Control. Such items are usually bought for a specific job.
Non-working Periods	Periods when the company shuts down or when a resource is unavailable. You can build up a table of categories to which time can be booked, such as training, downtime and sickness. These are taken into consideration when calculating capacities and start/end dates of jobs during planning. They are also used in the Timesheets option.
0	
Opening Balances	The balance of accounts when initially opened, or when carried over from a previous accounting period.
Operating Hours	The number of hours a machine operates during each day. This is defined in the Machine Register. You can also specify a number of operating hours before a full or ordinary service is required for the machine.
Operation Card	A report providing details about the operation status.

Operation Times	A module that allows you to collate times and costs for employees on the shop floor.
Operations	The labour and/or machine processes required to manufacture an item.
Operations Register	This holds details of frequently used operations. Using the register enables fast creation of BOMs or estimates.
Overhead	A manufacturing or production expense other than direct labour or materials.
Overhead Recovery	The process of recovering overhead costs in production analysis costing. It is also known as absorption costing. Within Manufacturing, overhead recovery processing lets you make manual or automatic Nominal Ledger postings relating to overheads recovered.
Р	
Phantom Bill of Materials	A BOM that is not used as as a stock component or in raising works orders.
	A phantom is created and structured to contain groups of components, like a standard BOM. It is used in printed reports on stock structures. It can be used to collapse the sub-assemblies to reduce work in progress (wip) and lead-time. It operates as a standard sub-assembly. However, the product code for the finished item does not appear on a higher level works order. Within Manufacturing, the components and operations of phantoms (and nested phantoms) are added to the top-level works order. These components and operations are given a sequence number of zero.
	In some manufacturing systems, phantoms are employed instead of effectivity dates, to use up old stock before introducing replacement parts. If so, the old item is created as a phantom with the new item, the child of the old. Old stock is used up before new stock is ordered. When a phantom has zero stock, it is deleted and the new item is made part of the original BOM.

	Phantoms are also known as non-returnable assemblies and blow-throughs.
Picking List	A report that shows the components required for a build. It shows the quantity required, and the bin location of the components. It is used in the warehouse to assemble the components required for production.
Piece Work	The cost per item (piece). Piece work provides wage labour where workers are paid per unit of production instead of by labour time.
Production Planning	Calculation and display of the resources required to satisfy sales orders and production for stock.
Production Scheduling	A tool for managing production schedules graphically. You can resolve machine conflicts and then address the question of optimum efficiency. Or you can work towards optimum efficiency and then deal with machine conflicts. You control start/finish times for labour and machine operations.
Profit and Loss	A report showing business income and expenditure over an accounting period.
Prospects	Prospective customers who do not exist in the Sales Ledger.
Prospects Database	Where information about prospective customers is held.
Purchase Credits	Notes issued to you if you have returned goods to a supplier. They are normally issued when goods or services are faulty or when the purchase invoice was incorrect.
Purchase Invoices	Issued to you by suppliers as request for payment in respect of the supply of goods or services.
Purchase Ledger	This stores details of your suppliers, and invoices, credit notes and discounts sent to you by suppliers.
Purchase Order Processing	The administrative functions based around processing purchase orders.

Purchase Orders	Documents that state the quantity, description and price of goods and services ordered. They also specify agreed payment terms and discounts, delivery details and other agreements pertinent to the purchase and its supply.
Purchase Payments	Payments made by you to suppliers in respect of invoices for goods and/or services supplied to you.
Q	
Quality Standard	The standard against which the quality of parts and production processes are measured during manufacturing.
Quantity on Hand	Total nettable stock for a part.
R	
Raw Materials	The base materials from which sub-assemblies, components and finished goods are made.
Recost Bill of Materials	The process of calculating the cost of a BOM when prices, components or operations change.
Recost Estimates	The process of calculating the cost of an estimate to reflect stock price changes.
Re-sequence Bill of Materials Components	The process of allocating sequence numbers to BOM components or operations. You can allocate sequence numbers in steps larger than '1' to provide gaps in the numbering sequence. This allows new components or operations to fit into the sequence, if required.
Repeating Job	The requirement to build the same item over several time periods.
Retentions	Moneys retained for a period of time after production. Retentions provide incentives to contractors to avoid or eliminate defects in the goods or services supplied.
Route Card	A report on the route of components and operations within production.

Routing	A list of operations, in sequence, needed to manufacture a part. A routing should include the amount of resource required at each work centre the part passes through. Tooling should also be included in a part's routing. Routing information should be held for every manufactured part and used for capacity planning and costing.
Run Time	The time taken for an operation to complete. This includes machine set-up time.
S	
Safety Stock	The minimum level of stock. Safety stock lets you offer shorter lead times to customers. It also provides continuity of supply if requirements are uncertain. Uncertainties can be due to unreliable machines, fluctuating yields, absence, and so on.
Sales Credits	Notes issued to customers when sales invoices are cancelled. They are normally issued when goods or services are faulty or when the sales invoice was incorrect.
Sales Forecast	The best estimate of future requirements. This is used as input to the MPS (Master Production Schedule). Forecast orders received should be subtracted from the forecast to leave a residual forecast in the master schedule. Total demands can then be calculated as orders plus residual forecast for each time period.
Sales Invoices	Issued to your customers as requests for payment in respect of goods or services supplied.
Sales Ledger	This stores details of your customers. It also holds details of invoices, credit notes and discounts sent to customers and all receipts received from customers.
Sales Order Processing	The administrative functions based around processing sales orders.
Sales Orders	Documents that state the quantity, description and price of goods and services ordered. They also specify agreed payment terms and discounts, delivery details and other agreements pertinent to the sale and its supply.

SCM	For more information, see <i>Supply Chain Management</i> on page 491.
Scrap	The loss of a completed part.
Scrap Percent	A percentage allowance for scrap when issuing a BOM.
Setup Time	The time to set up a machine or production unit to perform an operation.
Shelf Life	The length of time a product or service is marketable.
Six Sigma	A measurement of process quality.
	If you use six sigma methodology, you use all the quality tools available to improve your processes. By doing so, you aim to have no more than '3.4' failures in one million units of production.
Stage Templates	Stage templates provide basic information for stages. They can be applied to different estimates and then tailored to suit.
Stages	Estimating jobs involves breaking the jobs down into stages for accumulation and analysis of job costs. Each job must have at least one stage.
Standard Hours	The most usual unit of measure for capacity planning.
Stock	Goods or raw materials held by a business for resale.
Stock Control	Recording stock details and tracking stock levels.
Stock Forecasting	Predicting stock levels based on future stock movements.
Sub-assembly	When raw materials or components make a part of a finished product. The sub-assembly may be combined with other components or with other sub-assemblies in the manufacture of finished goods.
Sub-assembly Levels	Levels equate to building blocks. The lowest level of sub-assembly provides the building block for the next level, and so on to the finished product.

Subcontract Operations	Operations that are subcontracted to external departments or organisations.
Supply Chain Management	Control of the supply of parts from vendor to customer. Supply Chain Management is also used for short cycle manufacturing, which is the manufacturing element of JIT (Just In Time).
Т	
Time Fence	A point in time when planning rules change. In Master Production Scheduling (MPS), two time fences may be set. Between today's date and the first time fence, only orders should be read. Between the two time fence dates, both forecasts and orders should be read. Following the second time fence, only forecasts should be read.
Timesheets	The option to post times and costs to jobs.
Tooling Costs	Costs incurred through designing, manufacturing and purchasing production tools. Tooling costs depend on whether tools can be used once only, across jobs or are correct for the job.
Traceability	The option to track materials through the system. This is usally by means of serial or batch numbers.
Tracking	Monitoring works orders through the operations shown on a routing. Anticipated delay reporting can eliminate the need for tracking.
Transaction Log	Computer record of MRP material movements.
Trial Balance	A report showing the company's nominal account net balances (either credit or debit) at a given time.
Trial Kitting	Testing the provision of stock for assemblies and showing possible production quantities. Reports show the availability of materials in stock, on order and due for delivery.

U

Unit of Sale	The measure of the sale. For example, per keg, per metre, per box, where keg, metre or box is the unit of sale.
W	
Water Beetle	The process of distributing parts around site kanban locations regularly.
WBS	For more information, see <i>Work Breakdown Structure</i> on page 492.
WIP	For more information, see Work In Progress on page 492.
Work Breakdown Structure	Methodology that supports project cost reporting.
Work Centre	People and equipment treated as one resource for capacity planning purposes.
Work In Progress	A product's value as it moves through production. This is increased by issuing stock and decreased by completing works orders, returning or scrapping stock.
Works Order	The authority to produce a part using the components specified on a BOM and the process specified on the routing.
Works Order Processing	The process of managing works orders. This includes allocating and issuing raw materials/components, and recording progress of operations to completion. On completion, works orders are costed and finished stock is updated. Goods are despatched in the usual way.

Index

Α

Active BOM 142 Actual Costs Breakdown 372 Addina analysis codes 117 batch works orders 355, 356 bill of materials 117 bom revisions 135 certificates of conformity 93 components 123, 159, 366 drawings 62, 66, 179 employees 84 estimates 178 expense types 88 labour categories 82 labour processes 47 machine records 50 make to stock items 112, 254 memos 208, 365 nominal settings 37 non-chargeable time categories 90 non-working periods 26 notes 179, 208 one-off works orders 356 operations 54, 124, 369 overhead recovery settings 27 products to sales forecasts 263 prospects 79 purchase orders 319 recommendations 298 repeating items 259 revisions 66, 133 sales forecasts 262 scrap reason codes 352 stage templates 69 stages 190 works orders 319 Additional Details batch works order 362

estimates 187 one-off works order 381 Aggregate Demand 293, 299 Aareed Concessions 96 Allocate Stock 405, 406 Allowable Variance (%) 343 Amending analysis codes 21 batch works orders 358 bill of materials 135 bom status 141 certificates of conformity 97 colour display 23 drawings 65 employees 86 estimates 209 expense types 89 labour categories 83 labour processes 48 machine records 52 make to stock items 256 memos 208 nominal settings 37 non-chargeable time categories 90 non-working periods 26 notes 179, 208 one-off works orders 376 operations 60 overhead recovery settings 27 picking lists 399 prospects 80 recommendations 311 revisions 66, 135 sales forecasts 264 scrap reason codes 352 stage templates 77 stages 386 works orders 358, 376

Analysis Codes batch works orders 375 bill of materials 132 estimates 205 labels 21 one-off works order 391 Attached Files batch works order 373 bill of materials 127 estimate 202 one-off works order 389 Attaching analysis codes to boms 106, 127 analysis codes to estimates 168 bom or estimate attachments to works orders 343 files or folders to drawings 63 files or folders to estimates 202 files to works orders 373, 389 labour categories to employees 84 Automatically Add Stages to Estimates 70 Automatically Update Dates 294 B Backflushing 349 Back-to-back Ordering 246, 269 Balances adjusting 401 increasing on stock return 415 leave outstanding 460, 462, 467 outstanding 466 remaining 384 Barcode labels 345 operation times 351 Base Quantity for Costing 109 **Batch Works Orders** adding 359, 362 allocations and issues 366 amending 358 analysis codes 375 associated sales orders 364

attaching files or folders 373 cancelling 459 completing 460 costing 372, 442 creating BOMs 444 deleting 472 enquiring 446 latest costs 443 notes and comments 365 operation times 371, 429 operations 369 recording progress 465 scrapping 417, 420 subcontracting operations 449 substituting components 422 timesheets 433 updating BOMs 444 waiting postings 450 Bill of Materials adding 108, 117, 159 allocating stock 149 amending 135, 444 changing status 141, 144 checking in/out 133, 142, 143 components 155, 159, 161, 164 converting estimates into 228 copying 139 costing 101, 108, 149 deleting 138, 164 exporting 117 importing 117 making active 134, 144 maximum build quantity 153 planning 100 purging retired 138 resequencing 152 saving 133 settings 106-116 updating BOMs 444 updating operations 165 version control 102 Blow-through Phantoms 171

Breakdown costs 149, 443 Bulk Issue Item 122 Buy Recommendation 292

С

Calculator setting up a formula 28 Cancelling estimates 238 recommendations 319 works orders 459 Categories updating labour 239 Certificates of Conformity adding 93 amending 97 deleting 97 printing 97 reporting 98 settings 92-93 Charge Rate 88 Chargeable Time 436 Clock Number 85 Codes analysis 21 bar 85, 87 certificate 94 customer account 80 expense 88 labour category 82 nominal 37, 88 non-chargeable time 90 product 43, 94 prospect 80 sales ledger 80 stock 70 Colours 23 Combining recommendations 316 stock assembly and process costing 99 Complete (Batches Only) 348

Components adding 159 batch works orders 367 bill of materials 120 deleting 164 description 95 list on route card 342 maintaining 454 priority 119 replacing 161, 454 scrapping 419, 420 sub-assembly 123 substituting 420 viewing details 155 warehouses 288 works orders 367 Condition of Despatch 95 Confirm Traceable Numbers (Works Orders) 413 Connectina attachments with boms 127 attachments with estimates 202 attachments with works orders 373. 389 purchase orders with works orders 188, 379, 382 Copying attached files 140, 221, 343 between systems 43 bill of materials 139 components 140 customiser changes 33, 34 drawing revision numbers 292 drawings 140 due dates 221 estimates 180, 220 non-stock items 221 operations 60, 140, 221 other expenses 221 printing trial kitting results 148 quantity breaks 221 reports 48

sales forecasts 266 sales order comment lines 292 stages 221 stock items 221 Cost + Markup % 171, 182, 185 Costs bill of materials 101 breakdown 149, 372, 443 calculating 112, 113 chargeable activity 437 estimates 223 ignore zero 113 latest costs 151, 372, 443 miscellaneous items 114, 347 non-chargeable activity 435 non-stock 438 one-off works orders 384 other expenses 438 settings 112 sub-assemblies 113 tooling 57 trial kitting 113 updating 470 works orders 442 Creating data 7 demand 224, 244, 253, 261 purchase orders 287 reports 48, 53, 61, 68, 81, 83, 87, 89, 91, 98, 158, 237, 260, 267, 286, 331, 458 works orders 287 Criteria deleting bom records 138 mrp 298 stages 76, 198 CSV Format 44 Cumulative Lead Time 147 Custom Fields (BOM) 131 Custom Layouts 39 **Customiser Settings** custom labels 31

standard labels 34 using 31 Customising analysis code labels 21 BOM fields 131 BOM labels 115 customiser settings 31-33 highlight colours 23 reports 39, 48, 53, 61, 68, 81, 83, 87, 89, 91, 98, 158, 237, 260, 267, 286, 331, 458 D Dates automatically update 294 updating 294 Delay 56 Deleting attached files 64, 127, 374, 390 bill of materials 138 certificates of conformity 97 components 123, 164, 368 drawings 67 employees 86 estimates 219 expense types 89 labour categories 83

labour processes 48

machine records 52

operation times 453

postings 450

prospects 80

287, 330, 333, 473

make to stock items 257

non-working periods 26

operations 60, 371, 388

recommendations 318

works orders 348, 472

Demand 244, 253, 261, 269, 276, 285,

sales forecasts 265

stage templates 77

non-chargeable time categories 91
Demonstration Data accessing 8 using 8 Desktop 9 Documents 429 certificates of conformity 97 job sheet 56, 341, 396, 429 labels 398 operation card 341, 396 picking lists 341, 396, 399 printing comments 292 route card 55, 56, 292, 341, 396 works orders settings 341 Drawings adding 62 amending 65 bill of material details 129 deleting 67 estimate details 206 reporting 67, 68 **Duplicate Components 108** E

Employees adding 84 amending 86 deleting 86 monitoring 452 rate 344 reporting 87 updating 239 Enquiry order 385, 446 order enquiry 368 Entering analysis code labels 21 bill of materials settings 106 certificates of conformity 92, 93 customised values 31 drawings 62 employees 84 estimate settings 168 expense types 88

labour categories 82 labour processes 47 machine records 50 master production schedule settings 270 material requirements planning settinas 288 mrp criteria 298 nominal settings 37 non-chargeable time categories 90 non-working periods 26 numeric values 28 operation times and costs 429 operations 54 overhead recovery settings 27 prospects 79 recommendation split quantity 314 repeating items 258 stage templates 69 subcontract details 58 timesheets 433 works order settings 337 Errors colour 23 Estimate/Actual Details (One-off Works Orders) 384 Estimating adding 178, 471 adding stages automatically 70, 184 amending 214 cancelling 238 converting estimate from BOM 184 converting into boms 228 converting into works orders 226 copying 220 costing 223 creating sales orders 224 deleting 219 multi item settings 174 printing 222 settings 168-177 stages 190, 192, 229

Exceptions 328, 448 **Excluding Demands** automatic exclusions 277 manually 282 Expense Types adding 88 amending 89 deleting 89 reporting 89 Explode BOM 155 Exporting 43, 44 F Fast Entry Estimates 179 Filters 291 **Finished Items** scrapping 421

Firm Planning Period 291 Formula quantity calculator 28 Full Entry Estimates 178 Full Service 51

G

General Settings bill of materials 107 estimates 170 planning 271, 289 Getting Started 7 Graphical Planner excluding works orders 361, 378, 379 overview 5 settings 295, 334 working alongside mrp 241, 334

Η

Header Details (BOM) 118 Hierarchy warehouses 24 Highlight Colours 23 History bom revisions 133, 135 drawing revision 66

estimate modification 237 machine repair 50 Hold Quantity 122 Horizon Date 277, 298 Hourly Charge Rate 47, 50, 82 Ignore Stock and Inventory Policy 255, 274 Ignore Zero Costs and Zero Levels 113 Implode BOM 156 Importing 43, 44 Include In Labour Requirement 56 Include in MRP Replenishments 379 Including Demands 283 Invoice Description (Estimates) 204 Invoices current value 384 enter description text 204 information 383 Invoices/Credit Notes (One-off Works Orders) 383 J

Job Sheet 56, 341, 396

-Labels

analysis codes 21 barcode 87 bom labels settings 115 custom 31 standard 34 works orders 398 works orders settings 344 Labour Categories adding 82 amending 83 deleting 83 reporting 83 updating 239 Labour Records adding 47 amending 48

deleting 48 reporting 48 Labour Resource Group 48 Latest Costs (Batch Works Orders) 372 Lavouts 39 Lead Times buffer 271, 289 cumulative 147 production 299 purchase 292 purchase safety 299 l evels ianore zero 113 Linking additional files with boms 127 additional files with estimates 179 buy recommendations with demand for sales order lines 316 drawings and boms 66 drawings and estimates 66 items in demand 313 purchase orders with works orders 188 sales orders with works orders 244, 246, 248, 279, 392 stock items with warehouses 360 warehouses and stock items 44 works orders with purchase orders 342 works orders with sales orders 392

Μ

Machines adding 50 amending 52 deleting 52 reporting 53 Mail Merge 230 Main Details batch works order 359 estimates 183 one-off works orders 377 Maintain Warehouse Hierarchy 24, 288 Make Recommendation 292 Make To Stock ignore stock and inventory policy 255 Make to Stock adding 254 amending 256 deletina 257 entering repeating items 258 ignore stock and inventory policy 274 importing 254 Manufacturing modules 1, 13 process 12 structure 3 system manager 19 Mark-up estimate defaults 176 percentage 109 Master Production Schedule 245 automatic exclusions 277 excluding items manually 282 reading demand 276 removing items 278 settings 270-275 time phased demand 285 Material Requirements Planning calculating demand 298 output log 303 overview 248 recommendations 311, 314, 316, 318, 319 settings 288-297 stock projections 326 tags and exceptions 328 time phased demand 330 Maximum Build Quantity 109, 153 Memos batch works orders 365 estimates 208 MPS See Master Production Schedule MRP Output Log content 303

error logging 309 exceptions 307 layout 303 processing items 305 sending 301 viewing 301 MRP See Materials Requirements Planning Multi Item Estimates settings 174

Ν

New BOM 142 Nominal codes 88 ledger 460 postings 438, 450 settings 37 Nominal Settings entering 37 viewing 37 Non-chargeable Time Categories adding 90 amending 90 deleting 91 reporting 91 Non-stock deliveries 403 postings 439 stages items 194 Non-working Periods 26 Numbering 173 automatic certificate 92 estimate settings 173 resequencing 152 works orders settings 339 Numbering Settings estimates 173 works orders 339

0

Obsolete BOM 142 One-off Jobs 5, 355

One-off Works Orders adding 377, 381 amending 376, 383 analysis codes 391 attaching files and folders 389 cancelling 459 completing 466 costing 384, 442 creating estimates 471 deleting 472 enquiring 446 latest costs 443 maintaining operations 386 operation times 388, 429 postings 438 scrapping 417, 419 stages 386 substituting components 420 timesheets 433 waiting postings 450 Operation card 341, 396, 429 details 124, 370, 387 **Operation Times** overview 12, 474 postings 450, 474 works orders settings 350, 474 Operations adding 54 amending 60 copying 60 deleting 60 do not print on documentation 55 entering stages 195 postings 438 progress 429 reporting 61 subcontracting 58, 449 updating 165 viewing details 430, 431 Order Enquiry 385, 446 Ordinary Service 51

Other Expenses entering 196 posting 439 Output Log See MRP Output Log Overdue Purchase Orders 294 Overheads entering recovery settings 27 total recovery amount 76, 198 viewing recovery settings 27

Ρ

Perform Netting Off In Buckets 274 Phantoms bill of materials 100, 119, 147 blow-through 171 colour 23 Picking Lists 341, 396, 399 Piece Work 57 Planned Costs Breakdown 372 Planning bill of materials 100 creating demand 242, 244 graphical planner 241 make to stock 253 master production schedule 245, 269 material requirements planning 248, 287 MRP Output Log 303 non-working periods 26 overview 242 period 343 reading demand 276 recommendations 311, 314, 316, 318, 319 running MRP 298 sales forecasts 261 settings 270-275, 288-297 stock projections 326 tags and exceptions 328 Postings against labour categories 434 nominal settings 37

non-stock/other expenses 438 report 455 waiting postings 350, 450 works order nominal 363, 381 Printing advice notes 449 barcodes 85, 342, 345 certificates of conformity 97 certificates of conformity reports 98 component list 342 costs 149, 443 drawing reports 67 drawings 342 employee reports 87 estimates 222 expense type reports 89 final profitability reports 466 import and export file structures 44 iob sheets 341 labels 345, 398, 464, 469 labour category reports 83 labour register reports 48 machine register reports 53 message on certificate or conformity 93 non-chargeable time reports 91 one-off works orders by stage 341 operation cards 341 operation notes on works order documents 55 operation reports 61 picking lists 341, 396 preventing operation printing on works order documentation 55 prospect reports 81 auotations 222 route cards 341 sales order comments on works order documentation 292 sales orders 341 tagged orders 342

trial kitting results 148 works order tracking 370 Priority 382 Private BOM 119, 123 Processing Manufacturing Data 16 Production Safety Lead Time 292, 299 Prospects adding 79 amending 80 creating customers 80 deleting 80 reporting 81 **Purchase Orders** adding 250 overdue 294 Purchase Safety Lead Time 292, 299 Purging retired boms 138

Q

Quality Standard 95 Quantity breaks 184, 185 calculator 28, 29 per run 56 Quotations 222

R

Rapid Entry Estimates 171 Rates applying to employees 82 hourly 50, 239 operations 430 update automatically 159 updating automatically 69 Reading Demand 276 Recommendations actioning 250, 319 amending 311 buy (purchase order) 284, 292 combining 316 deleting 318 make (BOM) 284, 292

modifying 249 splitting 314 status 319 warehouse hierarchy 24 Record Settings (Works Orders) 343 Reaisters certificates of conformity 92 drawing 62 employees 84 expense types 88 labour 47 labour categories 82 machine 50 non-chargeable time 90 operations 54 stage templates 69 Release Stages 192, 229 Released Status 192, 259 **Removing Links** sales orders and works orders 281 Repeating Items 258 Repetitive Batches 5, 355 Replenishment Horizon 292, 299 Reports batch works orders 455 bill of materials 158 certificates of conformity 98 custom 39, 48, 53, 61, 68, 81, 83, 87, 89, 91, 98, 158, 237, 260, 267, 286, 331, 458 drawings 67, 68 employees 87 estimating 237 expense types 89 labour 48 labour categories 83 machines 53 make to stock 260 master production schedule 286 MRP output log 303 non-chargeable time categories 91 one-off works orders 456

operations 61 prospects 81 sales forecasts 267 subcontracting 457 works orders 370 Reprinting advice notes 449 **Resequencing Settings** bill of materials 110 estimates 175 Retired BOM 142 **Retrospective Posting 351** Revisions bill of materials 135 drawing 66 Rolled-up Costs 113 Route Card 56, 292, 341, 396 route card 429

S

Sales Forecasts adding 262 amending 264 copying 266 deleting 265 importing 262 Sales Orders batch works order 364 creating 224 linking with works orders 244, 246, 248, 279, 392 netting off against sales forecasts in buckets 274 removing links with works orders 281 Scrap components 419 finished items 417 percent 121 reason 417 reason codes settings 352 Security 348 Selling Prices BOM markup percentage 109

estimate setting 171, 182, 185 Setting Up Manufacturing 14 Settings analysis codes 21 bill of materials 106–116 costs 112 customiser 31-?? estimate 168-177 graphical planner 295 highlight colours 23 maintain warehouse hierarchy 24 master production schedule 273-275 material requirements planning 288-297 nominal 37 non-working periods 26 overhead recovery 27 planning 270-275, 288-297 quantity calculator 28 reason codes 352 trial kitting 112 works orders 337-354 Shortages colour 23 Shrinkage Percentage 56 Site Address estimates 189 Stage Templates adding 69 amending 77 deleting 77 updating operations 78 Stages automatically add to estimates 70 details 192, 386 fast estimate entry 182 header information 190 non-stock items 194 operations 195 other expenses 196 overview 190

releasing 192, 229 status 192, 229 stock items 192 totals 197 Status bom hold 108, 135, 141 bom version 133, 134, 135, 138, 140 estimate 187, 192, 227, 236, 238 make to stock items 255, 259, 263 one-off works orders 381 quantity break 185 recommendation 319 scrap reason code 352 stage 192, 229 works order 227, 236, 405, 460 Stock Allocation adding components 407 automatic 406 manual 407 Stock Issue adding components 412 automatic 412 confirm traceable numbers 413 manual 412 reversing 414 Stock Items (Stages) 192 Stock Projection 287, 326 Structure bom 100 manufacturing 3 Sub-assembly bom component 123 build 147 colour 23 costing 113 enquiries 446 maximum build 153 phantom bom 100, 119 quantity for costing 112 structure 100 Subcontract details 58

operations 449 Substituting Traceable Components 420 Tags 272, 290, 328, 448 Templates operation 43 stage 69, 77, 190 Time fences 273 phased demand 285, 330 Times/Costs 371, 388 Timesheet/Total Analysis Checking 434 Timesheets chargeable time 436 details 433 memorising 434 non-chargeable time 435 postings 433, 438 recalling 434 works orders settings 344 Tooling Costs 57 Totals estimates 200 stages 197 timesheet analysis 344 Traceable components 420 items 417 numbers 413 Tracking Details (Batch Works Orders) 369 Trial Kitting settings 112 using 146 Types cost 167, 438 expense 27, 88, 168, 440 job 5 recommendation action 319 replenishment 304

U

Unallocate Stock 405, 406 Understanding Manufacturing 3, 11 Unit measure 122, 292 sale 88 Unlinking sales orders and works orders 281, 395 Update Operations 165 Updating bill of materials 133, 135, 444, 445 dates 294 employees 239 estimates 471 forecast totals 263 held boms 152, 160, 162, 164 history 66 labour 78, 159, 165 labour categories 239 machine rates 78, 159, 165 modules 162 nominal ledger 438, 460, 461, 466 non-stock deliveries 403 operations 69, 78, 159, 165 postings 350, 450 resource details 56 stage templates 78 stock 122, 160, 367, 404, 409, 461, 465,469 works order costs 372, 442, 450, 460, 461, 466 works order percentage complete 363, 382 Use Batch Updates 350 User Interface 9 Utilities exporting data 45 importing data 44 V Version Control 102, 108

Viewing bill of materials 67 bill of materials settings 116 cancelled orders 276 certificate of conformity settings 93 completed orders 276 components 135, 155 demand forecast 330 estimate settings 177 estimates 67 exceptions 328, 448 import and export file structures 44 latest costs 151 master production schedule settings 275 material requirements planning settings 297 mrp output log file 298, 301 nominal settings 37 operation details 430, 431 operation times breakdown 371, 388 overhead costs 151 overhead recovery settings 27 recommendation details 327 stock projections 326 subcontract operations 449 tags 328, 448 time phased demand 285 waiting postings 450 works order costs 372, 443 works order estimate/actual details 384 works order purchase orders 368 works orders settings 354

W

Warehouses combining recommendations 316 completion 378 excluding works orders from graphical planner 361, 379 importing make to stock items 44 maintain component 337

maintain hierarchy 24 make to stock items 254 sales forecasts 262, 277 specifying 181 Works Orders adding 250, 335, 355 amending 358, 376, 399 cancelling 459 closing 470 converting estimates into 226 converting into BOMs 445 costing 442 deleting 472 enquiring 446 issuing stock 409 latest costs 443 linking with sales orders 244, 246, 248, 279, 392 maintaining components 454

monitoring employees 452 operation times and costs 429 postings 438 priority 382 producing documents 396 ready to be made 402 removing links with sales orders 281 reversing 409, 414 scrapping 417, 419 settings 337-354 subcontracting operations 449 tags and exceptions 448 timesheets 433 updating non-stock deliveries 403 waiting postings 450 Write Off components 419 finished items 417